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• 1 up this part of the process, which will all& a bunch of 

2 yru to leave. 
My preferenoe is take a short recess. Bring yoo back 

4 and finish up, rather then taking an hour-and-a-half lunch 

break. 

We' 11 take a ten minute reoess. 

JURY AJ:1-0l!TIOO 
wring the recess, ladies and gentlaren, 

you are adrronished not to converse am:mg yourselves or 

10 with anyone else, inclocli.ng, without limitation, the 

11 lawyers, parties and witnesses, on any subject connected 

12 with this trial, or any other case referred to during it, 
13 or read, watch, or listen to any report of or canrentary 

14 on the trial, or any person connected with this trial, or 
15 any such other case by any rredium of infom,tion 

16 including, without limitation, newspapers, television, 

17 internet or radio. 
18 You are further adrronished not to form or 

19 express any opinion on any subject connected with this 

20 trial until the case is finally suhnitted to you. 

21 THE COORI': We're still on the record, 
22 outside the presenoe of the jury. 

23 As to the three challenges for cause raised this 

24 irorning. I'm going to grant all three of those. Ms. Ware 
25 was the individual -- Badge nurrller 061 -- that indicated 
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she would only consider the d',ath penalty as a punishment 

and was fairly finn on that. Ms. Matts, badge nurriJer 069, 

indicated for religious reasons she ;.ould not consider the 

4 death penalty under any circunstanoes. And similarly Ms. 

Jackson, badge mmr 080, said the sane thing. 
So I' 11 grant the challenges for cause as to those 

7 three. That puts us at 27 folks passed for cause so far. 

So we only need five oore passed for cause and you' 11 have 

your panel of 32. 

10 MR. SCH!ErK: Are we going to fill those 

11 slots directly back into those slots? 

12 TIIE CXXIRI': What it is, let's assure 
13 nc!xxly else gets passed for cause, then you will have 

14 questioned 38 people. I'll excuse the six that have 

15 already been challenged for cause and granted. You' 11 --

16 in order -- have the 32 people you can begin ooking 

11 strikes on. Understood? 

18 

19 

MR. SCH!ErK: I think I understand. 
MR. Cl-lENS: · D::l us a favor and run the 

20 narres down to us. 

21 TIIE CXXIRI': I'm keeping a list so I'll 
22 ooke a copy of it. 
23 MR. MNS: Could be ask about 

24 scheduling. 

25 TIIE CXXIRI': Well, I want to kind of keep 
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• going until we coold get the next five passed for cause. 

Then take a lunch break. You have your 32. I krm the 
other people from earlier today will be here at 1:30. 

4 They have the "'1ole norning off so they ,don't have to sit 

5 around. 
6 We' 11 take a lunch break. When we 'come ta.ck after 

lunch break we should have the jury in plaoe, I ;.ould 

think. And you can still get to openings today. 

MR. SCH!ErK: D::l the c¥J,enges after 

10 lunch break, so we've got a lunch break 'to think about 

11 it. 

12 TIIE CXXIRI': No, actually -- yoo want to do 
13 it that way? 

14 MR. ™ENS: I think he Jants to let jurors 
15 go. 

16 MS. WErKERLY: Could you oo)!Je after we 
11 get to that nurriJer take a ten minute bniak and confer 
18 before we do the kicks? 

19 TIIE CXXIRI': Either or. :u yoo want the 

20 lunch break to kick over the 32 narres and figure out "'1at . 
21 you want to do. 

22 MR. SCH!ErK: Ten is fir)e for us. We just 

23 take ten, do the strikes and send everylxxly home and go to 

24 lunch and come back for openings. ; 

25 TIIE CXXIRI': All right. 

I 

We' 11 be in reoess. Thank you. 

(Brief recess taken. I · 

3 TIIE CXXIRI': Back on rea\rd the record in 
i 

4 C-131341, State of Nevada versus James qtiappell. The 

record will reflect the presenoe of Mr. •Chappell with his 

attorneys, State's attorneys. We' re in 1the presence of 
' 7 our prospective jurors. 
' 

91 

We'll continue on with questioning[of oor prospective 

10 

11 

12 

jury panel. 

Mr. o.ens, as to Ms. Gernot. 
PROOPErTIVE JURCR: Yes.; 

TIIE CXXIRI': Badge 085. 

13 MR. Cl-lENS: Ms. Gemot, 
1
how are you? 

14 PROOPECTIVE JURCR: Good! 
' I . 15 MR. Cl-lENS: How s your parentlilg style? 

16 PROSPECTIVE JURCR: Pretty strict. 
I 

17 MR. CMENS: You said in :here, you don I t 
18 have any children. 

19 PROOPECTIVE JURCR: I have.a aog. 
20 MR. il/rnS: But you have anilll3ls, and 
21 you're strict with your anim3.ls. i 

22 PROOPEX:TIVE JURCR: She\s a very good dog. 
23 She's a medical dog for my nother. I qd her training. 

24 MR. illrnS: You found t:l)at strict ;.orks 
25 with her too? 
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10 

PROSPECTIVE JUP()R: You can't -- you have 

to be the head of the pack, it says in training. But she 
still gets treats and belly rubs, so she's a happy puppy. 

I have a picture if anyone wants to see it later. 

MR. MNS: The -- you had a situation -­

you're a very young person. I was talking about that 

earlier. Do you feel you' re prepared for this type of 

experience, this weight of responsibility to consider 

thinking about? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Well, I think it is a 

11 good experience, helping rre prepare for the future and 

12 other hard decisions I'm going to have the make 

13 eventually. This is our justice system. I have to uphold 

H to that. . And being that that is one of the choices, I'm 

15 willing to accept it and look at the circumstances and do 

16 what I have to do. 

11 MR. MNS: You feel you can step up to 

18 that responsibility and fulfill that? 

19 PROSPECTIVE JUP()R: Yes. 

20 MR. a.ENS: You consider yourself to be a 

21 fairly strong person? 

22 PROSPECTIVE JUP()R: I try. 

23 MR. a.ENS: And you have been involved in 

24 the trial programs and other things. Are you studying 

25 that at the camrunity college? 

PROSPECTIVE JUP()R: No. It's only -- 1<1en 

I was in it, it was only a high school program. After 

high school, you graduated and did whatever you wanted to 

4 do. So I was in it in 10th and 12th grade. 

MR. Oii'ENS: You've taken sare classes in 

criminal justice, ;.orking toward a camunications degree? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 
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MR. MNS: Is that media or -­

PROSPECTIVE JUP()R: Well, I already have a 

10 general camrunications degree. Now I'm either going to do 

11 a bachelors in English, and a minor in marketing and 

12 advertising. 

13 MR. MNS: All right. You must have had 

l 4 a bad exp2rience as a victim? 

15 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yeah. Yes. It was 
16 not good. 

11 MR. MNS: You didn't put a lot of 

18 details in here. 
19 PROSPECTIVE JUP()R: I figured I could talk 
20 to you about it. In Septeniler of last year -- Septffiber 

21 18, 2006, I was -- I was robl:ed. And it was actually --
22 it was rrore of a con artist thing. It was supposed to be 

23 a brother/sister situation, and it turns out that they go 
24 around befriending pecple than rronths late they rob them. 
25 And they' re convicted felons. And they both got let off 
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very easy. I was suqxienaed, but they did plea bargain so 

I never got to go to court or state my opinion. I got 

maybe ten percent of the restitution owed. I haven't 

4 received a check fmn that, yet. It was pretty hash for 
rre. I'm an up-standing citizen with just like a parking 

ticket on my record. And I thought that I knew scrre 

7 things about the justice system. It wai rrore like a 

reality check for rre that of the way things go, I 

10 

11 

' suppose. 

MR. MNS: How much IlD']"Y did you lose? 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Over three thousand 

12 dollars. 

13 MR. MNS: And you felt, that a violation . 

14 of the trust you had was gone? 

15 PROSPECTIVE JUP()R: Yeah. It was hard. 
16 In fact, in my witness staterrent I put lke I felt like I 

11 was raped. These were people I trusted,! and I 

18 befriended. 

19 

20 

MR. Ck/ENS: Like a ~rs~l invasion? 
PROSPECTIVE JUP()R: Exactly. 

21 MR. a.ENS: What did they plead guilty to? 

22 PROSPECTIVE JUP()R: WelI, actually the 

23 male was charged with five felonies. He, plea bargained 
24 after two weeks in jail to t;.o misderreanors and a year of 

25 probation. And the girl was let off. 'I)le police officers 
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I 

were great. They were arrested. They ~re booked and 

everything. But the girl was released tpe next day and -­
and even trying to speak with her DA, the DA didn't even 

4 call rre until after she put in the plea liargain and her 

felony got reduced to a misdemeanor. 

10 
11 

12 

iJ 

14 

MR. MNS: They both got misdemeanors? 

PROSPECTIVE JUP()R: Yes. When they are 

previous felons. That's what hurt rre, .hen we researched 
into their background. 

MR. MNS: was it for that sarre kind of 
stuff? 

PROSPECTIVE JUP()R: Yeah -- yes. 

MR. Cl'IINS: You were hoping for a felony 

conviction? 
15 PROSPECTIVE JUP()R: It ckn•t be overturned 

16 now .. 

11 MR. OOENS: That's what :you were hoping 
18 for? I 

19 PROSPECTIVE JUP()R: I wa\; hoping for 

20 sarething roore serious to hai:pen, yes. ' 

21 MR. a-lENS: Are your feebngs about that 
22 such that it vK)uld create an unfair situktion for us or 

• I 

23 the Defendant? You might say now is my _chance to get back 
24 at scrrebody? 
25 PROSPECTIVE JUP()R: No .. Because I don't 
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really hold vengeance. It's sarething I had to core with 

rersonall y and get over and try to understand myself. 

That situation has nothing to do with the situation at 

hand here. 
MR. cwrns: You can separate that in your 

min:i? 

PROSPECTIVE JUP/JR: Yes. 

MR. cwrns: You wouldn't hold that against 

the State or the police? 

10 PROSPECTIVE JUPDR: No, definitely not. 

11 MR. cwrns: Then you said you were okay 

12 with the death renalty as one of the options here? 

13 PROSPECTIVE JUPDR: Yes. 

14 MR. CWENS: You don't have any 

15 philosophical problems with it? 

16 PROSPECTIVE JUPDR: No. 

17 MR. CWENS: You felt that it might be 

18 appropriate for brutal crimes? 

19 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

20 MR. CWENS: You haven't heard what the 

21 criteria is fran the court. 
22 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: 00. 

23 MR. cwrns: You're willing to keep an open 

24 min:i about it. 

25 PROSPECTIVE JUP/JR: Yes. 

MR. cwrns: And see what the law is and 

what all circumstances are before you lll1ke your decision? 

PROSPECTIVE JlroR: Yes. 

MR. cwrns: If after hearing all of the 

evidence in the case and you felt that the death renalty 
was appropriate, wouid you be able to do that? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 
MR. CWENS: Okay. There's a slight 

hesitation there. 
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10 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I rrean, I would really 

11 have to feel that that was a fair punishment, after 
12 examining the evidence and taking in all the excruciating 

13 cirrunstances. I would have to be very genuine that that 

H is what he should get. If I did feel that way, yes, I 

15 could pass that jWJllleilt. 

16 MR. cwrns: You talked about because of 

17 your experience with the trial (sic) and the court tYre 

18 situation you had, you look forward to being involved in 

19 the process. 

20 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: That was before we 
21 waited like two days. But now we're getting to the point, 
22 I still would like to be a part of the process. It's been 

23 interesting. 
24 MR. CWENS: You can appreciate that that 
25 lll1kes you unique in wanting to be on the jury. 
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

MR. cwrns: Your interest in the system 

isn't such that you might want to get o~ so bad that you 

4 are not worrying to nuch about what the :consequences are 

on that serious jWJllleilt? 
PROSPEITIVE JUP/JR: I have had lots of 

7 time to think of this in the roan and Sjieaking to it with 

my nother and really questioning myself,'. if this was 

sarething I can do. Sc I've thought about it. 
10 MR. cwrns: Okay. Than]( you. Pass for 

11 call5e, your Honor. 

12 

13 

IBE COURr: Thank you. Mr. Schieck. 

MR. SCHIE!:K: Thank you,: your Honor. 

14 Ms. Gemot, you indicate that, with 
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15 resrect to the death renalty, you didn' i think that it was 
16 used enough. 

17 PROSPECTIVE JlroR: Well, roore like what 

18 the fellow Jurcr was saying that not so 'much that it's not 

19 used enough, but it's the time span is outrageous that 
I 

20 these reople are sitting, and sitting, ~ sitting, and 

21 like they are serving life. Sc not that it's not used 
22 enough, but lll1)De it's not executed fast enough. 

23 MR. SCHIE!:K: But you cJdn•t have any 

24 proolems deciding what the awropriate ~slment is and 

25 not worrying about the other things? 

PROSPECTIVE JlroR: No. 

MR. SCHIE!:K: And you say you are 

generally in favor of the death renalty.: Is that 

sarething you thought about before you filled out the 

questionnaire or just confronted you at :that time? 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I have done parers in 

I 
7 school and such, research. And I have fomed an opinion 

• • I 
back rn high school. . 

MR. SCHIE!:K: You did parers in high 
10 school about the death renalty? 

11 PROSPECTIVE JlroR: And ;in college. 

11 MR. SCHIE!:K: What tYre ,of courses were 
13 you taking? 

14 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: It started in my 
15 govemrent classes. And then being with trial-by-reers 

16 and doing misdemeanor cases, they still ,taught us about 

11 all the tY{:es of renalties for the cr~s. Sc basically 

18 having to research it for my 12th grade :goverrnent class 
19 is what decided rre. 

' 10 MR. SCHIE!:K: In doing t:hat parer, were 
21 you required to take a position for or ~gainst, or was it 
12 a parer where you are sort of giving general inforlll1tion 
23 about it? 
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24 PROSPECTIVE JlroR: She asked us to take a 
25 position. 
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MR. SCHIEX:K: What position did you take? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: For. 
MR. SCHIEX:K: Did you have a choioe as to 

4 which position to take or was it assigned? 

10 

11 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: There was no wrong 

answer. 
MR. SCHIEX:K: There was no wrong ans.,,r, 

in that you oould choose whichever way you wanted to write 

the paper? 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

MR. SCHIEX:K: Why did you back ;men you 

12 were a senior in high school choose to write in favor of 

13 the death penalty? 

14 PROSPECTIVE JUroR: Well, first of all 

15 because of the arr,eals process. If they are -- if they 
16 are sentenced to rrurder or death, they cb get another 

11 chance to have their case overlooked. And because -- fran 

18 ;mat I researched -- this was like 7 years ago -- it 

19 se€1ll2d like the cases that did have the death penalty 

20 awlied to thf!n. I felt that it was substantiated. 
21 MR. SCHIEX:K: But you thought the process 

22 that we go through before that's ever considered as an 

23 awropriate punishrrent is a fair one? 

24 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

25 MR. SCHIEX:K: That's the one you want to 
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be part of, the one that considers all the factors and all 

the cirruostances. 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: That's inportant. 

A MR. SCHIEX:K: In preparing your paper, 

back in high school, did you find that there were sore 

cases that the death wasn't deserved, even though it was 

1 first degree nurder, you felt the system worked in those 

cases also? 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Not being there 

10 first-hand, not knowing the families, not go to in depth 
11 with the case itself, I didn't even try to think to pass 

12 judgment like that at that tine. 

13 MR. SCHIEX:K: Thank you, very IIIl.lch, 

14 Ms. Gemot. We pass for cause, your Honor. 

15 THE COURI': Mr . Otiens, as to 

16 Mr. Schechter. 

MR. CMENS: How are you, sir? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Fine. 

11 

18 

19 MR. oorns: You feel you're an cpen minded 

20 person? 
21 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes, I cb. 
22 MR. CMNS: Are you okay with the idea of 
23 this process of listening to all the facts and 

24 cirCI.Ill'Stanoes before making up your mind as to ;mat the 

25 awrcpriate punishrrent should be? 
102 
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes,, of course. 

MR. OOENS: You don't have a problem doing 

that? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I have to listen 
I 

first. HC>I can I make up my mind ;men I have no 

information. 
MR. oorns: You have no prcblem with the 

different types of punisrnent that are a,vailable? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I kri:r,, the jury caning 
10 in may have their voices heard, but, you kncM, I haven't 

! 
11 decided personally. I think after ;mat tittle I read on 

. I 
12 the case so far, I have yet to care up ~ith all of that. 

13 MR. oorns: Okay. Well,' in that sense the 

14 majority has to agree to it, okay. And \.lien you talk 

15 about this other range of punishrrent, oJ the one side it's 
I 

16 life with the possibility of parole, you can't imagine a 

11 situation right now ;mere that would be a[:!)ealing to you? 

18 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I calmot imagine it 
I 

19 now, but --

20 MR. MNS: You'll leave it cpen to the 

21 possibility there may be one? 

22 PROSPECTIVE JUroR: Yeah.I 

23 MR. MNS: Once you've beard the 

24 evidence, there may be a cirCI.Ill'Stance .!\ere it may be 

25- ar:prq:iriate? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Possibly. 
I 
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MR. oorns: so you are willing to keep an 
I 

open mind and wait until you've heard everything? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Sure.: I'll consider 

all four forms of punishrrent before rer,i,ring a 

decision. 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes,( sir. 
MR. OOENS: You are not 

1
eliminating any up 

front? 

10 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I'm ,hot eliminating 
11 them, no. I'm leaning tC>1ard death. I 
12 MR. OOENS: Leaning is okay. 

13 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I ha:'"n't chosen it 

14 right off the bat. 

15 MR. oorns: You've got ti> hear everything 

16 first. There was SCIIE things you said Ji here about your 
I 

11 cpinion at the tine you filled out the questionnaire. You 
18 were asked your cpinion about the case. You pointed out, 

' 19 awrcpriatel y, that you were told at the: beginning of the 

20 questionnaire Mr. Chawell was convicted. of these charges. 
21 You knC>i that about the situation, right? 
22 PROSPECTIVE JUroR: Yes.i 
23 MR. MNS: Then you said his punisrnent 

24 ought to be the strictest. There makes it sound kind of 
25 like you have made up your mind. Is tha_t ;mat you meant? 
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• 1 PRCGPECTIVE JUPDR: No. I only rrean I'm 

leaning ta.ard death. But I can't make a final 

decision. 
MR. CMNS: So you rreant based upon .!lat 

you knew at the bne? 
PROSPECTIVE JUPDR: Yes. What I knCM so 

7 far, as little as that is. 

10 

11 

MR. CMNS: You're willing to listen to 

everything.before caning to a decision in the case? 

PRCGPECTIVE JUPDR: Yes, sir. 

MR. CMNS: You have been involved or 
12 sCllEbody was involved in sare kind of arrest, OOI or 

11 sarething? 

14 

15 

16 

PRCGPECTIVE JUPDR: Yes. 

MR. CMNS: What was that about? 
PROSPECTIVE JUPDR: He is still a friend 

11 of mine. I think he is basically a decent guy. He 
18 just -- it was a time of his life he was drinking too 

19 IT11ch, and he wasn't -- he hadn't really thought it 

20 through, even now. He's a nice guy. Not a thoughtful 

21 person. I think he's learned his lesson. After that he 

22 doesn't drink as IT11ch. He was out on the road and was 

23 pulled over, caught, that kind of thing. well, the 

24 consequences thereof --

25 MR. CMNS: This was a person you felt 

1 close to? 

105 

PROSPECTIVE JUPDR: Not ·c1ose. I mean, he 

is a friend. Not one of my close friends. 
MR. oo:NS: Did you go to court or 

participate in that process at all? 
PROSPECTIVE JUPDR: I heard about this all 

after the fact. 
MR. oorns: In sare of these questions on 

the death penalty you "'2re asked about .!lat kind of 

10 cirrunstances. You gave a nunber of different things. 

11 Like most of the jurors say, they said, if I knCM a 

12 hundred percent, of it it's a really brutal crime. Then I 
13 think the thing that's inportant to rerraiber here is you 

14 may have certain ideas in your head as to .!lat is 

15 deserving of the death penalty, okay. But the court is 
16 going to give you law about the factors that are set out 

11 for consideration by law. Are you okay with that? 

18 
19 

PROSPECTIVE JUPDR: Yes, sir. 
MR. CMNS: can you follCM the law that 

20 the court gives you? 

21 PRCGPECTIVE JUPDR: Yes. 
22 MR. oo:NS: And apply the factors that the 

23 court instructs you on? 
24 PROSPECTIVE JUPDR: Yes, sir. 
25 MR. CMNS: If after hearing all the 
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evidence in the case and all the facts and cirrunstanced 

surrounding the event, you felt that the deatJ-. penalty was 

the apprq,riate sentence, ""uld you be able to OllE back 

with that verdict? 
PROSPECTIVE JUPDR: Yes, sir. I could. 

MR. CMNS: How cb you ~eel about the idea 

7 of rendering Judgment like that on a fe~low hurran being? 

PROSPECTIVE JUPDR: 1 t lS not sarething 
that I would take lightly. I rrean, if I felt if after 

10 thinking it through, as IT11ch as -- fran 'every possible 
I 

11 angle, yes, if that's the judgment that 
1

needs to be 

12 rendered, then yes. · 

13 MR. CMNS: That's sarething you can cb? 
I 

14 PRCGPECTIVE JUPDR: Yes. 

15 MR. CMNS: All right. ~ you. Pass 
16 for cause. 

11 
18 

19 

1HE COURr: Mr. Schieck. · 
I 

MR. SCHIEX:K: Thank you,•, your Honor. 

Mr. Schechter, do you have any problem 

20 with the concept that not all first degrke llllider requires 
21 a death penalty? 

22 PRCGPECTIVE JUPDR: No. : 

23 MR. SCHIEX:K: You un:lers,tand that there is 
24 a system in place where there could be a! first degree 

25 ITIJrder conviction where the dsath penalt~ is not even an 
107 

q,tion in that case? 
PROSPECTIVE JUPDR: Not even an option? 

I 
MR. SCHIEX:K: wt me exp).ain. In order to 

4 be eligible to receive the death penalty
1 

the State has to 

prove an aggravated cirCUI!l5tance or cirCUI!l5tances beyond a 
I 

reasonable doubt to the jury. If there ~s not such 
aggravating cirrunstances in the case, e',en though it's 

first degree nurosr, the death penalty is not an option in 

that case. 

PRCGPECTIVE JUPDR: Aggravating 
I 

10 

11 circumstance? 
I 

12 MR. SCHIEX:K: Yes. The: judge will define 
13 those for you -- or the rrenters of the jjl!y when he gives 

14 instructions to the jury. Do you have any problem with 
15 that concept? 

16 PROSPECTIVE JUPDR: No. 
I 

11 MR. SCHIEX:K: You indicated that you' re 

18 leaning toward the death penalty as an apprq,riate 
19 punislment for first degree nurder? 

20 

21 

PRCGPECTIVE JUPDR: Yes,: I cb. 

MR. SCHIEX:K: But you ~ keep an open 
22 mind. 

23 PROSPECTIVE JUPDR: I'm ~illing to listen. 
24 I'm willing to listen. 

25 MR. SCHIEX:K: Are you witling, if you 
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1 don't think the death penalty is appropriate, to check 

that box also, the box that says a life sentence? 
PROSPEX:'IIVE JUFOR: Yes, sir. I don't 

think -- to be honest, I don't think that's necessarily 

nore lenient, because -- well, the death penalty, even 
with all of the issues surrounding it, one thing is for 

certain, a dead lll3J\ is beyond hann, a life lll3J\ is not, 

Previously one of the questions you asked the jury, 

no, I'm not -- no 11Ellilers of my family has gotten involved 

10 in that sort of thing, but I met sare characters in my 

11 life. One or two I've koo,m, fonner convicts. And you 

12 koo,i, I've never been to prison myself, but I have heard 

13 about what goes on in there. And thinking even life in 

14 prison is like, is that nore lenient, _after hearing about 

15 it. That could by a death sentence itself. You could end 
16 up killed in the yards. So I don't necessarily think 

11 that's mere lenient or just. 

18 MR. SCH!El:K: Thank you, very llUlch. We 

19 pass for cause, your Honor. 

20 THE COIJRI: Thank you. Ms. Weckerly, as 

21 to Ms. Bundren (sic) . 

22 MS. WE!:KERLY: You indicated on your 

23 questionnaire that you know either lawyers or police 

24 officers in the criminal justice system. 

25 PROSPEX:'IIVE JUFOR: Yes. 

MS. WE!:KERLY: What context? 
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PROSPEX:'IIVE JUROR: Where I work they care 

in for checks, the DA running for election. They 

4 socialize with a couple of judges, police officers through 

acquaintances. One is rrarried to a friend of mine. 
MS. WE!:KERLY: And the fact that you have 

1 these relationships, would that cause you to favor or 

disfavor one side or the other in this proceeding? 

PROSPEX:'IIVE JUROR: No. 

10 MS. WE!:KERLY: You're able to separate 

11 that? 

12 

13 

PROSPEX:'IIVE JUPffi: Yes. 
MS. WE!:KERLY: And you also mentioned on 

14 your questionnaire that you or a close family 11Elliler had 

15 been arrested for --
16 PROSPEX:'IIVE JUROR: Myself. 

11 MS. WE!:KERLY: I think you mentioned that 

18 yesterday. cin you explain that? 

19 PROSPEX:'IIVE JUROR: I like to shop. I 

20 bought sarething frcrn scrnecne I shouldn't have. He was an 

21 undercover police. So I went through the system. 
22 MS. WE!:KERLY: Did you feel like you were 

23 treated fairly? 
24 PROSPEX:'IIVE JUl'JlR: I thought I was pretty 

25 stupid. 
110 

10 

11 

MS. WE!:KERLY: But nothing about that 

experience gives you a bad feeling about police officers? 

PRffiPEX:'IIVE JUPffi: No. No. 
MS. WE!:KERLY: You wrote that you or 

sareone close to you had been the vict:iJll of a crime as 

well. 

PROSPEX:'IIVE JUROR: We ljad our house 
roobed a couple of times. 

MS. WE!:KERLY: Were you hare at the brre? 

PROSPEX:'IIVE JUROR: No. 1 No. 

12 the night? 
MS. WE!:KERLY: So you "'re away out for 

I 

13 

14 

15 

PROSPEX:'IIVE JUPffi: Right. Right. 

MS. WE!:KERLY: Was anyorje ever caught? 

PRffiPEX:'IIVE JUPffi: No, because I kind of 

kn -~- . .I 16 e,, """ nay have roooed me the first tJrre, so there was 
11 no catching her. The second time it wa~ kids. 
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MS. WE!:KERLY: Did you ·can the police in 
I 

18 

19 either case? 
20 

21 to the house . 

22 

PROSPEX:'IIVE JUROR: Yeah. They came out 
I 

MS. WE!:KERLY: Were you happy with how 

23 they investigated. i 
I 

PROSPEX:'IIVE JUFOR: Sure' Sure' 24 

25 MS. WE!:KERLY: Reading ypur questionnaire 
111 

you indicated that you can consider the death penalty as a 
I 

potential punishment. · 
' PROSPEX:'IIVE JUROR: Yes' ' 

MS. WE!:KERLY: You're sarbne that would 

like to hear all of the infonnation that you could hear 
before making that type of decision? 

PRffiPEX:'IIVE JUROR: After reading that, 

.here a weapon was used, a person 11UJtde~, I just could 

net see how it could go any other way ext.pt the death 
10 penalty. 

11 MS. WE!:KERLY: Well, the: judge has talked 
12 about it a little bit, and I think Mr. Schleck just 

13 mentioned that there are certainly legal: requirnrents that 
' 14 have to be met before the jury can consider the death 
I 

15 penalty as a potential punishment. And J)rlge Herndon is 
16 going to instruct you on that law at the; end of this 

11 proceeding. Would you be able to foll™: the judge's 

18 instructions on that? 
I 

19 PROSPEX:'IIVE JUROR: Proqbly not. 
20 

21 
MS. WE!:KERLY: You ""uldn't? 

PROSPEX:'IIVE JUROR: I would think just 
22 reading what was on the papzr, the questiormaire, 
23 really -- I don 1t bend easily, so . . . : 

24 MS. WE!:KERLY: You think'. you'd 

25 autcrnatically pick out a punishment wimbut hearing the 
' 112 
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1 infometion? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I think I would. 
MS. WEX:KERLY: And I take it, it didn't 

4 matter .!lat the judge's instructions would be, you de it 

any.ay? 
PROOPECTIVE JUROR: I'd de .!lat I thought 

7 was right. 
MS. WEX:KERLY: So there is no way you 

could see yourself looking at all four punishments in this 

10 situation? 

11 PROSPECTIVE JllKR: I den' t think so. 

12 can't say positive, but I den't think so. 

13 MS. WEX:KERLY: That's sort of the 

14 ·question. 

15 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I really den't think 

16 so. I quite honestly cannot see hC>I I could not 

11 punishment scnelxx:ly that carrni tted a nrurder. 

18 MS. WEX:KERLY: You understand that not all 

19 rmn:ders are eligible for the death penalty? 

20 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I'm not familiar with 

21 things like that. I was just, off the questionnaire it 

22 said he used a weapon, things like that. And he nrurdered 

23 her, so that's what I wculd be going by. 

24 MS. WECKERLY: And there are people that 

25 carrnit first degree murder with a weapon that are not 

eligible, legally, for the death penalty. Is that 

2 s<I1Ething you could accept? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I would have to, if 

4 it's not an option. 
MS. WEX:KERLY: Okay. So in that type of 

situation, you're saying you'd follanr the law? 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I can follC>I the law, 

sure. 

113 

MS. WEX:KERLY: And the law also tells you 

10 in am penalty hearing or this type of situation that you 

11 have to at least consider -- not telling you .!lat weight 

12 you have to give certain pieces of infonnation -- but you 

13 have to at least listen to infonnation that's presented in 

14 a hearing like this. l'l:luld )'OU be able to de that? 
15 PROSPECTIVE JUFOR: I could always 

16 listen. 

11 MS. WEX:KERLY: After that, of course, the 

18 decision is left to you am )'Our fellow jurors. I assume 

19 you can make a decision at that point? 

20 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I could. 

21 MS. WECKERLY: Thank you, rre I am. Pass for 

22 cause, your Honor. 
23 THE COURT: Mr. Patrick. 

24 MR. PATRICK: Ms. Bundren, Ms. Weckerly 
25 asked you, you said you wculd autmatically pick a 
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penalty. 

PROSPECTIVE JUFOR: I wculd autmatically 
pick a penalty -- just off the questioru\aire. 

10 

MR. PATRICK: What penalty wculd you 

autmaticall y pick? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: leath. 

MR. PATRICK: In your qt)eStionnaire you. 

said you've always thought this way aboijt the death 
penalty? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I have. 

11 MR. PATRICK: I think th~ last thing you 

12 wrote on the questionnaire was that you 'are not open 
I 

13 minded enough to think there's an excus~? 

14 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I•~ very narrC>I 
15 minded about that. 

16 MR. PATRICK: What you' ,;e telling us is 
11 your mind is made up? 

18 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: It pretty much is. 
' 19 MR. PATRICK: There's not much chance 

20 we' 11 change that, is there? 

21 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Not by going off the 

22 questionnaire, no. l 

23 MR. PATRICK: We'd challenge for cause, 
24 your Honor. I 

25 THE COOR!: Let ma ask »JU a question, 

Ms. Bundren, because a couple of times )'JU kind of put a 
I 

caveat to your stat€11l2llt about saying, ~ff the 
questionnaire. You understand there's going to be a 

4 hearing where witnesses, evid2nce is goipg to care in. 

Both sides have to present .!Jatever they
1 

want to examine 

the witnesses on. And that's the evidence that you're 

going to rely upon to make a decision, not --

115 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Not 
1
the questionnaire. 

Right. 
i 

10 THE COOR!: That being the case, can you 

11 listen to the evidence presented in the hearing? 
12 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: · I could. 

13 THE COOR!: And after ha½ng listened to 

14 that evidence, is it your statffiellt tocla~ that you would 

15 be able to consider all of the forms of punishment? 
16 PROOPECTIVE JllKR: I could if it was 

' 11 different fran the statement. 

18 THE COOR!: I don't knc,,) that it's 

19 different fran the statement, but obviously it's rrme 

20 expansive. You're going to get rrore inf~nnation about 

21 things during the penalty hearing. So Ii don't want to say 
22 it's going to be different. I'm just going to say that I 
23 v,Quld expect you'll receive rrore inform3.tion at:out 
24 everything involved here. 

25 So .Ila t I need to knC>I i~ if you ' 11 be 
114 116 
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1 able to consider all forms of punishment. 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I could consider it. 

THE COORr: Okay, yes or no? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

THE COOR!': ]):)es either side want to ask 

any questions based on my questions to the Juror? 

. 1 MR. PATRICK: Court's indulgence .. No, 

your Honor. 

THE COURI': All right. Mr. ()..Jens, as to 

10 Ms. Staley. 

11 MR. Oi/ENS: How are you? 

12 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Fine. I would like to 

13 say sarething I didn't put in there. 

14 

15 

MR. Oi/ENS : Sure . 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Just because of this 

16 hearing and everything I have an uncle that I haven't seen 

11 for 35 years. was incarcerated. My father's -- my 

18 husband's father was murdered in 1967. 

19 MR. Oi/ENS: All of these questions TIBke 

20 you think a lot rrore, don't they. 

21 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I forgot about that 

22 when I was filling that out. 

23 

24 

2 s was m.irdered. 

MR. Oi/ENS: His uncle was murdered. 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: My husband's father 

117 

MR. Oi/ENS: Were these so rEl!Ote that they 

2 are not scmething that you think about that ruch? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: With my uncle, like I 

4 said, I haven't seen him for in 35 years so tilat' s pretty 

rEl!Ote. 

MR. Oi/ENS: Right. 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: My husband, it affects 

him, of course. He lost his father. But it was 1967. So 

9 for rre it's rrore local folklore. It is talked about 

10 because in the carrmmity we live in -- I would say the 

11 carrmmity started in the mid 1800s -- these were the only 

12 three Im!rders at the sarre time ccmmitted until today, so 

13 of course everylxdy lmows. 

14 MR. Oi/ENS: So you ranember them? 

15 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: People remarrrer 

16 that. 

11 MR. ·Oi/ENs: This is the Sallie carrmmity 

18 where you live now. 
19 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

20 MR. Oi/ENS: It comes up frcm time to 

21 time. 
22 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: It was a bank robbery, 

23 so every time I enter the bank saneone ITl3kes a cc:mrent 
24 about it. 

25 MR. Oi/ENS: D:l you get tired of hearing 
118 

about that? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: It'; rrme 

uncanfortable for my in-laws and my husband and his 
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family. That's a fact of life. I 

MR. Oi/ENS: So you expe~ienced El!Otions 

about this through your husband, but indirect! y because of 
' 7 the carrmmity . 
I 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: It's not sorrething the 

camrunity is going to forget. 
I 

10 MR. Oi/ENS: What happen 
1
with that case? 

11 Was scrreone prosecuted for it? 1 

12 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes ,I I believe he 
I 

13 died in prison frcm cancer. l\'.les the family dwell on 
I 

14 that, rrore on the loss of a father figure. I believe they 
I 

15 felt the court handle it and police handle it quite well. 

MR. Oi/ENS: Is there an011ing about that 

11 experience that would cause ycu not to be able to be fair 

16 

18 and irrpartial in this case. ~ 
19 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Well,: to be honest I 

20 didn't think about it until last night .tien I was driving 
I 

21 hare. I thought I better rrention it. , 
. I tha 'd 22 MR. Oi/ENS: I appreciate t. You sar 

23 the camrunity you live in, you did rrention it here. It's 
I 

24 quite a distance away frcm the court. Is it hard for you 
I 

25 to get here? Is that sorrething you've dealt with? 
I 119 

i 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: It has been, because 

we have one car. It's kind of -- get the kids off, get my 

husband to work, then down here. But ttie car now is 

running. I'm just worried that I'll la~ to court because 
i I can't control traffic. 
I 

MR. Oi/ENS: Sure. That',s the Sallie problem 

everylxxly' s got. You got further to go.I 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Right. 
I 

MR. ™EllS: Is that sorrething you feel you 

10 can deal with -- transportation issues? i . 
11 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. I 

MR. Oi/ENS: You're okay lith the range of 

13 punishrrents we've talked about in the cake? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I'm \,,,ry relieved 

12 

14 

15 that's there's a range of options. I'm 9"1ad I don't live 
16 in Texas. I 

' 

11 MR. ™EllS: If ycu had to TIBke a decision 

18 like this, you're glad you have a rn.111ber: of things to 
' 19 chcose frcm? 

20 

21 

I 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Right. 

MR. Oi/ENS: Sight unseen1 right now, you 
I 

22 don 1t really lmow what used cb? i 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I cm' t have the full 23 

24 facts. I can't make a decision. Especi~lly of this 

25 TIBgnitude without having the full facts.: 
120 
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MR. CWENS: You feel like you are an open 
minded person? 

PROSPECTIVE JU!lJR: I hq,e so. 
MR. CWENS: A:re you okay with the idea of 

deliberating with other pecple and sharing ideas? 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. That helps the 

pecple, as yoo said. It would re extrerely hard to have 

the rrake this decision by yourself. 
MR. CWENS: Like having noral SUWJrt. 

10 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Exactly. 
11 MR. CWENS: You know, in the end, one 
11 person signs the verdict. A lot of times they poll the 
13 jury and each has to say if that's their verdict. Is that 

14 srnething you could do? 
15 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. I oould have to 
16 really -- it would have to re a decision that I have to 
11 live with, resides Mr. Chappell. Yes, that oould re -- I 

18 oould have to agree and think of all of the options. 
19 MR. cwrns: If you felt after hearing all the facts 

10 and cir=tances surrounding this event the appropriate 
11 punishrent was the death penalty, would you re able to 
11 crne back with that judgment? 
23 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

24 MR. CWENS: It's not the kind of thing 
25 .!!ere you get up and say, I think it's the right thing, 

1 don't think I can do that. 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I'm not sure how to 

answer that question. 
MR. CWENS: Best estimate right now, you 

feel it's sarething yoo could do. 

121 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: If that was -- after 

hearing all of the facts that's .!lat we arrive at, I have 

to live by that decision. Yoo can't second guess after 
yoo' ve left the coort roan. There are other options. We 

10 have to have heard the case. 

11 

12 

13 

MR. CWENS: Thank yoo. Pass for cause. 
'lllE 1XX1R1: Mr. Schieck. 
MR. SCHIEX:K: Thank you, yoor Honor. 

14. Ms. Staley, there's a nurber of questions 
15 you left blank in the questionnaire. Was that by 
16 intention? 
17 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I wasn'~ sure hOn' to 

18 answer thEl11. I have never been involved in the court 
19 systEm. I have no basis to answer sare of the questions, 
20 .!lich is probably .!ly I left thEl11 blank. 
21 MR. CWENS: One of questions asked about 
22 strong moral or religious views about the death penalty 
23 and its imposition. You didn't indicate one way or the 
24 other. I)'.) you have thoughts on that area? 

15 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I relieve I'm a very 
. 122 
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religioos person. And in my religioos viewpoint if a mm 

is punished here for his sins on earth, ,he will not be 
held accountable in the next life, recail.se he has been 

4 punished for those sins already. That's how crne I left 
it blank, recause if he's not punished here he will be 
punished in the next life. 

MR. CWENS: You understand and are pleased 

that there are foor different punishrents for first degree 

!lllider. Yoo' d consider all four of tho~e to re 
10 punishrent? 

11 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. Like I stated 
12 refore, I'm glad there are nore options recause not every 

i3 crirre is the sarre. 

14 MR. CWENS: You don't have any proole,ns 

15 with the concept that really .!lat we're'.doing here is 
16 chcosing re tween foor very serioos fo~ of punishrrent. 
17 Just picking lfilich punishrrent is the awropriate 
18 punishrent. 
19 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Picking .!lich 

20 punishrent is the appropriate punishrent for .!lat was 
' 21 done. 
' 

22 MR. CWENS: Everything you have known you 

23 know fmn the questionnaire and have he~rd he1e in court, 

24 you' re open to all four possible punis~nts as you hear 
25 nore infometion? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: That';s correct. 
MR. CWENS: Thank yoo. !Pass for cause, 

your Honor. 
'lllE IXXIRI: Thank yoo .. Mr. C,,,,,ns, as to 

Ms. !arson. 
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· 6 MR. cwrns: You had indicated there might 

be a hardship issue for yoo. Tell us aliout that? Have 

yoo worked that oot? , 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: No. I don't think 

' 10 that I could give my full attention to this proceeding. 

11 MR. MNS: That's reca'fe of the -- yoo'd 
12 re worrying if you were smeplace else, 

1

scnething is not 
13 getting done. That has to do with yoor ,i:Jusiness? 

14 

15 right. 
16 

17 serious matter? 

18 

19 

PROSPECTIVE JU!lJR: Yes, And my oork, 

MR. cwrns: You understaixl this is a 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I do. 
I 

MR. CWENS: And you'd pi;obably rather re 
20 doing the oork then reing here? I 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I wquld rather re 21 

22 doing the "'rk then reing here. And I'd rather be doing 
23 anything then lcoking at pictures of anything. I really 

24 "'uld. 
25 MR. CWENS: But if you 0- if you were 
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10 

• selected to be on the jury knowing the seriousness of this 

proceeding, you ""uld be able to give a fair hearing and 
focus and attention to what is going on here? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I don't know that. 

That's why I put that down. I'm tom in a lot of 
directions already, and that would be difficult for me to 

shut that off. 

MR. CN/ENS: But that's sooiething you would 

try to do? 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Sure. I don't know if 

11 I'd be successful, but I'd try. 

12 MR. CN/ENS: You don't have a problem with 

13 the death penalty? 

14 

15 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Absolutely not. No. 

MR. CN/ENS: You heard about the full range 

16 of available punishrrents in this case? 

11 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

18 MR. CN/ENS: Then you feel that you could 

19 keep an open mind until you've heard all of the evidence? 

20 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I would struggle with 

21 that. 
MR. CN/ENS: Okay. 22 

23 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: In my corporate job, I 

24 daily have to make decisions an judgnents and over the 
25 course of 18 years I had becooie -- have becooie quick to 

make decisions, srnewhat cynical. And I'm a Judgnental 

person, because of that. And I react quickly, and once 
I've made a judgment I'm pretty firm with it. I have to 

4 be. 

MR. CN/ENS: This is a very different 

6 situation then a business decision. 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I understand that. 

125 

MR. CN/ENS: Are you okay with the idea of 
9 waiting until you hear the circumstances before you make a 

iO decision of this gravity? 

11 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Can I ask a question? 

12 MR. CN/ENS: Sure. The judge will decide 

13 if I can answer or not, but you're free to ask. 
14 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Is the death penalty 

15 on the table? 

16 MR. CN/ENS: That's what we' re telling 

17 people. It's one of the four possible punishrrents. 

18 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I can't conceive of 
19 anything that anybody could tell me that would make me 

20 pick anything different than that. My mind can't figure 

21 anything out that makes it okay not to give him the death 
21 penalty. 

13 MR. CN/ENS: Even though you can't conceive 
24 of one, can you leave open the possibility there could be 

25 one out there you just haven't been thinking about it? 
126 
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I ~•t inagine what 

that would be. 
MR. CN/ENS; Well, that'; the whole point 

4 of the question. You can't inagine right now, but can you 

leave open the possibility that there may be a situation 
where that might seem appropriate to yoJ? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: As my mind has run 

through everything over the last two days anything that 
could possibly have happened that would 

1

make that okay, 

10 I've answered no to each one of those :ul my head. And to 
I 

11 think there's sooiething else out there, :I wouldn't want to 
12 know what that was that a person was caria!Jle of doing 

I 
13 that. ' 

I 
14 MR. CN/ENS: Sc what you're saying is your 

15 mind is close off. It doesn't matter what you hear. You 

16 just feel like you'd vote for the death ~penalty? 
11 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I don't know that it's 

18 close off. But I prefer not to clutter ,I,, mind with it. 

19 MR. CN/ENS: You know, od question number 
' 20 50 on the form here it says -- you are asked about what 
I 

21 you felt about the four forms of punishment. You said, 

22 yes, it's part of the system. And to make that decision 

23 it's only fair to hear sides before casiing judgnent. 
' 24 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes .j That was 

25 probably a weak m:lll2nt. 

i 

MR. CN/ENS: I know you'~ ""rrying about 
your business and everything of that nature. 

127 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I ~- I just worry 

about having to hear all of this stuff. I 
MR. CN/ENS: But back then you thought you 

6 would consider everything, arrl now you'rk thinking, no, I 

don't think I could consider everything .1 And I just want 
' to make sure we are getting a candid sellfe of where you 

are at right now. I 

10 

11 candid sense. 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: You''re getting a 

I 

12 

14 

MR. CN/ENS: Then you felt open minded. 
13 Today you're definitely sounding very clbsed minded. 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yeai/. Yeah. Yeah. 
' 

15 .MR. CN/ENS: All right. :r don't have 
16 anything further, Judge. 

17 'lllE COURr: Thank you. Mr. Schieck. 
I 

18 MR. SCHIEX:K: Challenge fOr cause, your 

19 Honor. I 

20 'lllE COURr: Thank you. Ms. Weckerly, as 
21 to Ms. Stio. 

22 MS. WECKERLY: Ms. Stio,I correct? 
23 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes,j correct. 
24 MS. WEX:KERLY: Ma'am, yqi sort of have a 

25 different opinion that you indicated in your questionnaire 
i 128 
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1 fran the lady next to you. You said that Goo was the only 

person who could judge. 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yeah, in finality. 

Yes. 

t-1'3. WECKERLY: So you know fran sitting 

here two days now that the death penalty is a potential 

7 punishrrent in this case? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I know. 

t-1'3. WECKERLY: Knowing that you· have these 

10 religious beliefs, you indicate on your questionnaire that 
11 it is up to Go:J to make that type of decision. Are you 

12 sCXll20ne that can consider the death penalty? 

13 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: QJite truthfully, I 

14 think I could consider any of the three, but I don't think 
15 I could consider the fourth. 

16 t-1'3. WECKERLY: That would be just a 

11 religious belief that that's not sanething that we should 

18 decide? 

19 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I don't feel that I 

20 could judge. We're talking about a real person's life. 

21 There have been so l!BI1y people that have been convicted 

22 and then so llBI1Y years later they find out they were 

23 innocent. And if that person were already put to death 

24 and I was part of that Judgment, I wouldn't be able to 

25 live with myself. 

MS. WECKERLY: So --

129 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: So I wouldn't want to 

make that decision. 

t-1'3. WECKERLY: As sou sit here now you 

can't consider the death penalty as a potential 

6 punishrrent? 

10 

11 

12 Ms. Cohen. 

13 

14 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: No. 

t-1'3. WECKERLY: Challenge for cause. 

THE COURr: Any questions Mr. Patrick? 

MR. PATRICK: No, your Honor. 

THE COURr: Thank you. Mr. Owens as to 

MR. OiIBNS: Ms. Cohen, how are you? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Good. How are you. 

15 MR. OOENS: Good. You've also got sane 

16 philosophical thoughts with the death penalty? 

17 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Right. 

18 MR. OOENS: You don't think the death 

19 penalty is sanething you can do? 

20 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Absolutely not. 

21 

22 

23 

MR. OOENS: Under any circumstances? 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: No. 

MR, OOENS: Is this a rroral belief or 

24 religious belief? 

25 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Just a rroral belief. 
130 
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I 

MR. OOENS: You can consider each of the 

other types of punishrrent? , 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Right. 

MR. OiIBNS: But there 1s)no circumstance 

which you would be able --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I 4uld not be able to 

change my mind on that. , 

MR. OOENS: I think you Ion here said you 

would autanatically vote against the death penalty 
i 
I 10 regardless of the situation. 

. hi PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Rig t. 11 
I . . 

12 

13 could do that. 

MR, CWENS: There was no js1tuat10n you 

14 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Rigtlt. 

15 MR. OOENS : Thank you. j No further 

16 questions, your Honor. 
17 THE COURr: Mr. Schieck!, 

18 

19 Honor? 
20 

21 

22 questions. 

2] 

24 

25 

Kitchen. 

MR. SCHIEX:K: Did he pass for cause, your 
I 
I 

THE COURr: Pass or cha~lenge? 

MR. OOENS: I don't hav,j any further 

I' 11 challenge. 
1 

THE COURr: Thank you. I 
• I 

MR. SCHIEX:K: No quest10ns, your Honor. 
I 

THE COURr: Ms. Weckerly, as to Mr. 
I 131 

• I 

i . 
M3. WECKERLY: How are you, sir? 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Hello. 

I. 
M3. WECKERLY: You l'K)fk :in law 

enforcerrent? I 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes i 

I 
t-1'3. WECKERLY: Probably rrost of your adult 

I 
life -- you said 25 years? 1 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Ever since two days 
I 

10 after my 21st birthday. I 

11 t-1'3. WECKERLY: The factlthat you have that 

12 background, knowing this is a limited pioceeding in this 
I 

13 case to determine punishment, do you ~ you can be fair 

14 to both sides? 1 

I 
15 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes.: I don't believe 

16 that practicing law enforcerrent people should sit on 
I 

11 juries, especially criminal. It's pro~ly an appeal 

18 waiting to happen if I reach that point,: 

19 t-1'3. WECKERLY: Well, we 1ask those jurors 
I 

20 like everybody else, can you be fair to 
1

00th sides in this 
21 case. 
22 

23 you, yes. 

I . 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I can fill a seat for 

I 

24 t-1'3. WECKERLY: You indicated that you'd 
' 2; considered the death penalty as a potential punishrrent? 
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PROSPECTIVE JUOOR: Yes. 

MS. WECKERLY: I assume your mind is not 

rrade up. You want to hear all of the inforrration before 

you rrake a decision alx,ut what's the appropriate 

5 punishrrent in the case? 

10 

PROSPECTIVE JUOOR:. Yes. 

MS. WECKERLY: You can listen to the 

inforrration that's presented by both sides and rrake that 

decision? 
PROSPECTIVE JURffi: Yes. 

11 MS. WECKERLY: You'll folla. the judge's 

12 instructions? 
13 PROSPECTIVE JURffi: Yes. 

14 MS. WECKERLY: Thank you, sir. Pass for 

15 cause. 
16 'lllE CXXIRJ': Mr. Patrick. 

17 MR. PATRICK: Goo:i afternoon, Mr. Wells 

18 (sic). You rrentioned your alillt was killed by her husband? 

19 

20 

21 

PROSPECTIVE JUOOR: No. 

'lllE CXXIRl': You've got the wrong one. 

MR. PATRICK: Mr. Kitchen? 

22 PROSPECTIVE JUOOR: Right. 

23 'lllE CXXIRJ': Ha. is your aunt today? 

24 PROSPECTIVE JURffi: I haven't checked. 

25 Hcpe she's okay. 
133 

MR. PATRICK: In your questionnaire you 

put da.n that "" should be keeping up with Texas, correct? 

Is this the right questionnaire? 
PROSPECTIVE JUOOR: That sounds familiar, 

yes. 

10 

MR. PATRICK: What do you mean by that? 

PROSPECTIVE JUOOR: Was that the death 

penalty portion of the question? 

MR. PATRICK: Yes, sir, it was. 

PROSPECTIVE JUOOR: I believe in how the 
11 death penalty is used. I don't care for the delay 

12 process, the appeal process after the death penalty. It 

13 should be quicker. 

14 MR. PATRICK: Because you are in law 

15 enforcEment, would you tend to give greater ""ight to 
16 testimony given by a law enforcarent officer. 

17 PRC6PEITIVE JUOOR: Yes, definitely. 

18 MR. PATRICK: If two people "'re up here 
19 and told the same story but told it differently, and one 

20 was a p;:>lice officer, you I d autaraticall y l::elieve him? 
21 PROSPECTIVE JUOOR: Yes. 

11 MR. PATRICK: 11\Juld discount sare or all 
13 of what the other person said because they are not a 

14 police officer? 
15 PROOPECTIVE JURffi: (ilite possibly, yes. 
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I 

MR. PATRICK: When asked what your general 

opinions with arout the syst611, you say .it was a goo:l 
syst611, but inperfect because of the atiorneys and the 

4 judges? 

5 

6 

goo:l then? 

PRC6PECTIVE JUOOR: Yes,' sir. 

MR. PATRICK: What part :of the systE!ll is 

I 

PROSPECTIVE JUOOR: I l>jlieve it's a basic 

written syst611. You thra. the hurran fac;tor in, everyone 

10 has their a.n personal opinions and interpretations, and I 

11 think it's twisted. 

12 MR. PATRICK: '!wisted rrcire so the 

13 attorneys or the judges? 
I 

14 PROSPEITIVE JUOOR: Pr°71'l y the 
15 attorneys. 

16 

1J 

18 

MR. PATRICK: 1-bre so either side? ,. 
PROSPEITIVE JUOOR: No. : 

MR. PATRICK: Okay. [fl you think you 

19 would be a fair juror to both sides in !;his case? 

20 PROSPECTIVE JUOOR: Hopefully, yes. 
21 MR. PATRICK: Hcpefully, 'yes. It took a 

22 long time to ans""r. Tell me your gut opinion. What was 

23 the first thing that came to mind? ' 

24 PROSPEITIVE JUOOR: The :same thing again. 
25 I'm a ccmnissioned police officer. I have been most of my 

adult life. It's my personal q:,inion I 'should not be a 

juror in this case or any other criminal
1 

case in this 
county or this state. : 

MR. PATRICK: Thank you,: I appreciate 

your hcnesty. 

PROSPECTIVE JUOOR: You're welcare. 
' 
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MR. PATRICK: Your Honor, we challenge for 

cause. I 

I 
'lllE CXXIRJ': Thank you. :Ms. Weckerly, as 

10 to Ms. Berry. , 

11 MS. WECKERLY: Ma'am, ydu indicated on 

12 your questionnaire you don't believe in !the death penalty. 

13 PRC6PECTIVE JUROR: No. i 
14 MS. WECKERLY: 11\Juld that be a religious 

15 belief? 

16 PROSPECTIVE JUOOR: No. · It's just don't 
1? want it on my conscience. 
18 MS. WECKERLY: Just a decision you don't 

I 

19 want to be rraking? · 
20 PROSPECTIVE JUOOR: Yes: 
21 MS. WECKERLY: You wrote on your 
22 questionnaire, I don't want it on my coiiscience. Only the 
13 lord has the right to say when. 
24 PROSPEITIVE JUOOR: Well, I do believe 

25 that when sarething happens, sareone dces sarething, that 
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1 will care back to him in a different way. Net the sarre 

way, cane back to than. It's not for me to 1113ke that 
decision .hen and .here that's going to take place. 

MS. WEX:KERLY: Because you have that 
belief, I take it you could not consider the death penalty 
ever as a potential punishlllent? 

PROSPECTIVE JUFOR: I don't know. 

MS. WEX:KERLY: You wrote on your 
questionnaire that basically yoo said, no death penalty, 

10 try another punishrent. To me that indicated that you are 
11 not going to consider that as a potential punishrent. 

12 PROSPECTIVE JUFOR: Well, I didn't lllean it 
13 like that. I meant, like I said, peq,le get .hat they do 
14 in life, so .t.o am I to 1113ke that judglllent. 

15 MS. WEX:KERLY: Well, can yoo do that? Can 

16 you serve as a juror in this case .hen you know the death 
11 penalty is a potential punislment? 
18 PROSPECTIVE JUFOR: No. 

19 MS. WEX:KERLY: On nurrber 50, in yoor 

20 questionnaire, you were asked woold you consider all four 
21 possible punishments. Yoo said everything would, except 
22 the death penalty. 
23 PROSPECTIVE JUFOR: Right. 

24 

25 

my conscience. 

consider it? 

MS. WEX:KERLY: You still feel the· sarre? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I wouldn't want it on 
137 

MS. WEX:KERLY: So yoo wooldn' t be able to 

PROSPECTIVE JUFOR: I don't think I've 

never experienced it. I don't know. Even though, like I 
said, these few days sitting here, I hear things. Yoo 

1 know, it's a lot about the ccurt systan that I'm not 
familiar with, because, you know, I try 1"f best to get 
away fmn any criminal, fran the situation, period. So I 

10 just don't associate ITrjSelf with that. 
11 &it now it's here at hand, you know, it 
12 has been brought to me. But, you know, personally I woold 
13 not like to be the one to 1113ke a judglllent on smebody 

14 else's life. 
15 MS. WEX:KERLY: Well, I don't think anyone 
16 wants to be that person. But the question we need you to 
11 answer is do you think yoo can be the person that 
18 considers all possible punishlllents including the death 
19 penalty? 

20 PROSPECTIVE JUFOR: I can listen. But it's 
21 a first experience, so I don't know. I honestly don't 
22 know. 
23 MS. WEX:KERLY: Okay. Another part of your 
24 questionnaire you indicated that you would autCill'ltically 
25 vote against the death penalty, about the facts and 

138 

I 

cim.mstances of the case. DJ you still feel that way? 

PROSPECTIVE JUFOR: Say,that again. I'm 
sorry. 

MS. WEX:KERLY: On your questionnaire you 

were asked are your beliefs about the ";"th penalty such 
that you woold autCill'lticall y vote against the death 

I 

1 penalty regardless of the facts and circumstances of the 

case. 
PROSPECTIVE JUFOR: No . 

10 
• • I 

MS. WEX:KERLY: Yoo indii;ated on your 
11 questionnaire --

12 PROSPECTIVE JUFOR: I h';ilrd sme things 
13 the last three tillles that I din't hear, :so yoo get a 

137-140 

14 different perspective about things. Mo~tl y because of the 
15 things, like I said, I don't know, the unknown. Am I 

I 

16 have never been involved in the court, anything like that. 

11 Other than an autaoobile accident. So it's unknown. 
i 

18 MS. WEX:KERLY: What ha"'! yoo heard or 
19 learned that would -- over the last few 'day or two -- that 

' 20 cause you to change your opinion? ' 

21 PROSPECTIVE JUFOR: Well, I know that it 
22 is my civil duty, .!lich I knew that alrJady. Am I know 

23 there possibly are prooable cause for Jath -- well any of 
24 the sentences -- all of th6ll are health lsentences, as far 
25 as I 1m concerned. I just don't want to i-- I don't 
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l particularly care for it on 1"f conscien2e. But if it has 
to be done, it can be done. I think. I never experienced 
it. It's a new experience for me. All 

1
my adult life I 
' always just got away fmn courts or any 'of that, crillle. 
I 

I'm not sure if I mentioned that I _have had criminal 
peq,le in 1"f family. But I don't know the ins and outs of 

1 .hat happen and it's always throogh infdrlll3tion throogh a 
' another family matiler like my sister. lj"t I just steered 

9 ITrjSelf away fran it. I wanted no involVffiE!lt of it. 

10 MS. WEX:KERLY: Yoo kind ~of indicated sme 
11 of that in your questionnaire, that you didn't have a lot 
12 of faith in the criminal justice systffil. 

13 PROSPECTIVE JUFOR: WeH, I had an 
14 incident that haHJ€11ed to me. Am it didn't go as far as 
15 I thooght it should. M that is 25 years ago. 
16 MS. WEX:KERLY: Explain ju.st a little 
11 bit. 

! . 

' 18 PROSPECTIVE JUFOR: I g~t rotlled. Am I 
19 had a gun at 1"f head. The only thing ta.ken was like all 
20 of my personal stuff was taken. I was tjocty searched and 

21 everything like that. And I reported it. 
22 And it went through the procedures,~ whatever the 
23 procedures were. And I went to set a court date. I went 
24 and -- the polic6llan asked me to please 'follow through 
25 with this, and this is .!ly they get the 'peq,le, they don't 
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show up to court. 

I = to court. I got to court I went and signed 

in. The defendant = in the door, saw that we did show 
up, and they left. So I felt right there there was 

nothing -- didn't go further than that. So I felt it 

was -- I couldn't understand how the policeran told rre --
1 it was a couple -- told rre that they had a record as long 

as your ann. I couldn't urderstand. 

I know it was just rre, but I couldn't understand if 

10 they had such a long record how could they allow -- just 

11 allow th81l to be on bail like that -- bailing out. You 

12 knol(, I just have a prool81l \Illderstanding that. 
13 t£. WEX:KERLY: Arxl you are saying they 

14 left the courtroan. Are you telling us they were never 

15 caught again? 

16 PROOPF.CTIVE JUROR: I don't know, because I 

17 didn't hear anything else about it. I didn't get my 

18 personal possessions back. Like I say, she -- it was scm, 

19 of my identification. I was able to hopefully -- I didn't 

20 have probl811S with it after that. 

21 t-15. WEX:KERLY: I rrean, .rut you are 

22 describing sourrls like justice wasn't served because that 

23 person or the couple that did this to you were never 

24 p\Illished. 

25 PROOPECTIVE JUROR: I just feel like at 
141 

that tirre I don't know just steering myself away from it. 

Just a lot of people in the --

t-15. WEX:KERLY: So they got away? 

PROSPF.CTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

t-15. WEX:KERLY: Did you think that they 

were able to getaway with sarething because of scm,thing 

1 that the police did or the prosecutors did. Or do you 
think it was just -- sourds like they kind of absconded or 

fled. 

10 PROSPF.CTIVE JUROR: You know, I really 

11 don't know what to think of it. All I can concentrate on 
12 is that I was the victim, and, you know, I didn't take it 
13 further, seek out -- see what happened. Once the 

14 poli= told rre that they had amed record -- record arm 
15 length long, I figured they were doing this all a long. 

16 Eventually it got to care to an end. But the syst81l -- at 

11 that tirre the syst81l didn't -- didn't catch it. 

18 t£. WEX:KERLY: Right. 

19 PROOPF.CTIVE JUROR: Didn't do anything 

20 about it. 

21 t£. WEX:KERLY: It's sort of the opposite of 
22 what you are saying earlier, if you do scm,thing bad 
23 scm,thing bad cares back. 

14 PROOPF.CTIVE JUROR: I believe, like I 
25 said, it didn't happen at that tirre but it had to care 
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to -- you know had to care to an end. You can't keep 

applying sarething -- applying throwing iscm,thing up, and 

up, and up and couldn't CCIIE down. Eventually. But I was 

just saying who am I to say whether that's going to 

happen. That's the only thing I'm saying. 

M5. WEX:KERLY: What you ire saying you are 

not jooging people. Arxl this proceedi.rzj is \Illique in that 

way because that's exactly what you are :going to be doing. 

We're not deciding guilt. He's guilty.: So what the jury 

10 will be doing in this case is jooging ar,:i assessing which 
' 11 p\Illishrrent is appropriate, given that it's first degree 

12 murder with use of a deadly weapon. 
I 

13 Are you sareone who can ooke a ju<jgrrent about those 

14 four possible p\Illishrrents? ' 

15 PROOPF.CTIVE JUROR: I c;jn ll\'lke decisions, 
I 

16 but like I say I don't know if I can -- :this particular 

17 kirx:i of decision, I OOn't -- I OOn 1t kn(w if I can or not. 

18 t£. WEX:KERLY: Well, I qon't think anyone 

19 here has been through this exact situat~on before so it's 

20 hard to say. But we don't want to get i_nto this and have 

21 you say you know what, this is not what 11 can do. 

22 PRC6PECTIVE JUROR: Well,1 like I said the 

23 joogrrent has really been oode or the coriviction. I think 
24 I can. I would prefer not to. 

25 t-15. WEX:KERLY: Well, like a lot of fellow 
I 143 

1 jurors. 

PROOPF.CTIVE JUROR: I think it will r81lain 
on my conscience for awhile -- along tirre. Eventually 

I'll work it out. 

t-15. WEX:KERLY: Well, that's not a decision 
I 

that you are ccmfortable with? 

PROSPF.CTIVE JUROR: Tnl True. 
115. WEX:KERLY: If you tliought it was 

appropriate, could you mark that box? 
' 

10 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I'm :not sure. I'm 
11 really not sure. 

12 t£. WEX:KERLY: Thank yo~. We challenge 
13 for cause. 

14 1HE COURI: Thank you. :Mr. Patrick. 
15 MR. PATRICK: No questiqns. 

16 1HE COURl: Let rre ask yP'l a question, 

11 Ms. Berry. It really isn't what are you going to do when 

18 you get in the jury roan down the road. : You haven't heard 

19 anything yet. The question that is impcrtant today, as 

20 you sit here, are you willing to consider all forms of 

21 p\Illishrrent? 
22 PROSPECTIVE JUOOR: Yes.' I will do what 
23 I'm supposed to do, your Honor. 

24 1HE COURI: Okay. If -0 well, you'll 

25 ccnsider all forms of p\Illishrrent and you' 11 listen to the 
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• evidence. Then I'll give you legal instructions, and you 

detennine what you think is appropriate and reach your 
conclusions on what you think is appropriate. 

I need to know that going in you're open minded 
enough to consider the possibility that any of those four 
foilllS of punislment could be ar:propriate. 

7 PRC6PECTIVE JUPOR: Yes. 
. 8 1llE CCIJRr: All right. Counsel approach, 

10 

11 

please. 
(Discussion held at the bench. I 

THE CCIJRr: Ladies and gentlemen, 
12 Mr. Franks, Ms. canoosino, Mr. Rosenkrantz, Fuller, 
13 Bogner, Vargas, Morella-Krupa, Mayorga, Herring, Moran, 

14 Iffivitt, Potter, Meza, Breaks, Imasney, and Ms. Cruz, you 
15 all are excused. Thank you very Illl1ch for your patience 
16 over several days it's taking us to get to this point. 

11 Report back to jury services before you leave for the 

18 day. 
19 Everit,:xiy else, we'll take a recess for about fifteen 
20 minutes for the attorney to go through the 32 people that 
21 we have rEm'lining. We'll get this whittled down to .no 
22 will hear our case and sane of you will be excused as 

23 well. 
24 The rest of you, once we get to that point, we' 11 
25 take a recess and get sanething to eat. I know we have 

been going late in the day before we've taken a lunch 
recess. But nonetheless, I wanted to get you all out of 

here. 
JURY All-rnITIOO 

l:llring the recess, ladies and gentlaien, 

145 

6 you are adm:mished not to converse aroong yourselves or 

with anyone else, including, without limitation, the 

lawyers, parties and witnesses, on any subject connected 
with this trial, or any other case referred to during it, 

10 or read, watch, or listen to any report of or camentary 
11 on the trial, or any person mnnected with this trial, or 
12 any such other case by any rredium of information 
13 including, without limitation, n~spapers, television, 

14 internet or radio. 
15 You are further achn::mished not to form or 

16 express any opinion on any subject connected with this 
11 trial until the case is finally suhnitted to you. 

18 

19 

Thank you, very ruch. 
(Brief recess taken. I 

20 TilE CCIJRr: On the record, outside the 
21 presence of the jury. 
22 I'm going to deny the challenge for cause 
23 as to Ms. Bundren (sic) Badge 088. I'll grant the 
24 challenges for cause as to Ms. Iarsen 091, Stio 092, Ms. 

25 Cohen 093, Mr. Kitchen 096. 
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I' 11 deny the challenge 'for cause as to 

Ms. Berry, 100. 
So on your lists, after !Mr. Parrarrore, the 

4 next 5 passed for cause now wuld be, Brianne Gernot -­
position 28 -- 085; Mr. Schechter 087; Ms. Bundren (sic) 
088 -- 30; Ms. Staley 089 -- will be 31; Ms. Berry, badge 

1 nwiler 100 -- will be nurrber 32 . 
(Brief recess taken. I , 

TilE CCIJRr: We will be qack on the record 
10 in C-131341, State of Nevada versus James Chappell. 

. ! 
11 The record will reflect 

1
the presence of 

12 Mr. Chappell with his attorneys, the State's attorneys, in 
13 the presence of our prospective jury pool. 
14 ladies and gentlaien, ttlank you all as 

I 

15 sincerely as I can for your patience and uroerstanding 

16 over the course of the last several da~. I include, .nen 
11 I say several days of having cane in and filled out the 

18 questionnaire. I wish there was a roore 
1

efficient way and 
19 we had a bigger courtrocrn so we could hive accamodated 
20 everyhody all at once and have this run :a little 
21 snoother. 
22 Nonetheless, we did the ,best that we 

23 could. Arxl the delays in getting this finished aren't 
24 occasion by the attorneys. As I said I had calendar 
25 issues in the rooming and we needed to cicxne in later. So 
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1 a lot of times it's such that sanetinles ·you're trying to 

2 wrk for the good of the lll3Ily, which is irost of you are 
going to be leaving rm, rather than the good of a few, 

4 and that's .ny we didn't take our normal· lunch break 

today. 
But the gocd news is I1IT\ going to -- we 

7 finish with the process. We have the 141 names that are 
going to serve as our jurors. Arxl rathe;r then get you 

swrn in and have llE read all the instruptions and rE!l1ilrks 
10 and try to get throogh opening stataten~ today, we just 
11 going to get to my opening rE!l1arks, then: release you for 
12 the day. Rather then trying to do a late lunch hour. So 

13 you get to go hare early today and we' 11: cane back 
14 tarorrow rooming at 10:00 o'clock to get: started. 
15 But what I'm going to do' is read the 14 

16 namas of the folks that are going to stay with us and 

17 serve as jurors. If I read your narre, j\Jst -- once 
18 everit,:xly gets up to leave -- stay seated if I've read 
19 your nama. Everit,:xly else, I thank you Jry ruch again. 
20. You can report back to jury services. 
21 The folks that are going] to stay with us 
22 are Badge nwiler 007, Ms. Johnson; 009, \11'· Jerry Taylor; 
23 020, Larry Henck; 022, George &nith; 026, Cheryl cardillo; 
24 036, Davy Noahr; 039, Christine Burdren;' 050, Angelo 
25 Morin; 058, Blayne White; 063, Darlene Washington; 073, 
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Duane Feuerharrrrer; 074, David Forbes; 078, Brinnon Scott; 

and 089, Laura Staley. '!he 14 of you will stay seated for 

right now. Everyix,jy else, I thank you again. You can 

report back to jury services before you leave for the 

day. 

Ladies and gentlenen now that I've got 

you canfortable and seated, I need for you to stand and 

raise your right hand and be sworn in. 
TIIE CLERK: You and each of you do 

10 solermly swear you will well and truly try the case at 

11 issue and a true verdict render according to the evidence, 
12 so help you God. 

13 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: (Choir of I de.) 

14 

15 

TIIE CLERK: Be seated. 
TIIE COURT: As I said a little bit ago, 

16 I'm going to read a bit of infoootion to you now before 

17 we release you for the evening. It will kind of serve as 

18 an introduction to the trial with scxre very preliminary, 

19 basic instructions on certain aspects of the law, as well 

20 as a guideline as to how things will occur. 

21 It is not a substitute for the 

22 instructions I' 11 give you at the close of the case, after 

23 you've heard all of the evidence. 

24 '!his is a criminal proceeding cCI111Enced by 

25 the State of Nevada, .hich I may scxretilres refer to as the 
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State, against Janes Chappell, who I may scxretilres refer 

to as the Dafendant. 
'!he proceeding is based upon 

Mr. Chappell' s conviction of three charges, .hich are 

contained in what's called a charging cloo.nrent, which is 

an infoootion. '!he infoootion is not the evidence of 

the charges, it just lists the charges. 
I' 11 have carol now read to you what the 

charges were that Mr. Chappell was previously convicted 

10 of. 

11 TIIE CLERK: '!hat Janes Mantel Chappell, 
12 the Defendant, having crnmitted the crilres of burglary, 

13 robbery with use of a deadly weap::>n, and rm.rrder, open, 

14 with use of a deadly weapon, on or about the 31st day of 
15 August 1995, at, and within the County of Clark, State of 

16 Nevada contrary to the form, force, and effect of the 
11 statutes in such cases made and provided and against the 

18 peace and dignity of the State of Nevada. 

19 Count (1), burglary, did then and there 

20 willfully, unlawfully and feloniously enter with intent to 

21 crnmit larceny; and/or assault; and/or battery; and/or 
22 robbery; and/or rrnrrder, that certain building located at 

23 839 North lill1il Boulevard, Las Vegas, Clark County Nevada, 
24 Space No. 125, thereof occupied by Mira Panos. 

25 Count (2), robbery with use of a deadly 
150 
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I 

weapon; did then and there willfully, unlawfully, and 

feloniously take personal prq,erty, to ~it, social 

security cards and/or keys; and/or a mo\or vehicle from 
the person of Mira Panos, or in her presence by means of 

force or violence, or fear of injury to 1and without 
I 

consent and against the will of Mira P,jnos; said 
Deferrlant using a deadly weaPJn, to wit,; a knife, during 

the carmission of said crim2. 
Count (3), rrnrrder, open,; with use of a 

10 deadly weapon, did then and there, withcjut authority of 

11 law and with malice of forethought willfully and 
I 

12 feloniously kill Mira Panos, a human being, by stabbing 
I 

13 at and into the lxxiy of the said Mira Panos, with a 
• I 

14 deadly weapon, to wit, a knife during tlje carrnission of 

15 said crilre. ' 

16 Dafendant carrnitting safd act with 

17 premeditation and deliberation; and/or drnmitting said act 

18 during the perpetration of a burglary aibior a robbery. 

19 TIIE COURT: All right, !adies and 

l 1 . wh I ct· th 20 gent erren. As I exp am to you en we 
1
were oing e 

21 selection process we also talked about the principles of 

22 law defined in a criminal proceeding, orie is the State has 

23 the burden of proof in a criminal proc~ng. 
I 

24 '!he State is going to have a burden of 

25 proving certain things in this case. Aril the attorneys 
' t 151 

kind of talked to you about it, in regards to aggravating 

ciramtances before the death penalty Jan be a 

consideration of you all when you go to \Je1iberate. 

'!he purpose of the tria~ -- or the 

eedi th , ·ct I proc ng, ra er, 1s to present ev1 ence to you upon 

.hich you can base a sentencing verdict.; And the State 
will have to m,et the burden beyond a r"i'sonable doubt as 

to certain things, and will instruct about all of these 

things at the each of the case as well. ! 
10 It will be your primary responsibility, as 

I 
11 jurors, to find and determine what the facts are. You are 

I 
12 the sole judge of the facts that will be brought out 

I 

13 during the course of this proceeding. You' 11 determine 
I 

14 the facts from the testimony you hear and the other 
15 evidence .hich will be brought before ycii, .hich include 

16 exhibits introduced in this proceeding, 
1

as well as 

17 possibly exhibits that were introduced ili Mr. Chappell's 

18 underlying trial. It will be your job t~ determine the 
' 19 inferences which you feel may be drawn from those facts as 
I 

20 well. 

21 lUring the course of thi's proceeding you 
I 

22 will also hear, in a sanewhat different 
1
fashion then at a 

23 trial, hearsay testirrnny that way care in in the fonn of 

24 witnesses testifying about other things :that other people 

25 have said, as well as the reading of transcripts ·of people 
152 
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that testified in the trial cbwn below. In a criminal 
proceeding such as this, a sentencing hearing, hearsay is 
adnissible evidence unlike it \Kluld be in a no!Jlll.l trial 

4 setting. So that will be a little different. 
At times during the proceeding I may 

sustained objections or direct that you disregard certain 
1 testinony or exhibits. Yoo IIUSt not consider any evidence 

to which an objection has been sustain or which I 
instructed yoo to disregard. Anything you may have seen 

10 or heard ootside the courtroan is not evidence and IIUSt 
11 also be disregarded. 
12 Yoo also IIIJSt not be influenced in any 
13 degree by any personal feelings of Sl'l!l"thY for or 
14 prejooice against either the State or Defendant. Both 
15 sides are entitled to the sane fair and inqlartial 
16 consideration. 
11 In terms of witness testinony, in 
18 considering the weight and value of such testinony, you 
19 may take into consideration the appearance, attitude, and 

20 behavior of the witness; the interest of the witness in 
21 the outcare of the case, if any; the relation of the 
22 witness to the Defendant or the State; the inclination of 
23 the witness to speak truthfully or not, and the 
24 probability or inprobability of the witness's statements, 
25 as well as all the other facts and circumstances in 

evidence. 
Thus, you may give the testinony of any 

witness just such weight and value as you believe the 
testinony of that witness entitled to receive. 

153 

There are t\Kl kinds of evidence, direct 
and circumstantial .evidence. Direct evidence is testinony 

1 by a witness arout what that witness personally saw or 
heard or did. Circumstantial evidence is testinony or 
exhibits which are proof of a particular fact fran which 

10 another fact may be proven. Yoo can infer the existence 
11 of that second fact, essential! y. 
12 You may consider both direct and 

13 cirrunstantial evidence in deciding your sentencing 
14 decision here. The law pennits you to give equal weight 
15 to both direct and cirrunstantial evidence. But it is for 
16 you to decide how much weight to give any evidence. 
11 As I mentioned during the selection 
18 process, they' 11 be openlng statements by attorneys as 
19 well as closing arguments by the attorneys. The opening 
20 statements and the closing arqrnents are intended to help 
21 you in understanding the evidence and ar:ply the law, but 
22 they are not in and of thernsel ves evidence. They are the 
23 contentions of the parties as to what will be proven or 
24 what has been proven, depending on whether we are talking 
25 by opening statements or closing ar(j\lll'ents. 
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Until the case is suhnitted to you you 
111JSt not discuss it with anyone, even .n;th your fellow 
jurors. After it is suhnit to you you IlllSt discuss it 
only in the jury roan with yoor fellow jurors. It is 
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5 inp:,rtant that yoo keep an open mioo and not decide any 
issue in the case until the entire case has been suhnitted 

7 to yoo under the legal instructions fran myself. 
s If during the course of :the proceeding you 

cannot hear a witness, please, raise Yo+r han:i. Arrl if 
10 you need to use the restroan, or if you ,feel ill, raise 

11 your hand as an indication. 
12 I think I indicated yesterday that we' 11 

' 13 tend to take a break arout every 90 minutes or so, for the 
14 most part. Yoo can count on that, give 'or take a few 
15 minutes. You can bring drinks into the courtroan, bring a 
16 cup of coffee in the morning, if yoo've 'got a Styrofoam 
11 cup or sarething of that sort. 
18 I may during the trial take notes of the 
19 witnesses' testinony. Please don't make any inference 
20 fran that action. I have to be prepared for arqrnents of 
21 the attorneys and the instructions given at the end of the 

22 case, as well. So there are at lot of (ines where I' 11 be 
23 taking notes. Saretimes I take them on 'a note pad. 
24 Saretimes I type on the carputer. I' 11 'also tell you, 
25 since the CCllpUter is here, a lot of trnbs I' 11 send 

I 155 

1 e-mails to my secretary. That's the best way for rre to 

figure out what's on calendar the next <jaY in the morning, 
afternoon, and so forth. So I can kind pf get a good idea 
what time to bring you all back in the ooming or 

I 

5 afternoon and so forth. 
6 You will not have a transcript to oonsult 
1 at the close of the case. But yoo will be given note pads 

tomorrow and you' 11 be allow to take noies during the 

coorse of the proceeding in your note pad. I \Kluld 
10 caution you not to let overly copioos no

1

te taking 
11 interfere with yoor ability to watch and. listen and 
12 observe people as they' re testifying. l' will also tell 
13 you that you will be given the ewortunity to ask written 

I 

14 questions of any of the witnesses that are called to 
15 testify in the case. 
16 You are not encouraged tp ask a large 
11 number of questions, because that is the: primary 
18 responsibility of the attorneys. <hly a limit nunber of 
19 questions may be posed by jurors. And you will not be 

I 

20 allowed to becare the quote, unquote thi.rd attorney or 
21 advocate a certain position by your ques,tions. 
22 I have the discretion tci preclude 
23 individuals fran an excessive mrrber of questions. 
24 ()lestions may be asked after both lawyers 
25 have finished questioning a witness and only at that time. 
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For instance, Mr. (),Jens and Ms. Weckerly nay call a 

· 2 witness to the stand. They' 11 conduct a direct 

examination of the witness. The defense attorney. Mr. 

Schieck and Mr, Patrick nay cross-examine that witness, 

Saretirres it goes back, redirect examination and 

recross-examination. 

Once that process is finished, hefore I 

tell a w~tness you 1re excused, thank you, ! 111 look over 
to the jury to see if there's an indication anytxx!y has 

10 their hand in the air about wanting to ask questions. 

11 Should you desire to ask a question, write it down in your 
12 note pad with your juror nurriler. We' II designate Ms. 

13 Jol)nson is nurriler one, all the way to Ms. Staley s nurriler 

14 14. 

15 So ,hen you write it in your sheet, write 

16 dCMI1 nurriler one -- write juror nurriler one and ,hat your 

11 question is. Raise your hand and I' II know you have a 

18 question. The bailiff will pick up your question. Show 

19 it to rre. I'll consult with the attorneys. If it's a 

20 legally proper question, I will ask it of the witness. It 

21 has to be a legally factual question and it has to be 

22 factual in nature. 

23 It can't he direct towards rre. It can't 

24 he direct towards the attorneys, It has to he directed 

25 towards the witness and designed to clarify information 

already presented. 
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On! y questions pennissible under the rules 

of evidence will be asked, and you cannot draw any 

inferences or conclusions if a question you suhnitted is 
not asked of a witness. As I said, if you detennine the 

question is legally proper I'll go ahead and ask it of the 

witness. Then the attorney will be allowed to ask 

follow-up questions, as necessary. 
The trial will proceed in the following 

10 rranner. The deputy district attorneys will nake an 

11 opening statement, \filich, as I said is an outline to help 

12 you understand ,hat they intend to put forth during the 

13 course of this proceeding, the evidence \filich they intend 
14 to put forth and prove to you. 

15 Next the defense attorneys IIBY, but do not 
16 have to, 11Bke an opening staterrent. Cpening statEm2nts, as 

17 I said, serve as an introduction to the evidence which the 
18 parties naking the statem,nt intends to put forth or 

19 prove. 

20 The State will then present its evidence. 

21 call its case in chief. Counsel for defense IIBY 
22 cross-examine the State's witnesses.· Following the 
23 State's case in chief the defense rrBY present evidence, 
24 but is not obligated to do so. That will he the defense 
25 case in chief. And during that the deputy district 
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attorneys rray cross-examine the defense ;witnesses, as 
well. 

' i After all the evidence has heen presented, 

I will then instruct you on the law that applies to this 
I 

particular criminal proceeding. After i;he instructions on 
the law have heen read to you, each sid<i will have the 

I 
opportunity to present oral argurrents. ,What is said in 

closing argurrents is not evid:nce. The 1argurents are 
designed to surrmarize and interpret the 1evidence and the 

10 law. Since the State as the burden of Jroving the 
I 

11 essential elerrents, \filich we' II go thro~gh in those legal 

12 instructions, the State will have the right to open and 
I • 

13 close the argurrents. That means the State will nake a 
. . I . 

14 closmg argurrent. The defense will nak~ a closmg 
15 argurrent in response to the State. Theri the State will 

16 nake a rebuttal closing argurrent. 1 

· 

11 After all the argurrents 'are CC!ll'leted, you 

18 will retire to deliberate on your senterice. Let rre remind 

19 you that until the case is submitted to !you, do not talk 
I 

20 to each other about the case or about anyone who has 

21 anything to do with the case until the ~nd of the case 

22 ,hen you go to the jury roan to decide dn your verdict. 
I 

23 ro not talk with anyone '.else about the 
24 case or about anyone ,ho has anything tci do with the case 

25 until the trial has ended and you have Jken discharged as 
159 

juror_s. 
' Anyone else includes members of your 

family, and your friends. You IIBY tell !them that you are 
a juror in a criminal proceeding, but piease do not tell 

them anything else about it until have ~ou heen discharged 
I 

fran your jury service by myself. i 
I 

ron' t let anyone talk to you abcut the 

case or about anyone ,ho has anything td do with it. If 
I 

s<X!l2one should try to talk to you, report that to ne 

10 inmediately by telling Leslie, my bailiif. 
I 

11 DJn I t read any news stories oi: articles, 
12 or listen to any radio or television re0rts about the 

13 case, or about anyone ,ho has anything io do with it. 

14 M'lybe oost IB!)Ortantly of all, do not visit the scene of 
15 any of the events nentioned during the cburse of this 
16 proceeding, or undertake any investigation or research on 

11 your own. Everything you need to know io decide the case 
' 18 you will learn fran the testimony of the witnesses, the 
I 

19 exhibits introduced into court, the legal instructions, 
i 

20 and the argurrents of the attorneys. [)o not go to the 
21 library, or go on the internet, or go seiarching for 

22 anything, or look up legal tellllS, Anything about it, 
23 okay. I can't errphasize that enough to :you. 

24 All right. That's all ] have for you for 

25 this evening. I' II release you and we• A get started 
160 
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• t=rrcw rrorning at 10:00 o'clock. Ieslie will change out 

your badges as you walk out tonight. You can get rid of 
those little paper badges for plastic badges. 

I-hen you c01E back to court, please make 

sure you' re "'"ring that in the court house so everybody 
kncws you are a juror in a trial and they' 11 avoid you. 

And then just ~ on up here and have a 

seat outside the courtroon and we' 11 get started as close 

to 10:00 as we can. 
10 

11 

12 

Thank you all very much. 

(Jury is dismissed. I 

THE COURT: outside the presence of the 

13 jury. Anything outside the presence? 

14 MR. PATRICK: No, your Honor. 

15 MS. WEX:KERLY: No, your Honor. 

16 MR. !JilllS: Your Honor we do have one 

17 thing. We have a couple of farnil y narilers ooning in 

18 early. '!he rrother and the aunt. '!hey wanted to be able 
19 to be present in the courtroan during the proceeding. I 

20 wanted to advise the court of that. 

21 

22 

THE COURT: Are they going to be witnesses? 

MR. !JilllS: Yeah, probably at S01E 

23 point. 

24 
25 Mr. Schieck? 

THE CCURr: I don't have a problen. 

MR. SCHIFJ:;K: As long as there is no 

outward displays of enotion and things that could be 

prejudicial, your Honor. 
I ackncwledge that the Suprene Court said the 

exclusionary rule does not arr,i y to penalty hearings. 

161 

THE COURT: I' 11 ask the State to talk to 

7 then. And if you feel it's necessary, let rre kna.l, and 

I' 11 aclIDnish then as well. 
MR. !JilllS: 'Ihey'll be fine. 

10 MR. SCHIOCK: I would assurre the sarre for 
11 our family narilers? 
12 THE COURT: I have no proolen either way. 

13 Just everybody talk to their witnesses about that. 

14 All right. 

15 MR. PATRICK: One last thing. If we were 
16 to hear witnesses on Friday, what tirre would you start? 

17 THE COURT: Generally we can start at 8:30 
18 Friday norning if we need to. ·I don't -- I specifically 

19 don't set anything on calendar :on Friday so that if we're 

20 in trial we can get a day in. 

21 You all have jury instructions? 
22 MS. WFJ:KERLY: .We can have then 

23 tarorrow. 
24 THE COURT: I ~n't expect you all to have 
25 gotten together and decided on .then. But if you have a 
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10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

• packet you can give rre that I can start looking at. 

t£. WEX:KERLY: Okay. 
THE COURT: Thank you. 

* * * * * 

CERTIFICATE 

OF 

CERTIFIED COURT REEIJRIBR 

* * * * * 
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I, the undersigned certified court reporter ir, and for the 

State of Nevada, do hereby certify: 
10 , 

11 '!hat the foregoing proceedings were takeb before me at the 
12 tirre and place therein set forth; that the testirrony and 

13 all objections made at the tirre of the proceedings were 

14 recorded stenographicall y by me and were' thereafter 
' 15 transcribed under my direction; that the, foregoing is a 

16 true record of the testirrony and of all cbjections made at 

17 the tirre of the proceedings. 

18 

19 
lU 

n 

C.C.R. #745 
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•· 
1 VER 

2 

3 
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5 

6 

7 THE ST A TE OF NEV ADA, 
) 

8 

9 -vs-

Plaintiff, 
Case No. Cl31341 

Dept No. III 
10 JAMES MONTELL CHAPPELL, 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 
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17 

18 

19 

20 

21 
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23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Defendant. 

SPECIAL VERDICT 

We, the Jury in the above entitled case, having heard evidence in the above­

referenced matter in which the Defendant, JAMES MONTELL CHAPPELL has previously 

been convicted of COUNT 3 - FIRST DEGREE MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY 

WEAPON, one or more of the jurors designate that mitigating circumstance or 

circumstances which have been listed below have been established. 

\. ~ ,N\f-c s Cbc=.9~d I $\,Sf:erw ~( l'${\ SL fh,)tc. ~0/Q <;_ '21s ¥('' 
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DA TED this d_i_ day of March, 2007. 
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AA00127

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

VER 

·- ·.e. 

~\3¥ ....... •··.•,;:::T 

.. ~c2l .... =~o07 

C .fud~----·-
DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEV ADA 

8 THE ST A TE OF NEV ADA, ) 

9 Plaintiff, j Case No. 

Dept No. 

Cl31341 

III IO -vs-

1 1 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

JAMES MONTELL CHAPPELL, 

Defendant. 

VERDICT 

The Defendant, JAMES CHAPPELL, having been found guilty of COUNT 3 -

MURDER OF THE FIRST DEGREE WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON, and we, the 

Jury, having found that the aggravating circumstance outweighs any mitigating 

circumstances, impose a sentence of 

~ Death 

Life in Nevada State Prison Without the Possibility of Parole 

__ Life in Nevada State Prison With the Possibility of Parole 

__ A definite term of 100 years imprisonment, with eligibility for parole beginning 

when a minimum of 40 years has been served 

DATED at Las Vegas, Nevada, this;\. ~ar~ 

'? ~ 

,JI.JD(;ME'NT ENTERED 

MAR 2 ~· 2007 ~>'; 
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11 

INST 

THE ST A TE OF NEV ADA, 

Plaintiff, 

-vs-

JAMES MONTELL CHAPPELL, 

Defendant. 

--------------- -

•• 

) 

Dept No. 

~ 
12 INSTRUCTIONS TO THE JURY 
13 (INSTRUCTION NO. 1) 
14 MEMBERS OF THE JURY: 

III 

15 It is now my duty as judge to instruct you in the law that applies to this penalty 
J 6 hearing. It is your duty as jurors to follow these instructions and to apply the rules of Jaw to 
17 the facts as you find them from the evidence. 
18 You must not be concerned with the wisdom of any rule of law stated in these 
19 instructions. Regardless of any opinion you may have as to what the law ought to be, it 
20 would be a violation of your oath to base a verdict upon any other view of the law than that 
21 given in the instructions of the Court. 
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•• 
INSTRUCTION NO. Z-

if, in these instructions, any rule, direction or idea is repeated or stated in different 

ways, no emphasis thereon is intended by me and none may be inferred by you. For that 

reason, you are not to single out any certain sentence or any individual point or instruction 

and ignore the others, but you are to consider all the instructions as a whole and regard each 

in the light of all the others. 
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•• 
INSTRUCTION NO. 3 

In the penalty hearing, evidence may be presented concerning aggravating and 

mitigating circumstances relative to the offense. 

Hearsay is admissible in a penalty hearing. 
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•• 
INSTRUCTION NO.:--~-­

The jury shall fix the punishment for every person convicted of murder of the first 

degree. 

The jury shall fix the punishment at: 

1. A definite tenn of 100 years imprisonment, with e1igibi1ity for parole 

beginning when a minimum of 40 years has been served; 

2. Life imprisonment with eligibility for parole beginning when a minimum of 

forty years has been served; 

3. Life imprisonment without the possibility of parole; or 

4. Death. 
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•• 
{_/ 

INSTRUCTION NO.: __ ..;;, __ 

Life imprisonment with the possibility of parole is a sentence of life imprisonment 

which provides that a defendant would be eligible for parole after a period of forty years. 

This does not mean that he would be paroled after forty years, but only that he may be 

eligible after that period of time. 

Life imprisonment without the possibility of parole means exactly what it says, that a 

defendant shall never be paroled. 

If you sentence a defendant to death, you must assume that the sentence will be 

carried out. 
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•• 
INSTRUCTION NO.: _l, __ 

The State has alJeged that one aggravating circumstance is present in this case. 

The Defendant has a11eged certain mitigating circumstances are present in this case. 

It shall be your duty to determine: 

(a) whether the aggravating circumstance is found to exist; and 

(b) 

(c) 

whether a mitigating circumstance or circumstances are found to exist; and 

based upon these findings, whether the Defendant should be sentenced to a 

definite term of 100 years imprisonment, life imprisonment with or without the possibility of 

parole or death. 

The jury may consider a sentence of death only if (1) the jurors unanimously find at 

least one aggravating circumstance has been established beyond a reasonable doubt and (2) 

the jurors unanimously find that there are no mitigating circumstances sufficient to outweigh 

the aggravating circumstance or circumstances found. 

A mitigating circumstance itself need not be agreed to unanimously; that is, any one 

juror can find a mitigating circumstance without the agreement of any other juror or jurors. 

The entire jury must agree unanimously, however, as to whether the aggravating 

circumstances outweigh the mitigating circumstances. 

Otherwise, the punishment imposed shall be imprisonment in the State Prison for a 

definite term of 100 years imprisonment, with ehgibility for parole beginning when a 

minimum of 40 years has been served or life with or without the possibility of parole. 
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•• 
INSTRUCTION NO. f 

You are instructed that the following factors are circumstances by which Murder of 

the First Degree may be aggravated: 

The murder was committed during the perpetration of a sexual assault. 
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•• 
INSTRUCTION NO. ---

A person who subjects another person to sexual penetration against the victim's will 

or under conditions in which the perpetrator knows or should know that the victim is 

mentally or physically incapable of resisting or understanding the nature of his conduct, is 

guilty of sexual assault. 

"Sexual penetration" includes any intrusion, however slight, of any part of a person's 

body or any object manipulated or inserted by a person into the genital or anal openings of 

the body of another, including sexual intercourse in its ordinary meaning. Evidence of the 

emission is not necessary. 

Sexual intercourse is the placing of the penis of the perpetrator into the vagina of the 

victim. 

Fellatio is the placing of the penis of the perpetrator into the mouth of the victim. 
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•• 
INSTRUCTION NO. 4' 

---

Physical force is not necessary ingredient in the commission of the crime of sexual 

assault. The question is not whether the victim was penetrated by physical force, but 

whether the act was committed without her consent and/or under conditions in which 

Defendant knew or should have known, the victim was incapable of giving her consent or 

understanding the nature of the act. 
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-A •• 
1 INSTRUCTION NO. \0 

---

2 The victim of a sexual assault is not required to do more than her age, strength, 

3 surrounding facts and attending circumstances make it reasonable for her to do to manifest 

4 her opposition. 
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•• 
INSTRUCTION NO. i \ 

---

2 There is no consent where the victim is induced to submit to sexual acts through fear 

3 of death or serious bodily injury. 
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•• 
1 INSTRUCTION NO.: __ l_"L-__ 

2 Mitigating circumstances are those factors which, while they do not constitute a legal 

3 justification or excuse for the commission of the offense in question, may be considered, in 

4 the estimation of the jury, in fairness and mercy, as extenuating or reducing the degree of the 

5 Defendant's moral culpability. 

6 Any aspect of the defendant's character or record and any of the circumstances of the 

7 offense, including any desire you may have to extend mercy to the defendant, may be 

8 considered by you as a mitigating factor. 

9 In balancing aggravating and mitigating circumstances, it is not the mere number of 

10 aggravating circumstances or mitigating circumstances that controls. 
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•• 
INSTRUCTION NO. 13 

---

2 In determining whether mitigating circumstances exist, jurors have an obligation to 

3 make an independent and objective analysis of all the relevant evidence. Arguments of 

4 counsel or a party do not relieve jurors of this responsibility. Jurors must consider the totality 

5 of the circumstances of the crime and the defendant, as established by the evidence presented 

6 in the guilt and penalty phases of the trial. Neither the prosecution's nor the defendant's 

7 insistence on the existence or nonexistence of mitigating circumstances is binding upon the 

8 jurors. 
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-~ •• 
INSTRUCTION NO.: ----

There are certain circumstances which may be considered as mitigating the crime of 

Murder of the First Degree, even though the mitigating circumstance is not sufficient to 

constitute a defense or reduce the degree of the crime. 

In this case, the Defense alleges that the following mitigating circumstances are 

present: 

1. James Chappell suffered from substance abuse addictions; 

2. James Chappell attempted to be a good father; 

3. James Chappell's mother was killed when he was very young; 

4. James Chappell has had no father figure in his life; 

5. James Chappell was raised in an abusive household; 

6. James Chappell was the victim of physical abuse as a child; 

7. James Chappell was the victim of mental abuse as a child; 

8. James Chappell was born to a drug/alcohol addicted mother; 

9. James Chappell suffered a learning disability; 

10. James Chappell was raised in a depressed housing area; 

11. James Chappell was involved in a racially tense relationship; 

12. James Chappell was taken away from his support system by his relationship 

with Deborah Panos; 

13. Any other mitigating circumstances. 
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•• 
~ 

INSTRUCTION NO. \ .) 

A reasonable doubt is one based on reason. It is not mere possible doubt, but is such 

a doubt as would govern or control a person in the more weighty affairs of life. If the minds 

of the jurors, after the entire comparison and consideration of all the evidence, are in such a 

condition that they can say they feel an abiding conviction of the truth of the charge, there is 

not a reasonable doubt. Doubt to be reasonable must be actual, not mere possibility or 

speculation. 
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. /~ •• 
INSTRUCTION NO.: __ , l.. __ 

The jury is instructed that in determining the appropriate sentence in this matter that it 

may consider all evidence introduced at both the penalty hearing phase of these proceedings 

and at the trial of this matter. 
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·• •• 
INSTRUCTION NO.: __ ( 1 __ 

In deciding on an appropriate sentence for the defendant, you will consider three 

types of evidence: evidence relevant to the existence of aggravating circumstances, evidence 

relevant to the existence of mitigating circumstances, and other evidence presented against 

the defendant. You must consider each type of evidence for its appropriate purposes. 

In determining unanimously whether any aggravating circumstance has been proven 

beyond a reasonable doubt, you are to consider only evidence relevant to that aggravating 

circumstance. You are not to consider other evidence against the defendant. 

In determining individually whether any mitigating circumstance exists, you are to 

consider only evidence relevant to that mitigating circumstance. You are not to consider 

other evidence presented against the defendant. 

In determining individually whether any mitigating circumstances outweigh any 

aggravating circumstances, you are to consider only evidence relevant to any mitigating and 

aggravating circumstances. You are not to consider other evidence presented against the 

defendant. 

If you find unanimously and beyond a reasonable doubt that at least one aggravating 

circumstance exists and each of you determines that any mitigating circumstances do not 

outweigh the aggravating circumstances, the defendant is eligible for a death sentence. At 

this point, you are to consider all three types of evidence, and you still have the discretion to 

impose a sentence less than death. You must decide on a sentence unanimously. 

If you do not decide unanimously that at least one aggravating circumstance has been 

proven beyond a reasonable doubt or if at least one of you determines that the mitigating 

circumstances outweigh the aggravating, the defendant is not eligible for a death sentence. 

Upon determining that the def end ant is not eligible for death, you are to consider all three 

types of evidence in determining a sentence other than death, and you must decide on such a 

sentence unanimously. 
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•• 
INSTRUCTION NO. \ g 

In your deliberation you may not discuss or consider the subject of guilt or innocence 

of a Defendant, as that issue has already been decided. 
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-~ •• 
INSTRUCTION NO. 1 l 

The credibility or believability of a witness should be determined by his manner upon 

the stand, his relationship to the parties, his fears, motives, interests or feelings, his 

opportunity to have observed the matter to which he testified, the reasonableness of his 

statements and the strength or weakness of his recollections. 

If you believe that a witness has lied about any material fact in the case, you may 

disregard the entire testimony of that witness or any portion of his testimony which is not 

proved by other evidence. 
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INSTRUCTION NO. 7.-,o 

2 Although you are to consider only the evidence in the case in reaching a verdict, you 

3 must bring to the consideration of the evidence your everyday common sense and judgment 

4 as reasonable men and women. Thus, you are not limited solely to what you see and hear as 

5 the witnesses testify. You may draw reasonable inferences from the evidence which you feel 

6 are justified in the light of common experience, keeping in mind that such inferences should 

7 not be based on speculation or guess. 

8 A verdict may never be influenced by prejudice or public opinion. Your decision 

9 should be the product of sincere judgment and sound discretion in accordance with these 

IO rulesoflaw. 
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INSTRUCTION NO. 2-1 

During your deliberation, you will have all the exhibits which were admitted into 

evidence, these written instructions and forms of verdict which have been prepared for your 

convenience. 
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INSTRUCTION NO. '2... t-

The Court has submitted three sets of verdicts to you. One set is for a determination 

of the existence of an aggravating circumstance. The second set is for a determination of the 

existence of mitigating circumstances. The third set is for a determination of weight to be 

given the aggravating and/or mitigating circumstances. 
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INSTRUCTION NO. -Z..,_3 

Now you will listen to the arguments of counsel who will endeavor to aid you to 

reach a proper verdict by refreshing in your minds the evidence and by showing the 

application thereof to the law; but, whatever counsel may say, you will bear in mind that it is 

your duty to be governed in your deliberation by the evidence as you understand it and 

remember it to be and by the law as given to you in these instructions, with the sole, fixed 

and steadfast purpose of doing equal and exact justice between the Defendant and the State 

of Nevada. 
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DEPT. NO. 3 

• 
FILED IN OPEN COURT 

a1n,,.,a,AL ~J~:,.. 2001 

n/UI/Ylt ~:E 99uRT , 
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DISTRICT COURT DE 0 UTY 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

* * * * * 

STATE OF NEVADA, 

Plaintiff, REPORTER'S TRANSCRIPT 
OF 

vs. 

JAMES M. CHAPPELL, 

Defendant. 

PENALTY HEARING 
VERDICT 

BEFORE THE HONORABLE DOUGLAS HERNDON 
DISTRICT COURT JUDGE 

DATED: WEDESDAY, MARCH 21, 2007 

REPORTED BY: Sharon Howard, C.C.R. #745 
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APPEARANCES: 

For the Stc:te: 

For the Defendant: 

* * * * * 

• 
CHRISTOPHER OWENS, ESQ. 

PAM WECKERLY, ESQ. 

DAVID M. SCHIECK, ESQ. 

CLARK W. PATRICK, ESQ. 

2 



AA00153

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

• • 
LAS VEGAS, NEVADA; WEDNESDAY, MARCH 21, 2007 

P R O C E E D I N G S 

* * * * * 

3 

THE COURT: We'll be back on the record in 

C-131341, State of Nevada versus James Chappell. 

Let the record reflect Mr. Chappell is 

preset, with his attorneys, State's attorneys, and our 

jury. 

Ladies and gentlemen of the jury, did you 

first of all elect a foreperson? 

IMPANELED JUROR: Yes. 

THE COURT: Who is that? Juror number 

one, for record is our foreperson. Ma'am did the jury 

reach a verdict? 

IMPANELED JUROR: Yes. 

THE COURT: Hand the verdict forms to my 

bailiff, please. 

The clerk will now record the verdict into 

the record. 

THE CLERK: District Court, Clark County, 

Nevada, plaintiff, versus James Mentel Chappell, 

defendant, case number C-131341, Department 3, Special 

Verdict: We the jury in the above-entitled case having 

heard evidence in the above-referenced matter in which the 
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defendant, James Mantel Chappell has previously been 

convicted of Count (3) first degree murder with use of a 

deadly weapon, designate that the aggravating circumstance 

or circumstances which have been checked below have been 

established unanimously and beyond a reasonable doubt, the 

murder was committed during the perpetration of a sexual 

assault, dated this 21st day of March 2007, signed by the 

foreperson. 

Special Verdict: We the jury in the 

above-entitled case, having heard evidence in the above 

referenced matter in which the defendant, James Mantel 

Chappell has previously been convicted of Count (3), first 

degree murder use of a deadly weapon, one or more of the 

jurors designate that mitigating circumstance or 

circumstances, which have been listed below, have been 

established: 

1. James Chappell suffered from substance 

abuse. 

2. James Chappell had no father figure in 

his life. 

3. James Chappell was raised in an abusive 

household. 

4. James Chappell was the victim of 

physical abuse as a child. 

5. James Chappell was born to a drug, 
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alcohol addicted mother. 

6. James Chappell suffered a learning 

disability. 

7. James Chappell was raised in a 

depressed housing area. 

Dated this 21st is day of March 2007, 

signed by the foreperson. 

Special Verdict: We the jury in the 

above-entitled case, having heard evidence in the 

above-referenced matter, in which the defendant, James 

Mantel Chappell has previously been convicted of Count 

5 

(3), first degree murder with use of a deadly weapon, find 

the mitigating circumstances do not outweigh the 

aggravating circumstance, date this 21st day of March 

2007, signed by the foreperson. 

Special verdict: The defendant, Ja~es 

Chappell, having been found guilty of Count (3), murder of 

the first degree with use of a deadly weapon, we the jury 

having found that the aggravating circumstance outweighs 

any mitigating circumstance impose a sentence of death, 

dated at Las Vegas, Nevada, this 21st day of March 2007, 

signed by the foreperson. 

Ladies and gentlemen of the jury, are 

these your verdicts as read, so say you one, so say you 

all? 
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IMPANELED JURY: Yes. 

THE CLERK: Thank you. 

THE COURT: Does either side wish to have 

the jury polled? 

MR. SCHIECK: Yes, your Honor. 

THE CLERK: Juror number one, are those 

your verdicts as read? 

MS. JOHNSON: Yes. 

THE CLERK: Juror number two, are those 

your verdicts as read? 

MR. TAYLOR: Yes, they are. 

THE CLERK: Juror number three, are those 

your verdicts as read? 

MR. HENCK: Yes ma'am. 

THE CLERK: Juror number four, are those 

your verdicts as read? 

MR SMITH: Yes, ma'am. 

THE CLERK: Juror number five, are those 

your verdicts as read? 

MS. CARDILLO: Yes. 

THE CLERK: Juror number six, are those 

your verdicts as read? 

MS. NOAHR: Yes. 

THE CLERK: Juror number seven, are those 

your verdicts as read? 

6 
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MS. BUNDREN: Yes, ma'am. 

THE CLERK: Juror number eight, are those 

your verdicts as read? 

MR. MORIN: Yes, ma'am. 

THE CLERK: Juror number nine, are those 

your verdicts as read? 

MR. WHITE: Yes, ma'am. 

THE CLERK: Juror number ten, are those 

your verdicts as read? 

MS. WASHINGTON: Yes. 

THE CLERK: Juror number eleven, are those 

your verdicts as read? 

MR. FEUERHAMMER: Yes, ma'am. 

THE CLERK: Juror number twelve, are those 

your verdicts as read? 

MR. FORBES: Yes, ma'am, they are. 

THE COURT: The clerk will enter the 

verdicts for the minutes. 

7 

Ladies and gentlemen -- and we're going to 

go ahead and set a formal sentencing date, if you would, 

in 45 days. 

THE CLERK: May 10th, at 9:00 a.m. 

THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen, at this 

time, I'm going to excuse you. I'm sure you'll be happy 

that I'm not going to recite to you that admonitiJn one 
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final time. You're completely discharged from your 

service. 

8 

What I'm going to tell the attorneys is 

that after I release you here -- I'll be available to talk 

to you for a few minutes, if you wish I'll have Leslie 

take you back downstairs so you can get your vouchers, and 

if the attorneys wish to try to you for a few minutes they 

can meet you downstairs. I would advise you that, to the 

extent you have a little bit of time and can give them a 

few minutes, please go ahead and talk to them. It's very 

valuable for the attorneys, and the best way for us as 

attorneys to learn a little about, not only our 

performance as attorneys, but things you think about the 

case, the way things are presented, is to talk to you all 

because you are the representatives of the community that 

hear the trial, watch the process unfold and can give them 

the best input on how that unfolded in this particular 

case. 

I know it's been a long week-and-3-half, 

but nonetheless, if you have a few minutes, I'd appreciate 

it if you would talk to them, and just chat with them for 

a few moments. 

With that, I will tell you that it's 

obviously been a very difficult case. I realize that. 

It's never an easy thing to sit as a jury on a capital 
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• • 
penalty hearing. Nonetheless, over the last 

week-and-a-half you have everything expected of ycu, not 

only by the court and the attorneys, but by your fellow 

community members as well. 

9 

I thank you for the service you have given 

to the court system and the community. 

You are free to talk to whomever you want 

to now. I encourage you to chat with the attorneys, but 

whether it's the attorneys or anybody else, you do not 

have to talk to anybody that you do not want to. 

But to the extent somebody persists in 

trying to talk to you after you told them you do not wish 

to talk to them about the case, let Leslie know that, if 

it's today or any other day, you can contact my chambers 

and we'll do what we need to to help you out in that 

regard as well. But that's your decision. 

Co-workers, family members, friends, you 

can talk to whoever you want to now. But you certainly 

don't have to. 

Thank you, very much. You all can go with 

Leslie. 

Still on the record, outside the presence. 

Does anybody have anything for the record? 

MS. WECKERLy: Not on behalf of the 

State. 
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MR. SCHIECK: Your Honor, I don't know if 

the court would consider remanding him back to High Desert 

as opposed to being held here at the Detention Center, due 

to his custody status. 

THE COURT: I don't have a problem with 

that. Does the State have a problem? 

MR. OWENS: I won't take a position on 

that. 

THE COURT: I will order that Mr. Chappell 

be returned to High Desert State Prison. If the State 

would prep3re a transport order and have him come back on 

May 10th, for formal sentencing. 

We'll be in recess. Thank you all very 

much. 

* * * * * 
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CERTIFICATE 

OF 

CERTIFIED COURT REPORTER 

* * * * * 

• 11 

I, the undersigned certified court reporter in and for the 

State of Nevada, do hereby certify: 

That the foregoing proceedings were taken before me at the 

time and place therein set forth; that the testimony and 

all objections made at the time of the proceedings were 

recorded stenographically by me and were thereafter 

transcribed under my direction; that the foregoing is a 

true record of the testimony and of all objections made at 

the time of the proceedings. 

'52~~ 
Sharon Howard 

C.C.R. #745 
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AFFIRMATION 

PURSUANT TO NRS 239B.030 

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the 

proceeding 

filed in District Court Case No. C- I 31 3 '-\-1 

1 

✓ Does not contain the social security number of any 

person. 

Contains the social security number of a person as 

required by: 

(A) NAC 656.350 

-or-

(B) For the administration of a public program or for 

an application for a federal or state grant. 

Sharon Howard, CCR #745 

3 I LS /0""1 

Date 
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TRAN 
CASE NO. C-131341 
DEPT. NO. 3 

Crl/G/NI:~ 

• 

DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

STATE OF NEVADA, 

Plaintiff, 

vs. 

JAMES MONTELL CHAPPELL, 

Defendant. 

* * * * * 

REPORTER'S TRANSCRIPT 
oF 1 

I 

SENTENt;:ING 

BEFORE THE HONORABLE DOUGLAS HERNDON 
DISTRICT COURT JUDGE 

DATED: THURSDAY, MAY 10, 2007 

REPORTED BY: SHARON HOWARD, C.C.R. NO. 745 

S20 
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For the State: 

For the Defendant: 

• 
CHRIS OWENS, ESQ. 

CLARK PATRICK, ESQ. 
I 

DAVID SCHIECK, ESQ.' 

* * * * * 
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. 
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA; THURSDAY, MAY 10, 200.7 

P R O C E E D I N G S 

* * * * * 

3 

THE COURT: Page 6, State o~ Nevada versus 

James Chappell. Record will reflect the pr~sence of 

Mr. Chappell, in custody Mr. Schieck, Mr. Patrick, on 

his behalf. Ms. Rinetti on behalf of the S~ate. 

Do you have the file, Ms. Rinetti? 

MS. RINETTI: No, Judge. Mr. Owens and 

Mr. Kephart will be here. 

THE COURT: Mr. Owens is he~e. Mr. Owens 

is present on behalf of the State. 

This is time set for sentencing. Is there any legal 

cause or reason why sentencing cannot take ~lace. 

MR. PATRICK: 

MR. OWENS: 

THE COURT: 

I 

No, your Honor1. 

May we approach, your Honor. 

Sure. 

(Discussion held at the bench.) 

I 

THE COURT: Back on the record in State 

versus Chappell. Anything the State wants tb add in terms 

of sentencing. 

MR. OWENS: No, your Honor. 

THE COURT: Mr. Chappell, is there 

anything you want to tell the court before y~ur attorney 
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speaks on your behalf? 

THE DEFENDANT: No. 

THE COURT: Thank you, sir. 1 

Mr. Schieck, Mr. Patrick, anything you ,all want to 

add before we pronounce sentence? 
I 

MR. SCHIECK: No, your Hano~. The jury 

has imposed a sentence in this case. 

I 

' 

4 

THE COURT: As to the burgl~ry and robb~ry 
' 

with use of a deadly weapon counts, those w~re already 
I 

adjudicated and sentenced at the time of thei original 

trial. They aren't part of the sentencing today. This is 
. 

as to murder with use of a deadly weapon. 

So, in accordance with the laws of the ~tate of 

Nevada, I do adjudicate you guilty of that c~ime, 

Mr. Chappell, and pursuant to the jury's ver~ict at the 

penalty hearing, I sentence you to death for Count (3), 

murder with use of a deadly weapon. 

The state has provided ad judgment of conviction. 
I 

I 

know normally the clerk's office prepares these now when 

the defendant is in custody, but Counsel for. the Sta~e and 

defense have both looked at it. I think it•k an 
I 

appropriate judgment of conviction, so I'll go ahead and 

sign that. 

I 

I believe the defense also has a stay of execution to 

present to the court, as well. 
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MR. SCHIECK: That's correct. 

THE COURT: I'll sign that, as well. 

Thank you. 

MR. SCHIECK: We'll fill in the date to --

with the State's warrant. 

THE COURT: Okay. 

For the record I should add that judgm~nt of 

conviction includes the warrant of executio~ and order of 

execution. Mr. Owens. 

MR. OWENS: Thank you, your Honor. We'll 

make copies of that. 

THE COURT: Thank you. 

MR. OWENS: We'll file that after we get 

our copies. 

THE COURT: Thank you, genttemen. 

* * * * * 
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CERTIFICATE 

OF 

CERTIFIED COURT REPORTER 

* * * * * 

• 6 

I, the undersigned certified court reporter in and for the 

State of Nevada, do hereby certify: 

I 

That the foregoing proceedings were taken b~fore me at the 

time and place therein set forth; that the te~timony and 

all objections made at the time of the proceedings were 

recorded stenographically by me and were 

transcribed under my direction; that the 

thereafter 
I 
i 

fo~egoing is a 

true record of the testimony and of all objections made at 

the time of the proceedings. 

Jh..o ~o o o~, o 
Sharon Howard 
C.C.R. #745 

olo 0 
I 

' 
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(Death Penalty Habeas Corpus Case) 18 General, State of Nevada, 

19 Defendant. PETITION FOR WRIT 

20 

21 

22 
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25 

26 
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OF HABEAS CORPUS 
(POST-CONVICTION) 

Petitioner, James Montell Chappell, hereby files this Petition for Writ of 

Habeas Corpus pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes sections 34. 724 and 34.820. Mr. 

Chappell alleges that he is being held in custody in violation of the Fifth, Sixth, 

Eighth, and Fourteenth Amendments of the Constitution of the United States of 

America; Article 1, sections Three, Six, Eight, and Nine and Article Four, section 

Twenty-one of the Constitution of the State of Nevada; and the rights afforded him 
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TO: CLARK COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY, Attorney for Defendant 
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4 d f Jan. h h f9:ooam / . D V f ___ ay o ______ , at t e our o ___ a.m. p.m., 1n epartment o 

the District Court. 

DATED this 16th day of November, 2016. 

Respectfully submitted 
RENE L. VALLADARES 
Federal Public Defender 

Isl Brad D. Levenson 

BRADD. LEVENSON 
Assistant Federal Public Defender 

Isl Sandi Ciel 

SANDI CIEL 
Assistant Federal Public Defender 
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PROCEDURAL HISTORY 

1. Mr. Chappell is currently in the custody of the State of Nevada at Ely 

State Prison in Ely, Nevada, pursuant to a state court judgment of conviction and 

sentence of death. Ex. 24. Respondents are Timothy Filson, the Warden of Ely State 

Prison, and Adam Paul Laxalt, the Attorney General of the State of Nevada. The 

Respondents are sued in their official capacities. 

2. On September 8, 1995, a criminal complaint was filed against Mr. 

Chappell in Justice Court, Las Vegas Township, Clark County, Case No. 95F08114X, 

charging him with Count 1, burglary, Count 2, robbery with use of a deadly weapon, 

and Count 3, murder with use of a deadly weapon, Ex. 141. Mr. Chappell made his 

initial appearance that day and the Clark County Public Defender was appointed to 

represent him. Ex. 177. A preliminary hearing was held in the Justice Court, Las 

Vegas Township on October 3, 1995. Ex. 127. 

3. On October 11, 1995, Mr. Chappell was charged by criminal information 

with burglary, robbery with the use of a deadly weapon, and murder with the use of a 

deadly weapon in the Eighth Judicial District Court, Clark County, Nevada, Case No. 

C131341. Ex. 24. On October 18, 1995, Mr. Chappell pleaded not guilty. Ex. 62. The 

State filed a notice of intent to seek the death penalty on November 8, 1995. Ex. 25. 

4. Jury selection began on October 7, 1996, and continued through October 

8, 1996. Exs. 129, 130, 131. Trial testimony began on October 10, 1996. Ex. 132. Mr. 

Chappell testified on October 14, 1996. Ex. 137 at 17-120. After a six-day trial, on 

October 16, 1996, the jury convicted Mr. Chappell of burglary, robbery with the use of 

a deadly weapon, and murder of the first degree with use of a deadly weapon. Ex. 143. 

5. The penalty hearing lasted from October 21 to October 24, 1996. Ex. 138 

at 4. Mr. Chappell made a statement of allocution on October 22, 1996. Ex. 140 at 61-

62. The jury found four aggravating circumstances beyond a reasonable doubt: (1) the 
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1 murder was committed in the course of a burglary; (2) the murder was committed in 

2 the course of a robbery; (3) the murder was committed in the course of a sexual assault; 

3 and (4) the murder involved torture or depravity of mind. The jury also found two 

4 mitigating circumstances: (1) the murder was committed while Chappell was under the 

5 influence of extreme mental or emotional disturbance and (2) "any other mitigating 

6 circumstance." The jury found that aggravators outweighed the mitigators and 

7 imposed a sentence of death. Ex. 30; Ex. 146 at 4-5. 

8 6. Mr. Chappell's opening brief on direct appeal was filed on June 13, 1997. 1 

9 Ex. 110. On December 30, 1998, in Case No. 29884, the Nevada Supreme Court 
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1 The following claims were raised on direct appeal: 
I. The Trial Court Abused Its Discretion By Allowing The State To Introduce 

Evidence Of Prior Domestic Batteries By Chappell When That Evidence 
Was Not Relevant To Matters In Issue 

II. The Trial Court Abused Its Discretion By Allowing State Witnesses To 
Testify Regarding The State Of Mind Of Panos, Thereby Improperly 
Impeaching Chappell's Credibility 

III. The Trial Court Abused Its Discretion By Allowing The State To Introduce 
Testimony Regarding A Shoplifting Incident That Occurred The Day After 
The Killing 

IV. The Trial Court Abused Its Discretion By Allowing The State To Introduce 
Character Evidence That Chappell Was Unemployed And A Chronic Thief 
And This Evidence Was Admitted Without The Scrutiny Of A Pre-Trial 
Petrocelli Hearing 

V. The Cumulative Effect Of The Trial Court's Evidentiary Rulings Was To 
Allow The State To Introduce Overwhelming Character Evidence At 
Trial, Thereby Denying Chappell His Due Process 
Rights To A Fair Trial 

VI. The State Discriminated Against The Defendant By Using Peremptory 
Challenges To Selectively Exclude The Only Two Black Persons Qualified 
For The Jury Pool 

VII. The State Failed To Prove Beyond A Reasonable Doubt The Charges Of 
Burglary, Robbery And First Degree Murder 

VIII. The Trial Court Committed Reversible Error By Denying Defendant's 
Motion To Strike The Notice Of Intent To Seek The Death Penalty 

IX. The Prosecution Committed Misconduct During Closing Argument By 
Attacking The Defendant's Post-Arrest Silence 
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1 affirmed Mr. Chappell's conviction and death sentence. The Nevada Supreme Court 

2 concluded that the evidence did not support the torture or depravity of mind 

3 aggravator, but held that the death sentence was still supported by the remaining three 

4 aggravators. Ex. 2. An order denying rehearing was filed on March 17, 1999. Ex. 3. 

5 7. Mr. Chappell sought a writ of certiorari in the United States Supreme 

6 Court. The Supreme Court issued an order denying Chappell's petition on October 4, 

7 1999. Chappell v. Nevada, 528 U. S. 853 (1999). Remittitur was issued by the Nevada 

8 Supreme Court on October 26, 1999. Ex. 150. 

9 8. Mr. Chappell filed a proper person petition for writ of habeas corpus (post-

10 conviction) in this Court on October 19, 1999. Ex. 262. He subsequently filed a 

11 supplemental petition for writ of habeas corpus on April 30, 2002. 2 Ex. 43. 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

X. The State Committed Prosecutorial Misconduct In The Penalty Phase By 
Appealing To The Jury For Vengeance 

XI. Appellant Was Denied A Fair Penalty Hearing When The State's 
Witnesses Implored The Jury To Impose "Death" Upon The Defendant 

XII. The State Failed To Prove Beyond A Reasonable Doubt The Existence Of 
Certain Aggravating Circumstances 

XIII. The Sentence Of Death Was Excessive Considering The Crime And The 
Defendant. 

2 The following claims were raised in the supplemental petition for writ of habeas 
19 corpus: 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

I. Chappell's Conviction And Death Sentence Are Invalid Under The State 
And Federal Guarantee of Effective Assistance of Counsel, Due Process of 
Law, Equal Protection Of The Laws, Cross-Examination And 
Confrontation And A Reliable Sentence Due To The Failure Of Trial 
Counsel To Provide Reasonably Effective Assistance Of Counsel. 

II. Chappell's Conviction And Sentence Are Invalid Under The State And 
Federal Constitutional Guarantees Of Due Process, Equal Protection, 
Impartial Jury From Cross-Section Of The Community, And Reliable 
Determination Due To The Trial, Conviction and Sentence Being Imposed 
By A Jury From Which African Americans And Other Minorities Were 
Systematically Excluded And Under Represented. 

III. Chappell's Conviction And Sentence Are Invalid Under The State And 
Federal Constitutional Guarantees Of Due Process, Equal Protection Of 
The Laws, Effective Assistance Of Counsel And Reliable Sentence 

3 
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1 9. On September 13, 2002, an evidentiary hearing was held at which trial 

2 counsel testified. Ex. 109. On June 2, 2004, this Court denied Mr. Chappell's petition 

3 as to the guilt phase claims, but granted it as to the penalty phase, finding Mr. Chappell 

4 was entitled to a new penalty hearing based on the ineffective assistance of trial 

5 counsel for failing to investigate and present mitigating evidence. Ex. 4. 

6 10. Mr. Chappell filed a notice of appeal and the State filed a cross appeal. 

7 Exs. 152, 153. On April 7, 2006, the Nevada Supreme Court affirmed the grant of a 

8 new penalty hearing because Chappell was prejudiced by counsel's deficient 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

Because Chappell Was Not Afforded Effective Assistance Of Counsel On 
Direct Appeal. 

IV. Chappell's Conviction And Sentence Are Invalid Under The State And 
Federal Constitutional Guarantees Of Due Process, Equal Protection Of 
The Laws And Reliable Sentence Due To The Failure Of The Nevada 
Supreme Court To Conduct Fair And Adequate Appellate Review. 

V. Chappell's Conviction And Sentence Are Invalid Under The State And 
Federal Constitutional Guarantees Of Due Process, Equal Protection Of 
The Law, Effective Assistance Of Counsel And Reliable Sentence Because 
The Number Of Jury Instructions Given At Trial Were Faulty And Were 
Not The Subject Of Contemporaneous Objection By Trial Counsel, And 
Not Raised On Direct Appeal By Appellate Counsel. 

VI. Chappell's Conviction And Sentence Are Invalid Under The State And 
Federal Constitutional Guarantees Of Due Process, Equal Protection Of 
The Law, Effective Assistance Of Counsel And Reliable Sentence Because 
The Jury Was Allowed To Use Overlapping Aggravating Circumstances 
In Imposing The Death Penalty. 

VII. The Instructions Given At The Penalty Hearing Failed To Appraise Jury 
Of The Proper Use Of Character Evidence And As Such The Imposition 
Of The Death Penalty Was Arbitrary And Not Based On Valid Weighing 
Of Aggravating And Mitigating Circumstances In Violation Of The Eighth 
Amendment To The Constitution. 

VIII. Chappell Was Denied His Right Under The Fifth and Sixth, Eighth and 
Fourteenth Amendments To The United States Constitution To Due 
Process, Equal Protection, And Reliable Sentence, And Therefore His 
Death Sentence Is Invalid As It Is The Product of Purposeful Racial 
Discrimination By State Officials. 

IX. Chappell's Death Sentence Is Invalid Under The Federal Constitutional 
Guarantees Of Due Process, Equal Protection, And A Reliable Sentence 
Because The Nevada Capital Punishment System Operates In An 
Arbitrary And Capricious Manner And Does Not Narrow The Class 
Eligible To Receive The Death Penalty. 

4 
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1 performance. The court also struck the burglary and robbery aggravators under 

2 McConnell v State, 102 P.3d 606 (Nev. 2004), but held that the sexual assault 

3 aggravator was still available. Ex. 5. The Nevada Supreme Court issued remittitur on 

4 May 2, 2006. Ex. 263. 

5 11. The second penalty phase testimony began on March 12, 2007 in this 

6 Court, and continued for six days. Exs. 155, 1 76. The jury found the sole aggravating 

7 circumstance alleged by the State, that the murder was committed in the course of a 

8 sexual assault. The jury found the following mitigators: (1) Chappell suffered from 

9 substance abuse; (2) Chappell had no father figure in his life; (3) Chappell was raised 

10 in an abusive household; (4) Chappell was the victim of physical abuse as a child; (5) 

11 Chappell was born to a drug/alcohol addicted mother; (6) Chappell suffered a learning 

12 disability; and (7) Chappell was raised in a depressed housing area. Ex. 39. The jury 

13 found the mitigators did not outweigh the aggravator and imposed a sentence of death. 

14 A judgment of conviction was entered on May 10, 2007. Ex. 6. 

15 12. Counsel filed an opening brief in the Nevada Supreme Court on June 9, 

16 2008. Ex. 156. 3 The Nevada Supreme Court affirmed the judgment of conviction on 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

3 The following claims were raised in the opening brief for the penalty retrial: 
A. Chappell's Conviction For First Degree Murder Must Be Reversed 

Because The Jury Was Not Properly Instructed On The Elements Of The 
Capital Offense. 

B. Chappell's Conviction For First Degree Murder Must Be Reversed 
Because The Jury Was Not Properly Instructed On The Elements Of 
Felony Murder. 

C. Chappell's Sentence of Death Must Be Vacated Because Nev. Rev. Stat. 
177.055(3) Is Unconstitutional. 

D. Chappell Was Entitled To Review By The District Attorney's Death 
Review Committee. 

E. Chappell's Death Sentence Is Unconstitutional Because of the Trial Court 
Failed to Dismiss Jurors For Cause Who Would Always Impose A 
Sentence of Death. 

F. Chappell's Conviction Is Unconstitutional Because The State Was 
Permitted To Introduce Unreliable Hearsay Evidence During The Penalty 

5 
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1 October 20, 2009. Ex. 9. Mr. Chappell filed a petition for rehearing in the Nevada 

2 Supreme Court on October 28, 2009. Ex. 158. The petition for rehearing was denied on 

3 December 16, 2009. Ex. 8. A petition for writ of certiorari was noticed on March 1, 2010, 

4 and denied by the United States Supreme Court on May 3, 2010. Ex. 158. Remittitur 

5 was issued by the Nevada Supreme Court on June 8, 2010. Ex. 159. 

6 13. Mr. Chappell filed a proper person petition for writ of habeas corpus (post-

7 conviction) in this Court on June 22, 2010. Ex. 160. Subsequently, a supplemental brief 

8 in support of defendant's writ of habeas corpus was filed on February 15, 2012. 4 Ex. 

9 43. 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

G. 

H. 
I. 

J. 

K. 
L. 

M. 

N. 

0. 

P. 

Hearing In Support of The Aggravating Circumstance and as Other 
Matter Evidence. 
The District Court Erroneously Admitted Presentence Investigation 
Reports. 
The District Court Allowed Improper Victim Impact Testimony. 
The District Court Erred In Allowing Admission of Chappell's Prior 
Testimony. 
The State Committed Prosecutorial Misconduct By Making Arguments 
Based Upon Comparative Worth Arguments. 
The State Committed Extensive Prosecutorial Misconduct. 
The District Court Failed To Instruct The Jury That The State Was 
Required To Establish Beyond On Beyond a Reasonable Doubt That 
Mitigating Circumstances Did Not Outweigh Aggravating 
Circumstances. 
The Jury's Failure to Find Mitigating Circumstances Was Clearly 
Erroneous and Requires That the Death Sentence Be Vacated. 
There Is Insufficient Evidence To Support The Sexual Assault 
Aggravator. 
The Sexual Assault Aggravating Circumstance Is Invalid Under 
McConnell v. State. 
The Judgment Must Be Reversed Because of Cumulative Error. 

4 The following claims were raised in the supplemental petition for writ of habeas 
26 corpus. 

27 I. Standard of Review for Ineffective Assistance of Counsel. 

6 
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II. Mr. Chappell Received Ineffective Assistance of Counsel During the Third 
Penalty Phase in Violation of the Fifth, Sixth, Eighth and Fourteenth 
Amendments to the United State Constitution. 

III. Mr. Chappell Received Ineffective Assistance of Penalty Phase Trial 
Counsel and Appellate Counsel for Failure to Object to the Cumulative 
Victim Impact Panel in Violation of the Fifth, Sixth, Eighth, and 
Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution. 

IV. Penalty Phase Counsel was Ineffective for Failing to Object to Improper 
Prosecutorial Arguments During the Penalty Phase in Violation of the 
Fifth, Sixth, and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States 
Constitution. 

V. Penalty Phase Counsel and Penalty Phase Appellate Counsel Was 
Ineffective for Failing to Raise Several Instances of Improper 
Prosecutorial Argument Which Should Have Been Raised Simultaneously 
in Mr. Chappell's Appeal in Violation of the Fifth, Sixth, Eighth and 
Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution. 

VI. Mr. Chappell Received Ineffective Assistance of Penalty Phase Counsel 
and Appellate Counsel for Failure to Object to Improper Impeachment in 
Violation of the Fifth, Sixth, and Fourteen Amendments to the United 
States Constitution. 

VII. The District Court Committed Reversible Error in Allowing the 
Admission of Evidence of Several Bad Acts Thus Violating Appellant's 
Fifth, Sixth, and Fourteenth Amendment Rights and Warranting 
Reversal of His Penalty Phase. 

VIII. The Death Penalty is Unconstitutional. 

IX. Mr. Chappell's Death Sentence is Invalid Under the State and Federal 
Constitutional Guarantees of Due Process, Equal Protection, and a 
Reliable Sentence, Because the Nevada Capital Punishment System 
Operates in an Arbitrary and Capricious Manner, U.S. Const. Amends, V, 
VI, VIII and XIV; NEV, Const. Art. I SECS, 3, 6 ands; ART IV, SEC. 21. 

X. Mr. Chappell's Conviction and Death Sentence Are Invalid Under the 
State and Federal Constitutional Guarantees of Due Process, Equal 
Protection, Trial Before an Impartial Jury and a Reliable Sentence 
Because the Proceedings Against Him Violate International Law, U.S. 
Const. Amends. V, VI, VIII and XIV; NEV, CONST, ART. I SECS. 3,6 and 
s; ART IV, SEC. 21. 

XI. Chappell's Conviction and Sentence are Invalid Under the State and 
Federal Constitutional Guarantee of Due Process, Equal Protection of the 
Laws, Effective Assistance of Counsel and Reliable Sentence Because the 
Jury Instructions Given at Trial Were Faulty and Were Not the Subject 
of Contemporaneous Objection by Trial Counsel, Not Raised on Direct 
Appeal by Appellate Counsel, Not Raised by Penalty Phase Appellate 
Counsel, and Not Re-Raised by Penalty Phase Counsel. 

XII. Mr. Chappell Received Ineffective Assistance of Counsel Based Upon 
Cum ula ti ve Error. 

XIII. Mr. Chappell is Entitled to an Evidentiary Hearing. 

7 
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1 14. On February 15, 2012, Mr. Chappell filed motions with this Court seeking 

2 funds to hire an investigator, a mitigation specialist, and experts in Fetal Alcohol 

3 Spectrum Disorder and sexual assault. Exs. 44, 154, 97. This Court filed a findings of 

4 fact, conclusions of law and order on November 16, 2012, denying Mr. Chappell's 

5 petition and all pending motions. Ex. 9. 

6 15. Mr. Chappell filed an opening brief with the Nevada Supreme Court on 

7 January 8, 2014. 5 Ex. 163. The Nevada Supreme Court issued an order of affirmance 

8 on June 18, 2015. Ex. 10. Mr. Chappell filed a petition for rehearing on July 6, 2015. 

9 Ex. 164. An order denying rehearing was filed on October 22, 2015. Ex. 164; Ex. 11. 

10 The Nevada Supreme Court issued Remittitur on November 17, 2015. Ex. 165. 
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5 The following issues were raised: 
I. The District Court Erred In Failing To Hold An Evidentiary Hearing. 
II. Standard For Ineffective Assistance Of Counsel. 
III. Mr. Chappell Received Ineffective Assistance Of Counsel During The 

Third Penalty Phase In Violation Of The Fifth, Sixth, Eighth And 
Fourteenth Amendments To The United States Constitution. 

IV. Mr. Chappell Received Ineffective Assistance Of Penalty Phase Trial 
Counsel And Appellate Counsel For Failure To Object To The Cumulative 
Victim Impact Panel In Violation Of The Fifth, Sixth, Eighth, And 
Fourteenth Amendments To The United States Constitution. 

V. Penalty Phase Counsel Was Ineffective For Failing To Object To Improper 
Prosecutorial Arguments During The Penalty Phase In Violation Of The 
Fifth, Sixth, And Fourteenth Amendments To The United States 
Constitution. 

VI. Penalty Phase Counsel And Penalty Phase Appellate Counsel Was 
Ineffective For Failing To Raise Several Instances Of Improper 
Prosecutorial Argument Which Should Have Been Raised Simultaneously 
In Mr. Chappell's Appeal In Violation Of The Fifth, Sixth, Eighth And 
Fourteenth Amendments To The United States Constitution. 

VII. Mr. Chappell Received Ineffective Assistance Of Penalty Phase Counsel 
And Appellate Counsel For Failure To Object To Improper Impeachment 
In Violation Of The Fifth, Sixth, And Fourteenth Amendments. 

8 
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1 16. Mr. Chappell filed a proper person petition for writ of habeas corpus in 

2 the Federal District Court for the District of Nevada on March 23, 2016. Chappell v. 

3 Filson, Case No. 3:16-cv-00645, Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus By A Person in 

4 State Custody Sentenced to Death, Dkt. 1 (D. Nev.). On April 4, 2016, the federal court 

5 appointed the Federal Public Defender (FPD) to represent Mr. Chappell. Chappell v. 

6 Filson, Case No. 3:16-cv-00645, Notice of Appointment, Dkt. 8 (D. Nev.). Mr. Chappell 

7 filed an amended petition for writ of habeas corpus on August 17, 2016. 6 Chappell v. 
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6 The following Claims were raised in the amended petition: 

(1) Ineffective assistance of counsel for failing to investigate and prepare for 
the guilt phase of trial; 

(2) Trial court failed to properly instruct the jury at the guilt phase of trial; 

(3) Ineffective assistance of counsel for failing to investigate and present 
mitigating evidence at the penalty phase of trial; 

(4) The sexual assault aggravator was not proven by sufficient evidence and it 
invalid as applied; 

(5) Trial court failed to properly instruct the jury at the penalty phase retrial; 

(6) The State engaged in purposeful discrimination by using peremptory 
strikes to remove African-American venire members from Mr. Chappell's 
first trial; 

(7) Trial court erred by failing to strike biased prospective jurors for cause; 

(8) The State engaged in purposeful discrimination by using peremptory 
strikes to remove African-American venire members at Mr. Chappell's 
penalty re-trial; 

(9) Trial court erred by failing to strike biased prospective jurors for cause at 
Mr. Chappell's penalty re-trial; 

(10) Trial court erred by admitting inadmissible evidence; 

(11) The State failed to prove the charges of burglary, robbery, and first degree 
murder; 

(12) Trial court erred by allowing impermissible and cumulative victim-impact 
evidence; 

(13) Death penalty is unconstitutional as imposed and administered in 
Nevada; 

(14) Mr. Chappell's severe mental health impairments render him ineligible 
for the death penalty; 

(15) The prosecutor committed misconduct at the guilt phase; 

(16) The prosecutor committed misconduct at the penalty phase; 

9 
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1 Filson, Case No. 3:16-cv-00645, Amended Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus, Dkt. 24 

2 (D. Nev.). 

3 17. On September 2, 2016, Mr. Chappell filed a motion to stay the federal 

4 proceedings and hold them in abeyance, in order to permit him to exhaust any state 

5 remedies available. Chappell v. Filson, Case No. 3:16-cv-00645, Motion to Stay and 

6 Abeyance, Dkt. 29 (D. Nev.). On September 7, 2016, the State filed an opposition to the 

7 motion for stay. Chappell v. Filson, Case No. 3:16-cv-00645, Opposition to Motion to 

8 Stay and Abeyance, Dkt. 30 (D. Nev.). On September 16, 2016, Mr. Chappell filed a 

9 reply to the State's opposition. Chappell v. Filson, Case No. 3:16-cv-00645, Reply to 

10 Opposition to Motion to Stay and Abeyance, Dkt. 34 (D. Nev.). The motion was granted 

11 on November 1, 2016. Chappell v. Filson, Case No. 3:16-cv-00645, Order granting 

12 Motion to Stay, Dkt. 36 (D. Nev.). 
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18. The instant petition follows. 

(17) Trial court erred by improperly admitting inadmissible evidence at the 
penalty re-trial; 

(18) Mr. Chappell's jury was drawn from a venire from which African-
Americans were systematically excluded and unrepresented; 

(19) First direct appeal counsel were ineffective; 

(20) Second direct appeal counsel were ineffective; 

(21) Popularly elected state judges failed to conduct fair and adequate 
appellate review; 

(22) Mr. Chappell's conditions of confinement on death row violate the Eight 
Amendment prohibition on cruel and unusual punishment; 

(23) Trial Court erred in denying Mr. Chappell's motion to strike the State's 
notice of intent to seek the death penalty; 

(24) Trial counsel at guilt and penalty phases failed to preserve record of 
objections and court rulings for direct appeal and post-conviction litigation; 

(25) Execution by lethal injection is unconstitutional; 

(26) Mr. Chappell is entitled to relief based upon the cumulative errors in his 
trial, appeal, and post-conviction proceedings. 

10 
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STATEMENT WITH RESPECT TO CLAIMS RE-RAISED IN THE INSTANT 

PETITION 

1. Mr. Chappell re-raises, in the instant petition, the grounds raised on 

direct appeal to the Nevada Supreme Court because Mr. Chappell is entitled to a 

cumulative consideration of the constitutional errors which infected his conviction and 

death sentence. This Court cannot perform an appropriate harmless error review 

without considering claims that Mr. Chappell has raised previously. The failure to 

raise these claims adequately on direct appeal was the result of ineffective assistance 

of counsel on direct appeal. Specifically, Mr. Chappell's direct appeal counsel raised 

but, in some instances, failed to adequately plead, the following claims: Claim Two 

(Guilt Phase Jury Instructions) (in part), Claim Four (Sexual Assault Aggravator) (in 

part), Claim Five (Penalty Phase Jury Instructions) (in part), Claim Six (Batson Guilt 

Phase) (in part), Claim Seven (Witt Error Guilt Phase), Claim Ten (Trial Court Error 

Guilt Phase), Claim Eleven (Insufficiency of the Evidence), Claim Twelve (Improper 

Victim Impact Evidence-Penalty Trial), Claim Fifteen (Prosecutorial Misconduct 

Guilt Phase), Claim Sixteen (Prosecutorial Misconduct Penalty Phase), Claim 

Seventeen (Trial Court Error Penalty Trial), Claim Twenty-Three (Trial Court Error 

in Not Striking the State's Notice of Intent to Seek Death Penalty-First Trial). Claim 

Twenty-Six (Cumulative Error) (in part). 

2. Furthermore, Mr. Chappell re-raises, in the instant petition, claims which 

were previously raised during his prior post-conviction proceedings because state post-

conviction counsel failed to adequately develop, present, or demonstrate prejudice with 
23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

respect to those claims. Under state law, Mr. Chappell had a right to the effective 

assistance of counsel during the previous state habeas proceedings, and Mr. Chappell 

did not consent to the failure to develop or adequately present any available 

constitutional claim or knowingly and intelligently waive any such claim. Mr. Chappell 

11 
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1 did not voluntarily conceal from or fail to disclose to appointed-counsel any fact 

2 relevant to any available constitutional claim. Specifically, Mr. Chappell's previous 

3 post-conviction counsel, David Schieck and Chris Oram, were ineffective in failing to 

4 present the additional information contained in Claim One (IAC Guilt Phase), Claim 

5 Two (Guilt Phase Jury Instructions), Claim Three (IAC Penalty Phase), Claim Four 

6 (Sexual Assault Aggravator), Claim Five (Penalty Phase Jury Instructions), Claim Six 

7 (Batson Guilt Phase), Claim Nine (Witt Error Penalty Phase), Claim Ten (Trial Court 

8 Error Guilt Phase), Claim Eleven (Insufficiency of the Evidence), Claim Twelve 

9 (Improper Victim Impact Evidence-Penalty Trial), Claim Thirteen (Death Penalty is 

10 Unconstitutional), Claim Fifteen (Prosecutorial Misconduct Guilt Phase), Claim 

11 Sixteen (Prosecutorial Misconduct Penalty Phase), Claim Nineteen (IAC of First Direct 

12 Appeal Counsel), Claim Twenty (IAC of Second Direct Appeal Counsel), Claim Twenty-

13 three (Trial Court Error in Not Striking the State's Notice of Intent to Seek Death 

14 Penalty-First Trial), Claim Twenty-five (Lethal Injection), Claim Twenty-six 

15 (Cumulative Error). There is a reasonable probability of a more favorable outcome at 

16 either post-conviction proceeding if counsel had performed effectively. The newly 

17 developed facts, which are outlined in detail in the above-referenced claims 

18 demonstrate that Mr. Chappell was prejudiced by his previous state post-conviction 

19 counsel's ineffective assistance. 

20 3. Good cause exists to excuse any failure to previously develop the factual 

21 basis for claims stemming from Mr. Chappell's second penalty phase. This Court failed 

22 to grant an evidentiary hearing, preventing Mr. Chappell from adequately developing 

23 the factual basis for his claims. In particular, the court's refusal to grant investigative 

24 or expert funds, or to conduct an evidentiary hearing, constitutes good cause for re-

25 raising Claim Three (IAC Penalty Phase), Claim Thirteen (Death Penalty is 

26 Unconstitutional), Claim Twenty (IAC of Second Direct Appeal Counsel), and Claim 

27 Twenty-six (Cumulative Error). The newly developed facts, which are outlined in the 

12 
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claims referenced above, demonstrate that Mr. Chappell was prejudiced by the court's 

failure to grant him a full and fair opportunity to litigate his second state post­

conviction petition. 

4. Application of procedural default to bar consideration of Mr. Chappell's 

constitutional claims would violate due process and equal protection under the state 

and federal constitutions, because the Nevada Supreme Court applies or disregards 

default rules arbitrarily and treats similarly-situated habeas petitioners inconsistently 

with regard to procedural default. 

STATEMENT WITH RESPECT TO CLAIMS RAISED FOR THE FIRST TIME 

IN THE INSTANT PETITION 

1. Mr. Chappell has raised new grounds for relief in the instant post-

conviction petition. These claims that have not been raised previously due to ineffective 

assistance of trial, appellate, and state post-conviction counsel. Martinez v. Ryan, 132 

S. Ct. 1309 (2012); Maples v Thomas, 132 S. Ct. 912 (2012); Evitts v. Lucey, 469 U.S. 

387, 395-97 (1985); Strickland v. Washington, 644 U.S. 668, 687-91 (1984); Crump v. 

Warden, 113 Nev. 293, 302-3, 934 P.2d 247, 254 (1997). Specifically, the following 

claims are new, in whole or in part: Claim One (in part); Claim Two (in part); Claim 

Three (in part); Claim Five (in part); Claim Eight, Claim Nine, Claim Thirteen (in 

part), Claim Fourteen, Claim Eighteen, Claim Nineteen (in part), Claim Twenty (in 

part), Claim Twenty-One, Claim Twenty-two, Claim Twenty-Four, Claim Twenty-Five, 

Claim Twenty-Six (in part). 

2. Mr. Chappell also alleges that this Court prevented counsel from 

litigating Mr. Chappell's constitutional claims in the previous post-conviction 

proceedings, and violated Mr. Chappell's state and federal constitutional right to due 

process, by denying necessary funds and preventing him from developing the facts 

necessary to prove his claims. Mr. Chappell was prevented from proving the necessary 

13 
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1 elements of his ineffective assistance of counsel claims by this Court's refusal to admit 

2 and consider relevant evidence, and concomitant failure to provide resources adequate 

3 to allow counsel to fully and fairly litigate these constitutional issues. This Court's 

4 denial of funds rendered the state corrective process inadequate. Specifically, Mr. 

5 Chappell was prevented from litigating Claim One (IAC Guilt Phase) and Claim Three 

6 (IAC Penalty Phase). 

7 3. Mr. Chappell was prevented from raising certain facts supporting Claim 

8 Fifteen G by the State's failure to disclose material exculpatory and impeachment 

9 evidence. Brady v. Maryland, 373 U.S. 83, 87 (1963). Other claims are being raised for 

10 the first time due to intervening changes in the law. 
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1 PRIOR COUNSEL 

2 The attorneys who previously represented Mr. Chappell were appointed by the 

3 courts. They were: 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

a. 

b. 

C. 

d. 

f. 

g. 

1996 Pre-trial, Trial and Sentencing Proceedings: 

Howard Brooks (Clark County Public Defender) 

Willard Ewing (Clark County Public Defender) 

First Direct Appeal: 

Howard Brooks (Clark County Public Defender) 

Michael Miller (Clark County Public Defender) 

State Post-Conviction (Guilt and First Penalty): 

David Schieck (Private) 

2007 Penalty Re-trial: 

David Schieck (Clark County Special Public Defender) 

Clark Patrick (Clark County Special Public Defender) 

Second Direct Appeal: 

JoNell Thomas (Clark County Special Public Defender) 

State Post-Conviction (Second Penalty): 

Christopher Oram (Private) 

20 GROUNDS FOR RELIEF 

21 Mr. Chappell alleges the following grounds for relief from the judgment of 

22 conviction and sentence. References in this Petition to the accompanying exhibits 

23 incorporate the contents of the exhibit as if fully set forth herein. References to one 

24 claim within another claim incorporate all of the arguments contained within the 

25 incorporated claim as if fully set forth therein. 

26 

27 
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1 CLAIM ONE (IAC GUILT PHASE) 

2 Mr. Chappell's conviction is invalid under federal constitutional guarantees of 

3 due process, confrontation, right to counsel, a reliable sentence, and equal protection 

4 due to the ineffective assistance of trial counsel during the pretrial and guilt phases of 

5 the 1996 capital proceeding. U.S. Const. Amends. V, VI, VIII, XIV; Nev. Const. art. 1, 

6 §§ 1, 6, 8, and art. 4 § 21. 

7 SUPPORTING FACTS 

8 1. From the outset of this case, James Chappell accepted responsibility for 

9 the death of Deborah Panos, his long-time girlfriend and mother of his three children. 

10 His position has always been that he committed the offense in the heat of passion, after 

11 learning that Ms. Panos had cheated on him. While trial counsel accepted this position, 

12 they ineffectively failed to investigate the case, hold the State to its burden of proof, or 

13 present a defense in a coherent and persuasive manner. 

14 2. Reasonably competent counsel would have investigated and presented 

15 evidence that Mr. Chappell suffered from Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder (FASD), 

16 specifically Alcohol Related Neurodevelopmental Disorder (ARND), rebutting the 

17 State's theory that Mr. Chappell intentionally, knowingly, and with premeditation 

18 caused Ms. Panos's death. Furthermore, counsel were deficient in failing to effectively 

19 challenge the State's evidence at the guilt phase by calling lay witnesses to testify on 

20 behalf of Mr. Chappell. 

21 3. Counsel also failed to argue that Mr. Chappell was not guilty of burglary 

22 due to the fact he was a legal resident of the home he shared with Ms. Panos. This 

23 argument would have precluded the jury from convicting Chappell of felony-murder 

24 based upon burglary as the underlying predict act. 

25 

26 

27 
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1 4. In addition, counsel failed to withdraw the defense stipulation 7 when it 

2 became apparent the court was going to admit evidence of Mr. Chappell's prior bad 

3 acts despite the stipulation; failed to request a continuance to investigate the guilt-

4 phase case after it became apparent the focus of the State's case was going to be the 

5 long relationship between Mr. Chappell and Ms. Panos; failed to investigate the prior 

6 bad acts presented at the Petrocelli 8 hearing; failed to properly prepare psychologist 

7 Lewis Etcoff and James Chappell for their testimony; failed to present evidence that 

8 pre-ejaculation fluids carry sperm; failed to raise necessary objections; failed to 

9 rehabilitate potential jurors after they expressed some discomfort with the death 

10 penalty; and waived Mr. Chappell's right to confront the State's DNA expert within the 

11 meaning of Crawford v. Washington, 541 U.S. 36 (2004); Ohio v. Roberts, 448 U.S. 56 

12 (1980). 

13 lt. Mr. Chappell had a Sixth Amendment right to the effective 
assistance of counsel at trial 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

5. The Sixth Amendment guarantees that a person accused of a crime 

receive the effective assistance of counsel for his defense. An ineffective assistance of 

counsel claim has two components: the petitioner must show that counsel's 

performance was deficient, and that the deficiency prejudiced the defense. Strickland 

v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 687 (1984); accord Porter v. McCollum, 558 U.S. 30, 38-

39 (2009) (per curiam); Wiggins v. Smith, 539 U.S. 510, 521 (2003); Crace v. Herzog, 

798 F.3d 840, 846 (9th Cir. 2015); Rippo v. State, 368 P.3d 729, 733-34 (Nev. 2016) 

(citing to two-prong test set forth in Strickland). 

7 At trial, the defense stipulated that Mr. Chappell: (1) entered the trailer rented 
to Ms. Panos through a window; (2) engaged in sexual intercourse with Panos; (3) 
caused the death of Panos by stabbing her with a kitchen knife; and (4) and was jealous 
of Panos. Ex. 135 at 121-22. 

8 Petrocelli v. State, 692 P.2d 503 (Nev. 1985). 
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1 6. To establish deficiency, a petitioner must show his counsel's 

2 representation fell below an objective standard of reasonableness. Porter, 558 U.S. at 

3 38-39 (quoting Strickland, 466 U.S. at 688). The Supreme Court has reiterated that it 

4 applies a "case-by-case approach to determining whether an attorney's performance 

5 was unconstitutionally deficient under Strickland." Rompilla v. Beard, 545 U.S. 37 4, 

6 393-94 (2005) (O'Connor, J., concurring) (citing Strickland, 466 U.S. 668). 

7 7. Deficient performance is performance that is "inconsistent with the 

8 standard of professional competence in capital cases that prevailed [at the time of the 

9 trial]." Cullen v. Pinholster, 563 U.S. 170, 196 (2011). The Supreme Court has 

10 repeatedly assessed the reasonableness of counsel's performance by looking to 

11 "[p]revailing norms of practice as reflected in [the] American Bar Association 

12 standards." Strickland, 466 U.S. at 688; Wiggins, 539 U.S. at 524; see also Padilla v. 

13 Kentucky, 559 U.S. 356, 367 (2010) (noting that the ABA Standards "may be valuable 

14 measures of the prevailing professional norms of effective representation"); Rompilla, 

15 545 U.S. at 387 ("'[W]e long have referred [to the ABA Standards for Criminal Justice] 

16 as "guides to determining what is reasonable.""' (quoting Wiggins, 539 U.S. at 524)). 

17 8. ABA Guideline 11.4.1 speaks about the investigation necessary in a 

18 capital case, requiring counsel to "conduct independent investigation relating to the 

19 guilt/innocence phase ... immediately upon counsel's entry into the case and should 

20 be pursed expeditiously." ABA Guidelines for the Appointment and Performance of 

21 Counsel in Death Penalty Cases, 31 HOFSTRA L. REV. 913 (1989) ("1989 ABA 

22 Guidelines"); Guideline 11.4.l(A). The Guidelines also state that the "investigation for 

23 preparation of the guilt/innocence phase of the trial should be conducted regardless of 

24 any admission or statement by the client concerning facts constituting guilt." 1989 

25 Guideline 11.4.l(B). The same Guidelines urge capital counsel to interview potential 

26 witnesses, including "witnesses familiar with aspects of the client's life history that 

27 might affect the likelihood that the client committed the charged offense(s) .... " 1989 

18 
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1 Guideline 11.4.l(D)(3). 1989 Guideline 11.4.1 also requires capital counsel to secure 

2 the assistance of experts where it is necessary or appropriate for the "preparation of 

3 the defense," an "adequate understanding of the prosecution's case," and "rebuttal of 

4 any portion of the prosecution's case at the guilt/innocence phase .... " 1989 Guideline 

5 11.4.l(D)(7). 

6 9. To establish prejudice, the standard is whether there is a reasonable 

7 probability that, absent the errors by counsel, the factfinder would have had a 

8 reasonable doubt respecting guilt. Hardy v. Chappell, _ F.3d. _, 2016 WL 424 7752 

9 (9th Cir. Aug. 11, 2016) (citing Strickland). 

10 
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B. The Clark County Public Defender's Office (CCPD) was appointed to 
represent Mr. Chappell 

10. On September 8, 1995, at his initial arraignment in the Justice Court, the 

Clark County Public Defender's Office ("CCPD") was appointed to represent Mr. 

Chappell. Ex. 95; Ex. 177. Two days later, on September 10, 1995, Deputy Public 

Defender Howard Brooks became Mr. Chappell's lead trial attorney. Ex. 109 at 5. 

11. At the time he was assigned to represent Mr. Chappell, Mr. Brooks had 

been practicing for seven years, five of them as a deputy public defender. Ex. 109 at 4-

5; Ex. 118 at ,r4. Mr. Brooks was assigned to CCPD's murder team, and he carried a 

case load of about ten murder cases-which Mr. Brooks acknowledged was a heavy 

caseload. Ex. 109 at 5-6; Ex. 118 at ,r,r4-5. Mr. Chappell's case was Mr. Brooks's second 

capital trial. Ex. 118 at ,r4. The first capital trial was the Chris Schoels case, which 

occurred in the fall of 1995. Mr. Brooks was Rule 250 qualified9 after the Schoels case 

and had previously worked on two other non-capital murder cases. Ex. 109 at 6. As 

this was only Mr. Brooks's second capital case, he did not fully appreciate or 

understand how to adequately prepare and litigate a capital case. Ex. 118 at ,r 4. 

27 9 Nevada Supreme Court Rule 250(2) describes the qualifications needed to 
be appointed to represent an indigent defendant in a capital case. 
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1 12. Deputy Public Defender Willard Ewing was assigned to work as second 

2 chair counsel on Mr. Chappell's case in approximately August 1996, about two months 

3 before the start of Mr. Chappell's trial. Ex. 109 at 6-7, 56; Ex. 118 at ,r5; Ex. 120 at ,r4. 

4 Mr. Ewing met Mr. Chappell for the first time on September 16, 1996, less than one 

5 month before the start of trial. Ex. 102. Mr. Ewing had been an attorney for six years 

6 at the time of Mr. Chappell's trial, approximately four of them at the CCPD. Id. at 55-

7 56 10 ; Ex. 120 at ,r,r2-3. Mr. Chappell was Mr. Ewing's first capital murder case, and 

8 possibly the first murder case he tried. Ex. 109 at 57; Ex. 120 at ,r4. Mr. Ewing was 

9 not Rule 250 qualified. Ex. 109 at 6-7, 57. He was assigned to the case so close to trial 

10 because the CCPD wanted to get Mr. Ewing Rule 250 qualified. Ex. 120 at ,r 4. 

11 13. Mr. Chappell's case was essentially Mr. Brooks's case, and he worked on 

12 it from the beginning. Ex. 109 at 7. Mr. Brooks was in charge of the guilt phase case, 

13 with the exception of Dr. Etcoff, who was Mr. Ewing's witness. Mr. Ewing was in 

14 charge of the penalty phase case, with the exception of Lansing Parole Officer William 

15 Moore, who was Mr. Brooks's witness. Id. at 7, 56. Mr. Ewing also did much of the 

16 voir dire questioning, even though this was his first capital case. 

17 

18 

19 

20 
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C. Trial counsel were ineffective for failing to investigate and prepare 
for the guilt phase of trial 

1. Trial counsel were ineffective for failing to investigate the 
State's case prior to the Petrocelli hearing 

14. The State filed their witness lists (Order to Endorse Names on 

Information) on July 9, 1996, Ex. 126 , July 15, 1996, Ex. 98, August 22, 1996, Ex. 99, 

September 4, 1996, Ex. 101, and October 14, 1996, Ex. 106. Trial counsel never 

interviewed any of these witnesses noticed by the State. 

15. On May 9, 1996, the State filed a motion to admit prior bad acts involving 

Mr. Chappell, mainly with respect to his prior domestic violence against Ms. Panos. 

27 10 Mr. Ewing left the CCPD in 1990 and returned in 1993 or 1994. Ex. 109 
at 55-56. 
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1 Ex. 109 at 8; Ex. 17. The State filed a supplement to that motion on August 29, 1996. 

2 Ex. 18. As a result of these filings, counsel figured out that the focus of the State's case 

3 was going to be the long-term relationship between Ms. Panos and Mr. Chappell: 

4 specifically, the history of domestic abuse. Ex. 17; Ex. 18; Ex. 102. The State's strategy 

5 caught defense counsel by surprise as counsel believed, up to that point, that the case 

6 was going to center around the facts of the instant offense and whether the State could 

7 prove first-degree murder, second-degree murder, or voluntary manslaughter. Ex. 109 

8 at 44. If trial counsel had interviewed the witnesses listed by the State, they would 

9 have sooner recognized that the trial would focus on Mr. Chappell and Ms. Panos's 

10 relationship and history of domestic violence. Ex. 109 at 43-44. 

11 16. Mr. Brooks wanted to limit the guilt phase evidence to the facts 

12 surrounding Ms. Panos's death, making an argument that the killing was either 

13 voluntary manslaughter or, at the most, second-degree murder. Ex. 109 at 8. Mr. 

14 Brooks intended to prevent the prior domestic battery priors from being introduced 

15 into evidence in the guilt phase "by eliminating the issue of the identity of the killer." 

16 Mr. Brooks also wanted to limit the State's evidence of prior domestic violence so that 

17 Mr. Chappell would have credibility with the jury when he testified to the events 

18 surrounding Ms. Panos's death. Ex. 109 at 8. 

19 17. Without having interviewed any of the State's witnesses, Mr. Brooks 

20 concluded that stipulating that Mr. Chappell killed Ms. Panos would render the prior 

21 bad act evidence irrelevant and focus the jury on whether the killing was voluntary 

22 manslaughter versus focusing on the issues of domestic violence between Mr. Chappell 

23 and Ms. Panos. Ex. 109 at 8. 

24 18. In early September 1996, about a month before the commencement of 

25 trial, Mr. Brooks discussed with Mr. Chappell the idea of entering into the stipulation. 

26 And based upon Mr. Brooks's recommendation, Mr. Chappell agreed. Mr. Brooks filed 

27 
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1 the offer to stipulate to facts on September 10, 1996. Ex. 109 at 8-9; Ex. 20. The offer 

2 to stipulate read was as follows: 

3 1. That James Chappell on August 31, 1995, entered the trailer 

4 

5 

6 

7 

rented to Deborah Ms. Panos through a window; 

2. That James Chappell engaged in sexual intercourse with 
Deborah Ms. Panos on August 31, 1995, and 

3. That James Chappell caused the death of Deborah Ms. Panos by 
stabbing her with a kitchen knife and the act was not an accident. 

4. That James Chappell was jealous of Deborah Ms. Panos giving 
8 attention to, or receiving attention from, other men. 

9 Ex. 20. 

10 19. The same day he filed the stipulation, Mr. Brooks also filed a motion to 

11 hold a hearing within the meaning of Petrocelli, 692 P.2d 503-compelling the State to 

12 present "clear and convincing" evidence of the alleged prior acts in a hearing before the 

13 commencement of the trial, Ex. 22-and another motion objecting to the admission of 

14 the other crimes evidence based on Mr. Chappell's proffered stipulation. Ex. 19. 

15 20. Despite the witness lists filed by the State, counsel's recognition that the 

16 State intended to focus on the prior bad acts, and the upcoming Petrocelli hearing, 

17 which defense counsel requested, trial counsel still failed to interview any of the 

18 witnesses noticed by the State prior to the Petrocelli hearing. Ex. 118 at ,r12. 

19 According to Mr. Brooks, at the time of Mr. Chappell's trial, he did not know how to 

20 use an investigator because the ones employed at the CCPD were not very good. Id. 

21 21. The Petrocelli hearing was held on October 7, 1996. Though the defense 

22 believed the State would be required to prove the prior bad acts through live witness 

23 testimony, the trial court allowed the State to simply make a proffer as to what its 

24 witnesses would testify to if called. Ex. 111 at 12-13, 20-21, 29, 31-32. At the conclusion 

25 of the hearing, based solely on the State's proffer, the court ruled that the following 

26 evidence would be admitted against Mr. Chappell: episodes of domestic violence that 

27 

22 



AA00206

1 occurred in February 1994 in Tucson, December 1994 in Las Vegas, January 1995 in 

2 Las Vegas, and June 1995 in Las Vegas; University Medical Center (UMC) records 

3 related to the January 1995 episode of domestic violence; threats from Mr. Chappell 

4 that a witness heard during various telephone calls in February, September, and 

5 November 1994; and evidence of a temporary protective order requested by Ms. Panos 

6 against Mr. Chappell in January 1995. This evidence included witness testimony from 

7 Lisa Duran, Dina Freeman, City of Tucson Police Officer Jeri Earnst, Las Vegas Metro 

8 Police Officer Daniel Giersdorf, and Las Vegas Metro Police Officer Allen Williams. Ex. 

9 lllat31-33. 

10 22. If they had interviewed these witnesses prior to the hearing, trial counsel 

11 would have been better prepared to rebut their proffered testimony and convince the 

12 trial judge not to allow the prior bad act evidence in at trial. Ex. 109 at 44. Counsel 

13 did not have a strategic reason for not conducting these interviews. Ex. 118 at ,r12. 

14 23. Defense counsel also would have been better prepared to rebut the State's 

15 evidence at trial. As counsel admitted, the defense had to limit the testimony about Mr. 

16 Chappell and Ms. Panos's relationship and prior acts of domestic violence for Mr. 

17 Chappell to receive a fair trial. Ex. 109 at 10. But without an investigation into the 

18 prior acts, counsel was impotent to rebut the State's case. Ex. 109 at 14, 52. 

19 24. For example, the defense narrative in this case was that Mr. Chappell and 

20 Ms. Panos had a rocky relationship, made up of a series of fights, break-ups, and 

21 reconciliations, but most importantly the two loved one another and were still in a 

22 committed relationship. According to the defense case, Mr. Chappell went home after 

23 his release from jail on August 31 for another of those reconciliations. It was only when 

24 he returned home did Mr. Chappell learn the truth, and after discovering that Ms. 

25 Panos had been unfaithful to him, he killed her in a jealous rage. Ex. 132 at 44-51. 

26 25. However, the State's witnesses portrayed an entirely different scenario-

27 this one involving Mr. Chappell repeatedly abusing Ms. Panos, Mr. Chappell stealing 

23 



AA00207

1 from Ms. Panos and their children, and Ms. Panos being nervous about Mr. Chappell's 

2 ultimate release fromjail. 11 And because counsel had not interviewed any of the State's 

3 witnesses, nor investigated the allegations of prior domestic violence, the defense was 

4 ill-equipped to rebut the State's damaging evidence, other than with their own client's 

5 testimony-(see subsection 3(b), post). 

6 26. If counsel had conducted an investigation as required, the defense would 

7 have been able to defend their client against the State's damaging and almost 

8 completely unrebutted allegations. Counsel's failure fell below objective standards of 

9 reasonableness. 
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27. 

2. Following the Petrocelli hearing, trial counsel were ineffective 
for failing to withdraw the stipulation, seek a continuance, and 
prepare a defense to the prior bad act evidence 

Despite the court's ruling that the State could present evidence of prior 

incidents of domestic violence between Ms. Panos and Mr. Chappell, Ex. 109 at 9, Mr. 

Brooks did not withdraw the offer to stipulate that Mr. Chappell killed Ms. Panos. This 

is so even though Mr. Brooks was still convinced that Mr. Chappell would not get a fair 

trial if the evidence was introduced. Ex. 109 at 9-10. What is worse, Mr. Brooks did 

not even sign the stipulation until October 10, 1996, after the trial court's ruling at the 

Petrocelli hearing. Ex. 135 at 122; Ex. 21. The stipulation was entered into evidence 

before the jury on October 11, 1996, during the State's case in chief. Ex. 135 at 121-22. 

28. Trial counsel's failure to withdraw the stipulation in light of the court's 

order admitting evidence of prior bad acts of domestic violence fell below an objective 

standard of reasonableness. By making the admissions that Mr. Chappell did in the 

11 The State intentionally obscured evidence that would have undermined the 
25 State's theory and bolstered the defense narrative that Mr. Chappell acted in the heat 

of passion after first learning that Ms. Panos had relations with another man. At least 
26 one of the State's witnesses was requested by the prosecution not to mention Ms. 

Panos's relationship with another man, Willie Wiltz, Jr., "because she believed that the 
27 defense attorneys might use the relationship to assist their heat of passion defense." 

Ex. 326 at ,r10. 
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1 stipulation, the defense unconstitutionally failed to hold the State to its burden of proof. 

2 See Ex. 142 at 83-85 (State's closing argument centering on the stipulation entered into 

3 by Chappell). 

4 29. Furthermore, trial counsel's failure to interview witnesses regarding the 

5 prior bad act acts, or to investigate possible defenses to this evidence, despite already 

6 knowing the evidence of prior domestic violence would be admitted, fell below an 

7 objective standard of reasonableness. 

8 30. To the extent that trial counsel needed additional time to undertake and 

9 complete such an investigation, counsel were ineffective for failing to seek a 

10 continuance. Even counsel admitted later that he "probably should have [moved for a 

11 continuance]." Ex. 109 at 14, 18-19. 

12 31. In addition, counsel's reasoning for not moving for a continuance was 

13 unreasonable. According to defense counsel, "[i]t was a matter of we were there, I was 

14 going to get the case done." Ex. 109 at 19; accord Ex. 118 at ,r6. But counsel also knew 

15 that they had not done any investigation into the prior domestic acts of violence Mr. 

16 Chappell committed and had not interviewed any of the State's witnesses. And because 

17 it was clear to counsel that the State's case was going to focus on those prior acts and 

18 the turbulent relationship between Mr. Chappell and Ms. Panos, counsel's failure to 

19 request a continuance to investigate placed their client in a weakened position-being 

20 on the eve of trial with no investigation and no defense. Counsel had valid reasons for 

21 requesting a continuance and failed to do so. That action was not strategic and 

22 amounted to deficient performance. 

23 32. Nor was counsel's other reason for not requesting a continuance-

24 believing that the judge would deny it, Ex. 109 at 19-20-in any way strategic. In 

25 short, once the defense realized they had not investigated the State's case, counsel 

26 should have requested a continuance. Counsel's failure to do so, and to withdraw the 

27 stipulation, prejudiced Mr. Chappell. 
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1 33. As will be explained, there was a plethora of evidence available to counsel 

2 that a full and reasonable investigation would have uncovered, which would have 

3 rebutted the State's case. 
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34. 

a. Trial counsel were ineffective for failing to adequately prepare 
the testifying witnesses they did present 

In support of their defense that Mr. Chappell acted in the heat of passion, 

trial counsel presented a mere three witnesses: Bret Robello, a former Las Vegas 

neighbor of Mr. Chappell and Ms. Panos who testified that the trailer Mr. Chappell 

and Ms. Panos inhabited was normally messy; 12 Mr. Chappell himself, and psychologist 

Lewis Etcoff, who relied almost entirely on Mr. Chappell's own statements in forming 

his opinions. Counsel's failure to prepare their witnesses amounted to deficient 

performance. 

a. Dr. Etcoff 

35. On April 23, 1996, Mr. Brooks contacted, for the first time, psychologist 

Dr. Lewis Etcoff. Mr. Brooks requested that Dr. Etcoff evaluate Mr. Chappell 

regarding possible mitigating circumstances. Specifically, Dr. Etcoff was asked to 

conduct a "criminal psychological evaluation." Ex. 178; Ex. 172 at 3-7; Ex. 85 at ,r7. 

36. Dr. Etcoff was not asked to conduct a full neuropsychological battery nor 

was he provided any information from the defense team indicating that Mr. Chappell 

might suffer from brain damage. Ex. 85 at ,r7. 

23 12 Mr. Robello, an EMS worker and former law enforcement employee, who 
testified that he heard other couples living in the same trailer space occupied by Mr. 

24 Chappell and Ms. Panos fighting and making up, Ex. 137 at 8, would have testified 
that he saw no evidence of either drug abuse or domestic violence from Mr. Chappell 

25 or Ms. Panos. Ex. 332 at ,r4. He never saw Mr. Chappell intoxicated or in poor hygiene; 
he never saw bruises on Ms. Panos or any evidence that she was afraid of Mr. Chappell; 

26 he never heard arguing or strange noises from the thin-walled trailer Mr. Chappell and 
Ms. Panos aoccupied. Ex. 332 at ,r 4-5. Trial counsel were ineffective for not eliciting 

27 from Mr. Robello information beyond the fact that the trailer was messy on the one 
occasion he saw portions of the inside. Ex. 137 at 9. 
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1 37. In preparation for the evaluation, Dr. Etcoff reviewed only a handful of 

2 records including the police report of the crime, a statement made by Lisa Duran, and 

3 some letters purportedly written by Mr. Chappell to Ms. Panos. Dr. Etcoff was also 

4 made aware of a watered-down version of Mr. Chappell's history of domestic abuse 

5 against Ms. Panos through Mr. Chappell's self-reporting to Dr. Etcoff, which tended to 

6 minimize the incidents and leave out crucial details. Ex. 172 at 11-14; Ex. 85 at ,rs. 

7 38. On June 10, 1996, Mr. Brooks visited Mr. Chappell at the jail and assisted 

8 Mr. Chappell with the filling out of a forensic life history questionnaire. 13 Mr. Brooks 

9 then delivered that life history document to Dr. Etcoffs office. Ex. 85 at ,rs. On June 

10 11, 1996, Mr. Chappell was transported to Dr. Etcoffs office for an evaluation. Exs. 

11 178-79. 

12 39. At the evaluation, Mr. Chappell was given three hours of testing that 

13 included an intelligence test (the Weschler Adult Intelligence Scale Revised (WAIS-

14 Revised)) and a personality test (the Millon Clinical Multiaxial Inventory). 14 The 

15 testing was not a full neuropsychological battery, nor was it intended to reveal whether 

16 Mr. Chappell suffered from brain damage. Dr. Etcoff also interviewed Mr. Chappell 

17 for about two hours regarding Mr. Chappell's psycho-social and medical history. Ex. 

18 172 at 12, 17, 22; Ex. 85 at ,r7, 10. 

19 40. On June 13, 1996, Dr. Etcoff wrote a report for defense counsel based on 

20 his testing, evaluation, and interview with Mr. Chappell. Ex. 107; Ex. 172 at 12-13. In 

21 that report, Dr. Etcoff explained the scoring on the achievement and personality tests, 

22 discussed his clinical interview with Mr. Chappell, and diagnosed Mr. Chappell with a 

23 severe learning disability and Borderline Personality Disorder with avoidant, self-

24 

25 

26 

27 

13 Dr. Etcoff created this forensic life history questionnaire for criminal 
defendants he was asked to evaluate. Ex. 85 at ,rs, 

14 A member of Dr. Etcoffs staff gave Mr. Chappell the WAIS-Revised, and Mr. 
Chappell took the personality test by audio-tape. Ex. 172 at 45. 
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1 defeating, and schizoid personality features. Ex. 107. As Dr. Etcoff was going to testify 

2 as a penalty-phase expert, Dr. Etcoff found the following mitigating factors in Mr. 

3 Chappell's case: the death of Mr. Chappell's mother when Mr. Chappell was two years 

4 old; no involvement with his father throughout Mr. Chappell's life; Mr. Chappell's 

5 grandmother was an inadequate and physically abusive parental figure; Mr. Chappell 

6 suffered from a neurologic-based receptive language disorder which correlates with 

7 aggressive acting out in children and teens; Mr. Chappell developed feelings of low self­

s worth and personal inadequacy which resulted in his having Borderline Personality 

9 Disorder; the development of Mr. Chappell's Borderline Personality Disorder was the 

10 result of his low self-worth, humiliating childhood experiences, and the absence of a 

11 normal adult role-model during childhood; Mr. Chappell's cocaine dependence was an 

12 understandable occurrence because he used dependence on drugs as a means to escape 

13 his feelings of inadequacy and low self-worth; that as a result of his cocaine dependence, 

14 Mr. Chappell was unable to have the normal opportunities to learn to cope with his 

15 problems and to find success in his life which would have led to greater self-worth and 

16 less anxiety concerning the loss of a loved one; and finally, while in jail, Mr. Chappell 

17 became so fearful and anxious about losing Ms. Panos that he was less able to think 

18 logically and rationally, which contributed to his impetuously taking Ms. Panos's life. 

19 Ex. 107 at 11-12. 

20 41. Dr. Etcoff also stated 1n his report that Mr. Chappell's borderline 

21 personality disorder contributed to his unstable mood and difficult interpersonal 

22 relationships and that Mr. Chappell's poor self-image was manifested within his 

23 intense, interpersonal relationships characterized by the extremes of over-idealizing 

24 Ms. Panos and devaluing Ms. Panos. According to Dr. Etcoff, Mr. Chappell's 

25 personality disorder was manifested in inappropriate intense anger and lack of control 

26 of anger, and culminated in the months leading up to the killing when he believed he 

27 was losing Ms. Panos, the "one source of strength in his life." Ex. 107 at 12. 
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42. On September 18, 1996, Mr. Brooks sent Mr. Chappell's school records to 

Dr. Etcoff and asked him to review and incorporate them into a revised report. Ex. 85 

at ,rs. 

43. About a week before the start of the trial, on September 27, 1996, Mr. 

Brooks reversed course and requested that Dr. Etcoff testify instead at the guilt-phase 

regarding Mr. Chappell's personality features as it related to intent and the killing of 

Ms. Panos. Ex. 85 at ,r11. Intent was not an area that Dr. Etcoff normally testified to 

as the majority of his work on criminal cases involved whether mitigation evidence 

existed or whether a defendant was competent to stand trial. Ex. 85 at ,r,r6, 11. 

44. Dr. Etcoff prepared a supplemental report for defense counsel on 

September 28, 1996, adding his analysis of Mr. Chappell's school records. Ex. 178. 

45. Because counsel failed to conduct a reasonable investigation at the guilt-

phase, Dr. Etcoff was not able to properly form a basis for his opinion, which left him 

vulnerable later when he testified at the trial. 

46. At the time of Mr. Chappell's trial in 1996, Dr. Etcoff did not have much 

experience with criminal forensic work. His work mainly involved private practice as 

a clinical psychologist and neuropsychologist, conducting psychological and 

neuropsychological evaluations of children, adolescents, and adults in connection with 

child custody and personal injury cases. Only about 10% of Dr. Etcoffs practice at that 

time involved criminal cases. Ex. 85 at ,r,r 4, 6, 9. 15 

47. Because of his lack of experience in criminal matters, Dr. Etcoff took his 

22 direction from defense counsel on what records he should review for purposes of his 

23 evaluation of a defendant. However, even in 1996, Dr. Etcoff knew that it was better 

24 to review as much information as possible about a defendant in order to conduct a 

25 proper forensic criminal mental health evaluation and to build a case, including 

26 

27 
15 Dr. Etcoff stopped working on criminal cases in the early 2000s. Ex. 85 at ,r6. 
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1 speaking with independent sources for corroboration of what the defendant self-

2 reported, and receiving and reviewing as many records as possible. This included a 

3 review of medical and mental health records, criminal records, and school records. Ex. 

4 85 at ,r9. This also included interviewing members of a defendant's family or close 

5 friends "to get an outside opinion or a collateral opinion of what their functioning had 

6 been like." Ex. 174 at 28. 

7 48. Dr. Etcoff asked counsel if anyone from Mr. Chappell's family was 

8 available to interview either over the phone or in person. The only person that counsel 

9 made available to Dr. Etcoff was Mr. Chappell. Ex. 17 4 at 28; see also Ex. 17 4 at 84 

10 (no Chappell family members were provided for Dr. Etcoff to interview and an expert 

11 would have found it important to interview such witnesses as a way of getting 

12 independent sources for corroboration); Ex. 85 at ,r10. Because of this lack of 

13 information, Dr. Etcoff had to rely on Mr. Chappell's self-reports from both the clinical 

14 interview and the forensic life history questionnaire. Id. Nor was Dr. Etcoff given any 

15 statements by State witnesses, which further left his opinion open to impeachment. 

16 See Ex. 142 at 51-52. 

17 49. Because Dr. Etcoff was not given any documentation of the prior domestic 

18 abuse charges except for Mr. Chappell's self-reports, Dr. Etcoff was heavily impeached 

19 on cross-examination as to prior bad acts with which he was unfamiliar. As Dr. Etcoff 

20 had to admit, these unreported prior acts would cause him to reconsider his opinion. 

21 In the end, Dr. Etcoffs opinion was severely impeached. See Ex. 142 at 48-49, 50-51, 

22 52-55, 57, 64-65. 

23 50. For example, on cross-examination Dr. Etcoff admitted that he did not 

24 know about a June 1995 incident where Mr. Chappell pushed Ms. Panos onto the bed, 

25 got on top of her, pinned her down, and threatened her with a knife. Ex. 142 at 53-54. 

26 Dr. Etcoff also admitted that if Mr. Chappell intentionally omitted this fact, this would 

27 
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affect the doctor's op1n1on about how cooperative Mr. Chappell was during the 

evaluation. Id. at 55. 

51. Dr. Etcoff did not know these facts because counsel failed to give Dr. Etcoff 

the evidence the State used to prove all of the prior bad act evidence-information that 

the defense knew would be presented following the Petrocelli hearing. Instead, Dr. 

Etcoff formed his opinion relying solely upon Mr. Chappell's self-reports, which Dr. 

Etcoff knew was problematic. If counsel had given Dr. Etcoff the necessary evidence 

to review before testifying, or permitted Dr. Etcoff to talk with Mr. Chappell's friends 

and family (to the extent the defense knew they existed), Dr. Etcoff would not have 

been impeached by the State and his testimony would have been given more credibility 

by the jury. 

52. Dr. Etcoff also admitted that if sperm was found in Ms. Panos's vagina 

and Mr. Chappell stated he had not ejaculated, that would go to Mr. Chappell's candor 

in his discussion with the doctor. Ex. 142 at 64-66. 

53. If counsel had prepared Dr. Etcoffwith the facts of the case, by giving him 

16 the police reports relating to the crime, then Dr. Etcoff could have been prepared for 

17 this question by testifying that pre-ejaculate can contain sperm and that Mr. 

18 Chappell's testimony could have been truthful. See Free, M.J. and Alexander, N.J., 

19 Male contraception without prescription. A reevaluation of the condom and coitus 

20 interruptus, 1976 Public Health Reports, 91(5), p.437; Clark, S., An examination of the 

21 sperm content of human pre-ejaculatory fluid, Sept. 1981; Ex. 118 at ,r14; Ex. 120 at 

22 ifl 1. This also would have combatted the State's closing argument. See Ex. 142 at 83. 

23 54. Dr. Etcoff also admitted on cross-examination that if Mr. Chappell said 

24 he remembered everything that happened up to and then after the killing of Ms. Panos 

25 but not the actual killing, then Mr. Chappell was selectively remembering and thus 

26 might not have been entirely candid with the doctor. Id. at 67. 

27 
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1 55. Dr. Etcoff also admitted that if the police did not list boxer shorts on any 

2 impound report of evidence recovered at the scene, then Mr. Chappell's version of 

3 events-that the effect of finding boxer shorts at the mobile home made him "really 

4 pissed" and at that point his "mind was spinning"-might not be credible. Ex. 142 at 

5 68-69. 

6 56. The Ninth Circuit has repeatedly found trial counsel ineffective for failing 

7 to adequately prepare their mental health experts or provide them with sufficient 

8 "informational foundations." Hovey v. Ayers, 458 F.3d 892, 925 (9th Cir. 2006) 

9 ("Regardless of whether a defense expert requests specific information relevant to a 

10 defendant's background, it is defense counsel's 'duty to seek out such evidence and 

11 bring it to the attention of the experts."') (quoting Wallace v. Stewart, 184 F. 3d 1112, 

12 1116 (9th Cir. 1999)); see Jennings v. Woodford, 290 F.3d 1006, 1014-16 (9th Cir. 2002) 

13 (holding that where "trial counsel failed adequately to investigate and present 

14 considerable evidence regarding petitioner's psychological and family history that 

15 might have ... defeated the jury's finding of the requisite intent for first degree murder 

16 in the guilty phase," defendant was denied effective assistance of counsel); see also 

17 1989 ABA Guidelines 11.4.1, 11.7.1, 11.8.3, 11.8.6. 

18 57. Here, Mr. Chappell's counsel did little to assist Dr. Etcoff in establishing 

19 a link between Mr. Chappell's mental illness and the crimes charged, and they failed 

20 to provide Dr. Etcoff with sufficient background information about Mr. Chappell, 

21 except Mr. Chappell's own self-reports, allowing the State to discredit the expert's 

22 testimony on cross-examination. And counsel limited Dr. Etcoffs inquiry to a "criminal 

23 psychological evaluation" rather than asking him to conduct a thorough 

24 neuropsychological evaluation that could have uncovered support for a mental health 

25 defense (see subsection E, post). Trial counsel's failure to adequately prepare Dr. Etcoff 

26 fell below objective standards of reasonableness. 

27 
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1 58. Trial counsel's failure to investigate and present additional witnesses to 

2 corroborate his testimony also fell below objective standards of reasonableness. "A 

3 lawyer who fails adequately to investigate, and to introduce into evidence, records that 

4 demonstrate his client's factual innocence, or that raise sufficient doubt as to that 

5 question to undermine confidence in the verdict, renders deficient performance." Hart 

6 v. Gomez, 17 4 F.3d 1067, 1070 (9th Cir. 1999). 

7 b. Mr. Chappell 

8 59. Trial counsel were also ineffective for failing to adequately prepare Mr. 

9 Chappell for his testimony. For example, Mr. Chappell testified that on the day he was 

10 released from jail, he went to the Vera Johnson housing project to see some friends but 

11 did not drink or take drugs while there. Ex. 137 at 97. However, trial counsel knew 

12 from Dr. Etcoffs June, 1996 report that Mr. Chappell had previously told Dr. Etcoff he 

13 had consumed a couple of beers with his friend while at the housing project. Ex. 178 at 

14 9. The State pointed out this inconsistency during its cross-examination of Dr. Etcoff, 

15 Ex. 142 at 68, and it impeached Mr. Chappell's testimony. Further, counsel was aware 

16 of the fact that Mr. Chappell's version of events that he told to counsel was different 

17 from what he told Dr. Etcoff. Despite that, counsel still put Mr. Chappell on the stand, 

18 unprepared. 

19 60. Furthermore, trial counsel failed to prepare Mr. Chappell concerning his 

20 testimony about the prior domestic violence incidents and, as a result, he downplayed 

21 his prior violent acts against Ms. Panos in a way that undermined his credibility. See 

22 Ex. 137 at 37-38, 75-76 (Mr. Chappell testified that he never beat Ms. Panos and never 

23 threw a coffee cup at her face despite evidence to the contrary); id. at 75 (Mr. Chappell 

24 testified that he never kicked Ms. Panos during an argument despite testimony to the 

25 contrary); id. at 85-87 (Mr. Chappell testified that he never threatened Ms. Panos with 

26 a knife; he "showed" her the knife to "get information out of her"). Mr. Chappell's 

27 
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1 unwillingness to take responsibility for his own actions was exploited by the State 

2 during cross-examination. See Ex. 137 at 70-71 (Mr. Chappell testified that, even 

3 though he was a drug addict and spent the scant household money to support his drug 

4 habit, he was still a good provider for his family); 73 (Mr. Chappell testified that, even 

5 though he regularly spent the night at the Vera Johnson housing projects getting high, 

6 he was still concerned about his family's welfare); 7 4-75 (Mr. Chappell testified he was 

7 not wrong in selling the dresser Ms. Panos bought for the children because the house 

8 had "plenty of dressers" already); 75-76 (Mr. Chappell testified he did not knock Ms. 

9 Panos to the floor or kick her during one of the Tucson arguments); 89 (Mr. Chappell 

10 testified he did not remember writing a letter to Ms. Panos saying she was going to 

11 hell); 89-90 (Mr. Chappell testified he wrote a letter to Ms. Panos asking if she had 

12 contracted AIDS because he was concerned for her health). Mr. Chappell was also 

13 caught telling various versions of events about the day he was released, stating first 

14 that he knew he was going to be released and told Ms. Panos that and then quickly 

15 varying from that testimony stating instead that he was surprised when he was 

16 released on August 31. Ex. 137 at 92-94. All of these failures to take responsibility for 

17 his own actions and inconsistencies in testimony impeached Mr. Chappell's own 

18 credibility with the jurors. 

19 61. Trial counsel failed to prepare Mr. Chappell to testify in a way that was 

20 consistent with his defense and the known evidence. Mr. Chappell testified that the 

21 State's witnesses were lying, see Ex. 137 at 36-37, 85-86 (Dina Freeman lied); 79-80, 

22 86 (Officer Giersdorf lied); 87 (Officer Williams lied), and that he had been subjected to 

23 police brutality, see Ex. 137 at 38, 86-87. The point of Mr. Chappell's testimony was to 

24 have him take responsibility for his actions; thus, for him to attempt to portray all of 

25 the State's witnesses as liars, and himself as the only honest person in the courtroom, 

26 was ill conceived. 

27 
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1 62. In short, counsel should have prepared Mr. Chappell before his testimony 

2 to avoid these problems. Counsel should have insisted Mr. Chappell review all of the 

3 domestic abuse charges and allegations leveled against him. Defense counsel should 

4 have also reviewed Dr. Etcoffs report and made sure that Mr. Chappell was testifying 

5 to the same information that he gave Etcoff. Counsel should have additionally 

6 prepared Mr. Chappell for the vigorous cross-examination that was going to follow Mr. 

7 Chappell's direct testimony. 

8 63. Trial counsel's failure to adequately prepare their own client fell below 

9 objective standards of reasonableness. Hart, 17 4 F.3d 1067 (deficient performance for 

10 failing to present available corroboration for client's girlfriend's testimony); Brown v. 

11 Meyers, 137 F.3d 1154, 1156-57 (9th Cir. 1998) (deficient performance for failing to 

12 investigate and present alibi evidence that would have corroborated defendant's 

13 testimony). 
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64. 

4. Trial counsel were ineffective for failing to support Mr. 
Chappell's testimony that he lived at the trailer and thus could 
not have committed an act of burglary 

The State's theory of the case was that Ms. Panos had broken up with Mr. 

Chappell at some point prior to the day of the offense, and on the morning of the offense, 

Mr. Chappell broke into Ms. Panos's trailer with the intent to either kill her or rob her 

or rape her, thereby committing burglary. Mr. Chappell testified, however, that he 

lived with Ms. Panos, and he entered the trailer that morning with permission and no 

ill intentions. 

65. Trial counsel ineffectively failed to investigate and present evidence to 

support Mr. Chappell's testimony that he lived with Ms. Panos at the time of the 

killing. A constitutionally adequate investigation would have revealed Wilfred Gloster, 

Jr. Ex. 93. Mr. Gloster was a friend of Ms. Panos'-the two meet in Tucson in 1990 or 

1991. Ex. 93 at ,r,r1-2. Gloster moved to Las Vegas in 1992 and came into contact 

again with Ms. Panos in late 1994. Id. at ,r3. Ms. Panos told Gloster that she had 

35 



AA00219

1 moved Mr. Chappell to Las Vegas to be with her and that he was living with her in the 

2 trailer. Id.at,r5. 

3 66. Mr. Gloster spent a night at Ms. Panos's trailer (at the request of Ms. 

4 Panos's then-roommate, Clare McGuire). In the middle of the night Gloster heard a 

5 noise and went to investigate. Ex. 93 at ,r6. Gloster found Mr. Chappell removing a 

6 window screen and attempting to enter the trailer through a window. Id. Gloster 

7 forced Mr. Chappell outside and the police were contacted. Id. The police later told 

8 Gloster that Mr. Chappell was still listed as a resident at the trailer and that he had a 

9 right to enter the home. Id. 

10 67. After that incident, Gloster told Ms. Panos to fill out the paperwork to 

11 remove Mr. Chappell's name as a resident of the trailer. To Gloster's knowledge, Ms. 

12 Panos never removed Mr. Chappell's name and, at the time of the killing, he was still 

13 an official resident of the trailer. Ex. 93 at ,r7; see also Ex. 167 at ,r10 (Dina 

14 Richardson); Ex. 166 at ,r12 (Rosemary Pacheco); Ex. 105 at ,r,r8-9 (Clare McGuire). 

15 68. Counsel also did not need to look any further than their client's own court 

16 file for proof he lived at the trailer. A letter from the City of Las Vegas Municipal 

17 Court, dated August 1995 informing Mr. Chappell of a resetting of his court date, was 

18 addressed to Mr. Chappell's home-that being the trailer he shared with Ms. Panos. 

19 See Ex. 144. Trial counsel's failure to use evidence in the court file to undermine the 

20 State's argument that Mr. Chappell broke into Ms. Panos's trailer fell below objective 

21 standards of reasonableness. 

22 69. If defense counsel had investigated Mr. Chappell's residency at the trailer, 

23 they could have presented evidence that supported Mr. Chappell's testimony that he 

24 lived there. Such evidence could have proven that Mr. Chappell was not guilty of 

25 burglary because, under Nevada law, one cannot be convicted of burglarizing his own 

26 home. See State v. White, 330 P.3d 482, 485-86 (Nev. 2014); following People v. Gauze, 

27 542 P.2d 1365, 1366 (Cal. 1975). It would also have generally undermined the State's 
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1 theory of the case while corroborating Mr. Chappell's theory. Counsel's actions were 

2 clearly deficient. 
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70. 

5. Trial counsel were ineffective for failing to interview Deborah 
Turner 

Deborah Turner was a witness for the State and offered very damaging 

testimony against Mr. Chappell. 

71. Ms. Turner, who was nineteen years old at the time of trial, lived at the 

Vera Johnson housing project, where Mr. Chappell occasionally hung out. Ms. Turner 

knew Mr. Chappell as "Hip Hop" because he was always dancing around with his radio. 

According to Ms. Turner, Mr. Chappell, who was a "crack head," typically rented out 

Ms. Panos's vehicle to residents of the housing project in exchange for money or crack 

cocaine. Ex. 133 at 14-16, 27. 

72. On the evening of August 31, 1995 (presumably after Mr. Chappell killed 

Ms. Panos), Ms. Turner saw Mr. Chappell at the housing project driving Ms. Panos's 

car. Mr. Chappell was selling shrimp and pie to residents of the housing project and 

renting out Ms. Panos's vehicle for $15. According to Ms. Turner, Mr. Chappell was 

joking and dancing around that evening as he normally did, and was acting normally. 

Ex. 134 at 17-21. Unprompted, Ms. Turner testified that her reason for coming forward 

was she felt it was the right thing to do and she was not a "snitch." Ex. 134 at 23 ("I'm 

not no snitch or nothing"). 

73. Ms. Turner's testimony was unimpeached at trial because counsel failed 

to investigate and interview Turner. If counsel had, they would have learned that Ms. 

Turner had multiple felony charges pending against her at the time of Mr. Chappell's 

trial and received a possible benefit in exchange for her testimony. See Ex. 118 at ,r13; 

Ex. 120 at ,r10. 

74. Ms. Turner was arrested for robbery with a deadly weapon on August 30, 

1996. According to records, Turner arrived at a 7-Eleven store where her friend worked 
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1 "dressed as a man and ... jumped the counter and initiated the robbery." Ex. 314 at 5. 

2 Ms. Turner was not formally charged in district court until September 13, 1996, when 

3 an information was filed charging her with conspiracy to commit robbery and 

4 attempted robbery. Ex. 310. She pled guilty three days later. Ex. 311. 

5 75. Ms. Turner's sentencing was originally set for November of 1996, but 

6 because Turner did not appear, her sentencing did not take place until April 30, 1997. 

7 Ex. 314; Ex. 312; Ex. R. Ms. Turner faced a maximum sentence of six years for the 

8 conspiracy charge and ten years for the attempted robbery charge, which potentially 

9 exposed her to a sentence of sixteen years. Ex. 311. However, Ms. Turner was 

10 sentenced to only twelve to thirty-six months for the conspiracy charge and twelve to 

11 forty-eight months for the attempt robbery charge, to run concurrently. Ex. 314; Ex. 

12 312. Thus, the maximum time that Turner would serve was four years as opposed to 

13 the sixteen she could have faced. See Ex. 313; Ex. 314. 

14 76. Also, Ms. Turner's sentence was more lenient than that of her co-

15 defendant, Tommie Turner, who was sentenced to twenty-eight to seventy-two months, 

16 despite the fact that Tommie Turner was nothing more than the lookout and Ms. 

17 Turner was the primary actor. Ex. 314. Therefore, there is evidence to suggest that 

18 Ms. Turner received a benefit. This is bolstered by the fact that she was paid witness 

19 fees for three days of testimony, despite the fact that she testified for only one of those 

20 days. Ex. 315. 

21 77. The fact that Ms. Turner pled guilty to two serious felonies less than a 

22 month prior to her testimony in Mr. Chappell's case, and was awaiting sentencing, was 

23 relevant impeachment information for trial counsel to have known. Assuming the 

24 information about Ms. Turner's case was contained in the State's open file and trial 

25 
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1 counsel failed to impeach her with that information, trial counsel was ineffective. 16 Ex. 

2 118 at ,r13; Ex. 120 at ,r10; see Reynoso v. Giurbino, 462 F.3d 1099, 1120 (9th Cir. 

3 2006). 
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78. 

6. Trial counsel were ineffective for failing to conduct a full 
neuropsychological evaluation of Mr. Chappell 

Trial counsel never asked their only mental health expert, Dr. Etcoff, to 

perform a full neuropsychological battery of Mr. Chappell. Nor did defense counsel 

indicate to Dr. Etcoff that Mr. Chappell might suffer from brain damage. 

79. Due to his inexperience, at the time of Mr. Chappell's trial, counsel knew 

very little about neuropsychological testing or how to determine if a client suffered from 

brain damage. Specifically, counsel did not know what kinds of testing to request from 

Dr. Etcoff, nor did counsel intentionally limit the testing the expert conducted. Ex. 118 

at ,rg; Ex. 120 at if 7. Counsel believed that the IQ testing and personality testing was 

sufficient to reveal any relevant mental disorders. Counsel understands now that it 

was not. Id. Counsel admits that there was no strategic reason for failing to request 

that Dr. Etcoff perform a full neuropsychological evaluation of Mr. Chappell. Id. 

80. Counsel's failure to request that Dr. Etcoff perform a neuropsychological 

evaluation amounted to deficient performance as it deprived Mr. Chappell of evidence 

to support a mental state defense: Mr. Chappell lacked the intent to commit first degree 

murder. See ABA Guideline 11.4.l(D)(7), 11.8.6(B)(8). 

81. Counsel requested Dr. Etcoff testify at the guilt-phase regarding Mr. 

Chappell's to intent to kill Ms. Panos based upon Mr. Chappell's mental health. Ex. 85 

at ifll. However, counsel did not give Dr. Etcoff the necessary materials to support his 

16 The Clark County District Attorney's Office has refused Mr. Chappell's 
request to review their file. Ex. 293. If it turns out that information concerning 
Deborah Turner's 1996 felony conviction is not contained within the CCDA's open file, 
then there is a potential, as yet undiscovered, claim that the State violated its 
constitutional disclosure obligations under Brady v. Maryland, 373 U.S. 83 (1963), and 
knowingly presented false testimony under Napue v. Illinois, 360 U.S. 264 (1959). See 
Claim Fifteen, post. 
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1 testimony that Mr. Chappell lacked "free will" in his decision to kill Ms. Panos. Ex. 85 

2 at il15. 

3 82. If counsel had asked Dr. Etcoff to conduct a neuropsychological battery, 

4 Dr. Etcoff would have found that Mr. Chappell suffered from brain impairment in 

5 several domains in functioning, all indicative of possible organic brain damage. Ex. 85 

6 at ,r,r14-15. Thus, the results of that testing, would have greatly supported Dr. Etcoffs 

7 testimony. Ex. 85 at il14. 

8 83. Mr. Chappell too could have been diagnosed with Cognitive Disorder, 

9 NOS, a mental disease or defect. Ex. 88 at 24; Ex. 87 at 3, 12. 

10 84. A full neuropsychological examination would have uncovered the need for 

11 a quantitative electroencephalogram analysis (qEEG) to be performed. Ex. 100; Ex. 

12 89. A qEEG compares surface measurements of brain electrical activity to a normative 

13 database, digitally analyzing various aspects of brain function including electrical 

14 power, asymmetry, coherence, and phase lag between regions of the brain. Ex. 89 at 

15 22. 

16 85. Mr. Chappell's qEEG indicated abnormalities in the frontal and limbic 

17 lobes of the brain, and in patterns which are suggestive of reduced speed and efficiency 

18 of information processing. Ex. 89 at 22. The abnormal qEEG indicates a more scientific 

19 sign of brain damage and dysfunction. Id. at 22-23. 

20 86. Counsel was ineffective in their failure to request their only expert to 

21 conduct a neuropsychological evaluation of Mr. Chappell, especially in light of the fact 

22 counsel requested their mental health expert opine about Mr. Chappell's intent without 

23 doing a reasonable investigation. 

24 

25 

26 

27 

7. Trial counsel were ineffective for failing to investigate FASO 

87. Counsel provided ineffective assistance to Mr. Chappell, in failing to 

investigate and discover crucial evidence pertaining to FASD/ARND, which could have 
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been presented to Mr. Chappell's jury as evidence of Mr. Chappell's inability to form 

the mental states necessary for conviction of the charged offenses. 

88. Although an attorney is not required to be in a position to diagnose a 

medical condition in the absence of any indicators, see Clark v. Mitchell, 425 F.3d 270, 

286 (6th Cir. 2005), that does not excuse an attorney's deficient performance when red 

flags alert him to the possibility of such an issue. In addition, while a reasonable 

strategy not to investigate further when based on "sound assumptions" will not be 

faulted, "'[c]ounsel can hardly be said to have made a strategic choice against pursuing 

a certain line of investigation when s/he has not yet obtained the facts on which such a 

decision could be made."' Kenley v. Armantrout, 937 F.2d 1298, 1308 (8th Cir. 1991) 

(quoting Chambers v. Armantrout, 907 F.2d 825, 835 (8th Cir. 1990)); Williams v. 

Woodford, 384 F.3d 567, 610 (9th Cir, 2002), citing Strickland, 466 U.S. at 690-91. 

89. Alcohol Related Neurodevelopmental Disorder (ARND) is a medical 

condition that falls under the Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder (FASD) umbrella. Ex. 

88 at 1; Ex. 89. Fetal Alcohol Syndrome (FAS) was first identified in the United States 

in 1973. Id. at 5. "By 1977 a health advisory was issued by the National Institute of 

Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism to medical practitioners about the dangers of alcohol 

during pregnancy." Id. "By 1978, the U.S. Congress was so alarmed about the birth 

defects due to FAS that it mandated a status report on the condition-Third Special 

Report to Congress on Alcohol and Health: Fetal Alcohol Syndrome-which was 

published jointly by the Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) and the 

National Institute on Alcoholism and Alcohol Abuse (NIAAA)." Ex. 88 at 1. 

90. Since its identification in the United States over four decades ago, FAS 

always has involved three categories of diagnostic criteria: growth deficiency in height 

and/or weight, dysmorphic facial characteristics, and central nervous system (CNS) 

abnormalities. Ex. 88 at 5. By 1989, the diagnostic criteria for FAS were: (a) prenatal 

and/or postnatal growth retardation determined by weight and/or length below the 

41 



AA00225

1 10th percentile; (b) a characteristic face with short palpebral fissures, thin upper lip, 

2 and elongated flattened midface and philtrum; and (c) CNS involvement, including 

3 neurological abnormalities, developmental delays, behavioral dysfunction, intellectual 

4 impairment, and skull or brain malformations. Id. Those with CNS abnormalities and 

5 prenatal alcohol exposure histories who did not display the external physical signs of 

6 FAS (i.e., facial abnormalities and growth deficits) were diagnosed with Fetal Alcohol 

7 Effect(s) (FAE). Similar to FAS with respect to the CNS criterion, an FAE diagnosis 

8 required some cognitive deficits plus a history of prenatal alcohol exposure. As there 

9 was no difference between the brain damage in FAS versus FAE, those with FAE 

10 tended to show the same functional impairments and behavior problems as those with 

11 FAS. Id.at5-6. 

12 91. By 1996, the time of Mr. Chappell's trial, there was a great deal of 

13 information known in the legal field about the nature and cause of FASD, including 

14 that alcohol caused serious birth defects that affect executive control and lifelong 

15 adaptive functioning. Ex. 88 at 2, 7. Specifically, in April 1996, the Institute of 

16 Medicine (IOM) published diagnostic criteria for FAS. These criteria included 

17 diagnostic criteria for five conditions under the FASD umbrella: FAS with confirmed 

18 prenatal exposure, FAS without confirmed prenatal exposure, Partial FAS, ARND, and 

19 Alcohol Related Birth Defects. With the 1996 IOM publication, original terminology 

20 (e.g., "FAE") began to be replaced with newer terms such as "Partial FAS" and "ARND." 

21 Eventually, experts began to promulgate the umbrella term "Fetal Alcohol Spectrum 

22 Disorders (FASD)" as an inclusive term for all IOM diagnostic categories. Id. at 6. 

23 Thus, in 1996, Mr. Chappell could have been diagnosed with either FAE or ARND. Id. 

24 92. It was also known in 1996 that, because of pervasive brain damage in 

25 FASD, individuals diagnosed with FASD were at high risk to commit crimes 1n 

26 unstructured contexts involving high stress and or unexpected events. Ex. 88 at 4. 

27 

42 



AA00226

1 93. Here, at the time of the 1996 trial, counsel knew from various sources, 

2 including Mr. Chappell's grandmother, Mr. Chappell's maternal aunt, Mr. Chappell's 

3 former Lansing probation officer, Mr. Chappell's own mental health expert Dr. Etcoff, 

4 and from school and juvenile records, that Mr. Chappell's mother drank and took drugs 

5 during her pregnancy with Mr. Chappell, that Mr. Chappell suffered from some sort of 

6 learning disability/mental slowness, and that Mr. Chappell suffered from 

7 developmental disorders that stemmed from neurological origins (brain damage). See 

8 Ex. 182; Ex. 181; Ex. 88 at 10-12, 23-24; Ex. 118 at ,r7; Ex. 120 at ,r5; Ex. 265; Ex. 181. 

9 All of this information should have alerted counsel to the need to investigate and 

10 present evidence of FASD as it related to Mr. Chappell. Ex. 88 at 23-24. 

11 94. However, counsel never hired an expert to evaluate Mr. Chappell for 

12 FASD. And while counsel made a motion to continue the trial to investigate FASD, 

13 counsel withdrew that motion without conducting such an investigation. Ex. 118 at 

14 ,rs; Ex. 120 at ,r6. Counsel had no strategic reason for failing to investigate, develop, 

15 and present evidence that Mr. Chappell suffered from FASD. Ex. 118 at ,r7; Ex. 120 at 

16 ,r5. 

17 95. If counsel had hired such experts, counsel would have discovered that Mr. 

18 Chappell suffers from FASD, specifically ARND and/or FAE. See Ex. 89; Ex. 87; Ex. 

19 88. And as will be explained in detail below, such a diagnosis would have given counsel 

20 the opportunity to present evidence that, because of this medical condition, Mr. 

21 Chappell's ARND would have influenced his ability to control his actions at the time of 

22 the crime (he did not have the requisite intent to commit first degree murder), and that 

23 Mr. Chappell's prior acts of domestic violence against Ms. Panos were due in part to 

24 his FASD. Ex. 88 at 24-33; Ex. 118 at ,r7; Ex. 120 at ,r5. 

25 96. Dr. Etcoff, the defense's only mental health expert, was not an expert in 

26 FASD. Ex. 85 at il16. And while Dr. Etcoff does not remember being asked about 

27 
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1 FASD by defense counsel, he would have informed counsel that they needed to retain 

2 an expert with knowledge in this field. Id. 

3 97. Had Mr. Chappell's trial counsel requested, investigated, developed and 

4 presented this crucial information, it is reasonably likely that Mr. Chappell would not 

5 have been convicted of first degree murder. Trial counsel, however, never requested a 

6 mental health professional perform a thorough and timely neuropsychological 

7 evaluation of Mr. Chappell. Instead, counsel retained Dr. Etcoff to evaluate Mr. 

8 Chappell for purposes of mitigation. In turn, Dr. Etcoff conducted a cursory review of 

9 Mr. Chappell's IQ and mental health, which failed to uncover evidence of ARND, an 

10 area which Dr. Etcoff was not qualified to offer an opinion. 

11 98. Counsel's failure to have experts evaluate and diagnose Mr. Chappell for 

12 ARND was prejudicial to Mr. Chappell's guilt phase case. 

13 

14 

15 

D.. As a result of trial counsel's ineffective failure to investigate and 
prepare for the guilt phase of trial, their defense was weak, not 
compelling, and easily discredited 

99. In their case-in-chief, the State presented evidence suggesting Mr. 

16 Chappell regularly inflicted domestic violence against Ms. Panos; that Mr. Chappell 

17 followed Ms. Panos from city to city despite her desire to leave him behind; that Ms. 

18 Panos lived in fear of Mr. Chappell; that Mr. Chappell did not live with Ms. Panos in 

19 Las Vegas; that Mr. Chappell had threatened to exact some sort of revenge on Ms. 

20 Panos as soon as he was released from the Clark County Jail; and that Ms. Panos had 

21 broken up with Mr. Chappell and decided to leave the trailer before his release from 

22 jail so that he could not locate her. See Ex. 132 at 53 et seq. (testimony of Lisa Duran); 

23 Ex. 135 at 33 et seq. (testimony of Dina Freeman); Ex. 135 at 60 et seq. (testimony of 

24 Jeri Earnst); Ex. 135 at 83 et seq. (testimony of Daniel Giersdorf); Ex. 135 at 91 et seq. 

25 (testimony of Tanya Hobson); Ex. 135 at 107 et seq. (testimony of Allen Williams); and 

26 Ex. 135 at 111 et seq. (testimony of Shirry Smith). The State argued that this evidence 

27 supported its theory that the killing of Ms. Panos amounted to either willful, deliberate, 
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1 and premediated first degree murder or first degree felony-murder. Ex. 142 at 94-95, 

2 98-109. 

3 100. On the other hand, Mr. Chappell's defense at the guilt phase was that he 

4 killed Ms. Panos during a jealous rage, making the crime one of voluntary 

5 manslaughter or, at most, second-degree murder. The defense presented evidence that 

6 Ms. Panos and Mr. Chappell had a history of fighting, breaking up, and getting back 

7 together; that Mr. Chappell moved to Tucson and Las Vegas at the behest of Ms. Panos; 

8 that Mr. Chappell lived at the trailer with Ms. Panos and considered it his home; that 

9 Mr. Chappell and Ms. Panos were reconciling on the August day Mr. Chappell was 

10 released from jail; and that Mr. Chappell's killing of Ms. Panos was done in a fit of 

11 jealousy upon learning that she was seeing another man. All of the defense evidence, 

12 however, came solely through the testimony of Mr. Chappell himself, and counsel 

13 offered no other evidence to corroborate Mr. Chappell's version of events over that of 

14 the State's version. 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

1. James Chappell's testimony 

101. Mr. Chappell testified on his own behalf. Ex. 137 at 17. Generally, Mr. 

Chappell testified about growing up in Lansing; how he met Ms. Panos; how Ms. 

Panos's parents were against Mr. Chappell and their daughter being together; how Ms. 

Panos's parents were racist; how he and Ms. Panos had three children together; what 

happened during their ten-year relationship; and what happened the day he killed Ms. 

Panos. 

102. Specifically, Mr. Chappell testified as follows: Mr. Chappell met Ms. 

Panos while the two were in high school in Lansing. Ms. Panos's parents were racist 

and did not approve of their daughter dating Mr. Chappell. Mr. Chappell and Ms. 

Panos had to hide their relationship from Ms. Panos's parents. In 1988, Ms. Panos 

became pregnant with Mr. Chappell's first child. Ex. 137 at 17-19. 
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1 103. After the child was born, Ms. Panos's parents moved to Tucson, Arizona. 

2 They told their daughter that she could not move with them unless she gave up the 

3 baby for adoption. A few months later Ms. Panos's parents relented and Ms. Panos and 

4 her daughter moved to Tucson. Ex. 137 at 21-22. 

5 104. While in Tucson, Ms. Panos had to hide from her parents that she was 

6 still in communication with Mr. Chappell, who was still in Michigan. Ms. Panos later 

7 visited Michigan where she became pregnant again by Mr. Chappell. Ms. Panos 

8 returned to Tucson and sent for Mr. Chappell, paying for his air travel to Arizona. The 

9 two lived in Ms. Panos's parents' home, unbeknownst to the parents who were visiting 

10 Michigan. When her parents returned to Tucson, Ms. Panos rented Mr. Chappell a 

11 furnished studio. Eventually, Ms. Panos's parents found out Mr. Chappell was in 

12 Tucson and Ms. Panos and her children moved into a two-bedroom apartment with Mr. 

13 Chappell. Ex. 137 at 21-26. 

14 105. At some point Mr. Chappell moved back to Michigan to get away from Ms. 

15 Panos's parents. Ms. Panos paid for Mr. Chappell's ticket back to Michigan. But Ms. 

16 Panos wanted Mr. Chappell to return to Tucson and so he did. Ms. Panos became 

17 pregnant again and the two had their third child together. Ex. 137 at 27-29. 

18 106. Mr. Chappell had many low paying jobs that he usually could not hold 

19 onto for long. Ms. Panos, on the other hand, always worked. While in Tucson, Mr. 

20 Chappell used drugs in about the same amount he did in Lansing. His drugs of choice 

21 were marijuana and cocaine. Ex. 137 at 31-32. Mr. Chappell admitted to hitting Ms. 

22 Panos while living in Tucson. Id. at 31-32. 

23 107. Mr. Chappell and Ms. Panos visited Las Vegas for a week-finding jobs 

24 and a place to live-and then returned to Tucson where they packed and permanently 

25 left for Las Vegas. Mr. Chappell lost his new job in Las Vegas, and he and Ms. Panos 

26 decided he would stay at home with the children while she worked. Ex. 137 at 33-36. 

27 
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1 Mr. Chappell continued to use drugs in Las Vegas and began to hang out at the Vera 

2 Johnson housing project. Id. at 36. 

3 108. Mr. Chappell admitted to domestic violence with Ms. Panos, including an 

4 episode where he argued with Ms. Panos and threw a cup, breaking her nose, and an 

5 incident where he pinned Ms. Panos to the bed and showed her a knife. He was later 

6 arrested for that incident and jailed from the end of February until mid-May of 1995. 

7 When he got out of jail, Ms. Panos picked him up and brought him home. Ex. 137 at 

8 37-40. Mr. Chappell went back to jail for another domestic battery against Ms. Panos 

9 in June, for a week. Id. at 40. Mr. Chappell then returned to jail on June 26 and was 

10 released on August 31. Id. 

11 109. During this last time in jail, Ms. Panos accepted Mr. Chappell's phone 

12 calls. During these calls, Ms. Panos never told Mr. Chappell that the relationship was 

13 over. Ex. 137 at 40. Mr. Chappell, however, suspected something was wrong because 

14 Ms. Panos never visited him, and sometimes when he called Ms. Panos, strange men 

15 would answer the phone and Mr. Chappell could hear music and various other voices 

16 in the background. Id. at 41. 

17 110. Mr. Chappell described the events of August 31, 1995, the day he was 

18 released from jail and killed Ms. Panos. Mr. Chappell went to the Vera Johnson 

19 housing project where he talked to some friends, borrowed a bicycle, and then went 

20 home to see Ms. Panos and his children. Mr. Chappell telephoned home twice and no 

21 one answered. Because he lost his key, when he got to the house, he climbed through 

22 a window, thinking no one was home. Mr. Chappell had climbed through windows in 

23 residences he and Ms. Panos had shared in Michigan and Arizona, so he did not believe 

24 there was anything wrong with doing the same thing in their Las Vegas home. Ex. 137 

25 at45-47. 

26 111. Ms. Panos was, in fact, home and helped Mr. Chappell through the 

27 window. The two talked and then began to have sexual intercourse during which Mr. 
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1 Chappell stopped before ejaculating because he believed that Ms. Panos had been with 

2 someone else based on the condition of her vagina. Mr. Chappell accused Ms. Panos of 

3 being with other men, which Ms. Panos denied. Ms. Panos then performed oral sex on 

4 Mr. Chappell. Ex. 137 at 4 7-50. Afterwards, they both dressed and left to pick up the 

5 children at day care. Id. at 50-51. 

6 112. It was when Mr. Chappell found a love letter from another man in Ms. 

7 Panos's car that Mr. Chappell went into a rage, dragged Ms. Panos back into the house, 

8 and killed her. During this time, Mr. Chappell blacked out and did not come back to 

9 reality until after he had stabbed Ms. Panos. Ex. 137 at 54-56. Mr. Chappell then left 

10 the trailer, not realizing that he had killed Ms. Panos. Id. at 57-58. Mr. Chappell did 

11 not ransack their bedroom nor did he take anything. Id. at 59. 

12 113. As explained below, if counsel had performed the necessary investigation 

13 required of capital counsel, the jurors would have heard from witnesses, other than Mr. 

14 Chappell, who would have lent support and credibility to Mr. Chappell's version of 

15 events. Unfortunately for Mr. Chappell, these witnesses were never investigated, 

16 interviewed, or called to the stand to testify on Mr. Chappell's behalf as will be 

1 7 explained below. 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

2. Dr. Etcoff's testimony 

114. Dr. Etcoff was called as the defense's final witness at the guilt phase. Ex. 

142 at 3. Mr. Brooks decided to call Dr. Etcoff at the guilt phase because he felt the 

limited testing explained why Mr. Chappell killed Ms. Panos. According to Mr. Brooks, 

the defense wanted to show that Mr. Chappell loved Ms. Panos, his concept of self was 

"wrapped up" with Ms. Panos, Mr. Chappell was prone to rage when confronted with 

the idea that Ms. Panos was cheating on him, and his fear of losing Ms. Panos was the 

most important fear in his life. See Ex. 85 at ,r11 

115. On direct examination, Dr. Etcoff testified generally to the fallowing. Ex. 

142 at 3. 
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1 116. Dr. Etcoff spoke to Mr. Chappell about his childhood. Mr. Chappell was 

2 Dr. Etcoffs only source of information on this topic, although Mr. Chappell's school 

3 records corroborated some of Mr. Chappell's information. Ex. 142 at 14-15. 

4 117. Mr. Chappell received a full-scale IQ of 80 on the WAIS, which was 

5 considered to be at the bottom of the low average range of intelligence. Ex. 142 at 17-

6 18. While Mr. Chappell's performance IQ was 91, which was considered average, his 

7 verbal IQ of 77 was classified as being in the borderline range for intellectual 

8 disability. 17 This meant that Mr. Chappell was very diminished in his intellectual 

9 capabilities, had difficulty thinking in words, and had poor language skills. Id. at 18-

10 19. 

11 118. Dr. Etcoff opined that the WAIS scores and Mr. Chappell's educational 

12 records indicated that Mr. Chappell would have been, as a child, eligible for a diagnosis 

13 of receptive language disorder. Ex. 142 at 19-20. According to Dr. Etcoff, children who 

14 suffer from language abnormalities tend to become easily frustrated because they do 

15 not understand what is being said or what is expected of them, get into trouble, and 

16 tend to be aggressive in adolescence and adulthood. Id. at 20. 

17 119. Mr. Chappell's scores on the WAIS also showed that his spelling skills 

18 were low average and his math skills demonstrated he had a learning disability. Ex. 

19 142 at 21-22. 

20 120. The personality test given to Mr. Chappell showed that, among other 

21 things, Mr. Chappell was socially awkward, introverted, mistrustful of others, 

22 frightened to be rejected and humiliated, and suffered from low self-worth. The 

23 personality test also showed that Mr. Chappell suffered from Borderline Personality 

24 

25 

26 

27 

17 While Dr. Etcoff referred to "mental retardation" in his 1996 testimony, the 
current terminology is "Intellectual Disability." See Hall v. Florida, 134 S. Ct. 1986, 
1990 (2014) ("Previous opinions of this Court have employed the term 'mental 
retardation.' This opinion uses the term 'intellectual disability' to describe the identical 
phenomenon."). 
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1 Characteristic Disorder. According to Dr. Etcoff, Mr. Chappell had no sense of self and 

2 relied upon others to take care of him. Ex. 142 at 22-25. For Mr. Chappell, Ms. Panos 

3 was the person he became attached to. Id. at 25-26. 

4 121. According to Dr. Etcoff, due to Mr. Chappell's low verbal IQ, his childhood 

5 experiences, and personality disorder, Mr. Chappell would inevitably have paranoid 

6 thoughts and be out of touch with reality. Ex. 142 at 28. 

7 122. Dr. Etcoff discussed with Mr. Chappell his substance abuse, including 

8 that Mr. Chappell became dependent on cocaine around 1992 after a history of using 

9 marijuana and cocaine socially and recreationally during his late teenage years. Ex. 

10 142 at 28-29. Two classic symptoms of cocaine dependence, according to Dr. Etcoff, are 

11 aggressive behaviors and paranoid thoughts. Id. at 29. 

12 123. Dr. Etcoff also discussed with Mr. Chappell his relationship with Ms. 

13 Panos, describing it as a "rocky road" and admitting that he had hit Ms. Panos in the 

14 past. Ex. 142 at 29-30. Mr. Chappell also discussed being jailed for shoplifting, which, 

15 according to Dr. Etcoff, was common for people who use cocaine. Id. at 33. 

16 124. Dr. Etcoff recounted his conversation with Mr. Chappell about the events 

17 leading to the killing, including Mr. Chappell's paranoid thoughts that Ms. Panos was 

18 sleeping with other men. Mr. Chappell informed Dr. Etcoff that he had not intended 

19 to harm Ms. Panos when he arrived at the trailer. It was the finding of the letter and 

20 the realization that Ms. Panos had been with another man that caused him to kill her, 

21 although he did not remember doing so. Ex. 142 at 32-37. 

22 125. Dr. Etcoff testified that Mr. Chappell was severely learning disabled and 

23 pointed to past school records for support. Dr. Etcoff also relied on an earlier school 

24 psychologist's report that described Mr. Chappell as having low self-concept, 

25 depression, few coping skills, low self-image, poor problem-solving skills, and difficulty 

26 completing assignments. Ex. 142 at 38-41. 

27 
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1 126. Dr. Etcoff stated that Mr. Chappell probably met the criteria for Attention 

2 Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder. Finally, Dr. Etcoff opined that everyone in life does not 

3 have the same level of "free will." The fact that Mr. Chappell had low verbal IQ, 

4 experienced a difficult childhood, and was diagnosed with specific personality disorders 

5 all lowered his ability to make choices. Id. at 43-44. 

6 127. However, what was absent from Dr. Etcoffs testimony was any evidence 

7 that Mr. Chappell suffered from FASD/ARND. This is because Dr. Etcoff was never 

8 told that there were at least nine witnesses who could have testified to Mr. Chappell's 

9 mother's use of alcohol, drugs, and/or cigarettes during her pregnancy with Mr. 

10 Chappell: James Wells (Ex. 60 at ,r4 (drugs)); Willie Chappell, Sr. (Ex. 74 at ,r,r6-7 

11 (alcohol and cigarettes)); William Bonds (Ex. 71 at ,r6 (alcohol and drugs)); William 

12 Moore (Ex. 72 at ,r4 (alcohol and drugs)); Rose Wells-Canon (Ex. 67 at ,r10 (alcohol and 

13 drugs)); Sharon Axam (Ex. 68 at ,r14 (drugs); Georgette Sneed (Ex. 57 at ,r12 (heroin 

14 and alcohol); and Myra Chappell-King (Ex. 64 at 3 (heroin and alcohol); Louise 

15 Underwood (Ex. 330 at ,r,r 20-21). For that matter, Sharon Axam was already a 

16 defense witness at the guilt-phase. See Ex. 140 at 58 et seq. 18 

17 128. If counsel had conducted an objectively reasonable investigation, as 

18 expected of capital counsel, Hart, 17 4 F.3d at 1070, they would have had supporting 

19 evidence to pursue a FASD diagnosis. 

20 129. Furthermore, Dr. Etcoff was not an expert in FASD and thus, was not 

21 even the proper expert to offer this medical diagnosis. Ex. 85 at il16. Because the one 

22 expert who testified at Mr. Chappell's trial failed to present the most important 

23 evidence regarding Mr. Chappell's lack of mental state to commit first-degree murder, 

24 the jury was never given any evidence to reject the State's case. 

25 

26 18 It is probable that counsel also could have questioned Mr. Chappell's 
grandmother, Clara Axam about her daughter's drinking and drug use during her 

27 pregnancy with Mr. Chappell. Ms. Axam testified at the penalty trial showing that she 
was available to counsel. See Ex. 140 at 53 et. seq. 
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1 130. If they had, it is reasonably probable Mr. Chappell would have been 

2 convicted of voluntary manslaughter or at the very worst, second-degree murder. 

3 
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E. There is a reasonable probability of a more favorable outcome if trial 
counsel had performed effectively 

131. If trial counsel had performed effectively and not stipulated to Mr. 

Chappell's killing of Ms. Panos, the State would have been held to its burden of proof. 

If trial counsel had performed effectively, they could have challenged the State's 

witnesses and presented compelling testimony to corroborate Mr. Chappell's 

testimony. And if trial counsel had performed effectively, they could have presented 

evidence that Mr. Chappell suffered from both a medical defect (FASD) and a mental 

health defect (Cognitive Disorder, NOS), demonstrating that Mr. Chappell could not 

have formed the intent to commit capital murder. This evidence, too, would have gone 

a long way in explaining Mr. Chappell's incidents of domestic violence against Ms. 

Panos. The cumulative effect of the aforementioned instances of deficient performance 

prejudiced Mr. Chappell. 

1. Medical defect of FASO 

132. In a case such as this, where "'the only reasonable and available defense 

strategy requires consultation with experts or introduction of expert evidence,"' failure 

to consult with and present the testimony of necessary experts amounts to ineffective 

assistance of counsel. Hinton v. Alabama, 134 S. Ct. 1081, 1088 (2014). Here, if counsel 

had performed effectively, the jury would have heard that Mr. Chappell suffered from 

Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder (FASD) - and specifically, Alcohol Related 

Neurodevelopmental Disorder (ARND). The jury would have also heard that, because 

of this medical diagnosis, Mr. Chappell was unable to form the intent to commit first­

degree murder and his prior bad act evidence would have been put in context. 

133. Mr. Chappell has been diagnosed with both a medical defect, ARND, 

which falls under the FASD umbrella, and a mental health defect, Cognitive Disorder, 

52 



AA00236

1 NOS (which is part of the FASD diagnosis). See Ex. 89; Ex. 88; 87; Ex. 100. It is likely 

2 that Mr. Chappell's ARND and Cognitive Disorder, NOS influenced his ability to 

3 control his actions at the time he killed Ms. Panos. Both conditions also played a role 

4 in Mr. Chappell's use of domestic violence against Ms. Panos. Unfortunately the jury 

5 never heard this evidence. 

6 134. Neuropsychological testing shows that Mr. Chappell has deficits in six 

7 broad cognitive domains: academic achievement; learning and memory, visuospatial 

8 construction and organization; attention; processing speed; and executive functioning. 

9 Ex. 88 at 24-25. In addition to these, testing and witness assessments have shown 

10 deficits in three adaptive domains: communication, daily living skills, and 

11 socialization. Id. at 25. Mr. Chappell's neuropsychological profile thus meets both the 

12 Centers for Disease Control and the IOM's diagnostic guidelines for FASD. Id.; Ex. 89 

13 at 20-21. 

14 135. Most importantly, testing related to Mr. Chappell's executive functioning 

15 skills show that in a "real world" setting, Mr. Chappell's adaptive functioning is 

16 moderately impaired, which is consistent with a diagnosis of FASD. This is important 

17 because, in non-routine real world situations involving minimal structure, Mr. 

18 Chappell's adaptive behavior resembles that of an individual with intellectual 

19 disabilities. Ex. 88 at 30. Furthermore, research has shown that it is executive 

20 functioning rather than IQ that determines behavior in unstructured settings. Thus, 

21 Mr. Chappell's numerous deficits in executive functioning-rather than his IQ-

22 determines his coping capacity. Id. at 29. 

23 136. Individuals with FASD, like Mr. Chappell, have "life course" difficulties 

24 due to executive dysfunction. Ex. 88 at 30. And childhood adversity, like Mr. 

25 Chappell's-including his mother's use of drugs and alcohol in utero; his mother's 

26 death; the absence of a father figure; being raised in a neighborhood of violence, drugs, 

27 and marked poverty; and being brought up in an environment of extreme physical and 
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1 emotional abuse and neglect-interact with executive dysfunction to increase the risk 

2 of a negative developmental trajectory, including trouble with law enforcement and 

3 substance abuse. Id. at 30-31. 

4 137. Research shows the negative impact of executive dysfunction in 

5 individuals with FASD on behaviors implicated in offense conduct. These behaviors 

6 include lack of impulse control, trouble thinking of consequences, difficulty connecting 

7 cause and effect planning, problems in empathizing and taking responsibility, inability 

8 to delay gratification and making sound judgments, poor emotional control, and a 

9 tendency to engage in explosive episodes. Ex. 88 at 31. 

10 138. Specifically related to Mr. Chappell, neuropsychological testing shows his 

11 working memory was significantly impaired. Ex. 88 at 31. Working memory itself is 

12 the key executive skill responsible for holding relevant neural information "while 

13 manipulating, synthesizing, and processing it for purposes of completing a task." Id. 

14 Working memory is also where "intentions are formed and planning occurs and at the 

15 same time, where strong urges and emotions are controlled." "In the legal context, 

16 working memory is equivalent to reflection, reasoning, and impulse control." Id. at 31-

17 32. 

18 139. Mr. Chappell's working memory is impaired due to his FAS and other 

19 neuropsychological insults. Even under the best circumstances, Mr. Chappell's 

20 executive control over his behavior is significantly impaired due to his FASD. Ex. 88 

21 at 32. 

22 140. It was known at the time of trial in 1996 that Mr. Chappell was under 

23 stress at the time of the offense as he perceived Ms. Panos was cheating on him and 

24 was overcome with jealous rage. Ex. 88 at 32; Ex. 135 at 121-22. Individuals with 

25 FASD, like Mr. Chappell, do not have the "cognitive capacity" to cope effectively with 

26 stress and other negative emotions. Ex. 88 at 32. The reason for this is that alcohol 

27 exposure in utero affects formation of the hypothalamic-pituitary-adrenal system in 
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1 the developing fetal brain, which increases sensitivity to stress. Id. As a result, those 

2 with FASD, like Mr. Chappell, are "hard-wired" at birth to be hyper-reactive to stress. 

3 If there is also an impaired executive function control, as testing has found in Mr. 

4 Chappell, "the combination of hyper-activity to stress and impaired executive control" 

5 can have a catastrophic consequence when working memory is unable to exert "top-

6 down control" over intense limbic-drive emotional reactions. Id.; see also Ex. 89 at 22-

7 23. 

8 141. In this case, if counsel had hired an expert(s) in FASD and had requested 

9 a full neuropsychological evaluation of Mr. Chappell and administered a qEEG 19, the 

10 jury would have understood that Mr. Chappell, under intense stress at the time of the 

11 crime, could not have formed the intent to commit first-degree murder or felony 

12 murder. Mr. Chappell's executive control was severely impaired by his FASD and 

13 neuropsychological impairment and his was unable to control his actions. Ex. 88 at 32-

14 33; Ex. 100; Ex. 89 at 1-2, 13-14, 18, 23, 27. If the jury had heard this evidence, there 

15 is a reasonable probability at least one juror would have voted for a conviction of 

16 second-degree murder or voluntary manslaughter, excluding Mr. Chappell from the 

17 death penalty. 

18 142. In that same vein, Mr. Chappell's impaired executive control would have 

19 similarly influenced his prior domestic abuse of Ms. Panos. Ex. 88 at 32-33. That is to 

20 say, during times of intense negative emotion, like anger, Mr. Chappell's executive 

21 control impairments would have limited his capacity to control his conduct. If the 

22 jurors would have heard this evidence, they would have understood that Mr. Chappell's 

23 assaults against Ms. Panos were also a product of Mr. Chappell's FASD and 

24 neuropsychological impairments. This explanation would have combatted the State's 

25 argument that Mr. Chappell was an evil monster and a murderer. Ex. 142 at 80. 

26 

27 19 The administration of a qEEG was available at the time of trial in 1996. See 
Ex. 84 at 24. 
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1 Counsel's failure to present this evidence prejudiced Mr. Chappell and his conviction 

2 should be reversed. 
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Lay witness testimony 

143. During the pre-trial investigation, Mr. Chappell had given defense 

counsel a list of witnesses that he wished them to interview and call at trial. To those 

that counsel interviewed, the questions concentrated on mitigation evidence, not the 

long abusive relationship between Mr. Chappell and Ms. Panos. Ex. 109 at 13. 

According to defense counsel Brooks, he "had no idea that the trial was going to be all 

about the long relationship." Id. 

144. If counsel had investigated lay witnesses (family and friends) who knew 

Mr. Chappell, the following evidence would have been presented at trial and thus given 

credibility and support to Mr. Chappell and his defense. 

a. The Chappell/Panos relationship 

145. The State presented a very one-sided portrayal of the relationship 

between Mr. Chappell and Ms. Panos, portraying Mr. Chappell as freeloader, serial 

abuser, and bad father to his three children. However, the ten-year relationship 

between Mr. Chappell and Ms. Panos was much more complicated than that. If counsel 

had performed effectively and conducted interviews of witnesses that knew the couple 

long-term, there is a reasonable probability of a more favorable outcome if the jurors 

had heard the following information. 

146. Ms. Panos was Mr. Chappell's only long-term relationship. Ms. Panos and 

Mr. Chappell met in high school and were together from that point until her death. Ex. 

59 at ,r,r13, 37-38; Ex. 63 at ,r10; Ex. 54 at ,r18; Ex. 52 at il18. Ms. Panos was a shy 

person but she seemed to liven up when she was around Mr. Chappell. Ex. 63 at ,r10. 

Ms. Panos also accepted Mr. Chappell with all his shortcomings, something that other 

women did not do. The early years of the relationship between the two were positive 

and loving. Ex. 63 at ,r10; Ex. 70 at ,r12; Ex. 53 at il36. To some who knew Mr. 
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1 Chappell, it appeared that when Ms. Panos and Mr. Chappell became involved, Ms. 

2 Panos picked up where Mr. Chappell's grandmother left off in caring for Mr. Chappell. 

3 Ex. 61 at ,r19; Ex. 64 at il46; Ex. 54 at il18. 

4 147. Ms. Panos's parents disapproved of the relationship between their 

5 daughter and Mr. Chappell. When they learned that Ms. Panos had been sneaking an 

6 African-American into the family home while they were at work, Ms. Panos's parents 

7 demanded Ms. Panos give them Mr. Chappell's name and address. Ms. Panos's parents 

8 then contacted the police, who later went to Mr. Chappell's grandmother's home. When 

9 Mr. Chappell learned the police were looking for him, he became afraid and did not 

10 return home for a number of days. Ex. 59 at ,r39; Ex. 53 at il36. 

11 148. After some time, Ms. Panos told her parents that she was dating a boy, 

12 but did not tell them the boy was Mr. Chappell. When she finally brought Mr. Chappell 

13 to the house, Mr. Chappell was greeted with hostility and rejection. Ms. Panos's 

14 parents forbade Ms. Panos from seeing Mr. Chappell again, calling Mr. Chappell a 

15 "nigger" to his face. Ms. Panos's stepfather said he would "kill that fucking nigger" if 

16 he ever set foot in the house again. Ex. 59 at ,r40; see also Ex. 73 at ,r43; Ex. 63 at ,r12; 

17 Ex. 70 at ,r12. Despite the danger, Mr. Chappell and Ms. Panos continued to see one 

18 another, and Ms. Panos continued to sneak Mr. Chappell into the family home to spend 

19 the night. Ex. 59 at ,r40; Ex. 53 at il36. 

20 149. Mr. Chappell was confused by the reaction of Ms. Panos's parents and 

21 could not understand why they were so angry about the relationship. Mr. Chappell 

22 himself had no concept of this type of prejudice. Ex. 59 at ,r42; see Ex. 105 at ,r6. 

23 150. And it was not only Ms. Panos's parents who made things difficult for the 

24 couple-Mr. Chappell's grandmother also created obstacles. When Ms. Panos became 

25 pregnant with her first child with Mr. Chappell, Ms. Panos's parents made her leave 

26 the family home. But because Mr. Chappell's grandmother also did not approve of the 

27 relationship, she forbade Ms. Panos from living in her home as well. As a result, Mr. 
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1 Chappell and Ms. Panos were both homeless for a time, living in spare rooms in other 

2 people's homes. Ex. 59 at ,r44; Ex. 53 at il36. 

3 151. Because Mr. Chappell was only able to get low paying jobs that did not 

4 require much skill or knowledge, Ms. Panos was the bread winner of the family and 

5 Mr. Chappell became the stay-at-home father. Ex. 59 at il46; Ex. 53 at il37. Mr. 

6 Chappell was a loving father to his children and had a great relationship with them. 

7 Mr. Chappell cleaned and fed the children and played with them. Ex. 59 at at il47. 

8 152. Ms. Panos and Mr. Chappell's relationship was filled with fights, break-

9 ups, and reconciliations. This happened almost on a weekly basis when the couple 

10 lived in Lansing. Ex. 59 at ,r,r 43, 48. During some of these fights, Ms. Panos called 

11 Mr. Chappell a "nigger," and referred to first born, JP, as Mr. Chappell's "nigger child." 

12 Id. at il43. But Mr. Chappell always returned to Ms. Panos, telling people that he loved 

13 her too much and was completely committed to her. Id. at ,r43; Ex. 70 at il13. Mr. 

14 Chappell told people that he could not see himself with anyone else because Ms. Panos 

15 was his ideal woman. Mr. Chappell often said how much he loved Ms. Panos, even 

16 during the bad times in their relationship. Ex. 59 at ,r50; Ex. 63 il13. Mr. Chappell's 

17 brother Willie could tell Ms. Panos and Mr. Chappell cared for one another and were 

18 in a loving relationship, despite their problems. Ex. 73 at ,r,r 43, 45. 

19 153. Despite their clear affection, their relationship quickly became volatile. 

20 Ms. Panos did not like Mr. Chappell hanging out with his friends in the evening and 

21 was jealous of that. To get back at Mr. Chappell, Ms. Panos would move back in with 

22 her parents for extended periods of time, leaving Mr. Chappell alone in the apartment 

23 with their son, JP. And while Ms. Panos would continue to pay the rent, she would not 

24 pay the utilities and Mr. Chappell and JP would be without heat and a way to cook a 

25 meal. When Ms. Panos was ready to make up, she would return home and have the 

26 utilities restored. Ex. 59 at ,r,r 48, 49; Ex. 64 at ,r 49. 

27 
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1 154. On some occasions it would be Mr. Chappell who would leave the 

2 relationship because he was so upset about how he was being treated by Ms. Panos. 

3 Ms. Panos would call around to locate Mr. Chappell. When she located Mr. Chappell, 

4 she would promise to buy him gifts to get him to come home. Ex. 59 at ,r 53. 

5 155. When Ms. Panos's parents relocated to Tucson, they invited Ms. Panos 

6 and JP to move with them as long as she left Mr. Chappell in Lansing and moved on 

7 with her life. Ms. Panos accepted the invitation but secretly planned to bring Mr. 

8 Chappell out to Arizona. Ex. 59 at il55. Ms. Panos brought Mr. Chappell to Tucson a 

9 few months later and put him in an apartment on the other side of town. But Mr. 

10 Chappell once again was forced to hide his relationship from Ms. Panos's parents. 

11 Additionally, the fighting between Ms. Panos and Mr. Chappell continued in Tucson, 

12 with Ms. Panos calling Mr. Chappell a "nigger," threatening to take his child away from 

13 him, or telling him she would no longer give him money. Id. at ,r57; Ex. 73 at ,r45; Ex. 

14 64at,r49. 

15 156. Terrance Wallace was one of the people who tried to talk Mr. Chappell out 

16 of moving to Tucson to be with Ms. Panos. Ex. 70 at il13. But Mr. Chappell told Wallace 

17 that he had to be with Ms. Panos because he loved her. Id.; see also Ex. 53 at ,r3s; Ex. 

18 61 at ,r20. 

19 157. The pattern of fighting, breaking up, and getting back together again 

20 continued in Tucson. Ms. Panos would kick Mr. Chappell out of the house, leaving him 

21 with nowhere to go, and then allow him to return a few days later. This happened on 

22 eight to ten occasions while the couple lived in Tucson. Mr. Chappell would stay the 

23 night with a coworker or just wander the streets until morning and hope that Ms. 

24 Panos would let him back in the house. Mr. Chappell's grandmother eventually sent 

25 Mr. Chappell a plane ticket to come back to Lansing, and Mr. Chappell returned to 

26 Michigan. Ex. 59 at ,r 57; Ex. 73 at ,r 45; Ex. 105 at ,r 4. 
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1 158. Despite the urging of his friends to stay in Lansing, Mr. Chappell was 

2 unable to resist. Ms. Panos bought Mr. Chappell a one-way ticket back to Tucson and 

3 Mr. Chappell went back to Ms. Panos. There, the relationship repeated its prior 

4 pattern of fights and reconciliations. Ex. 59 at ,r5s; Ex. 73 at ,r,r 41, 46. Mr. Chappell 

5 would call his friend James Ford during the fights with Ms. Panos, and Mr. Ford could 

6 often hear Ms. Panos yelling in the background. Ex. 59 at ,r 59. 

7 159. When Mr. Chappell was back in Lansing, Ms. Panos called Mr. Chappell 

8 almost every day and begged him to return. Mr. Chappell told his brother Michael that 

9 he needed to be with Ms. Panos because he loved her and wanted to be a father to their 

10 son. Ex. 63 at il13. Mr. Chappell returned to Tucson. 

11 160. Mr. Chappell's drug use escalated at some point in Tucson, with Mr. 

12 Chappell becoming dependent on cocaine. At one point Mr. Chappell was smoking 

13 crack cocaine five times a week. Ex. 73 at ,r41; Ex. 195 at ,r5; Ex. 166 at ,rs; Ex. 167 at 

14 ,rs; Ex. 168 at ,r6. 

15 161. Sometime in 1992, Mr. Chappell called friend Terrance Wallace from 

16 Tucson and again asked for help in returning to Lansing. Ex. 70 at ,r14; see Ex. 168 at 

1 7 ,r 8. Mr. Wallace sent Mr. Cha pp ell a bus ticket and Mr. Chappell returned to Michigan. 

18 He was heavily abusing drugs in Tucson and felt like he was losing control of his own 

19 life. Id. Mr. Chappell also felt his relationship with Ms. Panos was not working out. 

20 Ms. Panos began calling Mr. Chappell and begging with him to return home, but this 

21 time Mr. Chappell refused. Finally Ms. Panos bribed Mr. Chappell with tickets to a 

22 Bobby Brown concert in Arizona. Ex. 329 at ,r10. Mr. Chappell went back to Tucson 

23 once again. Ex. 59 at ,r 60. 

24 162. In 1994, Ms. Panos moved to Las Vegas and paid for Mr. Chappell to move 

25 there as well. Ex. 91 at ,r4; see Ex. 104 at ,r7; Ex. 105 at ,rs; Ex. 166 at ,r12; Ex. 167 at 

26 ,r10. There, the same problems that had plagued their relationship followed. Ex. 167 

27 at ,r11. Ms. Panos would kick Mr. Chappell out of the house and then ask him to return. 
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1 This happened on at least three occasions that James Ford knew about. Ex. 59 at il61. 

2 When Ms. Panos told Mr. Chappell to leave, Mr. Chappell wandered the streets 

3 homeless for days at a time. Id. at ,r,r 61-62. 

4 163. Mr. Chappell's drinking and drug use escalated while living in Las Vegas. 

5 Mr. Chappell went on frequent crack binges. Even Mr. Chappell realized that his drug 

6 addiction was beyond his control. Ex. 59 at il61. Mr. Chappell told Mr. Ford that the 

7 crack cocaine in Las Vegas was more potent than what he was used to in Michigan. 

8 Mr. Chappell was trying to cope with the difficulties of his relationship by using drugs, 

9 but that just made life worse for him. Id.; see Ex. 105 at ,r9. 

10 164. A few months before his arrest in 1995, Joetta Ford received a collect call 

11 from Mr. Chappell in the middle of the night. Mr. Chappell was living in Las Vegas 

12 and had been put out of the house by Ms. Panos; he was walking the streets with 

13 nowhere to go and no one to turn to. Ex. 61 at ,r21. Mr. Chappell told Ms. Ford he 

14 called her because he was alone and afraid and needed to hear a familiar voice. Id. 

15 165. Had counsel presented this testimony, the jurors would have heard 

16 evidence, other than from Mr. Chappell, that corroborated the fact that Mr. Chappell 

17 and Ms. Panos had a long history of breaking up and making up, thus casting a much 

18 different and more accurate light on the relationship between the two. 

19 166. There is a reasonable probability of a more favorable outcome if this 

20 evidence would have been presented. The evidence would have confirmed that Mr. 

21 Chappell and Ms. Panos were still together at the time of the crime. This would have 

22 not only supported Mr. Chappell's defense that the murder was committed in a jealous 

23 rage, and was not premeditated first-degree murder, but also would have shown that 

24 Mr. Chappell could not have been guilty of burglarizing his own home. 

25 

26 
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1 b. Addiction 

2 167. The State presented Mr. Chappell's addiction in the form of character 

3 assassination-portraying Mr. Chappell as someone who would steal money and 

4 furniture from his own wife and children with no good cause. But in reality, Mr. 

5 Chappell's addiction was a life-long battle that started in childhood and affected his 

6 entire life and that of the people around him. This more accurate (and more 

7 sympathetic) portrayal of Mr. Chappell's addiction could have been testified to by 

8 available lay witnesses. And if the jury had heard this more accurate portrayal of Mr. 

9 Chappell and his addiction, the State's prejudicial evidence would have been blunted, 

10 and the jurors would have made a decision regarding Mr. Chappell's guilt based upon 

11 the evidence and not emotion. 

12 168. Mr. Chappell starting drinking alcohol and smoking marijuana when he 

13 was twelve years old-around the sixth grade. As he got older, Mr. Chappell drank an 

14 average of twenty to forty beers during the work week and would then binge drink on 

15 the weekends, mixing beer and hard liquor. Ex. 59 at ,r,r27-28 ; Ex. 70 at ,r25; Ex. 69 

16 at ,r13; Ex. 58 at ,rs; Ex. 64 at ,r14; Ex. 53 at ,r,r33-34; Ex. 54 at ,r16; Ex. 52 at ,r11. 

17 One time, Carla Chappell (Chappell's sister) found enough wine bottles under Mr. 

18 Chappell's bed to fill three trash bags. Ex. 53 at il33. 

19 169. In high school, Mr. Chappell liked to drink alcohol while smoking 

20 marijuana. Ex. 73 at ,r40; Ex. 63 at ,r9; Ex. 58 at ,r11; Ex. 53 at ,r33; Ex. 56 at ,r5. And 

21 on occasion, Mr. Chappell would hang out with a gay neighbor, Rob Williams. Mr. 

22 Williams would purchase alcohol for Mr. Chappell and his friends. Ex. 53 at il33. It 

23 appeared to Michael Chappell that his brother was abusing substances to escape his 

24 problems. Ex. 63 at ,r9. 

25 170. Mr. Chappell had an unlimited supply of drugs at his disposal because his 

26 Uncle Rodney and Aunt Sharon were drug addicts. Mr. Chappell also got drugs from 
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1 dealers he was friends with and from his brother Ricky. Ex. 59 at ,r24; Ex. 53 at ,r,r30, 

2 34; Ex. 54 at il16. 

3 171. Mr. Chappell also turned to crack cocaine when he was about seventeen 

4 or eighteen years old. Ex. 70 at ,r26; Ex. 59 at ,r33; Ex. 69 at ,r13; Ex. 68 at ,r17; Ex. 64 

5 at ,r14; Ex. 53 at ,r30; Ex. 54 at il16. Initially, Mr. Chappell smoked crack and 

6 marijuana combined in a joint and then later started smoking crack from a pipe. Ex. 

7 59 at ,r33; Ex. 73 at ,r35; Ex. 54 at ,r16; Ex. 52 at ,r12. When he was sober, drinking 

8 beer, or smoking marijuana, Mr. Chappell was easy-going and fun loving. However, 

9 when Mr. Chappell was on crack, he became paranoid and behaved oddly, becoming 

10 jumpy, overly alert to his surrounding, aggressive, agitated, and easily frightened. He 

11 also complained of hearing voices and suspicious sounds when on crack and spoke 

12 about possible threats and dangers. Most of Mr. Chappell's crack related delusions 

13 centered on hearing things. Ex. 59 at ,r34; Ex. 70 at ,r28; Ex. 68 at ,r17; Ex. 53 at ,r37; 

14 Ex. 52 at ,r11; Ex. 55 at ,r,r3-4. 

15 172. Mr. Chappell's addiction was so severe that he stole from Ms. Panos to 

16 supply his drug habit. Ex. 68 at ill 7; Ex. 64 at ,r 4 7; Ex. 53 at ,r37; Ex. 330 at il26. He 

17 also shoplifted and used the proceeds to purchase drugs. Ex. 55 at ,r2. 

18 173. At first, while in Tucson, Mr. Chappell's drug addiction seemed under 

19 control. Ex. 166 at ,r,r3-5; Ex. 167 at ,r,r4-5; Ex. 168 at ,r4. However, as in Lansing, 

20 the addictions again took over Mr. Chappell's life. Mr. Chappell used crack (and 

21 alcohol) to escape the problems he was having with Ms. Panos. Whenever Ms. Panos 

22 got on Mr. Chappell's nerves or made him feel bad, Mr. Chappell would cope by getting 

23 high. Ex. 59 at ,r35; see Ex. 91 at ,r2; Ex. 105 at ,r2; Ex. 166 at ,r,r8-9; Ex. 168 at ,r,r 5-

24 6, 9. 

25 17 4. The drug and alcohol use continued when Mr. Chappell moved to Las 

26 Vegas. Mr. Chappell had frequent crack binges and his addition spiraled out of control. 
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1 One reason for this was that crack was more potent in Las Vegas. Ex. 59 at ,r 61; see 

2 Ex. 55 at ,r,r 4-5; Ex. 167 at ,r11. See subsection (3), post. 

3 175. Had counsel presented this testimony, the jurors would have heard a more 

4 accurate portrayal of Mr. Chappell's drug addiction. But without it, the jurors were 

5 left with only prejudicial evidence that destroyed the juror's ability to make an 

6 informed and unbiased decision on Mr. Chappell's guilt. Counsel's ineffectiveness was 

7 prejudicial to Mr. Chappell. 

8 c. Learning disabilities 

9 176. The jurors did not have sufficient evidence before them regarding Mr. 

10 Chappell's learning disabilities. Additional evidence would have explained why Mr. 

11 Chappell could only temporarily hold menial jobs. Additional evidence also would have 

12 explained why Mr. Chappell was so dependent on Ms. Panos and why the possibility of 

13 her leaving him caused him to fly into a jealous rage and kill her. But sadly the jurors 

14 did not have the benefit of this first-hand lay witness evidence. 

15 177. Mr. Chappell suffered from a learning disability at an early age and was 

16 in special education classes while in school (along with his sister Carla). Ex. 59 at ,r7; 

17 Ex. 73 at ,r35; Ex. 69 at ,r5; Ex. 61 at ,r11; Ex. 64 at ,r,r4, 26; Ex. 72 at ,r7; Ex. 53 at ,r5; 

18 Ex. 54 at ,r3; Ex. 330 at ,r22. He was not academically inclined, struggled with reading, 

19 writing, and math, and appeared mentally slow. Ex. 59 at ,r7; Ex. 70 at ,r17; Ex. 69 at 

20 ,r5; Ex. 68 at ,r16; Ex. 58 at ,r,r2-3; Ex. 64 at ,r,r4, 26; Ex. 72 at ,r,r2, 7; Ex. 53 at ,r5; Ex. 

21 54 at ,r,r3, 5; Ex. 52 at ,r 4; Ex. 56 at ,r2. And because he was slow and a special education 

22 student, Mr. Chappell was often teased in school and around the neighborhood. Ex. 58 

23 at ,r 5; Ex. 64 at ,r26; Ex. 53 at ,r 5; Ex. 56 at ,r2. 

24 178. Joetta Ford was a nurse and recognized the signs of intellectual disability. 

25 Ex. 61 at ,r11. One of Mr. Chappell's teachers informed Ms. Ford that Mr. Chappell's 

26 
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1 IQ was in the low 70s, which was a red flag to Ms. Ford because people with low IQ 

2 scores normally did not function well. Id. at ,r12. 

3 179. Mr. Chappell would often ask friends and family members to read things 

4 to him that he did not understand. This lasted even when Mr. Chappell was a grown 

5 man. Ex. 59 at ,r,r7-s; Ex. 61 at ,r13; Ex. 64 at ,r27; Ex. 54 at ,r5. 

6 180. Mr. Chappell also had a poor sense of direction and was not able to learn 

7 to drive. Ex. 70 at ,r,rlS-19, 22; Ex. 54 at ,r10. He spoke slowly and was physically 

8 uncoordinated. It also took Mr. Chappell additional time to process questions and give 

9 responses. Ex. 69 ,r,r6, s; Ex. 58 at ,r5; Ex. 52 at ,r4. 

10 181. Mr. Chappell had a short attention span and had difficulty focusing on 

11 anything for more than a few minutes. He learned from watching and imitating others. 

12 Ex. 73 at ,r30; Ex. 58 at ,r3; Ex. 54 at ,r4; Ex. 52 at ,r4. Even when he was repeatedly 

13 shown how to do tasks, Mr. Chappell was not able to learn things quickly. Ex. 73 at 

14 ,r33; Ex. 58 at ,r2. Mr. Chappell had a limited vocabulary and normally used words 

15 with few syllables. Ex. 73 at ,r34; Ex. 58 at ,r2; Ex. 64 at ,r,r29, 31; Ex. 54 at ,r4; Ex. 56 

16 at ,r2. 

17 182. Because Mr. Chappell had low intellectual function and no high school 

18 diploma, he was only able to secure menial jobs that did not require much skill or 

19 interaction with the public. Ex. 61 at ,r1s; Ex. 64 at ,r26; Ex. 53 at ,r5. 

20 183. Mr. Chappell's juvenile probation officer, William Moore, found that while 

21 he could teach Mr. Chappell how to do simple tasks like clean or garden, it was almost 

22 impossible to teach him intangible concepts. Ex. 72 at ,r7. To Mr. Moore, it was as if 

23 "no one was home" when he was trying to teach or tutor Mr. Chappell. Mr. Moore did 

24 not believe that Mr. Chappell ever grasped the concepts of self-care, schooling, or 

25 reading. Id. at ,rs. Mr. Moore believed that Mr. Chappell should have been placed in 

26 a twenty-four hour intensive care program for his mental health needs and behavioral 

27 issues. Id. at ,r10. 
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1 184. There is a reasonable probability of a more favorable outcome if lay 

2 witness testimony corroborating Mr. Chappell's learning disabilities and adaptive 

3 deficits had been presented. 

4 

5 

d. Conclusion 

185. The presentation of this lay witness testimony, as outlined above, would 

6 have given the jurors a more accurate portrayal of Mr. Chappell, and much-needed 

7 support to Mr. Chappell's own testimony that he killed Ms. Panos in a rage of jealousy. 

8 The evidence would have shown that Mr. Chappell was deeply dependent upon Ms. 

9 Panos, that Mr. Chappell could not foresee living without Ms. Panos's support, and, 

10 based upon his mental slowness and drug addiction, that he killed Ms. Panos in the 

11 heat of passion. This lay witness testimony was also important as it corroborated Mr. 

12 Chappell's own testimony, which was heavily impeached by the prosecution. 

13 186. Counsel's failure to investigate and present such evidence amounted to 

14 deficient performance, which prejudiced Mr. Chappell and ultimately led to his 

15 erroneous conviction for capital murder. 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

a. Expert on Neuropharmacological Influences 

187. As discussed previously, the State presented evidence at the guilt phase 

that Mr. Chappell sold his daughter's furniture, sold his children's diapers, rented Ms. 

Panos's car to people at the housing project, and committed repeated acts of domestic 

violence against Ms. Panos. This evidence was inadmissible and clearly introduced to 

prejudice Mr. Chappell's character. 

188. However inadmissible it was, counsel did little to combat it, leaving Mr. 

Chappell's character impeached. Had counsel hired a neuropharmacological expert, 

like Dr. Jonathan Lipman, the jurors would have heard evidence that would have 

mitigated and explained Mr. Chappell's behavior and assisted in his defense that he 

killed Ms. Panos in the heat of passion. 
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1 189. According to Dr. Lipman, Mr. Chappell was genetically vulnerable and 

2 predisposed frombirth (in utero) to drug abuse, and this drug abuse impaired his ability 

3 to control his impulse to abuse drugs. Ex. 90 at 1, 3, 8-10. Mr. Chappell was also 

4 environmentally shaped in his postnatal and early childhood development, by modeling 

5 and enculturation, to drug abuse. Id. Such evidence would have shown the jury that 

6 Mr. Chappell was predisposed to drug addiction and he could not voluntarily choose to 

7 stop using as easily as someone without such a predisposition. 

8 190. Furthermore, Mr. Chappell's personality and neurocognitive development 

9 was seriously influenced by his alcohol and cocaine use, which was brought about by 

10 either his gestational or early developmental impairment, or both, likely due at least 

11 in part to his mother's use of drugs throughout her own pregnancy. Ex. 90 at 18. 

12 191. Dr. Lipman opined that the severity of Mr. Chappell's addiction to crack 

13 cocaine, "is indexed by the lengths to which he would descend to obtain money for 

14 drugs," like his selling of his children's diapers and furniture. Ex. 90 at 3. Mr. 

15 Chappell's short-sighted, irresponsible, and often larcenous behavior was guaranteed 

16 to alienate those most supportive of him, without regard for the inevitable 

17 consequences, and is typical behavior of the crack addicted individual driven by the 

18 overwhelming craving and by the felt necessity of avoiding the painful consequences of 

19 drug withdrawal. Id. Thus, Mr. Chappell's actions of selling his children's diapers or 

20 furniture, or any such actions, which on their face made Mr. Chappell appear to be a 

21 bad father and husband, can be more readily explained by the involuntariness of his 

22 actions, not intentional violation. 

23 192. The defense also introduced, through Dr. Etcoff, testimony that Mr. 

24 Chappell suffered from a learning disability and from borderline personality disorder. 

25 Dr. Etcoffs testimony, however, could have been supported by the testimony of Dr. 

26 Lipman or someone like him. If counsel had hired a neuropharmacological expert, the 

27 jurors could have heard the following evidence. 
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DISTRICT COURT 

OR\G\NAL * "' * .,. * 

THE STATE OF NEVADA, ) 
) 

Plaintiff, ) CASE NO. C13134l 
) 

Vs ) DEPT. NO. VII 
) 

JAMES MONTELL CHAPPELL, ) DOCKET P 
) 

Defendant. ) 

BEFORE THE HONORABLE; 

A. WILLIAM MAUPIN DISTRICT JUDGE 

WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 23, 1996, 11:25 A.M. 

PENALTY PHASE - VOLUME III 

APPEARANCES; 

FOR THE STATE: MELVYN T. HARMON & 

ABBI SILVER 
Deputies District Attorney 

FOR THE DEFENDANT: HOWARDS. BROOKS & 

WILLARD N. EWING 
Deputies Public Defender 

REPORTED BY: PATSY K. SMITH, C.C.R. #190 

PATSY K. SMITH, OFFICIAL COURT REPORTER 

-~-~----~~------------~----------- - --

8JDC234'. 
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WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 23, 1996, 11:25 A.M. 

THE COURT: Counsel stipulate to the 

presence of the jury? 

MR. HARMON; Yes, your Honor. 

MR. EWI~G: Yes, your Honor. 

THE COURT: All right. 

I have excusad Ms. Lucido £rom jucy service 

8 for one of the alternates. The reason is that we were 

9 advised, most unhappily thie morning, she eustainad a death 

10 in her family this morning .md she wished to go ha.ck to the 

ll Philippines to attend the funeral. I didn't think the 

12 parties would mind that decision. So I went ahead and 

13 excused her. 

14 Do bo~h the pa~ties agree with that 

15 decision? 

16 

17 

18 

MR, HARMON; The State does. 

MR. EWINGt Yes, your Honor. 

THE COURT: The defense ~ay continue with 

19 its closing statement to the jury. 

20 MR. EWING; Thank you, your Honor. 

21 Good morning, your Honor, counsel, ladies 

22 and gentlemen of the jury, I'd like to thank you in advance 

23 for the time and attention you are willing to pay to my 

24 closing a~gument. l would like to request that you bear 

25 with me and pay close attention, This is the only 

PATSY K. SMITH, OFFICIAL COURT REPORTBR 

----------------------------------- ·---· -- ---

8JDC2343 
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opportunity I will get to speak to you and I will try to 

state our position plainly and simply so that there will be 

no confusion about whera we stand on these very important 

iS5U!i!S. 

Now, we sat over her during the course of 

the trial and we listened to the same witnesses that you 

listened to and we heard about this terrible tragedy. We 

heard about Deborah Panos and her life and we felt for her 

just as you did. We felt sorrow, we felt pain. We saw the 

pain on the faces of her family, as they came in to 

testify, and we are not asking you to forget her. I want 

you to remember that. We have never, ever asked you to 

forget her. 

James told you that if he could exchange his 

life for hers, he would, but nothing we do today ia going 

to bring her back and that's not what can be accompliahed 

by a penalty phaae in this case. The penalty phase is not 

about vengeance. In a few minutes, the case will be yours 

and you will have to make some difficult decisions, but you 

can look at the bright side. This case is so far removed 

from any case which would warrant death penalty 

consideration, that you can aullDllarily dismiss that as an 

option and letts talk about why that's the case. 

Penalty phases, as the Judge ~nstructed you, 

are about aggravating and mitigating circumstances • 

PATSY K. SMITH, OFFICIAL COURT REPORTER 

-------------------------~------- ·---··· --··· 
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Generally, the aggravating circumstances apply to the facts 

of the case, how the murder was committed. I say generally 

because there is exceptions. Generally, the mitigating 

circumstances apply to the history of the defendant and 

circumstances surrounding him. 

The Court, in the Jury Instructions, told 

you that the penAlty phaae is about aggravating and 

mitigating oiroumstances, which means that the penalty 

phase is about James Chappell. We don't say that to he 

insensitive, we say that because that's true. The penalty 

phase in this case, the State did not present one shred of 

eYidence to assist you in the validity of the aggravating 

circumstances. 

During the guilt phase, the State presented 

that James Chappell was not always a nice person, that he 

~as a cocaine addict~ that he was a petty thiet, that, on 

occasion, he abused Deborah Panos, that she was afraid of 

him, and that she wanted out of the ~elationship. 

In tha penalty phase of the trial, after the 

guilt phase, the State presented evidence that JllDlee 

Chappell was not always a nice pe~son, that he was a 

cocaine addict, that he was a petty thief, that he 

sometimes abused Deborah Panos, that she was afraid of him, 

and that she wanted out of the relationship. They gave you 

no assistance in determining the existence of these alleged 

PATSY K. SMITH, OFFICIAL COURT REPORTER 

8JDC2345 



AA00005

~ 
n = w 
~ 
~ 1 ~ -I = 2 ~ 
0 
n 
~ 

3 ~ 
~ 
~ 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

1B 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

• Page 5 

aggravating cirowuatanoes. They didn't because they 

conldn•t. They brought in character evidence through 

hearsay and innuendo so that they could conceal the fact 

that they could not prove the alleged allegations of 

aggravating circumstances. They could not do what the law 

requires them to do. 

Let's talk about these alleged aggravating 

circUJ11stances for a few minutes. During the guilt phase, 

you found beyond a reasonable doubt the existence of a 

robbery and a burglary. We can't, at this juncture, 

dispute that and those are the alleged aggravators. The 

law allowa you to consider those as two aggravators. My 

argument to you is that these two incidents occurred at the 

ea.me ti.me. I don't know, I can't epeculat& about what 

occurred during your ·deliberation, but I assume that you 

determined that James entered with the intent to steal 

something and he stole something. They are the same course 

of conduct and for purposes of this hearing and your 

deliberation, our argument is you should consider that as 

one aggraYating circumstance. 

The State alleged sexual assault as an 

aggravating circumstance. Never once in the penalty phase 

was the word sexual assault even mentioned. Never once in 

the guilt phase was the word sexual assault m~ntioned. It 

wasn't mentioned until closing argument and in this closing 

PATSY K. SMITH, OFFICIAL COURT REPORTE~ 
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argument, the State asks you to speculate that there was a 

sexual assault with absolutely no corroborating evidence. 

What do wa actually know about this case? 

We know James and Deborah had a ten year relationship. We 

know that they had a sexual relationship for 10 years. We 

know that they had three children together. We know that 

Debbie's friends told you that ehe loved Jam.es. We know 

that James admitted that they had consensual sex. we know 

that Deborah was found dead right next to the front door 

fully clothed. We know there was no evidence presented 

from any experts indicating any injuries consistent with 

sexual assault. We know there was no evidence presented by 

any expert, including bodily fluids on the carpeting where 

she was lying, indicating that there was a sexual assault. 

The State asks you to speculate and oux 

argument is, our contention is that to make ~n arbitrary 

decision about a sexual assault without any evidence is 

wrong and it would be improper for you to do so in this 

case. 

The prosecutor went into quite a dialogue 

about no means no. Where was ~here any evidence that 

Deborah ever said no or ever wanted to say no? I wish I 

could count the number of times in counsel's closing 

arg\laent that she used the WQ~d maybe or pe~haps or might 

ha~e been. She used these to describe her unsubstantiated 

PATSY K. SMITH, OFFICIAL COURT REPORTER 
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theories about what might have occurred. 1 

2 

3 

The Court instructed you that aggravating 

circumstances have to be proven beyond a reasonable doubt 

4 and in the instruction, it says you cannot speculate and 

S that's exactly what she asked you to do. She asked you not 

6 to follow the law and I'm asking you to follow the law. In 

7 voir dire, we asked each and every one of you, n.Are you the 

8 kind of a person who can be fair to James Chappell? Are 

9 the kind of a person, if you were a defendant, that you 

10 would want you to be on your jury," and each one of you 

11 responded in the affirmativQ. 

12 Our position is that that type of juror 

13 would have looked at yesterday's closing argument as a pile 

14 of speculation and innuendo and looked at that closing 

15 argument as an attempt to outrage, to cause you to hate, 

16 and to cause you to seek vengeance and that's not why you 

17 are here. 

18 Let's talk about the aggravating 

19 circumstance of torture for a few minutes. Never once in 

20 the penalty phase did the State mention the word torture. 

21 Never once in the guilt phase did the State mention the 

22 ~ord torture, not until closing a~gument. Initially, they 

23 wanted you to look at the alleged punches that were 

24 thrown, Now, ja,mes admitted to you that he caused the 

25 inju~ies that Debo~ah fanoij euffe.ed on that day. To ~tand 

PATSY K, SMITH, OFFICIAL COURT REPORTER 
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here and speculate about the nl.ll1lber of blows without any 

corroborating evidence is wrong and, also, the legal 

interpretation was wrong and I"m going to try and explain 

that to you. 

The instruction No, 20, which defines 

torture, generally states that the act or acts which caused 

the death -- I'm paraphrasing here, hut look at the 

inat~uction -- the act or acts which caused the death must 

involve a high degree of probability of death. Let me do 

it this way, Let me just read you the Instruction. That 

way I'm not paraphrasing and you can understand. "The 

essential elements of murder by means of torture are, one, 

the aat or acts which caused the death must involve a high 

degree of probability of death. '' Those punches did not 

have a high degree of probability of death. 

Nwnber two, "'l'he defendant :must ooDwtit such 

act or acte,n same acts that caused a high degrea of 

probability of death, "with the intent to cause cruel pain 

and suffering for the purpose of revenge, persuasion or for 

any ot.her sadistic purpose." Those punches could not cause 

death, therefore, they are not torture. 

But, more importantly, referring to the 

punctures and stab wounds, the only evidence we had was Dr. 

Green. Dr. Green said they were all contemporaneous, they 

all happened at the same time. There was no attempt to 

PATSY K. SMITH, OFFICIAL COURT REPORTE~ 
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prolong anything and they were all rapid. We don't know 

which wound caused the death. We don't know what the order 

of the wounds we~e, but they were all contemporaneous. 

James, as Instruction 21 states, James did nothing, did 

nothing beyond the act of killing itself. There is no 

torture and there is no depravity of mind. 

The only aggravato;. you can find in this 

case is the robbery and burglary and I say the word 

aggravator in a singular sense because, based on the facts 

of the case, in all fairness, you should consider that as 

one a99ravat0r. There are many, many other aqgravating 

circumstances under our system of justice which can cause a 

first degree murder to be subjected to the possibility of a 

death sentence and I want to t~lk to you about what this 

case i$n't for a few •inutee. 

The only circumstances by which murder of 

the first deg~ee may be an aggravated are, number one, and 

I want you to keep in mind this is our legislature•• 

attempt to compile an inclusive list. These are the only 

circumstances which can aggTavate a first degree murder. 

Number one, "The murder was committed by a person under a 

sentence of i:inprieonment." Mr. Chappell nevex- has been 

under a sentence of imprisonment. He wasn't at the time. 

He's never been convicted of a felony and du~ing voir dire, 

that was important to you, wae he an ex-felon, had he 

PATSY K. SMITH, OFFICIAL COORT RS~OR'l'ER 
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committed murders in the past. 

That's the next one, "The murder was 

committed by a person who had previously been convicted of 

another murder or of a felony involving the use or threat 

of violence to the person of another." The State did not 

allege that because that's not James. He didn't commit 

that aggravating circumstance. 

Number thrae, '''l'he mu1:de;r;- was coDnDi tted by a 

person who knowingly created a great risk of death to more 

than one person by means of a weapon, device or course of 

action which would nonnally be hazardous to the lives of 

more than one person," The primary example is someone who 

site in a garage, meticulously makes a bomb, takes it to a 

building where a lot of people are going to be, and eet it 

off. A cold and malignant heart. 

Number four ie the one and only circumstance 

that applies to James Chappell. "The murder was committed 

while the person was engaged in the comminBion of or an 

attempt to commit or flight after cOI111nitting or attempting 

to co:mmit any robbery, sexual assault, araon, burglary, 

invasion of the home or kidnapping." That is the one and 

only circumstance that applies to James Chappell. 

Nwnber five, "The murder was oonimitted to 

avoid or prevent a lawful arrest or to effect an escape 

from custody." 

PATSY K. SMITH, OFFICIAL COURT REPORTER 
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Again, insinuating somebody plans a cold and 

calculated act, '"The murder was COlllDli tted by a person to 

receive money or any other thing of monetary Yalue." The 

primacy example of that would be murder for hire or killing 

someone for an inheritance. Again, does not apply to 

"The murder was committed upon a peace 

officer or a fireman who was killed while engaged in the 

performance of his official duty or because of an act 

performed in his official capacity and the defendant knew 

he was a police officer or a fireman.'' Doesn •t apply to 

James. 

"The murder involved tortuz:e or the 

mutilation of the victim." As I have already argued to 

you~ that does not apply to James. 

"The murder was collllllitted upon one or more 

persons at random and without apparent motive." Again, 

indicating a cold blooded, heartless-type of killing that 

does not apply in this case. 

11 The murder was committed upon a person 

less than 14 years of l!lge." Doesn't apply to J8lJlei,. 

"The murder was committed upon a. person 

because of the actual or perceived race, color, ~~ligion, 

national origin, physical or mental disability or sexual 

orientation of that person." A hate crime. Doesn't apply 

PATSY K. SMITH, OFFICIAL COURT REPORTER 
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to James. 

And the last one, number 12 states, ~The 

defendant has, in the immediate p~ocaeding, been convicted 

of more than one offense of lnUrder. '' The case of a 

multiple murder situation, which again doesn't apply to 

James. 

These cases are the statutory aggravators. 

I think it gives you a good indication, I think, on what 

tha legislature was looking for in terme of people who 

would commit premeditated, preplanned acts that are not the 

case in this case and you keep in mind the only aggravating 

circumstance h&sically alleged is that James went in thare 

to commit a crime and, during the course of the crime, 

killed Deborah. Completely different. 

I want to introduce to you a term of art I'd 

like to call the worst of the worst and I'm going to use a 

little cha~t to give you a visual aid of about what I'm 

talking about. If I could have the Court's indulgence. 

I think we ean all aooept, first of all, we 

know James has been convicted cf first degree murder with 

use of a deadly weapon and this is the worst kind of a 

case. I think we can all accept the proposition, though, 

that all killinga are bad, but some killings are worse and 

I think we can accept the proposition that all killers are 

bad, but some killers are worse. 

PATSY K. SMITH, OFFICIAL COURT REPORTER 

------------------------------------------·····-···-.. 
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l 

2 

3 

This is not the case of a mass murderer, 

which some of you mentioned in voir dire that you thought 

was important. This is not the case of someone who sits in 

4 their garage and puts together a bo:rnb so they can blew up a 

5 building full of people. This is not the case where an 

6 individual kidnaps and tortures and murders small 

7 children. This is a case where a man got into a 

8 relationship and relationships are difficult. He got into 

9 a relationship he couldn"t handle. With his emotional and 

10 psychologioal problems, he couldn't handle the 4elationuhip 

11 and he killed Deborah. This is not a case where the death 

12 penalty is appropriate. It is not a case of the worst of 

13 the worst. 

14 The Court instrueted you durinq your 

15 deliberation to consid@r both aggravating and mitigating 

16 circumstances. They are both important and that's the 

17 law. This is part of this slow, caraful, well thought out 

18 decision that Mr. Brooks asked you to make yesterday. The 

19 prosecutor stood up yesterday and told you to ignore the 

20 mitigating circmnstances. They are all excuses, they don•t 

21 matter. Again, she asked you to not follow the law. We're 

22 going to talk a few minutes about the mitigating 

23 circumstances. 

24 Instructton No. 7, and I'm juet going to 

25 focus on the part that deals with mitigation because 

PATSY K. SMITH, OFFICIAL COURT REPORTER 
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Instruction 7 also deals with aggravation and if you have 

any questions e.bout that, make sure you refer to that 

Instruction. A mitigating circumstance itself need not be 

unanimous. That ia if only one juror can find a mitigating 

circumstance without the agreement of the other jurors, 

then that juro~ can consider that and that's important as 

we consider these mitigating circumstances, as I'm goinq to 

list them. I'm going to talk about seven mitigating 

circumstances and my list isn't all inclusive either. You 

have the liberty and the right to consider anything you 

want to be mitigating. 

First thing I want to talk about is the 

youth of Mr. Chappell. He was born December 27th, 1969. 

At the time he oonunitted the offense, ha was 26 yeare old. 

At the time of the offense, Deborah Panos, who was born on 

May 4th, 1969, was also 26 years old. She was a few ~onthe 

older than James. The State, in its closing argument, 

referred to her as young Deborah Panos inferring D•horah 

Panos was still young in her life and we will concede 

that's true and BO was James. The State later argued that 

James was not young, he was older and experienced. This is 

not consistent arguments. The truth of that is both were 

young. Both of them were probably in their first seriouo 

relationship. Tney had gotten together when they were 16. 

Therefore, they were probably both experiencing their first 
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breakup. 

In terms of dealing with relationships, they 

were both very young. I want you to remember Dr. Etcoff"s 

testimony because it's important to reali~e that James had 

some problems and, in actuality, emotionally and 

intellectually he was probably younger than his 

chronological years. The youth of the defendant, James 

Chappell, is a Jlli.tigating circumstance and it's SOUlething 

that you should coneide~. 

Next, I want to talk about the lack of 

significant criminal history. When James was 14 years old, 

he was arrested in Michigan for petty thefts and petty 

crimes. Bis probation officer came in here to talk to 

you. Be was arrested, he was put under community 

supervision, and he did very well. He thrived under that 

suppo~t and that authority. Be did what he was asked and I 

think it is pretty obvious his probation officer liked him, 

took an interest in him, and liked the way that be was 

treated as his probation officer. 

As an adult, he had some problems. Be had 

an addiction to crack cocaine. Be had incidents of 

domestic abuse and he was a petty thief. And he's admitted 

all this to you from the beginning. The system never 

intervened and the State made a big deal about how the 

system failed Deborah f~nos. Jame5 hue no felony 
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convictions, Be has never been to prison. The question to 

ask yourself is, does James' history warrant the death 

penalty? Do you execute people because they ara petty 

thieves? Do you execute people because they are cocaine 

addicts? Do you execute people because they have emotional 

problems and conmit domestic violence? ~hat•a the issue. 

The phrase is significant orilllinal history 

and the operative word is the word significant. When I was 

discussing the aggravating circumstances with you a few 

minutes ago, we talked about different types of criminal 

histocy which can aggravate a fi~st degree murder and Jamee 

didn't fall into any of those categories because his 

c~ilninal history is not substantial and it should not be a 

aggravating fact, It should be considered mitigating. 

This is not again -- I ~ean I have aaid this before and I'm 

going to say it again, this is not the case of the u1tilnata 

murder situation, a murder for hire, this was not the case 

of a bombing or the torture and killing of children. James 

does not have a significant criminal history warranting the 

consideration of the death penalty. 

I found it very ironic that the State of 

Ne~ada would stand up and say that because the systea, the 

very system that they are a part of, failed Deborah Panos. 

The result is that you should kill James ChappellA I think 

that was incredibly ironic. The system failed a lot of 

PATSY K. SMITH, OFFICIAL COURT REPOR'l'ER 

8JDC2357 



AA00017

~ 
n 
~ 
w 
~ 
~ .1 ~ --I = 2 ~ 
0 
n 
~ 
~ 3 ~ = 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

- - Page 17 

people in this case and vengeance and hate is not the 

solution. 

The murder was committed while James was 

under the influence of extreme mental and emotional 

disturbance. You may ask why did we put Dr. Etcoff on the 

stand? Did we put him on the stand to ~how you what James 

did was okay? Absolutely not. We put him on the stand so 

you could understand James, understand how he functions, 

how he thought, and some of his deficiencies and always 

keep in mind that James didn't ask for these deficiencies, 

he didn't choose to have these problems he had. There was 

a lot in his life. 

We have all been involved in relationships 

that have anded, at least I assume we all have and we know 

how that feels. The knot you get in your stomach, the fact 

you can't concentrate, you can't see the words on the page 

in the book in front of you. Now I can accept the fact 

that none of ua killed the person that the relationship was 

with that was ending, but you see, we have abilities to 

chcoee and channel that James does not have. We have 

control mechanisms that James does not have. We have 

communication skills and emotional stability that James 

does not have. l want to refer to a couple things that Dr. 

Et~off said in his ~~amination, during the guilt phase of 

the trial, and this is going to be brief and I realize that 
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it's only a part of what he said. I'm trying not to take 

it out of context and I want you to understand that I'm 

aware that I'm just pulling a fe~ excerpts out cf this 

testiD1ony. 

He was referring to the low verbal IQ that 

put him in the seventh percentile nationally. Out of a 

hundred people, 93 ha.d bette~ verbal skills than James 

did. Be said, "The important aspect of Mr. Chappell's 

language deficits is that if you place someone like Mr. 

Chappell in a Btressful situation, he's already learning 

disabled, he can•t think well in words, if he has to make a 

snap decision or filters through the problems of sol~ing 

complex information rapidly," -- e~cuse me -- "filter 

through and problem solve complex information rapidly, ycu 

will not find someone of his intellectual capacities 

verbally doing a very good job and making the best choices 

as a result ot these language problems that are thought to 

be genetically caused at this point." 

And he went onto refer to how people who 

have this deficiency tend to be aggressive and tend to be 

ever represented in the population of prisons. 

And in regards to the personality test, he 

stated, "The personality test suggests st;r;-ongly that he is 

very ijocially awkward, introverted, a man who is 

distrustful of others, who wants to be liked and accepted, 
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but is frightened cf rejection and humiliation because he 

expects that to occur, if he gets to know someone very 

well, he'll be hurt.." 

Then he refers to horrible personality 

borderline eharaeteristics. Be refers to those people who 

have absolutely no sense of identity, they have no sense of 

self. 

Again, James didn't ask for these 

deficiencies, he didn't request them. They were given to 

him. There is a lot of things he"s done in his life. Be 

is responsible for his crimes. There's no question, but he 

is responsible for his action. 

Remorse. Number tour, remorse. James came 

to y~u in court and cried. I would submit to you his tears 

were genuine and they were the ea.me tears Dr. Etcoff 

testified he saw and he is trained to view people, And he 

was remorseful to you. I will say that I expect some of 

the remorse was tcwa~ds J11J11es. Be is in a very difficult 

position. Bow can you argue that the vast majority of that 

wasn't addressed to Deborah Panoa? He killed the woman he 

loved and he feels terrible about it. He told you he would 

trade places if he could, but he can•t. Bis remorse is 

genuine. It's mitigating because it demonstrates he 

doesn't have that cold and malignant heart that I talked 

about before. 
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Ja.mee accepts responsibility for his 

actions. That's mitigating circumstance number five. He 

told you whatever you do, he will accept. Be told you he 

killed her, he knew it was criminal, Now his lawyers 

presented a defense of voluntary lMnslaughter because ~e 

listened to his story and we thought that's what he was 

telling us. It'a difficult for him to understand the 

differences between the two. He stood up there and told 

you he committed the crime and he also told you whatever 

you do, he will accept. This again strongly denwnst~atee 

that he doesn't have that cold, malignant hea~t of someone 

who is worthy of the death penalty consideration. 

I want you to consider hie fuiily'a love for 

him. They came in here yesterday and b~iefly told you a 

little bit about him and it was difficult for ~hem and they 

asked you to allow him to remain a part of their lives. 

I want to talk to you for a few minutes 

about his obvious willingness to adapt to a prison 

environment, to a prison setting. lt's mitigating. 

There's been no evidence that he had a problem in jail. 

He's been in jail since the crime was committed a year and 

a couple months ago. No evidence he 1 s had any problems. 

Bill Moore told you, when he was under his supervision, he 

responded well to authority, he was respectful, he likiKl 

the structure, he listened. There is no evidence presented 
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that he would be a problem in prison and you are in a 

position where you can severely punish him, where you can 

protect society, where you can rest assure that the inmates 

4 aren't in danger and you can do that with a life sentence. 

5 The last mitigator I want to discuss is 

G Jam.est childhood. There was particula~ individual 

7 tragedies which he had to endure to shape his life. The 

8 loss of his mother, when he was two and a half, which 

9 interestingly resulted in his inability to speak for at 

10 leaet a year, Bis gran<hna. aaid a year. Bill Moore said 

11 two years. That had to ha~e been a substantial trauma. Be 

12 grew up in a neighborhood where there was drug, violence. 

13 and theft. These things he saw all the time. Bill Moore 

14 said it would have taken an exceptional youth to be able to 

15 rise out of that situation and not have problems and he 

16 said James wasn•t that exceptional youth, 

17 Now did JantSs choose tc be born where he was 

18 born in the neighborhood he was foroed to live in? He 

19 didn't make those choices, Be was forced and he is 

20 suffering the consequences because cf that. Is that an 

21 excuse? No, but it's a reason and it's mitigating. It's 

22 clear in this case that the mitigators vastly and 

23 drastically outweigh the existence of any aggravators. 

24 I want to talk to you now about the f~ct 

25 that our law, which you've all aworn to uphold and which 
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you talked about during voir dire being important to you, 

the law favors life. The law we live under favors life. 

Thare is lots of kinds of criminal homicide, as I listed in 

my chart, criminal homioide where there ie a death and i~•s 

a crime and I've listed those. Involuntary manslaughter is 

punishable up to one to six years in prison. It's 

probationable. 

Voluntary manslaughter is punishable up to 

one to 20 years. 

Second degree murder, which is the 

intentional, malicious killing, 25 years or life with 

parole eligibility after 10 years. 

First degree murder, premeditated and 

deliberate or a felony murder, punishable by 50 years or 

life with or without the possibility of parole. If there 

is parole eligibility, it will be after 20 years and only 

in this last area here, the point of this triangle is the 

death penalty even as an option and that's where there is 

murder in the first degree with aggravating circumstances. 

Now, if you conclude that there is 

aggravating circumstances, then you are asked to weigh them 

against the mitigating circwnstances and it the mitigating 

circumstances outweigh the aggravators, then you must vote 

life. If you compare them and the aggravators outweigh the 

mitigators, but you determine that life -- that death isn't 
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appropriate, then you must vote life. Only when the 

aggravators outweigh the mitigators and you conclude that 

death is appropriate, then you have the option of 

4 considering it and you may. You ~ay impose a death 

5 penalty, but even then it's not required. You have the 

6 right to say no. You have the right to say it's not 

7 appropriate. 

8 The prosecutors would have you believe that 

9 if you don't vote death, you are somehow giving James a 

10 free ride. I would submit to you that is absolutely 

11 ridiculous to say that a life sentence is a free ride. 

12 Re:iaetnber that first degree murder with use of a deadly 

13 weapon with the possibility of parole would mean that James 

14 would not even be parole eligible for 40 years until he is 

15 66 years old, If you give him life without the possibility 

16 of parole, he'll never get out and what is prison like? 

17 What's it like? Is it a walk in the park? You know, when 

18 I'm si~ting over her preparing for court everyday, I know 

19 when James is c01t1ing down the hall because I can hear the 

20 chains rattling. Be ia in chaina when he comes and goes. 

21 When he gets to jail, he is behind bars. Re eats when they 

22 tell him to eat. He sleeps when they tell him to sleep. 

23 Se has visitors when they tell him he can have visitors. 

24 He never 9ets to go to the park and he never gets to go 

25 anywhere. And I acknowledge the fact that Deborah Panos 
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doesn't either. That's true. We are not asking you to 

forget her. we are asking you to accept the fact that 

prison is harsh and it's a severe punishment. 

Prosecutor made a real valid point in her 

argument yesterday. She said that mercy can never rob 

justice and she is absolutely true. She's absolutely 

correct. Being merciful and showing mercy will never rob 

justice. Justice and mercy are intertwined, they are a 

part of each other. Mercy io not part of hate. Mercy is 

not pa~t of vengeance, but neither is justice. 

The State ~ants you to hate, they want you 

to seek vengeance, and that•s why the closing argument was 

presented yeuterday the way it was. That's why the case 

has been presented the way that it was. They want you to 

hate and they want you to seek vengeance. They asked you 

to stoop way down to the level of someone who would oollllldt 

first deg~ee murder and show him that same kind cf mercy. 

That•s scary, that's very saary. 

The State also wanted to talk about winning 

and losing. Nobody wins here. Everybody loses. If James 

gets a life sentence with the possibility of parole, he 

will probably die in priGon. I'm confident that you are 

going back to the jury room and make a reasoned, thought 

out decision based upon the evidence, that you are going to 

put aside the emotion, that you are going to remember 
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Deborah Panos, you are going to remember JaJHes Chappellt 

you are going to remember the evidence, and you are going 

to make a oonolueion what this case deserves, and you are 

going to send James to prison for life. That's obvious, 

You are going to send him to prison for life, but you 

should do that with the possibility of parole for one 

simple reaaon. 

Number one, there is very little difference 

between the two. He'll be 66 years old when he even has 

the eligibility of being released, but what it will do is 

provide for James some type of motivation to make prison a 

positive experience in the event that sOllle day he has a 

chance of getting out. It provides him more motivation to 

continue to do, as he has done before, to be cooperative, 

to be helpful, to respect authority, and to ~espond well to 

that type of a situation, 

That's what justice deserves in this case 

and that's what we're asking for. Please don't hate, 

please don't seek vengeance. Look at the facts in a 

reasoned and calculated manner and return a verdict of life 

with the possibility of parole. 

~hank you. 

THE COURT: Thank you. 

Ju. Barmon, fo~ the State of Nevada, 

MR. HARMON: May it please the Court, 
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cc-counsel, gentlemen for the defense, good morning, ladies 

and gentlemen. I want to congratulate a number of people 

in this ease. The Court, as usual, Judge Maupin haa been 

very thoughtful, very fair, and objective and professional 

in conducting these proceedings. He"s a gentleman and a 

true credit to the judiciary. 

I congratulate my co-counaelor, Abbi 

Silver. She's been a great assistance on this caee and has 

done what I submit the citizens expect of a prosecutor and 

th&t iB to prouecute as vigorously as she is capable of 

doing and to etrike hard blows, but not foul ones. 

I also congratulate the esteemed defense 

counselors. Mr. Brooks and Mr. Ewing are fine gentlemen, 

but ~ery capable lawyers an4 although there isn't a person 

in this courtroom who would want to exchange places with 

Mr. Chappell, having said that and with that understanding, 

he is a very lucky man. He's lucky to live in America. 

Be"s lucky to be someone who, havin9 committed a heincus 

crime, is provided under our system due precess of law. 

Be's lucky that he has two bright, skilledr very fluent 

attorneys to state his position in this courtroom and 

they've done so very ably and I congratulate them for their 

effort. 

This is an adversary eyetem and surely, as 

intelligent men and women, you didn't come to the courtroom 
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thinking that the prosecuting attorneys and the defenaa 

attorneya were going to agree about all the issues in this 

case. It doesn't work that way in an adversary 5ystem and 

we each have our roles to be performed. Without appearing 

to try to curry favor because i want to assure you that the 

decision in this case, as it has been from the time it was 

submitted to you at the conclusion of the guilt phase, the 

decision is yours. You are the triers of fact and you are 

now judges in the sense that you have the awesome 

~esponsibility of passing judgment upon a fellow human 

being and you must do that without submitting to any type 

of temptation to do it based upon prejudice, based upon 

gender or race. 

Ms. Silver and I are confident that you can 

do that and we congratulate you, as a juror, for your 

willingness to sex-ve on this case and for the fact that you 

were obviously conscientious, you are fair minded, decent 

human beings, and what I say to you now i5 just an 

expression of some thoughts about the evidence in this 

case, but it's with full reali~ation that the persons who 

must wrestle with the decision after the attorney rhetoric 

is done will be you, as the members of the jury, and we are 

fully confident that you will do your very best to give Mr. 

Chappell what you believe he is due given the facts and 

circwnstances of this case. 
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There are a number of comments by the 

defense attorneys that I wish to reply to. It's been at 

leaet infer~ed by Mr. Ewing that the aggravating 

circumstances becODle inferior at tha penalty phase if there 

wasn't additional evidence presented concerning them and 

with that inference in mind, I want to direct your 

attention to penalty hearing Instruction No. 25. It reads, 

nThe jury ie instructed that in determining the 

appropriate penalty to be imposed in this case, that it may 

consider all evidence," those are the operative words, "all 

evidence introdueed and the Instructions given both at the 

penalty hearing phase of these proceedings and at the trial 

of this matter." We have different phasee, but it's all 

one trial and when you retire to deliberate and to 

determine the judgment to be imposed upon Mr. Chappell, you 

aren't limited to the circumstances that were described at 

the penalty hearing. You may consider all the evidence. 

So with due re5pect to Mr. Ewing, it's 

somewhat slightly misleadin9 to suggest that a 

circumstance, an aggravator somehow carries less weight 

becauae the prosecution didn't supplement it at the penalty 

hearing with additional evidence. Ma.ny aggravating 

circumstances, as you can tell from the list of 12, 

described to you by Mr. Ewing and he accurately did so; 

those are the legislative enactments regarding mitigation, 
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but many of them relate to the facts and circumstances of 

the murder because in some cases, and this is cne of those 

eases, there are factors about this case that aggravate it, 

they lW!lke it worse, they arguably make it among the worst 

of the worst. And, actually, when you consider the 

significance of the statement premeditated murder, then 

it's surely not far off the mark to argue that any 

pre~editated murder falls into the category of the woret of 

the worst, as we look at various crimes which can occur. 

Now, Ml:'. Ewing has characterized the 

prosecution argwnents and I assume has referred to my 

partner, since I hadn't stood up yet, the argument as a 

pile cf speculation and innuendo. Mr. Ewing and Mr. 

Brooks, of course, are entitled to whatever opinions they 

choose to foon. The statement, as it implies that you 

should not guess or shculd not speculate by Mr. Ewing is 

accurate, but I don't concede for a moment that the 

position of the prosecution is based upon a pile of 

speculation and innuendo. 

You may draw just and reascnable inferences 

from the evidence presented and that doesn"t amount to 

innuendo or speculation. In Instruction 28, if I might 

command your attention to another Instruction, the Court 

points out~ and I"m reading in part frmn the Instruction 

beginning at line four, "You may draw reasonable inferences 
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from the evidence which you feel are justified in the light 

of common experience." 

Now contrary to the notion of some persons, 

trials suoh as thi~ are based upon the rule of reason and 

nobody asked you to leave your common sense, your good 

judgment, your ability to be thoughtful and reasonable and 

to draw appropriate infe~encee from the evidence outside of 

the courtroom. We want you to bring that with you and we 

want you to draw just and reasonable inferences from the 

evidence during the deliberation process. And so if Mr. 

Ewing meant to imply that you aren't to draw reasonable 

inferenoea, I simply wanted to remind him and you of the 

Court's Instruction No. 28. 

Thi5 i5 World Serie5 tirn~- l'w a baseball 

fan and somehow, as I heard the argument of Mr. Ewing this 

morning and the short but very direct remarks of Mr. Brooks 

yesterday afternoon, I thought of an interview that the 

great home run hitter Bank Aaron had with the media a 

number of years ago aftar he had succaadad in braaking the 

home run record of Babe Ruth and Hammering Hank waa asked 

by the journalists if he ~ould explain how he had managed 

to hit eo many home runs. There was a very short pause and 

then Hank Aaron responded, "I did it this way. I did it by 

always keeping my eyes on the ball." 

What that •uggasts to me is, in odditicn to 
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the literal application to baseball, Mr. Aaron was saying 

if you want to succeed, stay focused. Don't lose sight of 

what is important in your experience and, as it applies to 

4 this case, I'm suggesting that many things are a 111atter of 

5 perspective. The defense says one perspective, the 

6 prosecution another, and, as the jury, you are in the 

7 middle and you would have a s0111ewhat different perspective, 

8 but it is important, ae the triers of fact, to stay focused 

9 on the things which are truly important about this case, 

10 not to become distracted, not to lose your concentration or 

11 your resolve to do what is proper. 

12 Well, despite the disclaimer of Mr. Ewing 

13 this morning and he eaid we're not asking you to forget 

14 her, we have never, never asked you to forget Deborah 

15 Panos. Mr. Ewing eaid later, in his argument this morning, 

16 he said it twice during his opening statement comm.encing 

17 the penalty hearing proceedings, "The pena.lty phaaa is 

18 about James Chappell." I said he mentioned that twice as 

19 though he wanted to make the point. A little later, he 

20 said, and I quote, "'l'he penalty hea:ring ill no longer about 

21 Deborah Panos. It is about James Chappell." Well, in 

22 part, it's about James Chappell, but if Mr. Ewing meant to 

23 say that you eliminate during this sentencing phase all 

24 consideration of the pereon whose l~i~ was taken, that is 

25 ridiculous, with due respect, Mr. Ewing. 
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I recall from this evidence a mother and 

grandmother testifying about an event occurring in har life 

that forever changed her mortal life on August the 31st, 

1995. I remember the testimony of Norma Penfield that she 

got a fateful telephone call and a strange man's voice came 

on the talaphone and he uttered the words no aether ever 

wants to hear, "Dabbia is dead," 

Now, when you fix a punishment for the worst 

of the worst, a premeditated killer, someone who has been 

conviated of murder of the first de9ree, surely, it ia of 

paramount importance to try to determine the degree, the 

scope of moral culpability. You must determine what the 

lo&& is, what the impact has been upon the friends and 

family of this person whose life was prematurely taken. 

That's part of the calculous of imposing sentence, to 

detennine the degree of evil. Just hew baa is this? Just 

how much has it damaged not only the life of the victim, 

who waB taken from her little children, but how much has it 

effected those who loved her, those who respected her, 

thoae who knew she was intelligent, she was hard working, 

she was generous, she made :many friends, she was a devoted 

mother of three children, she loved to be with her parents, 

her aunts, her uncles, her nieces, and nephews on special 

occasionG- She was a very nice lady, a good person, a 

loving, decent human being. Now, there's no requirement in 
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this state that this had to be a mass murder to make it 

appropriate fer a death sentence. It's important to 

consider this was a good, decent human being and it ia a 

terrible injusticet it is a hideous evil that she has been 

murdered. 

Now I recall the testimony 0£ the aunt, 

Carol Moneon, and the words were echoed also by Debbie's 

mother, Norma Penfield. They were talking abcut the impact 

upon the children of tender years when they lose their 

mother and little Chantell, only three years old when this 

happened, four yeat'B old now, made the statement," I want 

to die and go to heaven so I can see my mommy,M and the 

defense tells you that the penalty hearing ie only about 

Jrunee Chappell. 

Defense, and I refer now to my esteemed 

colleague, Mr. Brooka, tells you to be thoughtful, well 

reasoned, conscientious, and objecti~e and, yet, he chose, 

in his brief remarks yesterday afternoon, to ignore all 

semblance of respect and instead, he chose to indulge in 

attllcking personalities by accusing the State of a, ••rabid 

dog style of prosecution." Well, I hadn't spoken yet. He 

isn't a mind reader. So I JllUSt conclude, by inference, Mr. 

Brooks was saying my colleague, Abbi Silver, is a rabid 

dog, That's offensive. She is• dedic~ted, skillful 

professional, who articulated tremendously well the 
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legitimate position of the prosecution in this case and 

whiie Mr. Brooks says that he wants you to be thonghtful 

and well reasoned, what M:r. Brooks really wan~s you to do 

is to lose your focus, to take your eyes off of the ball 

and become distracted, when he accuses the ~rosecution of 

having an ulte~ior moti?e. 

The philoeopher Goethe is quoted as saying, 

and I adopt his remarks for the remainder of my argument, 

"I can p.romise you to be sincere, but not itnpartial." Ms. 

Silver and myHelf are not impartial on the subject of 

murder of the first degree. The murder of this young woman 

wae hideous, There weren't any eyewitnesses left, so no 

one knows fo~ sure the exact sequence of events. You heard 

the account of the defendant, but he surely has an intarest 

when this case occurs. When he cries, we must all wonder 

why does he cry? Whan he is tearful and convinces a 

clinical psychologist, Dr. Btcoff, months after he's been 

arrested, after the preliminary hearing, after he"s heard 

witnesses testify about the State's case; when he does this 

after he's been bound over, after the Information charging 

him with murder and robbery and burglary have been filed, 

and after the State•s. filing of its Notice of Intent to 

Seek the Death Penalty, and after all this, the defendant 

speaks with a psychologist. Be aurely most know the intent 

to call to the witness stand if he me.kes the right 
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impression. Now are those remarks inherently suspect? Is 

there an attitude, something tc be gained by the defendant 

and Dr. Etcoff acknowledged if he was being given 

4 inaccurate information, his whole premise fails because if 

5 the defendant was being untruthful, if he wasn't explaining 

6 this how it happened, then his opinions are invalid. 

7 Was the defendant credible in June when he 

8 was interviewed by the doctor? Is he credible now on the 

9 witness stand? Debbie Panos is beyond our jurisdiction. 

10 We can't &ubpoena her. She is not subject to service of 

11 process. She can't be brought into the courtroom to 

12 explain how this occurred from her perspective. So the 

13 defendant tells us he got there after she arrived, 

14 Well, having said, as I did, that no one 

15 knows, can know for sure because there are no surviving eye 

16 witnesses except the killer, who ha6 an interest in what 

17 happens to him in this case. Let me refer you to a couple 

18 of things the defendant said on the witness stand and a 

19 number of other factors about the case that offer a rather 

20 cQnvinoing argument that she didn't gat there firet, he got 

21 there first, and that he got there and, of course, that's 

22 when he could ransack the trailer, look for anything he 

23 wanted. That"s when he could locate the knife and have 

24 that ready. That•a when he ~ould lay in wait for her. 

35 What did he ~ay he did from the witness 
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stand when he was excused by the law enforcement officer we 

now know to be Bill Duffy of Pa~cle & Probation? Be said 

he took a hike down Bonania to Nellis and Lamb and he said 

he went to the projects, said he stayed there for awhile, 

borrowed a bicycle. He claims he watched a couple of other 

people drink a couple of beers and then he went over to 839 

North Lamb, space 125 and he says he didn't knock; didn't 

do the logical thing, didn't knock, didn't even go up and 

try the door. That's what he claims. That is what he is 

asking you to accept to see if the door was opened. 

Instead, he ~ent directly to a window and he gave a 

justification for that.· Mr. Chappell eaid1 "I bad just 

called two times." Didn't he say that from the witnesa 

stand? nr had juat called two ti.mes and nobody answered 

the phone." Just called and where are the projects? Where 

i5 thia Vera Johnson apartment complex from the crime 

scene? A couple of blocks away. How long did it take to 

get there? Minutes. 

Then a little later, he was asked, "Why 

didn"t you knock? I didn't knock becauae nobody answered 

the phone when I called." Well, if she had just been 

called and she wasn't there to answer and that's his 

testimony, why are we to accept that she was there when he 

got QVer after he had ridden the bicycle the several blocks 

to her place7 Well, ladies and gentlemen, I submit the far 
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more reasonable inference in this case is that he did knock 

to make ahe wasn't there, but he waa real sure she wasn"t 

anyway beeauae he had just barely telephoned. He 

telephoned her from Duffy's office and she wasn't there and 

he telephoned again from the projects and she wasn't there 

and he went over and knocked and she didn't answer because 

she wasn't there and he went in through the window because 

he wanted to get in and he went in through the window he 

did that goes through the master bedroom because he 

couldn't without more effort that he wanted to employ get 

the others opened and we know that to be true because the 

officers tried from the Metropolitan Police Department and 

they ended up going in through the suie window he went in 

through, 

Now, there's another reason, He had to 

remove the screen, didn't he. ~here are photographs that 

show that it was inside. Well, if this was all something 

that was reasonable, if there was no malice involved, why 

did he put the screen inside? This is the window right out 

next to the driveway. When she would pull up, she'd have 

to see it, but if he puts the screen inside instead of 

outside the house, Debbie, when she arrives, has no way of 

knowing he is inside the house. And so he put it inside 

and he put his foot on it And he bent it in going to the 

house and then he prepared for murder, for premeditated 
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murder of the fir~t de9ree. 

We know that for months he had indulged in 

thoughts of murder. You heard Dina Freeman testify. I'm 

not going to repeat the threat5 that she described. Lisa 

Du~an testified about threats that she heard and most 

recently and eomething which is truly significant in this 

case is what happened the day before Debbie was murdered. 

She had been given something by the City of Las Vegas. 

That something was a subpoena and that subpoena didn't just 

invite her to go somewhere. It commanded her to appear at 

the Municipal Court on August the 30th for the purpose of 

giving testimony in the matter of the City of Las Vegas 

versus James Chappell and the charge was domestic violenee 

and the woman who h•dn't bothered in January, 1995 to 

follow-up on the temporary protective order and so it 

expired, elected to follow-up this time. And the woman the 

defendant had already been calling vile names in hia letter 

I supposed to him added insult to injury because she 

responded to the subpoena, she came to court, and was there 

prepared to testify against him and Michell• Mancha and 

Lisa Duran both mentioned that they had seen the subpoena 

at work, they both said that Debbie left work early that 

day, and Michelle Mancha said she talked with Debbie over 

the telephone. She estimated at perhaps 2 or i;30 in the 

afternoon still on the ,ame day and Debbie said she had 
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been to court, explained that the judge assured her that 

the defendant was going to an in-patient drug program, that 

he wouldn't be released for three months, and remember how 

Michelle eaid that made everyone feel a lot better. We 

felt a safety zone and then Debbie explained that &he had 

talked with the defendant and, although Michelle got the 

idea it was right in courtJ it wasn't clear to her whether 

it ~aa during the time that she was at the courthouse, the 

municipal courthouse or whether it was after and it was a 

visit with the defendant at the jail, but words were 

exchanged and according to what the victim related to 

Michelle Mancha, she had told the defendant that it was 

over. 

Now, the defense said there wasn't any 

evidence at all that bears on the aggravating 

circuBstancee, but I submit if, in fact, the victim in thie 

case, within 24 hours of her murder, nulllber one, appeared 

in court to teatify against the defendant and that resulted 

in hie guilty plea to domestic battery of her, and if she 

had the occasion and, in fact, used it to tell him ~hat the 

relationship was finished, does that have a bearing on 

whether a burglary occur~ed? noes that have a bearing on 

whether he committed robbery and d~es that have a bearing, 

despite their prior acts through the years of consensual 

sext does that have a beAring on whether she said yes or no 
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or whether she had any choice to respond at all to sexual 

penetration? Did the defendant have a response to the 

statement by the victim that their relationship was done, 

finished, over? Michelle Mancha testifies that her 

co-worker and friend Deborah Panos told her that the 

defendant then said that he was going to kill her, Well, 

that's a statement that certainly has sinister implications 

when we realize it was mad less than 24 hours before he did 

kill her. Those types of statements are self prophesies 

and they can be selfRfulfilled, as indeed that one was by 

the defendant. 

The defense refers to a ~abid dog style of 

p~osecution, and, yet, Mr, Brooks yesterday conceded, as 

did Mr. Ewing this morning, that the defandant is a 

worthless SOB, a thief, and a wife beater. Those were Mr, 

Brooke' words yesterday afternoon, Of course, Mr. Brooks, 

he is isn't a wife beater, now is he? Be never married the 

wmnan. We ma.de that point already. She never wore a 

wedding band around her finger. Be didn't beat a wife. He 

beat someone who was a free woman, free to go anywhere and 

be with anyone she chose and, perhaps, inadvertently in 

listing the negative descriptions of the defendant, Mr. 

Brooke forgot to mention in addition to being a worthless 

SOB and a thief and a woman beater, he's a murderer. 

The defense said -- Mr. Brooks said that 
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James Chappell will never be reasoned. Well, i• murder 

reasoned? Any murder? Is anyone ever justified in 

committing premeditated murder of the first degree? The 

fac~ is murder, by its definition, is unreasonable. So 

that doesn't somehow distinguish Mr. Chappell because he 

~ill never be well reasoned. Murder is irrational, it's 

illogical, it is stupid. It doeon't make sense and, yet, 

fortunately, we don't have a defense either during the 

guilt or at sentencing in this state called felony stupid. 

Now, the defense says James Chappell will 

never be deliberate in what he does. Wrong. Wrong. Be 

said on August the 30th he was going to kill her and, as 

soon as he waa released, even though he had promised, 

begged for the opportunity to go to EOB to personally 

petition to get admitted to their drug rehabilitation 

program, he didn't go to EOB, he didn't go to D Street and 

Washington. Be went in the opposite direction. Now was 

that deliberate? Was he making choices? You know the 

psychologist comes in to this courtroom and it is months 

after the crime has occurred. He doesn't know the 

principles in this case. He spent two hours with this guy 

and he reads his books and he gi~es his testa and then he 

forms certain conclusions. Was this defendant being a free 

agent when be walked out of Duffy"s office and turned 

right, not left? Waa he being deliberate when he went to 
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the trailer and he broke in and then he ransacked and then 

he confronted her? 

I want to talk about something called shared 

responsibility. My partner, Ms. Silver, ~ery ably has 

discussed in her argument the primary purposes for the 

itnpoeition of penalty for first degree murder. Punishm.ent 

is a prima.-y purpose. It is legitimate for society, in 

some way, to vent its sentience of moral out~age, at 

conduct which is unconscionable, which is totally 

unacceptable. 

My partner also mentioned deterrence. 

There's nothing illegitimate about deterrence as a factor 

to be considered. Ycu have it in this case, as the ladies 

and gentlemen of this jury, within your power to guarantee 

by the punishment you impose that Mr. Chappell never makes 

another woman a corpse. You can certainly deter him and 

you have it within yaur power to send a message today out 

into this community, which is we do not tolerate those who 

have a history of domestic violence, who will let it 

accelerate and become a murderer and you can tell the other 

would be James Chappells what the consequence is when you 

engage in that type of action. That's a legitimate 

position to take and, yet, the defense says the prosecution 

wants you to hate. They want you to stoop way down and H~. 

Brooks yesterday said the State asks you to act in the w.y 
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he acted. Asinine. 

Mr. Brooke, with due respect, sir, imposing 

a death sentence within the criminal justice system is not 

4 the equivalent of battering a woman into submission and of 

5 ~urdering her with a knife, but Mr. Brooks continues, "You 

6 are not cocaine addicts, you are not thieves, you are not 

7 to descend to the level of James Chappell,n in what 

8 basically he is saying, once again, is forget about the 

9 ball, don't focus and Mr. Brooke wants on your shoulders, 

10 each of you, guilt. He want& you to feel guilty and 

ll invites you to go on that trip and so I want to talk for 

12 just a moment about shared responsibility. 

13 Long before you were summoned by the jury 

14 commis• ioner to come to the courthouse, long bafore you 

15 were selected on this case certain decisions were made 

16 about the criminal justice system and a legislature decided 

17 that we would have capital punishment in thie state. The 

18 legislatu.e made a policy judgment and we all elect our 

19 legislators and, hopefully, what they decide represents the 

20 consensus of a society and there are aggravating 

21 circwnstancee that apply tc this case and you weren't 

22 involved in the statute making process. So if there is 

23 guilt, at least let it be shared by the legislatu.e, which 

24 adopted the statutory scheme which applies to the case of 

25 State of Nevada versus James Chappell. 
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Well, long before you got involved, long 

before the office of the dist~ict attorney got involved, 

the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department investigated 

this case, and the primary officers who were assisted by 

crime lab specialists, patrol officers, and many other 

people, were the homicide detectives, Detectives Ramos and 

Vaccaro, and, surely, thay have some responsibility in what 

occurs here. They interviewed the witnesses, they 

investigated the case, they submitted the case ~o ~he 

Office of the District Attorney, and then the D.A."s office 

made certain choices. A public agency and the police 

department and the legislature and the Office of the 

District Attorney all share in the responsibility that this 

is before you today. All share in the responsibility of 

imposing a severe punishment. 

When you retire to deliberate and you select 

whatever p~nisbment you deem to be appropriate, it's not 

going to be an individual thing, it's going to be an 

experience, a deciGion, a judgment shared by 12. It is 

ridiculous, however, to attempt to equate what you will do 

under the Court's legal Instructions, having been drafted 

into jury service, not having any axe to grind, no interest 

in this case to suggest that somehow the blood this man has 

on his hands is the equivalent of what you will do. Mr. 

Brooka, Mr, Ewing is not thooghtful, that ar9wnent is not 
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objective, it's not reasoned. 

Now the State, as you know, has alleged a 

total of four aggravating circumstances. As my partner 

expressed yeeterdayt murder is the ultimate act of 

selfishness. Mr. Chappell, ae he had said to Lisa Duran, 

within that several month time span after Memorial Day 

Weekend," If I can't ha'7e her, nobody can," was aimply 

lived out in all of its brutal details August the 31st. 

Harry Emerson Fosdick once said, •The person completely 

wrapped up in himself makes a SDlall package," and a 

murderer, a thief, eomeone who would steal not only from 

his girlfriend, but from his children food, shoes, jackets, 

diapers, toys is a selfish person. Be is a small package, 

he is someone who has forfeited the right to live because 

his conduct cannot, will not be condoned not by decent 

minded persone. 

This is a case where a burglary occurred in 

connection with the murder. You may ask rhetoriea1ly, 

well, why does burglary aggr&vate? Perhaps you haven't 

asked that rhetoric. My thought iu the legislature niade a 

judgment because things are worse when they happen in 

somebody's home. Debbie Panos had worked hard for this 

trailer where she lived, 839 North Lalnb, ep4ce 125, and her 

mother, who came up with the down payment to get her into 

the trailer, made a sacrifice, but she had been there for 
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six or eight or nine months; it would have apparently been 

a year in early October and this defendant invaded her 

home, her refuge, her sanctuary, her special place where~ 

except for his repeated intrusions, she should have found 

safety. 

Well, in the view of this evidence and from 

the perspective of the prosecution and I subait the 

legislature, when you do that, when you cODlllllt & burglary, 

particularly when you kill someone in their home, you have 

made it one of the worst of tha worst. Now to add insuit 

to injury, he also stole from her after he killed her, he 

stole from her and the legislature made a judglll8nt about 

robbery because robbery is an inherently dangerous crime 

because it very often involves force and violence and fe~r 

of injury and so the legislature said you have a strict 

liability if you commit that crime and someone dies, then 

you must know, first, you are guilty of murder of the first 

degr•e and, second, you must knew we say that aggravates 

the murder. 

Well, there are certainly two aggravating 

circumstances already found by you in your previous 

deliberation, The third circumstance ia rape, murder. 

Instruction 18 defines sexual penetration. It says, 

"Sexual penetration means cunnilingus, fellatio or any 

intrusion, however slight, of any part of a person's body 
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or any object :manipulated or inserted by a person into the 

genital or anul opening• of the body of another including 

sexual intercourse," and then the Court says," Sexual 

intercourse iB the placing of the penia of the perpetrator 

into the ~agina of the victim.fl 

Mr. Ewing says the State asks you to 

speculate with absolutely no corroboration and, l~dies and 

gentlemen, I say to the contrary, agreeing wholeheartedly 

with the remarks already made by my co-counsel, this case 

to almost an absolute certainty, when just and reasonable 

inferences are ch-awn from the totality of the evidence, 

proves that this had to have been a sexual a•sault. For 

the victim.told her friend Michelle Mancha, during the 

telephone conversation the day before, that she had told 

him no and if she said no, it's o~er, it'a finished on the 

30th, why is it reasonable that she would suddenly have 

dona a hundred eighty degree turn and helped him into her 

trailer? It's juGt absurd when you put it in the 

chronology of what was happening because this is the woman 

who was accompanied frQJD. work on the 31st, the day she was 

to be killed, Michael Pollard. She went to his residence, 

dropped him off, and then went on ho~e and to his surprise, 

she showed back up just a few minutes later. This is the 

woman who apparently had a1ready received the telephone 

message that Hr. Chappell made from Bill Duffy's office and 
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1 she had learned, to her surprise, that he was going to be 

2 releaeed. 

3 So how did Pollard describe her when she got 

4 back to his residence? He aaid she was curled up like a 

5 ball on the sofa crying and shivering and shaking. She was 

6 so afraid of this defendant and the defense is saying that 

7 it's specnlati~n in view of the fact that she told a friend 

8 the day before that it was over and that he replied he waa 

9 going to kill her and when you understand that after his 

10 release, within two hours, he had killed her. Well, surely 

11 if she was saying no on the 30th, she was saying nor if it 

12 was within her physical capacity to do so. She was saying 

13 no on the 31st. 

14 The Court in Instruction 19 explains 

15 something helpful, "Physical. force is not a nece•sary 

16 element in the commission of sexual assault. The issue is 

17 not whether the victim was physically forced to engage in a 

18 sexual aeeault, but whether the act was committed without 

1~ her consent. A victim of a sexual aasault is not required 

20 to do more than her age, strength, surrounding facts and 

21 attending circumstances make it reasonable for her to do to 

22 111,1mifeat her opposition." 

23 Well, ladies and gentlemen, this is a woman 

24 who was battered, been, by the concession of the defendant, 

25 a woman that he grabbed around the throat with his right 
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1 hand. This is a woman he need a knife on. Thie is a woman 

2 whose ~eeidence he raneackad. This is a crime scene where, 

3 as the point of entry, he didn't use the door, neither the 

4 front door or the back door. Be came in through the window 

5 forcing his way inside and the defense says there's no 

6 evidance that he sexually assaulted her. Well, he eaid he 

7 never ejaculated, but that is rebutted. by the DNA 

8 evidence. One in 14 billion in describing the genetic 

g profile~ I submit to you that the State bae proven beyond 

10 a reasonable doubt that he not only murdered her, he raped 

11 her. He not only murdered her, he robbed her. Be not only 

12 connitted murder, he broke and entered and he committed 

13 burglary and the defense says it's all the same course of 

14 conduct. If the legislature wanted to make those types of 

15 distinctions, they would have done so and your obligation, 

16 as objectively and as dispassionately as you can, is to 

17 apply the law to the evidence in this case. That's all we 

18 can ask. 

19 The State's fouxth aggravating circumstance 

20 is that this murder involved torture or depravity of mind. 

21 Instruction No. 20 describes torture. My partner ably 

22 explain~d to you the elements of murder by torture 

23 yesterday. I'm not going to repeat what she said. 

24 Instead, I want to emphasi2e depravity of mind. Thie 

25 aggravating circumstance is couched in disjunctive 
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language. It doesn't necessarily require torture. It eays 

murde~ involving torture or depravity of mind. Now, you 

think back about the circumstances of this case, is this a 

depraved murder? Is this depravity when the individual who 

kills is writing lettera hurling defamatory adjectivee at 

the woman who was supposedly the love cf his life? 

The Court defines depravity of mind in 

Instruction 21 and I commend that to your attention when 

you deliberate. "The condition of mind described as 

depravity of mind is characterized by an inherent 

deficiency of moral sense and rectitude. It consists of 

evil, corrupt, and perverted intent which is devoid of 

regard for human dignity and which is indifferent to human 

life." Weren't the actions of Mr. Chappe11 on the day of 

this murder devoid of ~egard for human dignity? Didn"t he 

act in a way totally indifferent to the sanctity of human 

life? 

The Court concludes at line six and seven, 

"To find an aggravating circumstance based on depravity of 

mind, you muet additionally find that there was torture," 

that's one of the ways to get there or there's the 

disjunctive again, "torture or other serious and depraved 

physioal abuse beycnd the act of killing itself.~ Now the 

defense says the only evidence we have in this case is the 

testimony of Dr. G~een. Of course, they were focusing 
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primarily upon the torture argument and itts quite true Dr. 

Graen, the Chief Medical Examiner in Clark County, 

explained that, in his opinion, all of tha wounds inflicted 

on this victim were contemporaneous. Well, Dr. Green 

didn't tell us what contemporaneous means except to say 

they all happened at about the same time. Be doesn't know 

what the sequence of these lethal blows happened to be any 

more than Dr. Btcoff. Dr. Green is not an eye witness. He 

didn't see this as it happened and what he's, basically, 

saying is that the knife wounds happened at about the same 

time, Be wouldn't know if there was a five minute 

interval. He couldn't tell that from his medical 

findings. He wouldn't know if there was a fifteen minute 

interval. Re can say from the evidenee of the battering, 

the pommeling to the head and face and body and arms of 

this victim, that those acts were before she died. The 

fact that she haa defensive wounds, the bruises on her a:cma 

sugge•ts that ehe was trying to cover herself up. 

Well, that's Dr. Green, tha expert that he 

is, is sill subject to limitations. What he did say is 

that this woman died of JDUltiple stab wounds and that"s the 

point I wish to JllB.ke regarding depravity of mind because 

the requirement is if the action is depraved, that in order 

to find it, you must additionally find that thare was 

torture or other serious and depraved pnysical abuse beyond 
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l the act of killing herself. Now, as horrendous as 13 stab 

2 wounds are, they didn't all kill her. My partner yesterday 

3 referred to the wound close to the naval. It was 

4 gratuitous, that was depraved. There's a stab wound down 

5 near her pubic area. Why does he stab her there? Do we 

6 get some insight from the fact that a few weeks ago, he had 

7 been writing from the jail, "You're going to hell, you are 

8 a slut, you are a whore, you are a stupid bitch, 0 and he 

9 stabs her near her pubic area. That didn•t kill her. 

10 So are those acts of serious and depraved 

11 physical abuse beyond the act of killing itself and when 

12 the defendant says that things weren't right, he says when 

13 they were having consensual sex and the prosecution alleges 

14 when he was raping her, he says he jumped up and ehe was 

15 still laying down and he grabbed her with his right hand 

16 around the neck, Be says, "No, I wasn't cutting off her 

17 air supply, I wasn't choking her, No, it wasn't anything 

1B like that,fl but he demonstrated how he grabbed her. Is 

19 that a serious and depraved act of physical abuse beyond 

20 the act of killing itself and he battered her. My partner 

21 counted 12. I don't know if it was six or 10 or 12 o~ 30 

22 timea. She bears the scrapes and bruisaa which ahow the 

23 number of times the fists of this defendant impacted her 

24 body. That didn't kill her, though. She died of stab 

25 wounds and so those are serious and depraved acts of 
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physical abuse beyond the act of killing itself and this 

was a depraved murder. 

The defense has talked about mitigation. 

Ladies and gentlemen, to say that somebody who is now 26 

going on 27 and when he committed these depraved acts was 

25 years, going on 26, that somehow because of his youth, 

that is a ndtigating circumstance that outweighs his 

heinous violent acts is an absurd position to take. 

The defense says that he has a lack of 

eignificant criminal hiutory. Ladies and gentlemen, the 

guy that got hit in the back with his brick, Mr. Gay, from 

Lansing, Michigan might have something to say about that 

defense argument. The stores who have been repeatedly 

victimized by his efforts to satisfy his cocaine habit 

might disagree. The Tucson Police Department that had to 

respond repeatedly to the allegations of domestic violence 

might diaagraa and certainly the woma.n whose nose was 

broken, who was threatened with a knife to her throat on 

June the let, Dabbie Panos might beg to disagree and in all 

likelihood, these persons would allege that the man who was 

being supervised on probation when he committed this cr~me 

for a gross misdemeanor; in faot, was the person who had a 

very significant criminal history. 

Because the defendant takes the witness 

stand and cries, because he•a tearful when interviewed by 
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1 the defenae psychologist, does that maan he's ~emorseful? 
2 Well, even Dr. Etooff said this is a very angry person and 
3 when he began to explain what happened, I could see how 
4 close to the surface the anger was and the prosecution 
5 submits the remorse is phony. It's all an effort simply to 
6 mitigate the punishment. It's an effort to diffuse his 
7 responsibility. 1he defense says he fully accepts 
8 responsib1lity. Not if he lies about what he did. Not if 
9 he was there, laid around and waited, not if he raped her. 

10 They say it'& mitigation that he can adapt to prison life 
ll and then they talk about his childhood. 

12 Well, ladies and gentlemen, you'll be 
13 thankful to know I'm almost done, There are two operative 
14 words at this stage of the proceedings and in view of the 
15 position taken by Dr. Etcoff, whose opinions are valid only 
16 if what the defendant told him is valid, and in view of the 
17 argu.D1ents made by the defense, these words are particularly 
18 appropriate. The words are ~ccountability and coI!llllitment. 
19 Shakespeare in the play Julius Caesar hau one of his 
20 characters make a statement that I'm very fond of, The 
21 statement is, "The fault, dear Brutus, is not in our stars, 
22 it is in ou:rsebres." Mr • .lames Chappell, the fault does 
23 not lie in your stars nor, to borrow a phrase from Flip 
24 Wilson, "Did the devil make you do it?" Ralph Waldo 
25 Emerson said, "Things are in the saddle and ride mankind," 
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1 and crack cocaine rides hard and with a heavy spur and he 
2 was an addict, that's for sure, ~nd he had a problem, but 
3 it is not an excuse, even though criminals repeatedly t~y 
4 to make it an excuse, because nobody made him use crack 
5 cocaine. Crack didn't make you do it, Mr. Chappell. Drugs 
6 don't kill, people kill. 

7 lt wasn't the fault of Debbie Panos. She 
8 didn't make James Chappell do it. Be 3ou9ht her out, he 
9 caIUe to her home, he was tha aggressor, she denied his 

10 accusations, she did nothing to provoke him into burglary 
11 and robbery and rape and murder. It isn't even the fault 
12 of the knifet 68-A-1. Without Mr. Chappell, the knife 
13 could never have got outside of the drawer in the kitchen. 
14 It ia an aminate object, it was the inat~ument used by him 
15 to destroy her life, but he is the one who picked it up. 
16 Be made the series of choices, His hand grasped the knife, 
17 his hand, his arm plunged the cold steel of the knife 
18 repeatedly into her neck and her chest and other parts of 
19 her body. 

20 rt isn't the fault of EOB. When they 
21 interviewed him the first time, he didn't have the attitude 
22 of someone who was ready to change his life-style, to g~ve 
23 up dope. It's not the fault of William Moore, the 
24 probation offi~er from Mi~higan, who did his best with this 
25 defendant and with his family and it isn't the fault of 
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1 grandmother Clara Axam. She undoubtedly did her best under 
2 the circumstances with the defendant James Chappell. It's 
3 not the fault of his Aunt Sharon Axam. This defendant made 
4 the choice. He was the free agent who turned right down 
5 Bonanza and didn't go over to EOB. It isn't the fault of 
6 the absentee father. It's not the fault of the police in 
7 this caae. It ien•t the fault of the witnesses, not the 
8 fault of the Office of the District Attorney, it's not the 
9 fault of Judge Maupin, He has a hefty case calendar, Be 

10 didn't need the Chappell case. No one made James Chappell 
11 do what he did, 

12 Mr. Jaines Chappell, the fault lies in you 
13 and if the criminal justice system means anything, it means 
14 that when persons commit serious crimes of violence, they 
15 tnust be held personably accountable. And you"ve already 
16 held him accountable to some extent, but now it's judgment 
17 day for Jame~ Chappell and the issue now becomes whether 
18 you, as the ladies and gentlemen of this jury, po~eess the 
19 resolve, the determination, the courage, the conviction~ 
20 the intestinal fortitude, the sense of commitment to do 
21 your le9al duty. 

22 What about punishment? How does Mr. 
23 Chappell feel? He testified about life with the 
24 possibility of pa.role. "I would be honored," the murderer 
25 would be honored to have life with parole. "I would be 
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1 honored to be able to get out some time in my life." Don't 
2 honor hbn, don't honor the depraved killer of Deborah 
3 Panos. Don't honor someone who batters the head and face 
4 and arma of a helplaHe mother 0£ three children, who simply 
5 lays on the floor and covers her face inBide her home. 
6 Don't honor someone who then culminates his murder, his 
7 assault by repeatedly plunging a knife into his victim's 
8 neck and chest and abdomen and pubic area. Those actions 
9 make James Chappell an object of derision, not aomeone 

10 worthy of the badge of honor of life with the poaeibility 
11 of parole. 

12 The grandmother quoted JP, the oldQSt child, 
13 ~s saying about his father, "Be's mean and he's in jail," 
14 and ehe also described why she -- I'm talking about Norma 
15 Jean Penfield, her greqtest fear, that after she dies, thia 
16 defendant gets out to further torment her grandchildren and 
17 I"m asking you, I'm imploring you, as the ladles and 
18 gentlemen of this jury, to grant a grandmother peace of 
19 mind. 

20 Remember the words of the defendant, Exhibit 
21 75, the words of someone ~ho i6 filled with the spirit of 
22 vengeance and hatred, adding insult to injury. Well, a 
23 wise man many years ago said, "The world once in a broad 
24 flies irrevocably." A fist, a. steak knife, these 

25 instruments once sent abroad flied irrevocably. Ask the 
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l loved ones and friends of Deborah Panos if these aren•t 

2 irrevocable. Ladies and gentlemen, I ask you, on behalf of 

3 the State of Ne~ada, specifically on behalf of my parlnAr 

4 Abbi Silver, in this case to impose a sentence which is 

5 just au severe, just as deadly, just as final, just as 

6 irrevocable as the fists and knife of Jam.es Chappell. 

7 Deborah Panos had no due process of law, no 

8 fine lawyers urging the defendant to back off, no right of 

9 allocution, no jury, no eafety net, no domestic violence 

10 hotline. With the most profound disrespect for one who 

11 would steal food and clothes and toys from his children and 

12 from the so-called love of his life for crack cocaine, who 

13 then stole from these children their mother and preinaturely 

14 sent her to heaven, I add my words tc the ~orda of Debbie's 

15 aunt, Carol Monson, "Give James what he gave Debbie." r 
16 mean by that death. 

17 THE COURT: Does this matter now atand 

18 submitted? 

19 

20 

21 

MR. HARMON: Yes, your Hcnor. 

MR, EWING: Yelil, 

TBE COURT: At this time we will leave this 

22 case with the jury. I will ask the clerk to swear the 

23 officers to take charge of the jury and the alternat•a. 

24 

25 (At this time the officers were duly sworn 
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l by the clerk.) 

2 

3 THE COURT: Ladies and 9en~le1nen of the 

4 jury, if you will now accompany the officers to 

5 deliberation. First order of business is that they will 

6 take you to lunch. 

7 We will be at ease while the jury departa 

8 the confines of the courtroOlll. 

9 

10 (At this time the ju;ry left the courtroom.} 

ll 

12 THE COURT: Mr. Ewing. you have something 

13 you wish to bring to the Court•s attention at this time. 

14 ,m. EWING: Your Honor, yes. 

15 Yesterday afternoon, I made a motion for 

16 mistrial. The Court made a ~uling, but the Court allo,,ed 

17 me an opportunity to present the Court with a case £or the 

18 Court"s file relating to the motion and the validity of a 

19 mist:dal. 

20 TBB COURT: You rely Upon this ca&e in 

21 support of your argument? 

22 MR. EWING; Yes, that's correct. It's 

23 pretty much on point and I provided a copy to the 

24 prosecution. 

25 Does the Court wish to hear any more 
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1 argument on the subject? 

2 THE COURT: The Court believes that each 

3 accusation of misconduct and argument has to be considered 

4 on its special facts. The case of Lesko versus Lehman, 925 

5 F.2d 1527, in the Court's view, apply to the discrete facts 

6 of that case and is distinguishable and, therefore, makes 

7 the Casa part of this record and incorporates it as part of 

8 the defenae'a argument for mistrial. 

9 Anything further at this ti.ma? 

10 MR. HARMON: Not from the S~ate, YOUJ:" 

ll Hono.J;. 

12 MR. BWlNG: Not from the defense. 

13 THE COURTt All right, we're in recess. 

14 

15 (Off the record at 1:26 p.m.) 

16 

17 * * * * * * 
18 

19 ATTEST; FULL, TRUE ANn ACCURATE 'l'RANSCRIPT OF PROCEBDINGS. 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 
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1 MONDAY, DECEMBER 30, 1996, 9:00 A.M. 

2 THE COURT: C131341, State of Nevada versus 

3 James Montell Chappell. 

4 The defendant is present in custody 

5 represented by his counsel, State of Nevada represented by 

6 the Deputy District Attorney. Also present are 

7 representatives of the Department of Parole & Probation. 

8 This is the time set for the entry of 

9 judgment and imposition of sentence. Are the parties ready 

10 to proceed? 

MR. BROOKS: Defense is, your Honor. 11 

12 

13 

MR. LUKENS: And the State is~ your Honor. 

THE COURT: All right. 

14 First, there is a motion for stay of 

15 execution. 

16 MR. BROOKS: We can handle that after the 

17 sentencing, Judge. Whatever the Court's pleasure. 

18 THE COURT: All right. 

19 On October the 16th, 1996, the trial in this 

20 matter was concluded and the ju:ry found the defendant 

21 guilty of burglary under Count I, robbery with the use of a 

22 deadly weapon under Count II, and murder with the use of a 

23 deadly weapon under Count III and the jury also having 

24 impoaed the death penalty on Count III, we're now 

25 proceeding on the sentencing for these charges. 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

The Information in this case that generated 

these charges was filed in this matter -- it's not on the 

calendar. When was the Information filed? 

MR. BROOKS: Judge, it was filed October 

11th, 1995. 

TBE COURT: All right, the record will so 

reflect. 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

Is there any legal cause or reason why 

judgment should not be pronounced against the defendant at 

this time? 

MR. BROOKS: No, your Honor. 

THE COURT: By virtue of the jury verdicts, 

13 the defendant is hereby adjudged guilty of burglary, a 

14 felony, under Count I, robbery with use of a deadly weapon, 

15 a felony, under Count II, and Dlllrder in the first degree 

16 with the use of a deadly weapon under Count III. 

17 Does the Department have anything to add to 

18 its report? 

19 

20 

MS. LOWREY: No, your Honor. 

THE COURT: State of Nevada. 

21 MR. LUKENS: Briefly, your Honor. 

22 I would advise the Court that the victim's 

23 relatives are in court this morning and declined an 

24 opportunity to speak because they felt that they would be 

25 too emotional and would not be able to address the Court as 
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1 they felt the Court should be addressed. 

2 THE COURT: The Court has a clear 

3 recollection of the testbnony that was had during the 

4 trial. 

5 MR. LUKENS; Thank you. 

6 I simply wish to conunent regarding what this 

7 man wrote to the Court after he was convicted on October 

8 16th, 1996. 

9 Winston Churchill, when once describing one 

10 of the most ho~rendous men to have lived in our century, 

11 simply said, "He was an evil man." It would be easy to 

12 call this man some sort of monster, someone who does 

13 horrific and terrible things, but that would be to dignify 

14 him. He was not and is not that. He is a little man who 

15 is evil. He"s a little man who even, when called befo~e 

16 the Court, says of his victim, the DI.Other of his three 

17 children, he says,. "But she still made a bad choice and got 

18 caught. Yes, she thought I would let her get away with 

19 this since I let her get away with BO much in the past.~ 

20 Even today, he cannot accept and understand 

21 as a decent hwna.n being. He simply says, in his delusion 

22 when he says, "But I'm going to need to learn a little bit 

23 for when I get free, Bo what I'm going to do now is learn 

24 as much as possible. If I ever get free," and so forth. 

25 This man forfeited his right to live. The 
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1 jury imposed the sentence and the sentence is just. He 

2 deserves to die for what he did, but because often times in 

3 the nature and the course in the events, that, for some 

4 reason, the Supreme Court in the future sees some reason 

5 not to have this man forfeit his life, I'm going to ask the 

6 Court to run all of those sentences consecutive rather than 

7 concurrent as recommended by the Department of Parole & 

8 Probation. There's no question that this type of person 

9 should never, ever be a free man to walk among us or among 

10 decent people and breathe free air. Those sentences should 

11 be consecutive. 

12 I would su.btnit it. 

13 THE COURT: Thank you. 

14 Mr. Chappell, your attorney will have an 

15 opportunity to make a Qtatement on your behalf. Do you 

16 have anything to tell the Court in mitigation of punishment 

17 before sentence is pronounced? 

18 TBE DEFENDANT: Of course, your Honor. 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

First of all, I would like to thank you and 

the State for my glasses that you bought me and I wou1d 

like to send my most sincere apologies to my three lovely 

children and their beloved mother, who I tried very hard to 

love, but somewhere along the way obsession took o~er and I 

lost all my self-esteem and self control. 

I did not and could not burglarize my own 
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l children's home. I did not and could not rob my own 

2 children's mother. I did not and could not plan to kill my 

3 own children's mother or any other human being. I am not a 

4 cold blooded, violent person and my misdemeanor history 

5 with the law shows that. 

6 I have never in D1y life seen so Dlany people 

7 lie under oath in my trial. My trial was COlllpletely full 

8 of hearsay. Not one witness who testified knew me or Ms. 

9 Panos but her mother, who did a lot for us, bless her 

10 heart, and our children and, Nonna, I'm truly sorry. Your 

11 daughter was the most caring person I've ever met in my 

12 life. I learned eo much from her. She will always ~emain 

13 in my heart and soul to the very last day I am on this 

14 earth. 

15 I still can't believe all this has 

16 happened. I made a very bad mistake and I'm about to pay 

17 for it. I knew from the beginning that no one would 

18 understand me or listen to me. Maybe if I had some African 

19 Anl.ericans on my jury things would have came out different. 

20 I would like to say to James Panos, Anthony 

21 Panos, and Chantel Panos who are the real victims here and 

22 I am going to do all I can to reunite with them and my 

23 family. They knov the real James Chappell. You all 

24 don't. 

25 Once again, I would like to say I'm tru1y 
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1 aorry and I apologize to each person I have hurt and 

2 brought into this case of mine. May God forgive me and 

3 bless us all. 

4 I'm prepared to be sentenced, your Honor. 

5 THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. Chappell. 

6 Mr. Brooks, on behalf of the defendant. 

7 MR. BROOKS: Judge, first, I would like to 

8 correct a mistake in the presentence investigation report. 

9 on page five, the Department of Parole & Probation quotes 

10 the mother of the victim as stating, "I can"t forgive the 

11 courts for letting him out." I just want to tnake sure that 

12 the record is absolutely clear, I went and read the order 

13 of the courts in this case and the court specifica1ly 

14 ordered in this case that he not be released on the 

15 streets, that he be sent to a drug program by the actual 

16 personnel of the Department of Parole & Probation. The 

17 people who released him were not the courts 1n th1s case, 

18 it was the Department of Parole & Probation that released 

19 him and they didn't mention that in their report. 

20 Obviously, the jury has spoken in this case, 

21 Judge, and I will simply say this. I have known this man 
22 now for almost a year and a half. He has been one of the 

23 most consistently polite and cooperative people I've ever 

24 repreaented. Be's an absolute pleasure to work with and 

25 it's very interesting because in my dealings with James, 
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1 there's only one ti.me when he ever raises his voice and 
2 that's when he discusses Deborah Panos and her cheating on 
3 him and the experience of calling his home and talking to 
4 other men who were living in his home with his girlfriend 
5 and his children and that makes him mad, it makes him 
6 upset, and, by golly, that is exactly what caused this 
7 terrible crime to occur and I will say this. If that makes 
8 him a evil man, the fact that he was jealous 1 then I would 
9 submit that the world is full of evil people because truly 

10 this is a crime that occurred from passion, it occurred 
11 from jealousy, and I do not believe this man is an evil man 
12 and I'll submit it on that, your Bonor. 

13 THE COURT: Well, I'm afraid that I have to 
14 take the most vigorous exception to the last portion of 
15 counsel's atatement with regard to how this occurred. The 
16 circumstances that led to this tragic event were not such 
17 that -- could not be described as circUI11stances of 
18 provocation. There was absolutely no excuse, sociologic or 
19 otherwise, for this final act of defiant control over this 
20 woman. 

21 The argwnent that was made during the trial 
22 and has been made this morning that this was his home, his 
23 children, and, in fact, I believe he even said, during his 
24 testimony or even used during his testimony, the possessi~e 
25 when it came to -- the possessive tense when it came to 
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1 describing the victim in this case, his possessions. 

2 No h'lllllan being owns another huma.n being. 

3 This was not his home. She paid for it, she 1ived there. 

4 He was only an itinerant visitor to this home and he was 

5 only, at best, an itinerant father. In fact, he was not a 

6 father at ail to these children. He was simply the 

7 biological father of these children. 

B I can think of no more degrading or 

9 counterproductive or d8lllaging result than if this gentleman 

10 should ever be reunited with his children. Before he did 

11 this, I regret to say he was simply a shiftless hum. Mow 

12 he is a lmlrderer of the mother of his children. The State 

13 says that he is but a little man. I'm afraid that's not 

14 true. He's really not a man at all. 

15 In accordance with the law of the State of 

16 Nevada, in addition to a $25 adlninistrative assessment, I 

17 hereby sentence you, James Montell Chappell, as follows; 

18 Count 1 1 120 months maximum in the Nevada 

19 Department of Prisons with minimum parole eligibility to 

20 commence when 48 months has been served. 

21 Count II, 180 months in the Nevada 

22 Department of Prisons with minimum parole eligibility to 

23 commence in 72 months. Plus an equal and consecutive 

24 sentence for the use of a deadly weapon. 

25 The sentence under Count II is to be served 
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1 consecutive with that sentence under Count I. 

2 Count III, the defendant is hereby sentenced 

3 to death by statute in the Nevada Department of Prisons and 

4 he is subject to an equal and consecutive sentence for the 

5 use of a deadly weapon in the commission of that crime and 

6 that sentence is imposed accordingly and the sentence under 

7 Count III is to be served consecutively with the sentences 

8 of Count I and Count II. 

9 Credit for time served? 

10 MS. LOWREY: Hundred seventy three days. 

11 MR. BROOKS: Judge, may we approach with an 

12 order on the stay of execution? It's an automatic stay. 

13 THE COURT: Yes, I understand that. I will 

14 sign that at this time and indicate to Ms. Panos• family, 

15 my sincere sympathy and my hope that you can at least go 

16 forward with your lives and in the hopes that these three 

17 children can have the kind of life that they deserve. 

18 MR. LUKENSt I think there is statutory 

19 restitution, your Honor. 

20 THE COURT: Statutory restitution. 

21 MS. LOWREY: Your Honor, I was wrong with 

22 the credit for time served. It's a hundred ninety two 

23 days. 

24 THE COURT: Anything further from the 

25 parties at this time? 
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MR. LUKENS: Nothing by the State. 

MR. BROOKS: Nothing, Judge. Thank you. 

THE COURT: Thank you. 

* * lit * * * 

FULL, TRUE AND ACCURATE TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS. 
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• IAS VffiPS, NEVADA; TUISMY, MA!(!! B, 2007 

PROCEEDINGS 
* * * * * 

THE COORr: Welcane to l:€partm2nt 3, in 
the trial of C-131341, State of Nevada versus James 

7 Chappell. I 

The record will reflect the presence of 

Mr. Chappell with his attorneys, the sU,:te's attorneys, in 

10 the presence of oor prospective jurors. , 

11 Ladies and gentlemen fnin yesterday, 

12 welcrne back. Toank you for your patience this rroming. 

13 We're starting late because we were missing a nurrber of 

14 people that were supposed to be back at :10:30. We need a 

15 certain arrount to finish up this process, so what we had 

16 to eventually do is get 15 of yoor brethren fran 
I 

11 downstairs and bring them up. Welcrne to you all. 
I 

18 My name is Douglas Herncrn, I'm the 

19 presiding judge in District Court, Depa,;trrent 3. You all 

20 have been sul:poenaed here, as you kro.l frcrn filling out 

21 the jury questionnaire, as potential jurors in a criminal 
22 proceeding. , 

23 I'm going to tell you a 1few things and 

24 then I'm going to have the attorneys gi0, you a little bit 

25 of introduction of the case and tell yO\l about srne 

witnesses that may be called. Then we' U have scrne 

questions for you all. Then we' 11 get back to the process 
at the point we were yesterday. 

Just so you understand, _seated in front of 

me is Sharon. Sharon is my court reporter. Everything 

that I say, or the attorneys say, or an-.j questions you are 

asked to answer you give she reports. So it is going to 

be really important that if you are as~ questions that 
you speak loui enough so we can hear you, and please 

10 answer out loui. Don't just shake yoor ,head or nod yoor 

11 head. And don't say Uh-huh or Huh-uh, i:,ecause it's hard 

12 to make sure we get that right in a report. So try and 
13 answer 11yes" or "no, 11 if you could pleas~. 
14 lrldi.tionally, seat to my left is carol. 
15 Carol is the court clerk. She is going to acininister an 

16 oath to you all in a minute to we make sure you' re sl-.\'.lrn 

11 in before you answer any questions. S"";ted to her left is 
18 my law clerk, Steve, .!lo helps me out w1th a lot of legal 

19 things tha_t cane up during the trial. 

20 You have already met Leslie. Leslie is my 
21 bailiff. What you' re going to find out 1is rrost of the 

I 
22 court personnel, as well as the attorneys are under 

23 certain ethical and legal obligations not to converse with 
24 the jury, other then in here during the 'jury selection 

25 process. That means in the hallway, they're not going to 
4 
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sit around and chat you up about the basketball tournanent 

or anything like that. They are not supposed to. 
Nonetheless, there may be srne things you 

4 need to bring to the murt' s attention, so you can always 

camrunicate with Leslie. You can tell her anything you 
need to tell her; and she' 11 get it to iey attention if 

necessary. 
l'blat I'm going to do is ask you a series 

of questions, as quickly a~ I can, so we can kind of rrove 
10 forward. But before I do that, Mr. !Mens, if you'd 

11 introduce yourself and Ms. Weckerly and tell these new 

12 folks about the case and the potential witnesses. 

13 MR. Cl'IENS: Thank you, your Honor. 

14 I think for this group here it 1s a review, 
15 right. So we' 11 be testing you on it in a minute. I 

16 don't think you've heard this before, but if you have I 

11 apologize. 

18 My name is Chris o...ens. This is Pam 

19 Weckerly. We're prosecutors in the district attorney's 

20 office. We' re presenting this case for the State of 

21 Nevada. This is a incident that occurred back on August 

22 31st of 1995. It went to trial a little over a year 
23 later, and the Defendant was convicted on charges of 

24 burglary, robbery, with use of a deadly weapon, and first 

25 degree rrrurder with use of a deadly weapon. As he sits 

here in court, he's been convicted of those charges. 

The purposes of impaneling this jury is to 

make a finding of a sentence regarding the Defendant, Mr. 

4 Chappell. That's all that's going on with regard to the 

5 jury here. 
In regard to sentencing procedure, there 

are four options that will be available. These are the 

death penalty, life without the possibility of parole, 
life with the possibility of parole after 40 years, and a 

10 term of years in prison with parole eligibility after 40 

11 years. These are the options. 

12 The incident in question here was a rrrurder 

13 that occurred at the Ballerina Mobile HCIIE Park. It was 

14 at 839 North Lamb. Just a few miles to the east of here, 

15 down &lnanza. You'll here facts that it occurred in the 

16 trailer in that area, the trailer hCI!E. And also about 

11 SCIIE things that happened in regard to the jail here 

18 ctownt= and parole and probation. 
19 Now, witnesses that the State may call in 

20 this matter are as follows, I ask you to pay attention to 
21 see if you might know or have heard of any of these people 
22 for questions later: Luana Aires, Lisa DJ.ran, Tayna 
23 Hobson, Lalbnna Jackson, Claira Mc(lrire, Mike Pollard, Kim 

24 Si11l)son, Sherry &nith, Debra Turner, Laura Burfield, 

25 Greg Urnst, l:lena Frearan, Michell Munson, Carol Munson, 

5 

NoIIll'l Penfield, and Paul Widner. The vi_ctim' s name in 

this case was Detllie Panos. 
We have a coroner that .b.11 testify. He's 

actually a retired pathologist fmn the 'coroner's office, 

Dr. Green. 
Ill lice officers who may 'testify: 

Daniel Dersdorff, Darren Heiner, Art Lee, Paul Ccsuch, 

Mike Perkins, Jarres Viccarro, Alen Williams, and 
cal Winchells. 

10 Parole and probation officers: 

11 Larry Arava, Mike Crnpton, William lhlfy, Bet Henderson, 

12 Gemine Smith. And then a possible witness, a 
I 

13 psychiatrist fran the North Reno area, ~r. ThC!lll.s Vicker. 

14 I appreciate your patience with us through 

15 this process, ~ct your can:::l.or in answerilig our questions, 
16 because this is obviously an in'pJrtant ~roceeding here. 

11 THE COORr: Thank you, Mr. o...ens. 
' 18 Mr. Schieck. 

19 
I 

MR. SCHIECK: Thank you,, your Honor. 

20 Qxxl rrorning, ladies and gentlffiEil.: My name is David 

21 Schieck. I'm with the special public "\fender's office 

22 here in Clark County, Nevada. Also witli the office is 

23 Clark Patrick, who will be assisting during the trial of 

24 the case. This is James Cha;:pell, the [!efendant in the 

25 case. 

The list of witnesses we may call during 
I 

these proceedings are as follows: James Ford, Ivory 

t-1:lrrell, Ben Dean, Charles Dean, Fred ~. Willy · 
Chappell, Mira Cha;:pell-King, Kisha Axian, Dennis Reffer, 

I 
Marabel P.osalez and Howard Brocks. ' 

lldditionally, we would hear testimony fran 

Dr. Lewis Etcoff, Dr. Tod Grey, and Dr. William Dan. 

Thank you. 

'!HE COORr: All right. Ladies and 

10 gentlmen, I'll have Carol s""ar awroxiinately fifteen of 

11 you that just came. If you'd stand up ahd raise your 
12 right hand and she' 11 swear you in. 

13 THE CLERK: You do solE!llllly swear you will 

14 well truly answer such questions that may be put to you 

15 touching upon your qualifications to act as jurors in this 
16 case at issue, so help you Gcx:l. 
11 PROOPECTIVE JURORS: (Chbir of I do) . 

i 
18 THE CLERK: You may be s_eated. 
19 THE COORr: She's going _to call the role 

20 to make sure "" have fifteen of you that we believe we 
i 

21 have. When yoo hear your narre, answer wesent or here, 
22 please. 
23 

24 
25 

THE CLERK: Joanne Carm:isino. 

PROSPECTIVE JURJR: Present. 
'!HE CLERK: Gary P.osenkrantz. 

6 8 
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10 

11 

12 
13 

14 
15 
16 

17 

18 

19 

20 
21 
22 
23 
24 

25 

• PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Present. 
THE CLERK: Craig fuller. 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Present. 
THE CLERK: Lisa Bogner. 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Present. 
THE CLERK: Rene Vargas. 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Here. 
THE CLERK: D:>nna t-brella-Krupa. 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Here. 
THE CLERK: ll'lvid Mayorga. 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Here. 
THE CLERK: Jedediah Herring. 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Here. 

'lllE CLERK: Patricia t-1:>ran. 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Here. 

THE CLERK: Steven J.eavitt. 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Here. 
THE CLERK: Alan Potter. 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Present. 
THE CLERK: Karen Meza. 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Here. 
THE CLERK: Charles Brooks. 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Here. 
THE CLERK: Michael Lalasney. 
PROSPECTIVE JURCR: Here. 

'lllE CLERK: Luz Cruz. 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Here. 
'lllE COURT: Anybody's narre that is present 

.!lose narre was not called? I see no hands. Thank you 

very much. 
All right, ladies and gentleien. As I 

1 said a mirmte ago, I'm going to ask a few quick questions 
then the attorneys will get back to their questicoing of 
the prospective jurors. To those 15 of you that have just 

10 arrived, urrlerstarrl that it is my desire, as well as the 
ll attorneys' desire, to seat 14 pecple to hear this case who 

12 are as essentially as fair open-minded and neutral as 
13 possible base upon the facts of this cas. There are a 
14 nrn!Jer of questions we need to ask you al:xJut today. 
15 The questionnaires speeded this up a lot. I know it 
16 dcesn't seen like that, because you were sitting around 
11 yesterday and you're back here again today. But in a case 
18 of this nature the questionnaire has really expedited a 
19 lot of things, but obviously, base upon sare of the 
20 answers in there, there's a need to follow up and ask a 
21 few questions. 
22 Please make sure that any questions you' re 
23 asked today, you give as full, canplete, and honest 
24 answers to those questions as possible. If you hide or 
25 withhold sarething that has reference to this process and 

10 

• I 
you're ulbnB.tely selected as a jurors, ,then we find out 

about that, that could contaminate your ,verdict. l\nd 
that's bad. So, please, if you have any feeling there's a 

4 question before, you think there's sareyiing that maybe 
5 you're not sure you should tell, should :you not tell, let 
6 us know al:xJut it. There is no wrong an.si,er of anything 
7 that happens during a jury selection prdcess .. 

First off, what I .oold ;like to know is is 

there anj!xxly, of the 15 of you, who has been convicted of 
10 a felon? . I see no hands. Thank you. 
11 Any of you all not U.S .. citizens? I see 
12 no hands. Thank you. 
13 D:> any of you believe tliat you know or are 

14 acquainted with any of the attorneys here today, either 
15 Mr. CMens or Ms. Weckerly fran the DA's office or 

16 Mr. Schieck or Mr. Patrick on behalf of Mr. Chaw,11? 
17 see no hands . Thank you. 

18 Any of you believe you know or are 
19 acquainted with Mr. Chappell? I see no ·hands. Thank 

20 you. 

21 Any of you all believe 'IP" know or are 
22 acquainted with any of the witness spoken to you al:xJut by 

I 

23 Mr. CMens or Mr. Schleck? I see no hands. Thank you. 
24 Anybody believe they knciw anything about 
25 the case, other than the very short synopsis that Mr. 

11 

1 ().;ens just spoke to you about, as well ~s th synopsis that 
1 was in the jury questionnaire? I see n~ hands. Thank 

you . 
Scme of you indicated in your 

questionnaire, if I recall correctly, tikt you have been a 
I 

6 juror before. To the extent you have been a juror before, 

7 did any of you serve as a foreperson of :those juries? I 
see no hands. Thank you. 

Have you or any of your close family 
10 rrarbers ever b2en accused of a crilre? Y~s, sir? What's 
11 your narre, sir? 
12 
13 

14 
15 
16 

17 

rn When was it? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: D:>nna M:,rella-Krupa. 
THE COURT: Badge mmei, sir? 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: om., 
THE COURT: Ms. t-brella-,Krupa? 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes., 

THE COURT: Sorry. What's the crirre? 

19 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: My s,ister. She was --
10 she stole funds or rooney from the crnpany she worked fran. 

21 She was prosecuted. 
I 

12 THE COURT: Was that hear locally? 
23 
24 

PROSPECTIVE JURCR: Chirago. 

THE COURT: All right. Thank you, ma'am. 
25 Anybody else? Yes. In the front row, tan shirt. 

12 
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; • PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Badge nrnrer 050104. 

THE COORl': Mr. Rosenkrantz. 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. My brother. 
THE COURr: What was that? 
PRCSPECTIVE JUROR: Possession of 

rrarijuana with intent to sell, and netharrphetamine. 
THE COOR]': Was that locally? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: No, it was not. 
THE COORJ': Thank you. lmybody else? 

10 .Middle row, sir, in the·c1ark shirt. 
11 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: 050126. 

12 

13 

THE COORJ': Mr. Potter, what do you have? 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: My son, statutory 

14 rape. 
15 THE COORl': Okay. Was that locally? 

PRCSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 16 
11 

18 

19 

20 

THE COURr: Thank you. Back row. 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: 050130. 
THE COOR]' : Ms . Cruz . 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: It was ~ niece. 
21 Possession of controlled substance. 
22 THE COORl': Thank you. Next to you, is 
23 that Ms. Ianasney? 

24 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes, sir. 
25 PRCSPECTIVE JUROR: I have an uncle that 

10 

killed his wife. 
THE COOR]': Was he convicted of that 

charge? 

that. 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: He kill himself after 

THE COOR]': locally or elsewhere? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: california. 
THE COOR]': Thank you. lilly other hands 

up? Did I miss anybody? No. Thank you very rruch. 
Are there any of you that would tend to 

13 

11 give nore weight or credence or less weight or credence to 
12 the testinony of a police officer because that person was 
13 a police officer? Why am I not surprised to see you hand, 

14 Mr. Rosenkrantz. 
15 

16 police officer. 
11 

18 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: That's because I'm a 

THE COORJ': Are you with Metro? 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes, your Honor. 

19 THE COORJ': Thank you. lmybody else? No. 
20 Thank you. 

21 Is there anybody that believes they would 
22 not be able to follow the instructions on the law that I 
23 give you in this case, even if these instructions differ 
24 fran what your personal beliefs of what the law ought to 
25 be? 

14 

• I'm going to give you--' your job as 

jurors is to be fact finders. My job as a judge is to 
instruct you on the ai:propriate law in the State of Nevada 

4 that applies to this case. You then tai<e the facts as you 
find them, apply the law and reach what '.you believe is an 
appropriate decision. 

You have to accept the law as I tell you 
it exists, even if you disagree with it,\ if you' re going 
to be a juror. 

1 o Is there anybody that thinks the would not 
I 

11 be able to follow the law as I tell you :it exists? I see 
12 no hands. Thank you very much. 

13 There are a nrnrer of piinciples of law 
14 that pertain to every criminal proceectiri). In this 
15 proceeding one of those is the fact that the State has the 
16 burden of prcof in prcofing all of the e

1
leirents necessary 

11 for certain things in this case related ito the sentencing. 
18 Illes everybody understand that principl~? Proof beyond a 
19 reasonable doubt, does everybody agree ljith that 
20 principle? lmybody disagree with that? · I see no hands. 

21 lmybody disagree with ho
0

lding the State to 
22 their burden of prcof? I see no hands. 1 Thank you very 

23 much. 
24 All right. We will get :back to our 
25 questioning of the prospective jurors, ~ch I believe 

puts us with Ms. Ware. Whc is up in seat nrnrer one. 
Go<Xi norning, Ms. Ware. How are you? 1 

PRCSPECTIVE JUROR: Fin~. 
THE COORl': All right. :Mr. Owens. 

MR. 0/IENS: Thank you. ,Go<Xi oorning, Ms. 

15 

Ware. You had -- there was quite a few ~f these questions 
7 you noted sone sort of experience or knci-ledge about. 

One was about drugs. You had sonebody )?ti knew or were 
close to that had an experience with that? 

10 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Experience in doing it 
I 11 or selling it? 

12 

13 

I 

MR. ™ENS: Well, I 1m nqt sure. 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: What are you asking, 

14 either doing it or selling it? 
1 

15 MR. Cl-l!NS: It said whatj are your feelings 
16 and you said, did not deal with them. '!'s this sonebody 
11 you were close to? 
18 PROSPECTIVE ,JUROR: Just a friends. 

I 19 MR. 0/IENS: How long ag~was that? 
20 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Two 'years ago. 
21 MR. Cl-l!NS: So there wasp't anything about 
22 that that would affect you ability to be falr here if the 
23 subject to drugs cane up? 
24 

25 
PRCSPEC'IIVE JUROR: I guess not. 
THE COORl': Speak up. I need to be able 

16 
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; • to hear ycu. 

MR. MNS: You indicated ycu had SCllE 

oontact with a situation of cbrestic violence. Was it a 

4 frien:l or sarething? 

10 

PRQSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

MR. MNS : There was also an aunt? 
PRQSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

MR. CMENS: Was that in town? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: No. 

MR. MNS: How close were ycu to that 

11 situation when that was happening? 

12 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I was told about it. 

13 MR. MNS: Okay. So you didn't go to 

14 oourt? You didn't talk to people? 

15 

16 

PRQSPECTIVE JUROR: No. 

MR. CMENS: What were ycur feelings about 

17 that at that bire? 

18 PRQSPECTIVE JUROR: I don't know. 

19 MR. CMENS: lxlwn here you indicated 

20 that -- it said what are your feelings about this. And 

21 you wrote, eye for an eye. Are those your feelings at the 

22 bire? 

23 

24 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yeah. 

MR. CMENS: And what are your thoughts 

25 alx>ut it at this point? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: The sane. 

17 

MR. MNS: The sam,. Now, ycu ""re asked 

a nurrtier of questions alx>ut the death penalty. Yoo said 

4 that ycu ""re supportive of the death penalty? 

PRQSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

MR. CMENS: Yoo've heard alx>ut the four 

7 q,tions that ""re talk alx>ut in this case. There was 
death, life with, life without, tenn of years. On 

question 22 ycu indicated that you'd already fomed an 

10 opinion about what the results should be, right? 

11 PRQSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

12 

13 

14 

15 q,inion. 
16 

17 life --

18 

MR. M:NS: Tell us about that. 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: The opinion? 
MR. MNS: Yeah. And wily ycu had that 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: If ycu take scmelxxly' s 

MR. CMENS: Yeah. 

19 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: The wcrld is round. 

20 What goes aroun:l CCJ1Es aroun:l. Eventually it CCJ1Es 
21 back. 
22 MR. OOENS: You already fonred an opinion, 

23 the op.inion was the death sentence? 
24 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

25 MR. CMENS: When you say things CCl1E 

• aroun:l, what you' re saying seans to be that scmelxxly did 

sarething wrong sarething wrong is going to haw,n to them 

at SCllE point. 
PRQSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

MR. CMENS: You feel that that's always 

the case? 
PRQSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes,: . 

MR. CMENS: You feel with regard to this 

particular case that you've already rrade a judgrrEllt as to 

10 what the jury should do? 
11 PRQSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. : 

12 MR. CMENS : So the CCllES: around part wculd 
13 be this jury? 

14 

15 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes; 

MR. CMENS: I think you _had said that yoo 

16 didn't feel that ycu oould consider any _of the other 

17 alternatives? 

18 

19 

20 now? 

21 

PRQSPECTIVE JUROR: No. ! 

MR. MNS: Is that ycui feeling right 

PRQSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

22 

23 

MR. CMENS: You said your mind is rrade up? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

24 MR. M:NS: You said you would 
. I 

25 aut0l@t1cally vote for the death penaltt 
19 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes ,i 
MR. CMENS: So the feelipgs you express in 

your questionnaire on the subject are tt:e sam, way ycu 
4 feel now? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes.: 
MR. CMENS: You didn't have a real high 

q,inion of the syst511 -- criminal justice and the lawyers, 

like that? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: No. : 

10 MR. CMENS: A lot of peq,le have those 

11 sorts of feelings today. You' re not alcine in that. Is 

12 that sarething that wculd rrake it diffeient for you to be 

13 fair to all the parties in this case? , 

14 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes.j 

15 MR. MNS: Yoo feel li~e ycu might have 
16 feelings against an attorney and might take it oot on one 

17 side or the other? 
18 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes.• 
19 MR. CMENS: Have ycu had, an experience 
20 where you were a victim of a crirre? 
21 

22 
23 haw,ned? 
24 

25 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes., 
' MR. CMENS: How rrany tines has that 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Once. 
' MR. CMENS: How long ago, was that? 

18 20 
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4 head. 

' J 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

that? 

find the guy? 

anything. 

that? 

• PROSPECTIVE JUmR: 1994. 

MR. Oi/ENS: What kind of crlllE was that? 
PRC!3PECTIVE JUROR: I was shot in the 

MR. Oi/ENS: Was that in town here? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: No. 

MR. Oi/ENS: Was there a prosecution of 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: No. 

MR. Oi/ENS: What hafl)Oned? Did they not 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: They didn't do 

MR. Oi/ENS: They didn't do anything? 

PROSPECTIVE JUmR: Anything. 

MR. Oi/ENS: Are you still upset about 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

MR. Oi/ENS : Where was that? 

PRC!3PECTIVE JUROR: In Mexico. 

21 MR. CWENS: You feel like there is 

22 sarething they could have done and they didn't do it? 

23 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Exactly. 
24 MR. Oi/ENS: Do you feel like there is sare 

25 aninosity fran that, that you might take out on these 

people? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

MR. Oi/ENS: You really don't want to have 

4 anything to do with this? 

PROSPECTIVE JUmR: No. 

MR. Oi/ENS: Do you? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: No. 

MR. CWENS: I don't have any more 

questions, your Honor. 
10 TilE COOR!: All right. Pass or challenge 

11 for cause? 
12 MR. SCHIOCK: Just one question, your 

13 Honor. Ms. Ware, we've got all the things you wrote in 

14 your questionnaire. Do you still feel the same way after 

15 sitting here all clay yesterday and listening to 

16 everything? 

17 

18 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Like what? 

MR. SCHJEX:K: You haven't changed your 

19 mind about how you' 11 feel about the case? 
20 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: No. 

21 MR. SCHIEX:K: We would challenge for 
22 cause. Thank you, m3.'am. 
23 THE COORI': Mr. CMens, as to 

2 4 Ms . Washington. 

25 MR. CWENS: You've got friends in law 

21 

22 

• enforcarent or people that you know? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

MR. Oi/ENS: What is that relationship? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I'm ,a pretrial officer 

for the City of Las Vegas. I know several police 
officers, judges, attorneys. Just misGellaneous. I1m 

7 been doing this for 24 years, so I know !Jlllte a few 

people. 

MR. Oi/ENS: Sc you have contact with 
10 police officers all the tine? 

11 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. • 

12 MR. CWENS: Anything about your 
I 

13 relationships there that would cane ovec to this trial in 

14 a way that would create an unfair situation? 
15 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: No. ; 

16 MR. Oi/ENS: You've never had a chance to 

17 serve on a jury before? 

18 PRC!3PECTIVE JUROR: No. 

19 MR. CWENS: Have you ever beer. involved in 

20 a court process, because of your job? 

21 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. I 

22 MR. MllS: What manner ,-- witness, go in 

23 and make reports? 

24 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Welt, we -- as 

25 pretrial officers we saretlllEs have to prepare reports for 
23 

the courts, for the Judges. I have sat lin on several 

trials. I never participated in one. I; just watched what 
was going on . 

MR. MllS: Sc you prepate the reports. 

And the judge reads those and makes decisions? 

PROSPECTIVE JUmR: Yes. 

MR. Oi/ENS: This is ~t custody status? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: No. I, Our court, we do 
misdffileanors. We don't do that. 

' 10 MR. CWENS: Does it have, to do with 
11 sentencing? 
12 PROSPECTIVE JUmR: Sentencing, prepare 
13 for the work program. If they crnpleted whatever the 

14 judge told th81l they had to do, and the} didn't do it. 
15 Any those types of things. 

16 MR. MllS: You make reci:nnendations to 
17 the court in those reports? 

18 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: On al limited basis. 
19 MR. Oi/ENS: When the judge reviews those 
20 rep::Jrts or reads than are you in court sCITetirres? 
21 PROSPECTIVE JUmR: Sporkdically. Not to 
22 often. 

23 MR. CWENS: Does the judge ask you 

24 questions about th81l fran tlllE to tine? . 

25 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: They used to .. Not 
24 
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; • an)llDre. We' re not in the Regional Justice Center 

an)llDre. 

MR. MNS: You've never actually had to 
be soom and give testiJIDny in a case? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: In my own. I had a 
couple of trial matters, yeah. 

MR. MNS:' Okay .. Just traffic? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

MR. MNS: How long ago was that? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: '95, '96. 10 

11 MR. MNS: So yoo testified for yoorself? 

12 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: The officer gave rre a 
13 ticket I pled not guilty and went to trial. 
14 MR. OilENS: Your word against the police 

15 officer? 
16 PROSPECTIVE JUOOR: 1-bre or less. 

11 MR. MNS: How did that crne out. 
18 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: They took the oord of 

19 the officer. 

20 

21 

MR. OilENS: That's a tough one. 

PROSPECTIVE JUOOR: That generally 

22 happens. 

23 MR. OilENS: Anything about that experience 

24 that oould make it difficult for you to be fair here? 
25 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: No. 

MR. MNS: Did you have san, resentrrent 
against those particular police officers? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: No. 

MR. OOENS: What are your feelings about 

the death penalty? 

25 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: When I was younger I 
didn't kncM what the death penalty was, so I was against 
it. And in my later years ard life experience, I oo,, -- I 

suwart the death penalty. 
10 MR. OOENS: When did that change occur? 
11 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I oould say within the 
12 last 6 to 7 years. I'm 42 now. When I was younger I 
13 really didn't think about it. I thought everyro:ly 
1 ~ deserved a second chance in case they were convicted in 
15 tirre to fight or appeal the prooess. I don't feel that 
16 way an)llDre. 

11 MR. MNS: And the death penalty doesn't 
18 have anything to do with the appellate prooess. Everyro:ly 
19 has an ow:,rtunity to fight and to appeal everything. You 

20 understand that? 
21 
22 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 
MR. MNS: But then you started feeling 

· 23 like the death penalty might be an apprq,riate thing in 

2 4 sane cirruns tances? 
25 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

• MR. MNS: You still f~l that way now? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 
MR. MNS: When you were asked about your 

4 feelings about the death penalty, just generally here, yoo 

said I don't feel it's just. I would prefer life in 
prison over the death penalty for inmates. What did you 

7 rrean by that? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: What was that again? 

MR. cwrns: It says, I ¢n't feel it's 
10 just. I oould prefer life in prison ov.ir death for an 
11 irmte. 

12 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: · Whe!\ I wrote that I 
1 J was referring fo the fact that when you ':re convicted there 

14 are saretirres you may or may not get a chance to appeal. 
15 I was speaking of the appeal prooess, rxit realizing it's 
16 too separate issues. 

' 11 MR. MNS: I urrlerstand. Even if a 
18 person gets the death penalty, they can ~still appeal. 
19 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. , 

20 

21 

MR. MNS: You're okay 'with that? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. : 

22 MR. OilENS: Okay. That',s why you are 

23 saying you weren I t sure it was just. ~cause you are 
24 thinking maybe they just execute then arp they don't have 
25 a court review it? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

MR. MNS: Knowing that that doesn't 
happen, does that make you feel like it '.can be just under 

certain circumstances, base on the er~? 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes.: 

' MR. MNS: Then you said -- you were 

asked about an eye for an eye, a tooth for a tooth. You 
said I believe it's fair if you nurder s_orreone yoo should 
be put to death inmediately. Now that oould rrean if it's 

10 imrediate, then yoo oouldn't get an appeal. 
I 

11 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I kiri:i of contradicted 
12 myself when I was writing everything. ~ of the 
13 questions were kind of --

14 MR. MNS: They're ter~ible questions. 
15 They give us sort of a starting point to talk about. 
16 The -- when yoo said inmediately, becaus,e you kind of 
17 thought that's what the law was. But you urrlerstand that 
18 it's not? 
19 

27 

20 

i 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Exactly. 

MR. Cl'IENS: Then you asJed if you ever had 
I 

21 a different views on the death penalty. ' You said you 
22 never had a different view on the death 'penalty. But 
23 today you' re kind of explaining how you started off 
24 against it ard you changed? 

25 PRC6PECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 
26 28 
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• MR. MNS: Were yoo not thinking of that 

.hen you read the questionnaire? 
PRC6PECTIVE JUROR: No, I wasn't. 

MR. MNS: There has been an evolution in 

yoor mind? 
PRC6PECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

MR. MNS: Then yoo said, I would be 

willing to consider all fonns of punishrrent and deliberate 

on the approprLateness of the ootcare with other jurors. 

10 to yoo feel that way new, that you'd consider all. foor 

11 fonns of punishrrent? 

12 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

13 MR. M:NS: r,,ath, life with parole, life 

14 without parole: You're okay with that? 

15 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

16 MR. M:NS: And you'd select the one you 

17 feel is apprq,riate or fair in light of what happened? 

18 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes, 

19 MR. MNS: Okay. You felt like it was 

20 inportant to serve and you wanted to make a contribution 

21 to the process. 

22 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

23 MR. CMENS: You do that a lot everyday in 

24 what yoo do. You just never had the jury experience 

25 before? 

PRC6PECTIVE JUROR: They've selected rre a 

couple of tirres. I never served on the jury. 

29 

MR. MNS: In about three or foor days, 

Ms. Weckerly and myself are going to be standing up asking 

the jury to return the death penalty. to you feel that 

that's sorrething you could do? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

MR. MNS: How do yoo feel aboot the idea 

of sitting in jlKXjl!Ent on another person? 

10 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Well, I think it goes 
11 back to a noral issue. My nother always raised us to 

12 treat people the way you want to be treated. Again, as I 

13 wrote, do unto others as they would do unto you. If you 

14 rrurder sorreone or steal their car, doesn't rrean I have to 
15 steal their care. What you do, at sorre point in time, 

16 cares back to you. It doesn't always -- yoo're not always 

17 going to get away with the things yoo do. Yoo have to 

18 take sorre responsibility for the consequences of your 

19 actions, whether it's take a piece of bubble gum or 

20 whatever it may be. 
21 MR. C1/IENS: Part of that is why.,:, have 
22 juries. Particularly for the serious stuff, like this. 

23 So you feel as you sit here now, in your present state of 

24 min::!, you could be fair and inp,rtial to both sides in 

25 this case? 
30 

10 

11 

12 

alternatives? 

appropriate? 

• PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

MR. MNS: You'd consider all of the 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. : 

MR. M:NS: Pick the one that's 

PRC6PECTIVE JUROR: Yes.' 
MR. MNS: Thank you. : 

THE COURr: Pass for cause, Mr. o..ens? 

MR. MNS: Yes, yoor ~nor. 
THE COURr: Mr. Schleck: 

i MR. SCHI0:K: Thank you,: your Honor. 
13 Ms. Washington, in your ,job with pretrial, 

14 do you view yourself as an advocate on behalf of the 

15 prosecution or on behalf of the [€fendarit, or sort of a 

l 6 neutral person? 
I 

17 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: As ci neutral perscn. 

18 I can't make -- .,:, have guidelines .,:, !dve to foll&. So 

19 .,:, follow the perimeters of the guidelirjes. If there is a 

20 question as to fairness of it or the legality of it that's 

21 why .,:, have supervisors. But I feel I •n\ a neutral person, 
I 

22 making sure all the paperwork is where it needs to be. 

23 MR. SCHIFJ:K: And that you provide the 
24 court as ruch infonnation as you can so :the court can rrake 
25 the ultimate decision? 

1 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. I 

MR. SCHIEJ:K: Any particular thing that 
I 

caused you to change, what was your early view about the 

death penalty, to what it was now. Anything in 

I particular? 

6 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Just life in general. 
7 When I was yoonger I didn't really thinJi aboot it. I had 

a different view on things when I was yciunger. As I got 
I 

31 

older my views changed. A lot of then, pot just this, but 

10 a lot of different things changed over the years. I 

11 didn't realize that they had, until I e~ed it. 

12 MR. SCHIFJ:K: And you ai;e of the belief 
13 that saneone camri.ts a criminal act, thJre should be sorre 

I 

14 consequences for having done that? They shoold be 
15 punished for it? 

16 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Cr¥na1 act, traffic, 
17 whatever it is. Just like I got a ticket for what I did, 

18 apparently, I was supposed to have it. : 

19 MR. SCHIFJ:K: Even though you didn't 

20 agree, you accepted your punishrrent, whcitever that might 
I 

21 have been. 

22 

23 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes .. 

MR. SCHIFJ:K: to yoo feel that the 
24 sentence of life in prison is a punishrrent? 

25 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Is it a punishrrent --
32 
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• yes, it is. 
MR. SCHIEX:K: And in a first degree rrmder 

case, 11:iuld you be open to considering all of the follllS of 

punishrrent that the legislature says are available? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes, sir. 

MR. SCHIEX:K: That ""uld be not only the 

. 7 death penalty but life without parole, life with parole? 

10 those? 

11 
12 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

MR. SCHIECK: You could consider all of 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

MR. SCHIEX:K: Yoo ""uld consider all of 

13 those follllS of punishrrent? 

14 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

15 MR. SCHIEX:K: l'kluld it be fair to say that 

16 you 11:iuld want to hear as rruch infoIIIIJ.tion, just as ckJ you 

17 in yoor job, as 11:iuld hear as rruch infoI111J.tion in court as 

18 possible to m,ke the decision as to .!lat the correct 

19 punishrrent should be? 

20 

21 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

MR. SCHIEX:K: Thank you. We pass for 

22 cause, your Honor. 
23 TIIE COURr: Thank you. Mr. O;ens, as to 

24 Ms. lee. 

25 MR. cwrns: Thank you. How are you 

1 dcing. 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Okay. 

MR. Cl'IENS: Have you been involved in the 

criminal justice systen before? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: No. 

MR. 0/IENS: Have you ever sued anybody or 

1 been sued in court? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: No. 

MR. cwrns: Yo know scnebody that's been 

1 o arrested or scnething? 

11 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I had a friend that 

12 killed his wife. 
13 MR. cwrns: How long ago was that? 

14 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Probably 20 years 

15 ago. 
16 MR. cwrns: Were you close to this 

17 indi victual? 
18 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes . 
19 MR. cwrns: Did you kind of watch that 

20 process run its course? 
21 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Not really because he 
22 did it and he knew it. And he just pied guilty going 

23 through the .nole process. 

24 MR. cwrns: I see. So it's not like he 
25 went to court or anything? 

33 

34 

• PROSPECTIVE JUROR: No. 

MR. cwrns: How did you Ieel ab:!Jt that? 
PROSPECTIVE JUOOR: I "'15 sad that he did 

4 it. But actually it was, I guess, you could put it it was 

5 an accident. They got in a fight and ~ lost it and 

choked her. It was an accident. He shouldn't have cbne 

7 it. But he shculdn't have been drinking and doing .!lat 
I 

they were doing, fighting like that. But it happened. He 
I 

paid his price. 

10 MR. cwrns: You know, qirestion nUlllber 19 
11 you were asked ab:/Jt dcnestic violence, which would be 

12 like .!lat you are talking ab:!Jt. And you' re saying I have 

13 oo synpathy for spousal abusers: : 
14 PROSPECTIVE JUOOR: I went throogh it. 

15 MR. cwrns: Did you see ~t situation as 
16 different fran yoor situation? 

17 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I cbn't quite 

18 understand. 

19 MR. Cl'IENS: Well, did you view that rrmder 

20 that occurred, that killing, you said i~ was kind of an 

21 accidental death. You don't view that as a domestic 

22 violence situation? 

23 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: WelV, I guess you can 

24 put it like that. He never physically abused her, but 

25 they were always fighting constantly. ~t he never hit 
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her or anything. It was just that one [il.rti.oular tine. 

2 They had beth been drinking. And she kicked rum .nere she 

shculdn't have kicked rum. And he lost 'it. 

MR. cwrns: So you just 'never viewed that 

situation that way as domestic violence., 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Probably not, because 
I 

7 it was just that one time. ~ 

MR. 0/IENS: So it could have been mental 
abuse or E!!Dtional abuse, but not the physical kind of 

10 abuse that you associate with your situa.tion. 

11 PROSPECTIVE JUOOR: She ,jas rrore rrentally 
11 abusive than rum -- than he "1S to her. 

' 11 MR. cwrns: But you had .scnething in your 
14 life that you thought was .!lat you 11:iuld consider domestic 

15 violence. H"" long ago was that? 

16 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: It l~sted twelve 

11 years. It was just verbal abuse. Took rre thirty-four 
18 years to get out, but I finally did. 
19 MR. cwrns: When did you separate yourself 
20 fran that? 

21 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Al1lo,st a year year and 
22 a -- rronths ago. 

23 MR. cwrns: Are you feelings ab:!Jt that 
24 .nole thing kind of strong and upsetting to you. 

25 PROSPECTIVE JUOOR: Yeah, because he still 
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• 1 is abusive to rre. But I don't have to live with it now. 
2 I'monmyMl. 

MR. G-l!NS: Now, if in this trial yoo 

4 heard facts about physical violence in a relationship, 

that might trigger SCIIE unpleasant rraoories for you? 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Probably. I'm open. 

1 There's things that happened. I definitely don't agree 

with violence toward children, abuse or anything like 

that. Been there done that. But there's always different 

10 sides, what you call it, opinions I guess. But there is 

11 no need for violence. 
12 MR. G-l!NS: Okay. So you feel that you 

13 could separate your situation fran --
14 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Ever)Wdy' s situation 

15 is different. 

16 MR. G-l!NS: Okay. Now you said your sort 

17 of a conscientioos objector. You don't believe in the 

18 death penalty? 

19 PROSPEX:TIVE JUROR: It's not that I don't 

20 believe in it. Right now there is over 3000 peq,le 

21 sitting on death r<:M, 79 in Nevada. There's only been, 

22 what, 12 or 13 since 1976 actually put to death. You 

23 convict them of the death penalty. You give them that 

24 sentence. Then there is appeal, after appeal, after 

25 appeal. So what does it -- I don't think it accrnplishes 

anything. 

MR. G-l!NS: So it's kind of a practical 

assessrrent there, that if we' re not going to execute him 
4 what's he doing? 
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR: You put them in jail 

for the rest of their life basically. '!hat's what it is 

anyway, if they're allowed all the appeals, i.l!ich is their 

right, but just --

MR. ™ENS: Are there other reasons, 
10 religious or rroral reasons, you'd be opposed to the death 

11 penalty? 

12 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: No. No. I'm for the 

13 death penalty, because there are certain circumstances 

14 that involve. There should be. But, in my opinion, 
15 really, they get off easy if they get the death penalty. 

16 The person that -- the relatives of the person that you 

17 know was the victim, they still have to live with that. 
18 These peq,le should have to live with their conscience the 

19 rest of their life that they did that. 

20 MR. G-l!NS: '!hat conscience, having to 

21 live with that is a worse punishment then, ooybe. 
11 PROSPEX:TIVE JUROR: If they' re no longer 

23 living, they don't have to think about it an)l!Klre. 

24 MR. CIIDlS: Right. And that ""uld be true 
25 if peq,le ccmmit crirres against others and have a 

• conscience that bothers them. If they don't would you 

revise your opinion of that as punishrrent? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: If t/Jey don't have a 

conscience? 
5. MR. <:MENS: If it doesn':t bother them for 

the rest of their life. 'rt's only a p~shrrent if it 
bothered them. ' 

PROSPEX:TIVE JUROR: Good piint. It would 

bother rre. ' 
10 MR. G-l!NS: '!hat would 02 the worst 
11 punishment for yoo. 

PROSPEX:TIVE JUROR: I guess if you could 

13 ccmmit a crirre like that, you wouldn't tiave a conscience 
I 

12 

14 anyway. Good point. Never thought of that. 

MR. G-l!NS: Well, like ~u said there are 
16 a lot of peq,le that are doing appeals tjn death row. So 

l7 4P3.rently their consciences aren't lxrtf\ering than. 

15 

18 
19 questioning. 

20 

MR. SCHIE!:K: Cbjection.1 This is inproper 
I 

THE COORr: I' 11 sustain the objection as 
21 to the issue of appeals. 

22 MR. <:MENS: You said yoo/ beliefs about 

23 the death penalty are such that you wouJ:d vote against the 

24 death penalty, regardless of the facts i\ffi circumstances 
25 of the case. You said, yes. 

PROSPEX:TIVE JUROR: I said that? 
I 

MR. G-l!NS: Yes. 
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I rriist have read it 

wrong. I wouldn't autanatically vote a~ainst it. It 

would determine the evidence and circums1tances surrounding 

the act. 

MR. OONS: You said the person should 

have to spend their life berind bars, ~t to get off so 
easy as to put to death. Is that what :you were telling 

10 us a =t ago. 

11 PROSPFCTIVE JUROR: Yes,' 

12 MR. <:MENS: And so you ~aid you were 
I 

13 generally opposed to it. And what we' re trying to find 

14 oot is would that be a consideration foi you -- if that's 
15 a legitillllte option in the case? 

16 PROSPEX:TIVE JUROR: I coold consider it 
I 

17 definitely. I'm not opposed to the death penalty. Not by 

18 a long shot. There are certain peq,le that deserve it .. 

19 But I'm not opposed to it. It would be :a factor to be 
20 considered. 

! 
21 MR. <:MENS: All right. So you feel if you 
12 coold -- if you got on the jury you could fairly consider 

23 all four forms of punishment? 
14 

15 

PROSPEX:TIVE JUROR: Yes. 

MR. CIIDlS: If this sOOIEd like the 
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• 1 awrcpriate punishment, the death penalty, yoo .oold be 
able to caJE back with that verdict? 

PRCSPECTIVE JUFOR: Yes. 
MR. MNS: You could make that type of 

judgrrent on a fellaw huoon being? 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 
MR. CYIIENS: It's sarething you could live 

with? 
9 PROSPECTIVE JU!m: Yes. 

10 MR. CYIIENS: Thanks. We' 11 pass for cause, 
11 yoor Honor. · 
12 THE COURJ': Thank you. Mr. Schleck. 

13 

14 

MR. SCHIECK: Thank you, your Horior. 

Ms. Lee, you talked about the unfortunate 
15 situation with a friends that was killed by her husband, I 
16 take it? 

11 PRffiPECTIVE JUIDR: He was rrore my frierd 
18 than she was . 
19 MR. SCHIECK: Was be convicted of first 
20 degree rrmder? 
21 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

22 MR. SCHIECK: Did you think he should 
23 serve the rest of his life in prison as q,posed to getting 
24 the death penalty? 

25 PROSPECTIVE JUIDR: For the situation, oo, 
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I didn't. For what had hawened and ho,; it hawened in 
their -- no, I didn't. I guess because I knew him and I 
knew what had happened and ho,; it had hawened. But he 
spent ten years of his life in prison, and he wasn't a bad 

person. 
MR. SCHIECK: Did you think that that was 

7 a sufficient penalty? 

10 degree rrmder? 

11 

PRffiPECTIVE JU!m: Yes' 
MR. SCHIECK: Even though it was first 

PRffiPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 
12 MR. SCHIECK: SO would you agree then that 
13 there are SCXIE first degree rrurder cases that don't 
14 deserve the death penalty? 
15 PRffiPECTIVE JUFOR: Yes. I rrean, 
16 cirrunstances -- I don't know the circtlll5tances 
11 surrounding. this. I can't make that decision right oow. 
18 MR. SCHIECK: When you are talking about 
19 the death penalty and life in prison as being worse than 

20 the death penalty1 you're just talking in general terms 
21 about punishment; is that fair to say? 
22 

23 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I'm not quite sure. 
MR. SCHIECK: Yoor philosophy of 

24 punishment as q,posed to a particular case. 
25 PRffiPECTIVE JUFOR: I lost yoo. 
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• MR. SCHIECK: In the case of your friend, 

you thooght ten years was sufficient for first degree 
mrrder, right. Yoo didn't think he should have to serve 
the rest of his life in prison? 

PRffiPECTIVE JUIDR: Because I knew the 
cirrunstances surrounding it. I knew their relationship. 

J I knew the whole thing. 
MR, SCHIECK: Which is what this hearing 

9 is about, so the jury urderstards. 

10 PRffiPECTIVE JUIDR: I uij:Jerstard because I 
11 have oo knawledge of what has hawened 9r what transpired 
12 so I can't sit here and say, yeah, I'm riot going to give 
13 the death penalty, life in prison. I have to knaw the 

I 

14 circumstances involved. 1 

15 MR. SCHIECK: Right. Arri you gave figures 
i 

16 about pecple on death row, about the death penalty. Is 
1 7 that sarething yoo are interested in or '.have done research 
18 on? 

19 PRffiPECTIVE JUFOR: I have to have a paper 
20 done in nine .,,.ks, About three weeks ~go, before I got 
21 called for jury duty, I did just a bit bf research. 
22 MR. SCHIECK: You are taking a class at 
23 carrmmity college? : 
24 PRffiPECTIVE JUIDR: University of Phoneix 
25 on criminal justice? 

MR. SCHIECK: The pape~ is oovioosly on 
the death penalty? 

PRffiPECTIVE JUIDR: Yes' : 
MR. SCHIECK: That is a 'pretty good 

coincidence for rre. 
ll:> you urderstard in a few days, this 

7 judge is going to give yoo instructions 'on the law before 
the jury gees back to deliberate. Would you have any 
problem follawing instructions given to :you by the judge, 

10 even if they differ fran any research ycu have done 
11 concerning the death penalty. 

I 
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12 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Lik~ I said, I haven't 
13 got that far into the research. The j~e knows the law 
14 better than I. I have to follaw that. 
15 MR. SCHIEl'.:K: Would you be willing to base 
16 your decision on the evidence presented io you here in 
17 court, and the instructions on the law, .as q,posed to 
18 research you had done? 

I 

19 

20 

21 your Honor. 
22 

23 Ms. Matts. 

PROSPECTIVE JUFOR: Yes. 
. I MR. SCHIEl'.:K. Thank you. 

I 

Pass for cause, 

THE COURl': Thank yru. 'Mr, Owens, as to 

24 MR. Cl'IENS: How are you doing. Yoo 
25 indicated you are q,posed to the death e<enalty for 
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religious principles or rooral principles? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Both. 

MR. MNS: You're feeling that you 1-Xluld 

4 not be able to vote for the death penalty under any 

cirrunstance? 
. 6 PRffiPECTIVE JUOOR: Yes. 

MR. MNS: And that's based upon your 

religious point of view? 

PRffiPECTIVE JUOOR: That's the root of 

10 it. 

11 MR. MNS: You oonsider yourself a fairly 

12 religious person? 

13 PRC6PECTIVE JUROR: S<xl&llat, yes. 

14 MR. MNS: This particular facet of your 

15 beliefs is sarething you feel is inportant to adhere to? 

16 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I have had this belief 

11 for years. It's not changed. 

18 MR. Cl-lENS: You say that you would not be 

19 able to vote for death in this particular case? 

20 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Correct. 

21 MR. Cl-lENS: That would be regardless of 
22 the cirrunstances. It 1-Xluldn't be an option for you. 

23 PRC6PECTIVE JUROR: Correct. 

24 MR. MNS: You said you strongly oppose 

15 the death penalty. You're pro life on all counts? 

PRC6PECTIVE JUOOR: Right. 

MR. MNS: You weren't sure you 1-Xluld be 

able to do life with parole. l'III I misreading that? Are 

you just saying life without parole is .!lat you 1-Xluld 

choose rather than death? 

PRC6PECTIVE JUROR: Correct. 

MR. ™ENS: But other than death, you 

could consider the other three options? 

PRCSPECTIVE JUOOR: Yes. 
10 MR. M:NS: You made a camE!lt about 

11 violent relationships towards the end, rernerrter that? 

12 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: My uncle beat my 

13 aunt. 

14 MR. Cl'IENS: Was that a situation you are 

15 close to? 

16 PFOSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

17 MR. MNS: How recent was that? 

18 PRC6PECTIVE JUROR: I was a young girl, 

19 years old. I witnessed it for about five years. 
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20 MR. ™ENS: So you have scne pretty strong 

21 feelings about that? 
22 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I do. But as an adult 

23 I understand the .hole scenario a little better. 

24 MR. M:NS: Just in the matter of 
25 potential punisrnrent in this case, regardless of .!lat are 
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the facts, violence, things like that, the death is not 

sarething you could honestly consider? , 

PRCSPECTIVE JUROR: I cculd not live with 

4 myself. 

MR. MNS: You couldn't be a person that 

6 could take responsibility for that kind 'of decision 
' either? 

PRffiPECTIVE JUROR: No. 
MR. MNS: Thank you. Appreciate your 

10 candor on that. Challenge, your Honor. 

11 'lllE COOR! : Mr . Schieck., 

12 MR. SCHIFCK: No questions. 

13 'lllE COOR!: Thank you. Mr. <Mens, as 

14 to -- I apologize, sir -- Mr. Feuerhanne:r. 

15 MR. Cl-lENS: All right. :,-au answered all 

16 of the questions. There were a lot of tpern that didn't 

17 tag anything in a lot of these areas. Y~u have never been 

18 involved in the criminal justice system before? 

19 PROSPECTIVE JUFOR: No, s'ir. 

20 MR. Cl-lENS: Never had an opportunity to be 
21 a juror before? 

22 

23 

24 

15 

PRC6PECTIVE JUROR: No, sir. 

MR. MNS: Never been victimized? 

PFOSPECTIVE JUOOR: No, sir. 

MR. MNS: You never been close to 

1 an;!xxly arrested or involved in the systen at all? 

PRffiPECTIVE JUROR: I have been lucky, 

sir. 
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MR. ™ENS: You have done pretty goal to 

avoid all of those issues. You don't have any 

prejudgm,nts about this case based on ""i't you have _heard? 

PRC6PECTIVE JUOOR: No, sir. 

MR. ™ENS: D::l you consiper yourself to be 
an open-minded person? 

10 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes, sir. 

11 MR. ™ENS: Are you okay: with the process 

12 described here ad nauseam the past two ~ys? 

ll PRffiPECTIVE JUFOR: Yes, sir. 

14 MR. M:NS: The idea for, the jury 
15 determining punishmant on first degree uder? 
16 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes, sir. 

17 MR. oo:NS: Are you okay
1 
with the idea of 

18 the deliberating process of sharing your, ideas and 

19 listening to opinions of others? 

20 PRffiPECTIVE JUROR: Absolhtely. 
21 MR. ™ENS: D::l you feel able to fairly 
22 evaluate the evidence and rerrler a decision that would be 
23 fair to both sides? 
24 

25 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes, sir. 

MR. oo:NS: You said tha~ you are 
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• supportive of the death penalty? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I am. 
MR. Clill<S: You ""uldn't autanatically 

inp:,se it? 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: No, sir. 
MR. CMENS: You're willing to keep an 

1 cpen-rnind about all four punishrrents? 
PROSPEJ::IIVE JUROR: I might have a prcillem 

with the one, considering the tine served. 
10 MR. oo:NS: What do you mean by that? 
11 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: If you give mm 40 
12 years with the ewortunity for parole, and ten years is 
13 already served, leave thirty, I have a problem with 
14 that. 
15 MR, CMENS: Well, you know, eligibility or 
16 tine served, .!latever, you don't know anything about that 
11 and that's really a matter up to the jucl:_je. 
18 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I understand that. 
19 MR. oo:NS: It's not sarEthing that get 
20 infornation on anyway. 

21 

22 

PROSPECTIVE JUIDR: Yes, sir. 
MR. a.ENS: I guess the questions is is 

23 with any one of these punishnents you may, after hearing 
24 everything, just decide that that is not for you. You 
25 can't go along with that. The key point is will you wait 
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until you hear everything? 
PROSPEJ::IIVE JUROR: Absolutely. 
MR. Clill<S: Are you willing, at least at 

4 that point, to keep an open mirrl about all four 

punistmmts until you have heard everything? 
PROSPITTIVE JUIDR: Yes, sir' 
MR. Clill<S: And after you have heard 

everything can you c<I!E back with a punishrrent that is 
appropriate here? 

10 PROS PITT IVE JUIDR: I can, sir. 
11 MR. Clill<S: If you feel after hearing 
12 everything that the aipropriate thing is the death 
13 penalty, ""uld you be able to cone back with that 
14 judgrrent? 

15 

16 

PROSPECTIVE JUIDR: Yes, sir. 
MR, Clill<S: You feel that that's S<I!Ething 

11 you can personally take responsibility for? 
18 
19 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes, sir. 
MR. CMENS: I will serve if called upon. 

20 I will not volunteer, Sourrls like a good policy, 
21 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I ;.oold rather not 
22 jucl:_je sanebooy. 
23 MR. CMENS: Sure. That's a very similar 
24 feeling. Thank you. Pass, your Honor. 
25 THE ffiJRl': Thank you. Mr. Schieck. 

• MR. SCHIEJ:K: Thank you,: your Honor. I'm 
not going to try to pronounce your name.: You' re frau 
Wisconsin. 

PROSPECTIVE JUJ{)R: Yes,: sir. 
MR. SCHIErK: Are you a.iare that Wisconsin 

doesn't have the death penalty? 

PROSPEJ::IIVE JUROR: Yes, ,sir. 
MR. SCHIEJ:K: We' re here because Nevada 

does. You think Wisconsin should have the death penalty? 
10 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I think it should be an 
11 option. 
12 

I 

MR. SCHIEJ:K: [Q you thipk it should be 

13 inp:,sed in every case of first degree lllfder? 
14 PROSPECTIVE JUIDR: No, sir. 

I 
15 MR. SCHIEJ:K: You think ,that it's 
16 aipropriate to have all the options a"'4able that we 
11 talked about -- the four options? 
18 

19 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes, sir. 

MR. SCHIEJ:K: Even the 4'tion that 
20 includes the possibility of parole? 
21 PROSPEJ::IIVE JUROR: Yes, sir. 

22 MR. SCHIEJ:K: You were fu the marines? 
' 23 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes,, sir. 
I 24 MR. SCHIErK: Is that .!iere you ;.oold 
I 

25 se1ve if called upon, but not volunteer :=s frau. You 

1 learn not to volunteer. 

PROSPITTIVE JUROR: Yes,j sir. 
MR. SCHIEJ:K: There was 'one area that I 
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4 sort of picked up a difference in the "115wers. One is, I 
agree with the death penalty. And the riext question is on 
an eye for an eye and a tooth for a tooth, you said cb not 

1 agree. It's up to God to make that ten/.ination. Is there 
an inconsistency there, or am I missing _sCX112thing? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Basically, the 
10 state -- we have to go by the laws of the state. That is 

. I 
11 .!iere that carEs m. It's not up to me ,to make take 
12 jucl:_jrrent. I leave that up to the state., 

13 MR. SCHIEJ:K: If the state says we have a 
14 jury of 12 people to make that decision,! you agree with 
15 that and will go along with that? 
16 

11 
PROSPEJ::IIVE JUROR: Yes, sir. 

I 
MR. SCHIEJ:K: Okay. Thank you, Pass for 

18 cause, your Honor. \ 
19 THE COOR!: Thank you. Ms. Weckerly, as 
20 to Mr. Forbes. 

21 1£. WEJ:KERLY: You mentioned in your 
22 questionnaire that you had an experienc~ with child abuse 
23 with a step dad. ' 
24 

25 
PROSPITTIVE JUROR: Sure. 

I 

1£. WEJ:KERLY: He was abusing you? 
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PROSPEx:TIVE JUROR: My Im, myself, and 

oo sisters. 
1£. wro:ERLY: You said two sisters as 

i,ell as yoo? 

PROSPEx:TIVE JUROR: Yes. 

t£. wro:ERLY: Did that situation go on 

7 for several years? 

10 tim2? 

11 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: 6 or 7 years. 

fE. wro:ERLY: Hw old i,ere yoo at the 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: 11 throogh 17, I put 

12 an end to it at by the tim2 I was 18. 

13 

14 

MS. WECKERLY: By moving out? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I finally got big 

15 enoogh and oode illlll stop. 

16 

11 

18 

MS. WECKERLY: He left you alone? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

MS. WECKERLY: Because you had that 

19 experience, it was a long tenn thing, and it ended because 

20 yoo i,ere able to defend yourself, cb yoo think you .ould 

21 have trouble in this case? 

22 

23 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: No. 

M5. wro:ERLY: You cruld be fair to both 

24 sides? 

25 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

rfi. WECKERLY: You also rrentioned in your 

questionnaire that -- I wasn't sure if it was YOO; or 
sareone close to or you had sare familiarity with 

controlled substances or use of controlled substance. 

· 5 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Myself and the people 

6 around me. 
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MS. WECKERLY: Was that sarething that was 

.8 in the past as well? 

PROSPEx:TIVE JUROR: Again, another lifetirre 

10 ago. 

11 MS. wro:ERLY: You also said in your 

12 questionnaire that yoo had sare experience with the 
13 criminal justice systen ard your opinion of it isn't 

14 great. 

15 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I had a younger 

16 brother, back in the late 70s early 80s, got railroaded 
11 through the public defender's office. He was picked up by 

18 a street walker i.l!o was on the street the next day. I had 
19 sare bitterness about that. But it's been 25, JO years 

20 ago. 

21 MS. WECKERLY: So if I'm understanding you 
22 felt like he wasn 1 t well represented? 
23 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I felt guilty because 

24 if I had had the money at the tirre, we could have went and 

25 hired an attorney and he never would have went to prison. 
54 

I Still feel that way. 

6 

M5. wro:ERLY: You thir)1< generally an 
outsider might cb better joo? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: In that instance, 
yes. 

1-13. wro:ERLY: Hw about hC« your brother 

7 was treat by the police. 

PROSPEx:TIVE JUROR: You '.oo the crirre, yoo 
get what you deserve, you lmw. I have 'no issue with 

10 that. 

11 M5. wro:ERLY: But it s~ds like ooybe 
11 you think that that ootcare of the case 'wasn't just, that 

13 justice wasn It served? 
14 ,PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Wel], yeah. He had 

15 cbne so Ill3Ily things, but just that partfrular one that he 

16 got convicted on. So he was going to g~ to prison, He was 

17 going one way or the other. Whether it 
1

be on that case or 
18 another case. 

19 MS. wro:ERLY: So you didn't think the 

20 police treated illll\ unfairly, even thoogii he wasn't 

21 necessarily guilty of the --

11 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Not the police, once he 

11 got into the systffi\. 

14 M5. wro:ERLY: Okay. Ma',be he got labeled 
25 because of a history. 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Sort of kind of. 

MS. wro:ERLY: Anything :about that that 
would cause you to be unfair to the state or the defense? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: No. ; 

MS. WECKERLY: On your questionnaire, you 
6 indicated -- you said you were pro death penalty? 

I 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes 'I 
MS. wro:ERLY: You also indicate that an 

' eye for an eye, or a tcoth for a tcoth, ;if it fits. 

10 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Meaning, for exarrple, 

11 there are violent crirres, a crll!E of pas
1

sion or sarething 
' 
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11 to that affect. But with certain crim2s', yeah, definitely 
n it fits. I 
14 MS. wro:ERLY: I don't know if ooybe the 

, I 

15 question wasn't phrased that clearly. But you wrote that 

16 your views are such that you would autakticall y vote for 
' 11 the death penalty. I take it fran what you' re saying nC«, 

18 rraybe you misread that question, and your opinions aren't 
' 19 so autmatic, what you would do isn't so. autmatic. 

10 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I wrote that 
! 

21 truthfully thinking I put that I wouldn't be where I am 
21 right nw. 
1] 

24 
25 obligated to, 

I 

MS. WECKERLY: That Is h9nest. 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Two days later if I'm 

I' 11 do my duty. I would not -- I would not 
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• 1 aut=tically vote for that. I'd "'igh everything am the 

cptions also. 
MS. WOCKERLY: So you are, as you sit 

4 here, you are sareone who wants to hear all of the 

infomation before you l!llke a decision. 
PROSPECTIVE JUOOR: Yes. 

MS. WOCKERLY: You lead !IE to my next 

question, you wrote that you were concerred about the 
financial strain am that you .ooldn't be able to 

10 concentrate? 
11 PROSPECTIVE JUOOR: You get caught up in 
12 your own life and it takes a minute to slow down. I've 
13 been here two days now. I have had a chance, if I need to 

14 do this, I can do this. 
15 MS. WOCKERLY: What if at the erd of this 
16 couple of days you feel that the death i:aiaJty is an 
11 awropriate punishrrent for this Ceferdant, ""uld you have 
18 any trouhle returning that kind of verdict? 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

cause. 

PROSPECTIVE JUOOR: Absolutely not. 
MS. WOCKERLY: 'Illank you, sir. Pass for 

lliE COORr: 'Illank you. Mr. Patrick. 

MR. PATRICK: Gocxi norning, Mr. Forbes. 

PROSPECTIVE JUOOR: Gocxi noming. 

MR. PATRICK: I ""uld like to talk about 

your step father am the abuse. 

PROSPEJ;TIVE JUOOR: Sure. 
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MR. PATRICK: If this case had to do with 
4 cl::rrestic violence am abuse, .oold that cause you to think 

any -- change your opinion upon .rut punishrrent should be 

given? 
PROSPECTIVE JUFOR: No. Like I said, it's 

30 years ago. 
MR. PATRICK: You' 11 keep an open mird. 

10 PROSPECTIVE JUOOR: Yes, 

11 MR. PATRICK: Sane thing with the drug 
12 use. If this case had any drug use, .oold that llllke you 
13 think of a specific penalty or could you still keep an 
14 open mind on that? 

15 PROSPECTIVE JUOOR: I'd still keep an open 
16 mird. 

11 

18 step brother? 

19 

20 

MR. PATRICK: Now, was it your brother or 

PROSPECTIVE JUOOR: Brother. 

MR. PATRICK: You thought that he got 
21 railroaded because he had a puhlic defender? 
22 PROSPEl:IIVE JUFOR: It's not per se the 
23 puhlic defender. The systBn failed him in general. He 
24 was a young kid, had a lot of little petty things. There 
25 were youth carrps arourd. It was his til!E. 

• MR. PATRICK: So you're not blaming the 

railroading on the puhlic deferder totally, just 
partially? 

PROSPECTIVE JUOOR: A l1ttle at the til!E. 
I don't think the way he was convicted, :i have, to this 
day, I have an issue with that. Not enough to influence 

7 my decision, sanething like this. 

8 MR. PATRICK: So the fact that Mr. 

9 Chappell is being deferded by a puhlic deferder, that 
10 ""uldn't color your opinion? 

11 PROSPECTIVE JUFDR: Absolute} y not. 

12 That's Mr. Chappell' s choice. ! 

13 MR. PATRICK: On the qu~stion asked, if 
14 the fact that Mr. Chappell was African-firerican, .oold 
15 that affect your feelings on this case. · You wrote, no 
16 CXJ111E11t. 
11 PFDSPECTIVE JUOOR: It's so irrelevant. 

I 
18 It llllkes no difference to !IE if Mr. Chappell is 
19 African-l\rrerican, Hispanic, Asian. I dcin•t care. No 

I 
20 difference. , 

I 

21 MR. PATRICK: Makes no difference to you 
22 at all. 

23 PROSPECTIVE JUOOR: I can't ackoo;ledge 
24 that question. 

25 MR. PATRICK: Ms. Weckerly I1Entioned the 

question if you ""uld autaratically vote for the death 
2 penalty. You checked yes. 

PROSPECTIVE JUOOR: I wa_s wrong about 
4 that. That dcesn' t sound like !IE. 

MR. PATRICK: Well, I think you explained 
it well to her. Last week you really didn't want to be 
bothered with this. ! 

I 
I'm ""rdering about the question before 

that. It asks if you'd autaratically vote against the 
. I 

10 death penalty, you didn't answer that. Was that an 
11 oversight? 
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12 PROSPECTIVE JUOOR: Probably an oversight. 
13 Truthfully, I didn't have my glasses wit/! !IE that day, so 
14 I struggled with that. ' 

15 MR. PATRICK: So basicahly SCIIE of the 
16 answers in the questionnaire were -- YOU: were consciously 
11 trying to get out of having to serve on this jury? 
18 PROSPEl:IIVE JUOOR: Yes. 

19 MR. PATRICK: Now you''-'.C been here for 
20 two days, you see how important it is? 
21 PROSPEl:IIVE JUFOR: Yes.' 

21 MR. PATRICK: You'd give 
1

your full 
23 attention? 
24 

25 

PROSPEJ;TIVE JUOOR: Yes,: sir. 
MR. PATRICK: And listen to everything 
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1 presented before you nade any decision? 

PRCSPECTIVE JUroR: Yes. 
MR. PATRICK: And I knCY,1 you have heard 

4 this question nany times, if you were sitting at this 

table or if you were sitting at this table, 1<Juld you want 

sarelxxly like you to be a juror on this panel? 

PRCSPECTIVE JUPDR: Absolutely. Without a 

doubt. 

MR. PATRICK: Thank you, sir. Pass for 

10 cause, your Honor. 
11 WE COOR!: Mr. ().;ens, as to 

12 Mr. Tenpelton. 
13 MR M:NS: HCY,1 are you feeling tcxlay after 

14 listening to this. 

15 PRCSPECTIVE JUPDR: I feel good. 
16 MR. CWENS: You stress concern in the 

17 question about judging smebcdy else. 

18 PRCSPECTIVE JUPDR: Yes. 

19 MR. CWENS: You thought about that rrore as 

20 you've been sitting here? 

21 PRCSPEX:'IIVE JUPDR: Yeah, I l<luldn't feel 

22 canfortable with myself judging scm,one, putting 

23 sareone -- life in prison, or death. I1m not canfortable 
24 with that. 

25 MR. CWENS: You'd have a difficult time 

1 living with that decision of life in prison or the deat.h 
penalty. You' re not opposed to the death penalty? 

PROSPECTIVE JUPDR: No. 

MR. M:NS: You're not opposed to any of 

the range of potential pllll.islirents? 

PROSPEX:'IIVE JUPDR: No. 

MR. CWENS: Just that you thought you 

might not be able to nake the decision of that nagnitude? 

PROSPECTIVE JUPDR: Yes. 

10 MR. CWENS: What's your feeling=? You 

1i said -- back then you said, it l<luld be difficult. I 

12 think it's always going to be difficult. The question is 
13 as you thought about it, it's so difficult, you don't 

14 think you could do it. 
15 PROSPEX:'IIVE JUPDR: Well, if I had to do 
16 it, I could. But I still feel the same. It's difficult 

11 forrre. 

18 MR. ™ENS: If you get selected and you 

19 get sw'Orn, you'd do it? 

20 PROSPECTIVE JUPDR: Yeah. 

21 

22 

23 

MR. CWENS: You are saying you could? 
PROSPECTIVE JUPDR: Yes. 

MR. CWENS: So it l<luldn't be a thing 
24 i.!lere you get down to the end and you are confronted with 

25 the choices and say, well, I really now I don't think I 
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., I 

can do it. Can you see that haP[:€ning?' 

2 · PRCSPEX:'IIVE JUPDR: No. , 

MR. CWENS: So you rath~r not. But if you 
are select, you can do it? 

PROSPECTIVE JUPDR: Yes,: I could. 
MR. CWENS: Can you do the right thing, 

even if it's a hard thing to do? 

10 

11 

PROSPEX:'IIVE JUPDR: Yes. 

MR. CWENS: You can do ~t, right? 

PRCSPEX:'IIVE JUPDR: Yes .1 

MR. ™ENS : If that inc~udes the death 

12 penalty, would you be able to .care back :and announce that 
13 judgmant on another human being? I 
14 PROSPECTIVE JURCR: Yes.; I l<Juldn't be 

15 canfortable, but I could do it. 
• I 

16 MR. CWENS: You rrentioned you had sare 

17 kind of situation involving an arrest in the past. You 

18 said -- you or a family nailler was arre;ted, charged with 

19 a crime. You said, yes. It said, do you feel the person 

20 was fairly treated. You said, yes. You knCY,i .!lat that 

21 was about? 

22 PROSPECTIVE JUroR: Ye~. It was 

23 my Father for 001. 

24 

25 

sarething? 

rranner? 

' MR. CWENS: H"" long ago, was that? 

PROSPECTIVE JUPDR: Year\ ago. 

MR. CWENS: Did that go ;to court? 

PRCSPECTIVE JUPDR: Yes. : 
I 

MR. M:NS: Was there a ,trial or 

PROSPECTIVE JUPDR: Yes.; 

MR. CWENS: Did that resolve in sare 

PROSPECTIVE JUPDR: Yeah. It got 

resolved, suspended license for a year. , He did all the 

10 classes. 

MR. CWENS: Sourxis pretty serious. 
I 

PROSPECTIVE JUroR: Yeah. 
I 
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11 

12 

13 

14 

MR. CWENS: How did you feel about that? 

PROSPECTIVE JUPDR: I m\,ught it was fair. 
15 It was dangerous to drive under the inflpence. 

16 MR. ™ENS: Did you feel' like he was 

17 treated fairly by the systsn? 
18 PROSPECTIVE JUPDR: Yes. 

I 

19 MR. CWENS: There wan't anything about 
I 

20 that that would interfere with your abil,ity to be fair to 
21 both sides in this case? · 
22 PROSPECTIVE JUOOR: No. 

23 MR. CWENS: You also irxli.cated that you 

24 had definite feelings about substance arose or drugs or 
25 alcohol. 
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• PROSPEITIVE JUPDR: Yeah. 

2 MR. MNS: Where does that o:m, fran? 

3 PROSPECTIVE JUPDR: Well, Irr/ sister uses, 

and I don't like it 1<1en she's on controlled substances. 

She's different. I hate the stuff. 

. 6 MR. MNS: Is that sanething she is 

1 grappling with? 

10 situation? 
l1 

12 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

MR. MNS: Are you fairly close to that 

PROSPECTIVE JUPDR: Yes. 

MR. MNS: Is there sanething about that 

13 that you think might spill o\<er into yoor decision 11llking 

14 process here in an unfair rranner? 
15 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: No. 

16 MR. oo:NS: You are a young person? 

17 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yeah. 

18 MR. oo:NS: 21. 

19 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yeah. 

20 MR. MNS: I go back to that. I want to 

21 !1llke sure you feel that you can take the weight of a 

22 decision process like this. 

23 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yeah, I could. 

24 

25 

MR. oo:NS: Thank you. Pass for cause. 

THE COOR!: Mr. Schieck. 

MR. SCHIOCK: Thank you. 

Mr. Tenpleton, you indicated that -­

you' re asked your opinion on different people in law 

4 enforCE!rellt and proserutes. You said you applaud than. 

Anything in particular that causes you to focus on your 

awlause them as opposed to anyone else, like the judges 

1 or police officers? 

PROSPOCTIVE JUROR: I just think this joo 

you do is \<ery gcod. 

10 MR. SCHIOCK: lb you ha\<e any personal 

l1 dealings with prosecutors? 

12 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: No. 

13 

14 you ha\<e? 

15 

MR. SCHIOCK: Just a general perception 

PROSPECTIVE JUPDR: Yes. 
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16 MR. SCHIOCK: Is that sanething you picked 

11 up watching criire on TV? 

18 PROSPOCTIVE JUROR: I .don't watch criire on 

19 TV. 

20 MR. SCHIOCK: You watch Law and Order, 

21 shows like that? 

21 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: No. 

23 MR. SCHIEl:K: Ha\<e you really thought 

24 about the death penalty all that I!Illch? 

25 PROSPEITIVE JUPDR: I ha\<en't gi'-"Il it 
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• InJch thought. 

MR. SCHID:K: Until you got this 

questionnaire and sud:lenly you're confronted with it? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

MR. SCHIOCK: Since you filled out the 

questionnaire, ha\<e you had a chance to 
1

think about it 

7 rrore? 
8 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

MR. SCHIOCK: Has your ~inion changed or 

10 de\<ekped as you''-" been thinking about 'it? 
I 

11 PROSPEITIVE JUROR: I still agree with the 

11 death penalty. 

13 

14 

15 

16 for cause. 

MR. SCHIOCK: But not in e\<ery case? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Not :in e\<ery case. 

MR. SCHIOCK: Thank you,
1 

\<ery I!Illch. Pass 

11 THE COOR!: Thank you. :Ms. Weckerly, as 

18 to Mr. Scott, 078. 
19 

20 Hello. 

21 

MS. WOCKERLY: Thank you, your Honor. 

PROSPECTIVE JUPDR: Hi. 

21 MS. WOCKERLY: Sir, "'el\ you filled out 

23 yoor questionnaire, you wrote that deatn penalty was -- I 

24 think you wrote a necessary evil. can )?U explain that? 

25 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I just think it's an 
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acceptable punishrrent in sane situations. But you know it 

is tough. I rrean, it's not real a pleakot thought, but I 

think it's necessary in sare situations.: 

MS. WOCKERLY: And certainly it's not a 

canfortable decision, I don't think for ,anybody. 

Certainly one that is not -- I don't think anyone e\<er 

takes lightly. But I take if fran your 'answer, though, 

that you think there are sare situations where that form 

of punishrent is what is jll5t or is cori!ect? 
10 PROSPOCTIVE JUROR: Yeah.I 

' 
l1 MS. WOCKERLY: And you' re sareone that 

12 could listen to all of the information tiefore you !1llke a 

13 decision of that !1llgnitude? , 

14 PROSPECTIVE JUPDR: It 'f<'S sanething I 

15 have to take into account, weighing the cirrunstances and 

16 things that are involved. 

11 MS. WOCKERLY: Okay. Yciu wrote on yoor 

18 questionnaire that you are a 11\E!lber of an organization 

19 that doesn't support the death penalty though. A 

20 religious group that doesn't -- : 

21 PROSPOCTIVE JUROR: I "'¥'11, I think you 

22 can be affiliated with groups and disagree with certain 

23 rules. I have gone to catholic school since I was a 

24 little kid, and they are opposed to the death penalty. 

25 But that's not sanething -- I don't personally agree with 
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• their stance on that. 

MS. WECKERLY: Okay. I'm sure your 

religion is inportant, just to rrake sure I urrlerstard it. 

4 You're able to separate yourself fran the church's view 

arrl rrake your o,JIJ. decision in a case like this? 
PRC6PECTIVE JUROR: You have to. I think 

7 you have to develop your own opinions. Over tine, you 

know, that's just not sarething I'm in line with them on. 

I think, like I said earlier, in sare certain 
10 circumstances. it's an acceptable punishrrent. 
11 MS. WECKERLY: And you also indicated that 

12 you .ould like to hear the circumstances surrounding this 

13 c.ase? 

14 . PROOPECTIVE JUROR: Yeah. I rrean, I think 

15 if you're going to -- wllen you're dealing with sCJJEbcxly's 

16 life cir dealing with sarething as heavy as this, it's 

11 inportant to hear all of the factors, basically, 

18 involved. 

19 MS. WECKERLY: Thank you, sir. Pass for 

20 cause, your Honor. 

21 'lllE COURJ': Thank you. Mr. Patrick. 

22 MR. PATRICK: Gocd rrorning, Mr. Scott. 

23 You have been here for a day and a half now. 

24 PRC6PECTIVE JUROR: Yeah. 

25 MR. PATRICK: You probably know every 

1 question I'm going to ask you. You've heard them all. 

You've heard rre ask them, Ms. Weckerly, and Mr. Owens ask 

them. Anything you've heard over the last day and a half 

that pops in your mind that you think I should ask you or 

Ms. Weckerly should ask you, or sarething you want to say 

about this wllole thing about you being on this jury? 
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Well, you know, wllen I 

was filling out the questionnaire and raising your hands 

and stuff, I have had interaction with the court system. 

10 I got in trouble for disorderly conduct. 

11 I didn't know if that was sere thing I should put in 
12 there. I think I should right now, because .tien you're 

13 filling this out you don't know the context of wnat peq,le 

14 want to know. I guess that's the only thing I .ould ac!J. 
15 I felt it was very minor, but I had dealt with that. I 

16 felt it was fair. 
11 MR. PATRICK: You felt you were treated 

18 fair. 

19 

20 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yeah. 

MR. PATRICK: So that .ouldn' t rrake you 

21 partial to one side or the other? 
22 PRC6PECTIVE JUROR: No. 

23 MR. PATRICK: Your uncle had a proolem 

24 with alcohol abuse? 

25 PRC6PECTIVE JU!lJR: Yes. 

• MR. PATRICK: Is he still battling that? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Fran talking to him, I 
think it's scrething you always battle ~ith the disease. 

4 You are never quite over it. But he ha'\il't drank in 
1:"'2lve years. f 

MR. PATRICK: That's very gcod. If this 

7 case had to do with alcohol abuse or ctriig abuse, because 

of your uncle, would that rrake you parti11 to one side or 
I 

the other? 

10 
I 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: As far as that 
11 question, I think it's tough to like -- _not all alcoholics 

12 are the sane, not all drug users are th, sarre. It's like a 

13 factor, but I oon't really see it as -- you know, my uncle 

14 has -- that's just one facet of his personality. I have a 

15 lot of respect for him, for a lot of other things. So 
' 16 that's a tough question. It would not influence rre, 

11 because I don't see that -- all alcoholics are 

18 different. 

19 MR. PATRICK: You could still keep an open 

20 mind, even if scrething like that carre up. 

21 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes,i sir. 

22 MR. PATRICK: In the staterrent that asks 
I 

23 about an eye for an eye, you say that -- you mention that 

24 being a very emotional reaction? 
1 

25 PROOPECTIVE JUROR: I think it's like 

1 spanking your kid. You cl::m't grab him ape! spank him, 

you've got to step back. That's acceptaple punishrrent. 

11 

An eye for an eye seems like a knee-jerk, reaction. If you 

step back and you go and assess it and that seems like the 

5 acceptable punishrrent, then that's right. 

MR. PATRICK: Is that hd. you would 

7 approach this case, wait for all the ev:\dence to care in 

and before you rrake a decision, not rrak, a knee-jerk 
9 reaction? 

10 

11 

PRC6PECTIVE JUROR: Yes.1 

MR. PATRICK: Keep a fair and open mind 
12 throughout the process? 

13 

14 

PROSPECTIVE JU!lJR: Yes, sir. 

MR. PATRICK: In reading on the last 
15 question, it sounds to rre like you actually want to be on 
16 the jury? 

11 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Not 'really. But I 

18 think that we' re all blessed living in tpis country. This 
19 is scrething that's not fun. 

20 It's 85 degrees outside. It's nic'e to be in here. 

21 But I think it's like if I was the Deferilant I would want 
22 peq,le wllo were taking it seriously. Aii:i I think it's a 
23 civic duty. I don 1t want to be here: It 1s -- I think 

24 it's a responsibility we have. 

25 MR. PATRICK: You'd take _this seriously? 
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• PROOPECTIVE JUroR: Of coorse. 

MR. PATRICK: Arrl give it yoor ubJDst 

attention? 
PROSPECTIVE JUroR: Yes. 

MR. PATRICK: And be as fair as you 
possilil y could? 

PROSPECTIVE JUroR: Yes. 

MR. PATRICK: Thank you, sir. Pass for 

c.ause. 
10 'lllE CXXJRr: Ms. weckerly, as to 

11 Ms. Jackson. 
12 MS. WE!:KERLY: Ms. Jackson, how are you? 

13 PROSPECTIVE JUroR: Okay. 
14 MS. WE!:KERLY: I bet you know what I'm 
15 going to ask you. You wrote out in your questionnaire 
16 that you have sane questions about the fairness of the 

11 criminal justice systffil. 

18 

19 

20 guess. 

21 

22 

PROSPECTIVE JIJ!a: Yes. 
MS. WE!:KERLY: To put it mildly, I 

PROSPECTIVE JUroR: Yes. 

MS. WECKERLY: Is that all based on the 

23 experience with your nephew? 
24 PROSPECTIVE JUroR: Yes. 
25 MS. WE!:KERLY: Are your feelings such that 

you had such a bad experience, or that left such a bad 
taste in your rrouth tbat you don't feel you could be fair 
in this proceeding? 

PROSPECTIVE JUroR: I could. 

MS. WE!:KERLY: Arrl you indicate on your 

questionnaire ;men asked about the criminal justice 
systffil, you said, it ooes not l«lrk. So you don't Seffil to 

have a lot of faith. 
PROOPECTIVE JUroR: No. 

10 MS. WE!:KERLY: Ma'am, you "3re also asked 
11 about the death penalty. You indicate on your 
12 questionnaire you don't agree? 
13 PROSPECTIVE JUroR: No. No. 
14 MS. WE!:KERLY: That l«luld be under any 

15 cirClillStances? 
16 PROOPECTIVE JUroR: Correct. 
11 MS. WE!:KERLY: That's just -- if I'm 

18 understanding you correctly -- a punisment that you 
19 flat-out can't consider? 

20 PROSPECTIVE JUroR: Correct. 

21 MS. WECKERLY: Is it a personal belief of 
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22 yours that that's just not a decision "' should be making? 
23 PROSPECTIVE JIJ!a: Correct. 

24 MS. WE!:KERLY: So under no cirrunstances 
25 could you even consider it as a potential punisment? 
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• PROOPECTIVE JIJ!a: No. 

MS. WE!:KERLY: Thank you. We'd challenge, 
. i 

your Honor. 
'lllE CXXJRr: Thank you. : 

MR. PATRICK: No questions, your Honor. 
I 

'lllE COORr: Thank you, very rn.Ich. Mr. 

1 CMens, as to Ms. Norris. 
. I 

MR. cwrns: Ms. Norris, how are you? 
PROOPECTIVE JIJ!a: Fine,'. thank you. 

10 MR. cwrns: You're another one of those 

11 rare indi victuals that hasn't brnped up ~gainst any of 
12 these questions that "3've talked about.· Have you ever 

• • I 

13 been a victim, or sue sCXIEOne, or been ~ued? 
14 PROSPECTIVE JUroR: I heve had my car 
15 broken into. That's -- no. I have -- i had my horse 
16 stolen. Nothing --

17 MR. OONS: Well, that's a victim kind of 
' 

lB thing. 

19 PROOPECTIVE JUroR: Well, okay. We came 
20 out ahead on that deal. We got the hor~e back. 
21 MR. CWENS: Did you find it or did the 
22 police find him? 

23 PROOPECTIVE JUroR: The 'police gave us 
24 clues, but I actually found him. I did '.the l«lrk. 

25 MR. cwrns: But the police helped a 

little. 

PROSPECTIVE JUroR: Yes,! they helped. 
MR. CWENS: It's good t~ see they solved 

one of these things we've been hearing fOUt. Did it end 

up going to court or anything? 

PROSPECTIVE JIJ!a: .Actually"' "3nt to 

small claims, and I =· This individual took us to the 
I 

next coort. Arrl he wasn't supposed to, ,so, yes. Then"' 
had a special case, so we had their Court TV. Very 

10 interesting. But I didn't want to go iiito this. But I 
I 

11 don't lmaw how to answer that question. , 
12 MR. OONS: You didn't want to talk about 
13 it. You don't want to talk about it now? 

I 

14 PROSPECTIVE JUroR: No. I can talk about 
15 it. 

16 MR. OONS: It's about the Court TV 
' 
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17 peq,le? 

18 PROSPECTIVE JIJ!a: I didn't want to be on 
19 Court TV. I just wanted my horse back. : End of story. 

20 MR. cwrns: So they fourb it an 
I 

21 interesting case, of course. 
22 PROSPECTIVE JIJ!a: And it was very 
23 unusual. 

24 MR. cwrns: Okay. Did that all care oot 
25 okay for you? 
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes, it did actually. 

It was very fair. Yes. The outccm, was goal. 

MR. <MENS: Okay. You ever been to court 

for other reasons? You know anyone that's been arrested, 

or that you had to go to court for supp:,rt? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: No. 

MR. <MENS: You consider yourself to be a 

fair i:;erson? 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I would like to think 

10 so. 

11 MR. a.ms: You heard of all the p:,ssible punishments 

12 in this case that are available? 

13 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

14 MR. <MENS: Are you okay with all four of 

15 those? 

16 

17 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

MR. <MENS: Are you willing to wait until 

18 you hear all of the evidence until you decide which one is 

19 the right one to pick? 

20 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

21 MR. <MENS: How do you feel about the idea 

22 of sitting in judgrrEnt on another person? 

23 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: You know, I feel I 

24 could do it. I ""'1ld be helping out. It's not scmathing 

25 that I'm incapable of doing at all. 
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MR. <MENS: You' re willing to do that? 

ffiOSPECTIVE JUROR: I'd be very willing to 

do that. 

MR. <MENS: If after hearing all of the 

evidence in the case you felt the death penalty was the 

appropriate punishment, 1-!'.luld you be able to ccma back 

1 with that verdict? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I certainly would. 

But I 1-!'.luld have to hear, you know, I 1-!'.luld have to have 

10 all of the facts presented and take all of the 

11 cirCtnPStances, you ~-
12 MR. <MENS: Right. Okay. 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Into consideration. 

MR. <MENS: Perfect answer. 

ffiOSPECTIVE JUROR: Thank you. 

MR. <MENS: Thank you. Pass for cause. 

THE COORr: Thank you. Mr. Schieck. 

MR. SCHIEX:K: Thank you, your Honor. 

19 Ms. Norris, you said that scmaone stole your horse. 

20 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

21 MR. SCHIEX:K: Were they criminally 

22 prosecuted for that, or did you end up in civil court? 

23 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: No. You knCM, I 

24 bought the horse and -- here we go again. I didn't get, 

25 quote, unquote, like a pink slip. If you don't have that, 
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you just have a pet. You don't have a ljorse that you can 

show and so the horse is of oo value. 
ll.Jt I trusted the source that I bought it 

fran. Anyway the source left ta.m, and •I was left with a 

horse without any papers. 

THE COORr: A horse with oo name. 
' PROSPECTIVE JUROR: So the indi victual --

an indi victual showed up at my doorstep and said that this 

is my horse and so on and so forth. We~l, I had the bill 

10 of sale. And he had nothing but he claimed he was -- so 
. I . 

11 anyway, he tcok me to small claims. · 
. I 

12 MR. SCHIEX:K: 11,t me interrupt you 

13 because --

14 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: You :don't have time 

15 for this. 

16 MR. SCHIEX:K: It's very ,interesting. I'm 

17 sure that everyone wants to listen to us talk. There was 

18 a question of a.mership of the horse trn;t came up and you 

19 ended up in small claims over it. 

20 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes, 

21 MR. SCHIEX:K: Not a criminal type of 
' 22 procedure? 
' 

23 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: No. ! 

24 MR. SCHIEX:K: Although you called the 

25 p:,lice to say what was going on -- and they helped you 

find the horse. 

ffiOSPECTIVE JUROR: Riglit. 

MR. SCHIEX:K: Okay. You indicated that 

4 your feeling about the death penalty had changed over 
tine. l 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes ,I 

MR. SCHIEX:K: I think ydu indicated the 

increasing crirre rate has caused that cnange of opinion? 
i 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes .. 

10 MR. SCHIEX:K: Anything in particular that 

11 you read or heard that caused you to have that belief? 
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12 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Well, no. ll.Jt I watch 

13 'IV -- and not -- I watch the news and read the paper. 

14 Ard, yes, I see a lot of crine. 
15 MR. SCHIEX:K: But have you heard or have 

16 any infornation .nether we have the dea~ penalty or don't 

17 have the death penalty, it really doesn';t affect the crirre 

18 rate? 
19 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I think you have to --

20 in order to give the death penalty you have to hear the 

21 consequences and be open to any cirrunst'ances before 

n making any kind of judgrrEnt .nether it'J the death penalty 

23- or not. 

21 MR. SCHIEX:K: Yoo agree ;that is a pretty 

25 serious decision to make. And you want :all of the 
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• 1 evidence yoo coold have before you ·rrake that decision? 
PRmPErTIVE JUROR: Absolutely. 
MR. SCHIOCK: Thank you, Ms. Norris. Pass 

for cause, your Honor. · 
THE COOR!': Thank you. Ms. Weckerly, as 

to Mr. Parrarrore. 
t-15. WECKERLY: Sir, you indicated on your 

questionnaire you had personal contact with law 
enforcarent on a OOI? 

10 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

11 

12 ago? 
13 

14 than 20. 
15 

16 
17 

t-15. WECKERLY: Was that a couple of years 

PRmPECTIVE JUROR: More than ten, less 

t-15. WECKERLY: A.hi.le ago. 

l'Ra3PECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

t-15. WECKERLY: Did yoo think you "'re 
18 treated fairly by the police? 
19 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

20 t-15, WOCKERLY: Nothing about that would 
21 cause you to be unfair to either side in this case? 
22 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: No, 

23 t-15. WOCKERLY: You actually had a 

24 different opinion about our criminal justice syst5ll than 

25 this lady over here. You said it was generally good. Arxl 
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1 that's still your feeling as you sat here for tl<l days? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes, ffi3.' am. 

!£. WECKERLY: Slow, but good. 

l'Ra3PECTIVE JUROR: It's fine. 

MS. WECKERLY: You said it wasn't perfect. 

I goes nothing probably is. 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I'm not going to agree 

100 percent. Generally I think it is. 
!£. WECKERLY: You indicated that when you 

10 talked about the potential range of punishments in this 
11 case. You said that you coold consider all four possible 
11 punishments? 
13 l'Ra3PECTIVE JUROR: Yes, ma' am. 
14 !£. WECKERLY: You also indicated that yoo 
15 are saneone that is going to want to hear all the 
16 info!lll3tion before you make a decision? 
17 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes, 
18 t-15. WECKERLY: You' re not going to 
19 automatically include or disregard a punishment before you 

20 hear any info!lll3tion? 
21 
22 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: No, ma' am. 
!£, WECKERLY: Sounds to rre like you can 

23 be fair to both side? 
24 l'Ra3PECTIVE JUROR: I l<luld like to think 

25 so . . 

• MS. WEJ:KERLY: When you wrote about 
whether you coold consider all four possible punistrents, 
you said, yes, if the cr:i!re is so horr~le, or so bad that 

4 the ""rld 1<Juld be better off without illJ!I, then rraybe the 
death penalty. Did he ccmnit the crll!l2 .for an 
understandable reason. Arxl you gave SCJlE exanples, 

l'Ra3PECTIVE JUROR: Let :rre apologize, Toe 
hand writing nay not be the easiest to read. 

I . 
t-15. WECKERLY: I can r°'1dy 1t. I wanted 

10 to ask you a little about that. You said like greed or 
11 jealousy. I think you wrote, et cetera.' Were you just 
12 trying to care up with exarrples? 

13 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes., First of all, in 
11 my opinion all four are the ceath penalty. I was sitting 

15 there with a little bit of info!lll3tion •~ had, that he's 
16 probably 18 years old. It's ccmnitted i,n -- found guilty 

17 in 1996. Camtitted in 1995, '96 sanewhere around there. 

18 So nCM he's 28, at a minirun, probably ~O. Toe STIB.llest 
19 arrount he can get is 40 years. And frCll) what you pick up 
20 off the questionnaire, you think it's a pretty horrific 
21 crllll2, so chances get paroled after the lfirst parole 
22 hearing are slim to none. So "''re 10016.ng at a lll3ll 

' 23 that's in his 70s before he is eligible for parole. 

24 With my opinion, all four are the death penalty. So 

25 to rre the death penalty l<luld be to send a rressage to 
I 

83 

1 society that this crine is so horrible t,hat, as a society, 

"' can't stand and yoo have to do the ultimate. 
I 

MS. WECKERLY: So fran ,hat yoo're saying, 
I rrean, there are sane circumstances that set certain 

5 crirres apart fran other first degree rmn!cters, which nay 

only get the minirun sentence in the S~te of Nevada, 
.hi.ch is 40 years, 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes,' ma' am. 
I . 

t-15. WEJ:KERLY: You can conceive of a 
10 situation where sareone isn 1 t deserving ~of a lenient 

11 sentence? 
12 
13 

PROSPECI'IVE JUl<DR: Yes,; ma• am. 

!£. WECKERLY: And they !l"Y be on the 
14 other end of the spectrum? 
15 

16 
PROSPECI'IVE JUFOR: Yes,

1 
ma' am. 

!£. WECKERLY: If yoo felt that way, 
17 assurre that you could return a verdict 9r mark a box like 
18 that? 
19 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: It's no pleasure. I 
20 guess I coold. 

21 !£. WECKERLY: Certainl~ not. It's not 
22 ever an easy decision. But you are not 1sareone who just, 
23 I can't make a decision like that. You could make that 
24 sort of decision? 

25 l'Ra3PECTIVE JUROR: I could. 
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M3. WEX:KERLY: Thank you, sir. Pass for 

cause, your Honor. 
'lllE COORr: Mr. Patrick. 
MR. PATRICK: GooJ Ill)rning. 

5 Who represented you in your 001? 

PROSPECTIVE JUroR: I have no idea. 

hired an attorney. 

MR. PATRICK: You "'2re happy wi_th your 

representation? 
10 PROSPECTIVE JUroR: It was a lady. But, 

11 yes. 

12 MR. PATRICK: You thought you "'2re treated 

13 fair? 

14 PRffiPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

15 MR: PATRICK: Got an appropriate 

16 punishment? 
11 PROSPECTIVE JUroR: Yes, sir. 

18 MR. PATRICK: That was at least ten years 

19 ago? 

20 PROSPECTIVE JUR'.JR: Yes. 

21 MR. PATRICK: So that in no way would 

22 influence you as to these proceeding? 

23 PROSPECTIVE JUroR: No, sir. 

24 MR. PATRICK: One cament I found 

25 interesting was when you are put ck,,in you are not patient 
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with stupid. Could you explain that? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: It's pretty nuch true 

all of ITrf life, not just since I've been here. I've seen 

4 peq,le two busy with their personal life to pay attention 

s to jury services. To get in line and not turn off their 

telephone. Maybe stupid isn't the right word, 

inconsiderate. This is very serious for Mr. Chappell, for 

the rest of us. It's kind of rude, not to take it as 
serious and not put ck,,in what you' re doing and give it 

10 your tine and attention. 

11 MR. PATRICK: You understand the 

12 seriousness of this. And you would devote your full 
13 attention to anything that goes on if you were picked as a 

14 juror. 

15 PROSPECTIVE JURCR: If you put rre on the 
16 jury, there's a good chance I might be taking my belt off 

11 and spanking sarebody for showing up late or not paying 

18 attention. 

19 MR. PATRICK: Well, if "" pick you for the 
20 jury, could you refrain fran that at least until we're 

21 dcne? 
21 PROSPECTIVE JUroR: I could try. 

23 MR. PATRICK: Now, on the question where 
24 it asked whether or not it would make a difference whether 
25 the victim in this case was of a different race, you 
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marked down if it was a hate criire. 

PROSPECTIVE JUroR: If the victim was 

chosen because of their race. Now, I krjow quite a bit --

4 ""' ve all heard the stories about the gentleman that was 
dragged behind the car because of his r~ce. All of the 

others, yes, that would make a differense, 

MR. PATRICK: But if th~ victim was of a 

difference race arr! it wasn't a hate crip°e, then it 
wouldn't happen. 

10 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: It "1llld haH)ell to be 

11 just two people. 

12 MR. PATRICK: Ms. Weckerly was talking 

13 about the list you had. Jealousy and greed I think ""re 

14 the two main ones. If this case had to 'cto with either one 

15 of those, would you autC11Btically vote for the death 

16 penalty? 

17 PROSPECTIVE JUroR: I \110re understanding 

18 of what I can understand of what 110tive~ were, as opposed 

19 to the snipers -- the two gentlerren that were taking pot 

20 shots out of their car for what I see tci be no reason. I 

21 could be 110re understanding of jealousy,1 110re 

22 understanding of greed then I could be qf just sarebody 

23 for giggles getting in the back of the ,;ar and taking pot 

24 shots at strangers for fun. 

25 MR. PATRICK: You listed those as reasons 

for the death penalty --
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Ma)lje I put those ck,,in 

as reasons I could oversee the death penalty, or not give 

4 the death penalty. 

MR. PATRICK: You still want to hear all 

of the facts before you make a decision: 

PROSPECTIVE JUroR: If I were to find out 

that this was his Ill)ti ve -- this was his girlfriend, which 

this doesn't say in here -- and she was :cheating with 

10 another l\l3Il and he lost his terrper and got jealous and 

11 shot him. Then I could understand that.> And I might be 
12 rrore lenient, then if it was a perfect ~tranger and he 
13 drove to her house and killed her. 

14 MR. PATRICK: You'd list<m to all the 

15 evidence and keep an open mind throughout the whole 
16 process before you made a decision? 

17 PROSPECTIVE JUroR: Yes, ,sir. 
18 MR. PATRICK: You'd make a decision that 

19 you felt was the best one for the situation? 

20 

21 

PROSPECTIVE JUroR: Yes, 'sir. 
I 

MR. PATRICK: Thank you,: sir. Pass for 
22 cause, your Honor. 
2 3 1llE COORr : Thank you. We ' 11 take a --
24 it's about 12:45. We really need a very lll311 nuroer of 

25 peq,le to be questioned by the attorneys before "" finish 
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